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SR AR 2
RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS

Chongqging Machinery & Electric Co., Ltd. (the “Company” or
“CQME") and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) announce

the highlights of the consolidated results as set out below.

o Revenue of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2025
amounted to approximately RMB4,658.1 million, representing an
increase of approximately 9.2% from the corresponding period

of last year.

o Gross profit of the Group for the six months ended 30
June 2025 amounted to approximately RMB799.8 million,
representing an increase of approximately 10.4% from the

corresponding period of last year.

° Profit attributable to the shareholders of the Company for the
six months ended 30 June 2025 amounted to approximately
RMB416.0 million,

53.8% from the corresponding period of last year.

representing an increase of approximately

° Basic earnings per share for the six months ended 30 June
2025 amounted to approximately RMBO0.11, representing an
increase of approximately 57.1% from the corresponding

period of last year.

° Net assets per share for the six months ended 30 June 2025
amounted to approximately RMB2.41, representing an increase

of 5.2% from the corresponding period of last year.

INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended the payment of a interim dividend of
RMBO0.01 per share (tax inclusive) for the six months ended 30 June
2025 (for six months ended 30 June 2024: nil), which is calculated
based on the total share capital of 3,684,640,154 shares for the six
months ended 30 June 2025 totalling RMB36,846,401.54 (totalling
RMBO for six months ended 30 June 2024). Subject to the approval
by shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) at the forthcoming
extraordinary general meeting to be convened on 28 October 2025,
the proposed interim dividend will be paid on 25 November 2025 to
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of

the Company on 11 November 2025.
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Dear shareholders,

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to
announce the interim results of the Group for the six-months period
ended 30 June 2025 (the “Period”). The Group’s interim results
have not been audited but have been reviewed by the audit and
risk management committee and the Company’s auditor, ShineWing

Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership).

During the Period, the Company’s subsidiary Chongging Machine
Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. (the “Machine Tool Group”) acquired 100% of
the equity interests in Chongging Panlian Transmission Technology
Co., Ltd. held by Chongqging Electromechanical Holding Group
Asset Management Co., Ltd. Therefore, during the Period and in
2024, adjustments must be made to the relevant accounting items
and consolidated reporting items. Except for the above changes,
there have been no significant changes to the Group’s important

accounting policies and accounting estimates during the Period.

I. INTERNATIONAL AND DOMESTIC REVIEW FOR
THE FIRST HALF OF THE YEAR

In the first half of the year, the global economy continued
its trend of low growth, with increasing divergence in
monetary and trade policies. The U.S. economy exhibited
characteristics of stagflation and monetary tightening, with
a weakening trend in consumer momentum; the European
economy showed moderate recovery, but significant internal
divergence, with high inflation and sluggish recovery in the
UK, and emerging concerns regarding debt sustainability in
Southern Europe; Japan’s economy faced the dual challenges
of weak growth and high inflation, with yen depreciation
exacerbating import-driven inflationary pressures and hindering
export competitiveness. The performance of other emerging
economies has been varied, with some Asian economies
benefiting from robust growth due to regional integration, while
Latin America has been significantly impacted by fluctuations
in the U.S. dollar. Since the beginning of this year, the Chinese
government has implemented more proactive fiscal policies
and moderately accommodative monetary policies, intensifying

counter-cyclical adjustments, accelerating the promotion of
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“New Infrastructure and New Urbanization Initiatives” initiatives
(a new round of large-scale equipment updates and trade-
in of consumer goods) and “Major Implementation and Key
Construction” constructions (implementation of major national
strategies and enhancement of security capabilities in key
areas), further boosting consumption, promoting technological
innovation, and cultivating new productive forces, although the
real estate sector remains in a period of adjustment; overall,
the economic operation shows a trend of steady progress
and positive development towards new goals, but growth
momentum still needs to be continuously strengthened. In the

first half of the year, China’s GDP grew by 5.3% year-on-year.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW OF THE GROUP IN
THE FIRST HALF OF THE YEAR

In the first half of the year, the Group overcame numerous
adverse factors such as intensified industry competition,
actively integrating into the new development pattern,
focusing on major national strategies such as green and low-
carbon transformation and innovation-driven development
and Chongging’s modern manufacturing cluster system of
“33618”". By breaking down traditional industry boundaries
and integrating innovative development platforms, the Group
accelerated the adjustment, transformation, upgrading
and digital empowerment of traditional industries, carried
out research on major technological equipment and
industrialization applications of innovation achievements to
enhance product added value and market competitiveness,
continuously moving towards the high end of the value chain.
Simultaneously, the Group continued to optimize in various
aspects such as market expansion, brand building, R&D
innovation, risk management, talent attraction and sustainable
development strategy, improve quality and create efficiency
and promote high-quality development. The scientific and
technological applications and core competitiveness of the
Group have been improved, laying the foundation for the
comprehensive completion of the annual goals set by the

Board.
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III. OUTLOOK FOR INTERNATIONAL AND

DOMESTIC SITUATION IN THE SECOND HALF
OF THE YEAR

In the second half of the year, global trade protectionism and
geopolitical risks are expected to intensify, with adjustments
and bargaining related to tariffs presenting further challenges
to the global economy, thereby increasing the risks of
economic downturn. The United States may continue its
high tariff policies and escalate technology restrictions,
while the European Union may follow suit with trade barrier
measures, leading to further fragmentation of global supply
chains. The ongoing strengthening of unilateralism could
result in a restructuring of international trade rules. The
uncertainty stemming from Trump’s policies has rendered
the Federal Reserve’s interest rate policy unpredictable,
disrupting the formulation and implementation of economic
policies in other global economies and consequently exerting
continuous pressure on global financial markets. Currently,
external instability and numerous uncertainties prevail, while
domestic effective demand remains insufficient, necessitating
reinforcement and consolidation of the foundation for domestic
economic recovery. In the second half of the year, the Chinese
government will adhere to the overall principle of seeking
progress while maintaining stability, fully and accurately
implement the new development philosophy, accelerate the
construction of a new development paradigm, coordinate
domestic economic work with international trade struggles,
further strengthen the domestic economic cycle, and respond
to external uncertainties with the certainty of high-quality
development, thereby promoting sustained, stable, and healthy
economic growth. It is anticipated that China’s economy will
maintain a stable and improving trend in the second half of the

year.
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DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES AND WORK
PRIORITIES OF THE GROUP FOR THE SECOND
HALF OF THE YEAR

Development strategies of the Group for the second half of the

year are as follows:

In the second half of the year, the Group will continue to
focus on the important development opportunities of building
a modern manufacturing cluster system in Chongging. In line
with the strategic planning and reform and development needs
for the 2025-2027 period, the Group will strive to promote
the transformation and upgrading of existing industries and
the cultivation of new industries, with the aim of improving
operational efficiency and effectiveness. Centering on the
various goals and tasks assigned by the Board of the Company
at the beginning of the year, the Group achieving results in
aspects such as industrial development, innovation drive,
capital operation, risk control and corporate governance, so
as to advance the high-quality development of the Group and

comprehensively and properly complete the work priorities in

the second half of the year:
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Work priorities for the second half of the year:

1

Strengthening Market Expansion to Enhance
Competitiveness

First, the Group will leverage the role of a megamarketing
platform to enhance the sharing of platforms, customers,
resources, and information, developing a “technical
marketing + service value-added” model. The Group
will strengthen cooperation with central and local state-
owned enterprises, high-quality private enterprises, and
key overseas clients, deepening strategic customer
partnerships. Second, the Group will capitalize on the
advantages of our foreign trade network and collaborative
efforts, relying on important customer resources from “One
Belt One Road” countries to promote overseas deployment
and distributor cultivation, expanding our international
business. Third, the Group will drive business process
reengineering, enhancing integration across research,
production, and sales. The Group will improve demand-
oriented R&D mechanisms and joint review systems
for new product development, facilitating the deep
involvement of technical departments in front-end product
planning to respond rapidly to customer demands. The
Group will actively shift market competition strategies
from product competition to solution competition, further
enhancing product competitiveness and profitability,
accelerating the layout of intelligent and green new
products, and forming differentiated competitive

advantages.
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Promoting Resource Integration to Enhance Collaborative

Value

First, the Group will plan the “15th Five-Year” strategic
framework, focusing on the development of high-
end complete equipment such as clean energy and
industrial mother machines, cultivating industries
related to renewable energy sources like wind, solar,
and hydrogen storage, accelerating the construction
of high-end equipment system integration capabilities,
and establishing ourselves as a comprehensive
service provider for green energy. Second, the Group
will strengthen industrial collaboration by integrating
resources within the group, promoting subsidiaries to
enhance communication and cooperation in areas such as
industry chains, supply chains, marketing channels, and
technological research and development, and establishing
a sound capacity-sharing platform and collaborative
value-sharing mechanism. Third, the Group will leverage
the advantages of a centralized procurement platform
to drive the collective procurement of bulk raw materials
and outsourced machining, establishing a shortlist of
core suppliers and an internal allocation system for idle
materials, thereby improving supply chain resilience
and bargaining power while shortening procurement
delivery cycles. Fourth, the Group will enhance investment
development by forming a cross-professional and cross-
departmental investment team focused on industries,
technology, finance, and risk control, establishing a
research framework for new productive forces and future
industries, and conducting specialized studies in key

areas.
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3)

Focusing on Innovation-Driven Growth to Promote

Research Collaboration and Transformation

First, the Group will focus on upgrading our core
business, particularly in areas such as production line
automation transformation, digital workshop construction,
and the establishment of benchmark intelligent factories,
as well as in process technology improvements related to
key process innovations, green process transformations,
and quality enhancement. Second, the Group will use
the opportunity of a new round of large-scale equipment
updates to develop new products that meet market
demands, continuously advancing the development of
platform-level new products and enhancing market share
through standardization, modularization, and serialization.
Third, the Group will strengthen industry, academic and
research collaborations, continuously enriching our pool
of experts, enhancing the scientific and forward-looking
nature of technical strategies and major project feasibility
studies, and continuously strengthening exchanges and
cooperation with universities and research institutions to
promote the co-construction of innovation platforms and
establish “industry, academia, research and application”
innovation alliances, facilitating applied technology
development and the transformation of scientific

achievements.
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Enhancing Efficiency through Lean Management and
Infusing Vitality through Digital Empowerment

First, the Group will continue to deepen lean management
in subsidiaries, continuously improving the management
system. The Group will promote team capability building
through lean Six Sigma green belt training and focus
on the realization of green belt projects to efficiently
achieve annual improvement targets. Second, the Group
will conduct timely analysis and intervention on lagging
items, perform regular financial analysis, and enhance
the disaggregation and analysis of financial data at
the business level; accurately grasping the rhythm of
receipts and payments to improve operational cash
flow. Third, the Group will maximize the effectiveness of
“Digital Electromechanical”, accelerate the optimization
of business-finance integration platforms, marketing
collaboration platforms, and computability platforms,
further empowering strategic decision-making, resource
management, risk analysis, product innovation,
manufacturing optimization, and service upgrades. Fourth,
the Group will optimize and improve the talent sharing
platform, strengthening talent recruitment and cultivation
around the “five capabilities” of strategic leadership,
capital operations, system integration, market expansion,
and operational management, while enhancing the
recruitment of high-level professionals in related fields
and training existing talent to solidify our human resources

foundation.
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Sustainable Development

First, the Group will conduct two quarterly risk
investigation, optimizing prevention and control
measures, focusing on tackling medium and high-risk
issues, and promoting the recovery of debts and the
resolution of complex cases to safeguard the Group’s
operational achievements and legal rights. Second, the
Group will carry out self-inspection and self-assessment
of the internal control systems of all subsidiaries by
2025, ensuring effective design and execution of these
systems, addressing any gaps, and guaranteeing the
smooth operation of internal controls. Third, the Group
will enhance legal awareness through legal education
campaigns for employees; the Group will strengthen
compliance reviews to ensure comprehensive legal audits
of three key areas to guarantee lawful and compliant
operations. Fourth, the Group will conduct legal audits and
supervise the rectification of issues, strictly implementing
closed-loop management; the Group will carry out
strategic audits to comprehensively review the “14th
Five-Year” strategic plan, guiding the more scientific,
objective, and reasonable formulation of the “15th Five-
Year” strategic plan. Fifth, the Group will strictly implement
safety production responsibility systems, leveraging HSE
management system capabilities to resolutely prevent

significant safety and environmental incidents.
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Upgrading Governance to Strengthen Norms and Promote
Value Creation for Win-Win Outcomes

First, the Group will enhance the organic integration of
the latest regulatory requirements with daily governance,
actively responding to the latest corporate governance
code requirements, providing training for directors,
supervisors and senior management, and strictly
adhering to information disclosure while increasing
the frequency of voluntary disclosures. Second, the
Group will systematically promote the enhancement of
corporate value, strengthening multi-level and multi-
channel interaction mechanisms with investors, actively
listening to their demands and suggestions, improving the
quality and effectiveness of communication with investors,
and enhancing their sense of recognition regarding
the company’s strategy and long-term value. Third, in
line with the latest ESG regulatory requirements, the
Group will further improve the ESG strategic framework
and management mechanisms, optimizing various ESG
objectives and indicators, and solidly promoting the

enhancement of ESG governance.
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CONCLUSION

The Group will remain confident and focus on its three-year
strategic plan and reform and development needs, optimize
resource allocation, improve lean management, promote industrial
transformation and upgrading, cultivate and consolidate core
industries, and ensure the implementation of business plans and
action plans, striving to achieve the annual objectives and tasks,
make greater contributions to achieving the vision of “becoming

China’s first-class equipment group”.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my heartfelt
gratitude to our shareholders for their support and trust. My sincere
appreciation also goes to our directors, supervisors and all of our

staff for their efforts in contributing to the Group.

Yue Xiangjun
Executive Director and General Manager

(performing duties and powers of the chairman of the Board)

Chongging, the PRC
20 August 2025
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BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

The table below sets forth the revenue, gross profit and segment
results attributable to major business segments of the Group for the
periods indicated:

KA E | FEELE
Revenue Gross Profit Segment Results
HEAA=THLEE BEAA=TALEE BEAAZTHLEE
Period ended 30 June Period ended 30 June Period ended 30 June
“ECRF ZTCME ZEC-RF —TINF —E-HF —TIWE
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
(EZiL) (&) (AEit)
(As restateq) (As restated)) (As restated)
(AREEET  BALEI)
(RMB in millions, except for percentage)
BREREEEY Clean energy equipment business
AR (F1) General machinery (Note 1) 1,125 1,118.6 264.9 318.7 85.8 128.3
BEER Wind power blades 1,205.9 1,119.1 165.8 1181 28.0 328
BEREE Electrical wires and cables 1,149.2 9936 151.8 118.0 30.9 40.9
HtER (72 Other products (Note 2) 180.6 128.1 31.3 (18.3) 8.1 (157.2)
GRS Total 3,738.2 3.359.4 613.8 536.5 152.8 448
FREEHL % of total 80.3% 78.8% 76.7% 74.0% 33.9% 135%
BiRERREEYR High-end smart equipment business
BB IR Smart machine tools 435.3 4434 1027 110.1 (22.3) AN
HerslE Intelligent manufacturing 265.3 284.4 349 40.4 (15.6) 34
HtER(772) Other products (Note 2) 180.3 1433 19.8 115 0.2 (6.8)
GRS Total 880.9 871.1 1574 162.0 (37.7) 383
FREENL % of total 18.9% 20.4% 19.7% 22.4% (8.4%) 15%
TERKER Industrial services business
G Financial 28.2 256 217 227 14.9 289
25 Trade - 18 - 1.3 - (05)
Hib AR Other services 37 74 0.3 1.2 (3.0) (36)
CE Total 31.9 348 220 25.2 1.9 248
FAEAENL % of total 0.7% 0.8% 2.8% 35% 2.6% 75%
@ Headquarters
GRS Total 7.1 06 6.6 06 324.4 224.1
FREANL % of total 0.1% 0.0% 0.8% 0.1% 71.9% 67.5%
@t Total 4,658.1 42659 799.8 724.3 451.4 3320

A1-ARERAFRBERABIER

RS BRI

HREBEHERRBMEBRL -

22— AKRERKNBEERBENEARREGED BEAM

FETRAL

Note 1 - The Group included the industrial pumps, gas compressors and oil
and gas businesses in general machinery business according to
the principle of combination of similar categories.

Note 2 - The Group grouped hydroelectric generation equipment and
steering systems businesses into other products.

2025 %k [ 49
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

CLEAN ENERGY EQUIPMENT (BUSINESSES
INCLUDING WIND POWER BLADES, ELECTRICAL
WIRES AND CABLES AND MATERIALS,
INDUSTRIAL PUMPS, INDUSTRY BLOWERS, GAS
COMPRESSORS, HYDROELECTRIC GENERATION
EQUIPMENT AND OIL AND GAS SERVICE, ETC.)

In the first half of 2025, the Group’s clean energy equipment
segment seized market opportunities, further enhancing the stability
of the customer structure in the wind power blade business, with
market share remaining stable. The industrial pump business
continued to deepen its engagement with major clients, securing a
second-phase order for diaphragm pumps from a steel-aluminum
integration industry in Hebei, exceeding RMB127 million. The
market strategy advantages of the electrical wires and cables and
materials business became apparent, successfully winning bids in
multiple instances within the power sector, with contracts totalling
over RMB120 million from six provincial grid companies. The
refrigeration compressor business secured significant projects from
Jiangsu Lanze Energy Technology Co., Ltd.* CT# = ZfLREI A
[R/2&]) * Zhongfei Petrochemical Co., Ltd* (R RALBRE R F) -
Hubei Yihua Chemical Industry Co., Ltd.* Gt Bt EEHR & (£
A @)) -+ Jilin University of Chemical Technology* (% #{t T2 8)
achieving orders worth over RMB57 million. The gas compressor
business actively participated in the “Chengdu-Chongging hydrogen
corridor” project and successfully partnered with China Petroleum
and Chemical Corporation (F1 Bl Al Tk 7 AR A &) to establish
the first 1,000-kilogram hydrogen refueling station. The hydroelectric
equipment business focused on industrial services, adding new
orders exceeding RMB77 million, setting a historical high. In the
first half of the year, this segments, except for the gas compressor
business, experienced a year-on-year decline due to order delivery
cycles concentrated in the second half of the year, achieved good
growth compared to the same period last year. The overall operating
income of this segment reached approximately RMB3,738.2 million,

representing an increase of approximately 11.3% year-on-year.
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During the Period, the gross profit of the clean energy equipment
operating segment was approximately RMB613.8 million,
representing an increase of approximately RMB77.3 million or
approximately 14.4% as compared with approximately RMB536.5
million for the same period of last year. As of 30 June 2025, the
profit of the clean energy equipment operating segment was
approximately RMB152.8 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB108.0 million or approximately 241.1% as
compared with approximately RMB44.8 million for the same period
of last year, which was mainly due to the significant reduction in
losses was the increase in the scale of the hydroelectric equipment

business.

In the first half of the year, the industrial pump business segment
completed the construction of some test platforms for the Fourth
Generation Nuclear Power Lead Bismuth Main Pump Project. The
gas compressor business developed a high-flow low-temperature
BOG compressor, finalizing the technical agreement for research
and development in collaboration with Xi'an Jiaotong University. The
wire and cable business completed sample testing for the dual-layer
insulated waterproof B1-level cross-lined polyethylene insulation wire
project, while the electromagnetic wire series products project is
currently undergoing process validation. The hydroelectric business
segment achieved technical development for high-altitude turbine

generator units, completing the design of the ventilation system.
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In the second half of the year, the wind power blade business
will strengthen new product development and innovation in new
processes, advancing the development of a sharing platform
in cooperation with customers, continuously optimizing product
structures based on customer load requirements, and accelerating
decision-making and optimization of construction plans for offshore
wind power bases; the industrial pump business will continue
to explore overseas markets, accelerating the establishment
of overseas stationing and cultivating overseas distributors,
establishing service points in Southeast Asia, and expanding
distributors in South America, the Middle East, and Central Asia;
the electrical wire and cable and materials business will build
a diversified business model, accelerate the construction of
electromagnetic wire projects, and speed up development in new
sectors; the industrial blower business will focus on breakthroughs
in the coking industry, mining, thermal power, and international
trade to form new market support; the gas compressor business will
implement a differentiated competitive strategy, enhancing demand
development for key fields and customers, and vigorously promote
R&D of new products like large-flow BOG compressors and 6M32
high-speed skid-mounted compressors; the hydroelectric equipment
business will continue to deepen the industrial service market,
increasing its share in the after-service market and continuously
improving gross profit levels. It is expected that this segment will

achieve steady growth throughout the year.

Additionally, Chongging Cummins Engine Co. Ltd. (“Chongging
Cummins”), a joint venture of the company, specializes in producing
high-horsepower diesel engines. In the first half of the year,
Chongaging Cummins accelerated the expansion of new products
and new markets while strengthening internal management. On the
product side, the Q60 engine has the capacity for mass supply;
the development of the Q50 engine for power generation and the
Q19 engine for industrial applications is progressing rapidly, with
the methanol engine prototype successfully delivered. In terms of
market performance, the power segment continued to show good
growth, with high-horsepower product sales increasing by 8%
year-on-year. On the management side, the company has been
deepening lean management and initiating supply chain reforms,
leading to significant improvements in operational performance. It
is expected that the business performance will also maintain good

growth in the second half of the year.
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HIGH-END SMART EQUIPMENT (BUSINESSES
INCLUDING SMART MACHINE TOOLS,
SMART SYSTEM INTEGRATION AND SMART
ELECTRONICS, ETC.)

In the first half of the year, the Group’s subsidiary, PTG in the UK,
faced financial strain due to project delays from clients, coupled
with exchange rate fluctuations, rising interest rates, and increasing
energy prices, which eroded profit margins, leading to a decline in
operational performance; the smart equipment system integration
business experienced setbacks due to project delays from some
clients, while the smart electronics business was affected by
strategic adjustments from major clients and tariffs resulting from
US-China trade tensions. However, the high-end CNC machine tool
business saw good market growth in the first half, driving significant
increases in products like grinding machines and CNC hobbing
machines, leading to a notable improvement in operational profits
and contributing to the overall segment achieving approximately
RMB880.9 million in operating revenue, a slight year-on-year

increase of about 1.1%.

During the Period, the gross profit of the high-end smart equipment
operating segment was approximately RMB157.4 million,
representing a decrease of approximately RMB4.6 million or
approximately 2.8% as compared with approximately RMB162.0
million for the same period of last year. For the six months ended
30 June 2025, the loss of the high-end smart equipment operating
segment was approximately RMB37.7 million, compared to a profit
of approximately RMB38.3 million in the same period of last year,
representing an increase in losses. This was primarily due to a
decline in PTG business during the Period, which exacerbated
losses, as well as the impact of overseas trade friction on the

intelligent manufacturing business.
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During the Period, Chongging Machine Tool Group acquired 100%
equity interest in Chongging Panlian Transmission Technology Co.,
Ltd. held by Chongqging Electromechanical Holding Group Asset
Management Co., Ltd. This transaction was conducted under the
same control, resulting in adjustments to the consolidation ratio
during the Period and restatement of data for 2024. Concurrently,
Chongqing Sino-Germany Smart Factory Solutions Co., Ltd ceased
to be consolidated (For more details, please refer to the Company’s
announcements respectively dated 27 February 2025, 18 March
2025 and 23 April 2025, which were published on the HKEXnews

website of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk)).

In the first half of the year, the CNC machine tool business achieved
qualified axial position accuracy measurements for the HG350C
CNC profile grinding machine, reaching international advanced
levels. The software project for the honing machine is progressing
in collaboration with the UK, having completed the development of
honing processing and correction algorithms. The YS7232GH high-
precision grinding machine project entered the tool holder assembly
design phase in June. The research on the integrated forming
process of water-cooled nozzles for metal 3D printers successfully
completed trial printing of four new parts, which have been delivered
to customers for testing. The smart electronics business completed
the main design of the three-axis motion platform. The research and
application project for the collaborative robot automated handling
platform has entered the process debugging stage.

In the second half of the year, the Group’'s CNC machine
tool business will further strengthen technological innovation,
accelerating the development of the next generation of high-
performance grinding machines for new energy vehicles, hobbing
machines for humanoid robots, and honing composite machines
for precision reducers, while also focusing on overcoming key
technologies such as powerful honing processes to achieve
domestic substitution. The smart equipment system integration
business will continue to deepen relationships with key existing
customers such as China Railway Tunnel and State Energy Group,
while accelerating the implementation of projects for new customers
such as China Coal Research Institute and Tiandi Benniu. It is
expected that this segment will maintain steady growth throughout

the year.
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INDUSTRIAL SERVICES (BUSINESSES INCLUDING
INDUSTRIAL EMPOWERMENT, FINANCING AND
CENTRALIZED PROCUREMENT, ETC.)

In the first half of the year, the overall operating income of industrial
services reached approximately RMB31.9 million, representing
a decrease of approximately RMB2.9 million as compared with

approximately RMB34.8 million for the same period of last year.

During the Period, the gross profit of the industrial services
operating segment was approximately RMB22.0 million, representing
a decrease of approximately RMB3.2 million or approximately
12.7% as compared with approximately RMB25.2 million for
the same period of last year. For the six months ended 30 June
2025, the results of the industrial services operating segment
was approximately RMB11.9 million, representing a decrease
of approximately RMB12.9 million or approximately 52.0% as
compared with approximately RMB24.8 million for the same period
of last year, which was mainly due to impact of falling interest rates
on financial business. It is expected that this segment will remain

unchanged year-on-year.

In the first half of the year, the industrial empowerment business
continued to advance the construction of “digital electromechanical”
systems, achieving phased results in R&D design, business
control, and digital base. The integrated design simulation platform
efficiently utilizes resources, enabling collaborative R&D among
subsidiaries. The integration of finance and business completed pilot
projects with two subsidiaries, laying the foundation for group-wide
promotion. Project management and the HSE system standardized
business processes, achieving digital management. The loT
platform connected over 1,900 devices, facilitating transparent
management of equipment. The data platform deployed multiple
standards, equipped with capabilities for massive data governance
and analysis. Intelligent economic operation analysis covered 15
sectors and 180 indicators, providing data support for decision-
making. The financial business accelerated the construction of the
treasury management system, optimized the allocation of financial
resources, and strengthened capital risk control to achieve efficient

flow and reasonable allocation of funds.
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In the second half of the year, the procurement business will take
the lead in creating an “Intelligent Business Travel Management
Platform” for “CQME Mobility” designed for the Group’s internal
travel procurement, expense control, and reconciliation in a one-
stop digital management system. Utilizing intelligent methods, the
platform aims to reduce costs, control expenses, and enhance
lean management efficiency. The financial business will continue
to strengthen innovation, complete the phased construction of the
treasury, promote digital intelligent empowerment, and solidify risk
compliance. It is expected that this segment will maintain stability

throughout the year.

RESULTS OVERVIEW

Awards and Honours

The Group focuses on the businesses of clean energy equipment
and high-end intelligent equipment, conforms with the important
development strategies of the state, i.e. “promote the high-end,
intelligent, and green development of manufacturing”, and centered
on the carbon peak and carbon neutrality goals of the state, and
is committed to promoting green development of manufacturing,
continue to cultivate brand culture. Many products of the Group
have obvious competitive advantages in market segments and

overseas markets.

In the first half of the year, the Group obtained 33 new authorized
patents, of which 29 were authorized invention patents. The Group
participated in the formulation of 4 national standards and 3 industry
standards. During the period, the subsidiaries of the Group were

awarded the following awards:

o Chongqging Pump Industry Co., Ltd. was successfully
selected as one of the first 16 enterprises recognized by the
Chongqing State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission for building a first-class well-known brand. Its
project on “Key Technologies and Applications of High-
Performance Special Industrial Pumps” received a first prize

from the Chongaing Science and Technology Progress.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

. Chongqging Pigeon Electric Wires & Cable Co., Ltd. was
successfully selected as one of the first 16 enterprises
recognized by the Chongqing State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Commission for building a first-class well-
known brand and awarded the title of Chongqging Industrial

Design Center.

. Chongging Chengfei New Material Co., Ltd. was rated as a
Specialized and New small and medium-sized enterprise in
Chongging. Its project on “Key Technology Development and
Industrialization of Ultra-Large High-Modulus Glass Fiber Wind
Power Blades” received the first prize from the Chongging

Science and Technology Progress.

. Chongging Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. passed the re-
evaluation for Specialized and New enterprises in Chongging,
and its project on “Key Technologies and Equipment for
Precision Grinding of Gears for New Energy Automobile”
received a first prize from the Chongaging Science and

Technology Progress.

o Chongging Holoyd Precision Screw Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
was recognized as Specialized and New small and medium-

sized enterprise in Chongging.

SALES

For the six months ended 30 June 2025, the Group’s total revenue
amounted to approximately RMB4,658.1 million, representing an
increase of approximately 9.2% as compared with approximately

RMB4,265.9 million for the same period of last year.

In general, revenue of the clean energy equipment segment was
approximately RMB3,738.2 million (accounting for approximately
80.3% of the total revenue), representing an increase of approximately
11.3%; revenue of the high-end smart manufacturing segment was
approximately RMB880.9 million (accounting for approximately 18.9%
of the total revenue), representing an increase of approximately 1.1%;
revenue of the industrial service segment was approximately RMB31.9
million (accounting for approximately 0.7% of the total revenue),

representing a decrease of approximately 8.3%.
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During the Period, the sales revenue of main business segments
showed steady growth. It is expected that the overall sales revenue
of the Group for the whole year of 2025 will achieve a steady

growth.

There has been no significant change in the possible future
development of the Group’s business and the Group’s outlook
for the financial year of 2025 since the publication of the Group’s

annual report for the year ended 31 December 2024.

GROSS PROFIT

The gross profit for the six months ended 30 June 2025 was
approximately RMB799.8 million, showing an increase of
approximately RMB75.5 million or approximately 10.4% as
compared with approximately RMB724.3 million for the same period
of last year. The Group’s gross profit margin is expected to remain

stable growth in the second half of 2025.

OTHER INCOME

Other income for the six months ended 30 June 2025 was
approximately RMB54.2 million, showing a decrease of
approximately RMB35.1 million or approximately 39.3% as
compared with approximately RMB89.3 million for the same period
of last year, mainly due to a 46.6% year-on-year decrease in

government subsidy income during the Period.

GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF ASSET

Gain on disposal of assets for the six months ended 30 June 2025
was approximately RMB8.5 million. Details are set out in Note V.62

to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Information.
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SALES AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The sales and administrative expenses for the six months ended
30 June 2025 were approximately RMB413.5 million, showing a
decrease of approximately RMB9.3 million or approximately 2.2%
as compared with approximately RMB422.8 million for the same
period of last year. The ratio of sales and administrative expenses
to sales decreased from approximately 9.9% in the same period
last year to approximately 8.9%. A year-on-year increase in selling
expenses of approximately RMB7.5 million was mainly due to the
increase in sales service fee. Administrative expenses decreased
by approximately RMB16.8 million year-on-year, mainly due to the
change of performance calculation method by individual subsidiary
and the deconsolidation of Chongging Sino-Germany Smart Factory
Solutions Co., Ltd.* during the Period.

OPERATING PROFIT

The operating profit for the six months ended 30 June 2025
was approximately RMB451.4 million, showing an increase of
approximately RMB119.4 million or approximately 36.0% as
compared with approximately RMB332.0 million for the same period
of last year, mainly due to significant improvement in the operating
performance of hydropower equipment business, and growth in

investment income.

FINANCE COSTS

The net interest expenses for the six months ended 30 June 2025
were approximately RMB29.0 million, representing a significant
decrease of approximately RMB16.6 million or approximately
36.4% as compared with approximately RMB45.6 million for the
same period of last year, which was mainly due to the a significant
decrease in interest expenses and bill discounting expenses

compared to the same period last year.
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INVESTMENT INCOME

For the six months ended 30 June 2025, the Group’s investment
income was approximately RMB398.1 million, representing an
increase of approximately RMB116.4 million or approximately
41.3% as compared with approximately RMB281.7 million for the
same period of last year. This was mainly attributable to Chongqging
Cummins’ performance, which increased by approximately RMB71.3
million or approximately 27.6% compared to the same period last
year, followed by Chongqging Hitachi Energy’s performance, which
increased by approximately RMB28.8 million or approximately
156.6% compared to the same period last year. Relevant details
are set out in Note V.58 to the Condensed Consolidated Interim

Financial Information.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

The income tax expenses for the six months ended 30 June 2025
were approximately RMB22.6 million, representing a significant
decrease of approximately RMB25.4 million as compared with
approximately RMB48.0 million for the same period of last year,
which was mainly due to income tax incentives enjoyed by individual
companies and changes in deferred tax. Relevant details are set
out in Note V.65 to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial

Information.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

Profit attributable to shareholders for the Period was approximately
RMB416.0 million, representing an increase of approximately
RMB145.6 million or approximately 53.8% as compared with
approximately RMB270.4 million for the same period of last year.
Earnings per share increased from approximately RMBO0.07 in the

same period last year to approximately RMBO0.11 in the Period.
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SECURED ASSETS

As at 30 June 2025, approximately RMB617.0 million of the
Group was deposited with the banks with pledge or restriction
for use (as of 31 December 2024, the amount was approximately
RMB642.2 million). In addition, restricted notes receivable of
certain subsidiaries of the Group by pledging notes with banks and

financial institutes amounted to approximately RMB67.4 million.

CASH FLOW

As at 30 June 2025, the cash and bank deposits (including
restricted cash) of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB2,422.8 million (31 December 2024: approximately RMB2,744.9
million), representing a decrease of approximately RMB322.1 million
or approximately 11.7%, which was mainly due to the decrease in

operating cash flow.

During the Period, the Group recorded a net cash outflow from
operating activities of approximately RMB516.7 million (net cash
outflow approximately RMB251.8 million for the same period of
last year), a net cash inflow of investing activities of approximately
RMB151.5 million (net cash outflow approximately RMB120.7 million
for the same period of last year), and a net cash inflow of financing
activities of approximately RMB66.0 million (net cash outflow

approximately RMB431.7 million for the same period of last year).
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ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

As at 30 June 2025, the total accounts receivables and other
receivables of the Group amounted to approximately RMB4,644.6
million, showing an increase of approximately RMB852.7 million
as compared with approximately RMB3,791.9 million as at
31 December 2024, which was mainly due to an increase of
approximately RMB495.3 million in the wind power blades business;
an increase of approximately RMB197.5 million in the electrical wires

and cables business.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLES AND OTHER PAYABLES

As at 30 June 2025, the total accounts payables and other
payables of the Group amounted to approximately RMB3,667.8
million, showing an increase of approximately RMB543.8 million
as compared with approximately RMB3,124.0 million as at
31 December 2024, which was mainly due to an increase of
approximately RMB279.0 million in the wind power blades business
and an increase of approximately RMB315.3 million in the machine

tools business.
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2025,

to approximately RMB18,832.6 million, showing an increase of

the total assets of the Group amounted

approximately RMB1,145.8 million as compared with approximately
RMB17,686.8 million as at 31 December 2024. The total current
assets amounted to approximately RMB12,297.2 million, showing
an increase of approximately RMB982.6 million as compared
with approximately RMB11,314.6 million as at 31 December
2024, accounting for approximately 65.3% of the total assets (31
December 2024: approximately 64.0%).

As at 30 June 2025, the total liabilities of the Group amounted
to approximately RMB9,947.3 million, showing an increase of
approximately RMB878.9 million as compared with approximately
RMB9,068.4 million as at 31 December 2024. The total current
liabilities amounted to approximately RMB8,795.1 million, showing
an increase of approximately RMB1,372.4 million as compared
with approximately RMB7,422.7 million as at 31 December 2024,
accounting for approximately 88.4% of the total liabilities (31

December 2024: approximately 81.9%).

As at 30 June 2025, the net current assets of the Group amounted
to approximately RMB3,502.1 million, showing a decrease of
approximately RMB389.8 million as compared with approximately
RMB3,891.9 million as at 31 December 2024.
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CURRENT RATIO

As at 30 June 2025, the current ratio (the ratio of current assets
divided by current liabilities) of the Group was 1.40:1 (31 December
2024: 1.52:1).

GEARING RATIO

As at 30 June 2025, the Group’s gearing ratio is calculated by
dividing borrowings by total capital, and the gearing ratio is 19.3%
(831 December 2024: 20.3%).

INDEBTEDNESS

As at 30 June 2025, the Group had an aggregate bank and other
borrowings of approximately RMB2,118.9 million, representing
a decrease of approximately RMB82.8 million as compared with

approximately RMB2,201.7 million as at 31 December 2024.

Borrowings repayable by the Group within one year amounted to
approximately RMB1,498.0 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB377.5 million as compared with approximately
RMB1,120.5 million as at 31 December 2024. Borrowings repayable
after one year amounted to approximately RMB620.9 million,
representing a decrease of approximately RMB460.4 million
as compared with approximately RMB1,081.3 million as at 31

December 2024.
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The Company has received a notification from its controlling
Shareholder, CQMEHG, on 26 February 2025: (i) Chongging
Yufu Holding Group Co., Lid* (EE O B XM EBAR A A)
(*Yufu Holding”) will make a capital increase to CQMEHG
with a consideration of RMB5,000 million through cash and
non-cash contribution methods. Upon completion of the
capital increase, Yufu Holding will hold approximately 44.58%
equity interest in CQMEHG (the “Capital Increase”); and (ii)
Chongqging State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission (“Chongqging SASAC”) agrees to gratuitously
transfer its 35.42% equity interest in CQMEHG to Yufu Holding
(the “Gratuitous Transfer”) (together with the Capital Increase,
collectively referred to as the “Internal Restructuring”). Upon
completion of the Internal Restructuring, Yufu Holding holds
80% equity interest in CQMEHG to be the direct controlling
Shareholder of CQMEHG, and becomes the indirect controlling
Shareholder of the Company, whereas CQMEHG remains the
direct controlling Shareholder of the Company, and Chongging
SASAC remains the ultimate controlling Shareholder of the

Company.

Yufu Holding has applied for, and the Executive has granted,
a waiver pursuant to Note 6(a) to Rule 26.1 of the Codes on
Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-backs of the obligation
of Yufu Holding to make a mandatory general offer for all the
securities of the Company arising as a result of the Internal

Restructuring.

For more details, please refer to the Company’s
announcements respectively dated 26 February 2025 and 29
April 2025, which were published on the HKEXnews website of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)

(www.hkexnews.hk).
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(I

Connected Transactions

Equity Transfer Agreement

On 27 February 2025, Chongging Machine Tools (Group) Co.,
Lid* (EE#IK (%) R E T A7) (“Chongging Machine
Tools Group”) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and
CQMEHG Asset Management Co., Ltd.* (EE#E XK EBEE
EE AR AT (“Asset Company”) (a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Controlling Shareholder of the Company) entered into
the equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which Chongging
Machine Tools Group agreed to acquire and the Asset
Company agreed to sell 100% equity interest in the Chongqging
Panlian Transmission Technology Co., Ltd.* (& EFZ£ B EEHRHX
AR AF]), held by it at a consideration of RMB35,621,200.

For more details, please refer to the Company’s
announcements respectively dated 27 February 2025 and 18
March 2025, which were published on the HKEXnews website

of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk).

Continuing Connected Transaction

2026-2028 Master Sales Agreement

On 7 April 2022, the Company entered into the existing master
sales agreement, pursuant to which the Parent Company and
its associates (“Parent Group”), excluding the Company and
its associates (“Group”) agreed to sell materials, components,
accessories or raw materials, finished goods and other
relevant or similar items, power generation equipment and
parts (including certain products such as control valves, parts
for steering systems, gears, clutch, the BV series of electric

cables) and other products, to the Parent Group.

As the existing master sales agreement will expire on 31
December 2025, the Company renewed the existing master
sales agreement with the Parent Company under the similar
terms by entering into the 2026-2028 master sales agreement
on 23 April 2025.
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2026-2028 Master Supplies Agreement

On 7 April 2022, the Company entered into the existing master
supplies agreement with the Parent Company, pursuant to
which the Parent Group agreed to supply the Group with
intelligent equipment, component parts (such as standard
component, electric machine, control cabinet, component
parts, etc.) and other relevant or similar products, industry
services (such as transport and storage services, contract

energy management services) etc.

As the existing master supplies agreement will expire on 31
December 2025, the Company renewed the existing master
supplies agreement with the Parent Company under the
similar terms by entering into the 2026-2028 master supplies

agreement on 23 April 2025.

2026-2028 Master Leasing Agreement

On 7 April 2022, the Company entered into the existing master
leasing agreement with the Parent Company for the leasing
of land and buildings from the Parent Group to the Group as

offices, production facilities, workshops and staff quarters.

As the existing master leasing agreement will expire on 31
December 2025, the Company renewed the existing master
leasing agreement with the Parent Company under similar
terms by entering into the 2026-2028 master leasing agreement
on 23 April 2025.
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Major Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions

2026-2028 Group Financial Services Framework Agreement

As the existing group financial services framework agreement
will expire on 31 December 2025, on 23 April 2025, the
Company and the Chongging Machinery and Electric Holding
(Group) Finance Co., Ltd.* (“Finance Company”) entered into
the 2026-2028 group financial services framework agreement,
pursuant to which, the Finance Company will provide financial
services to the Group, including loan services, non-financing
guarantee letter services and other financial services. Subject
to the approval of the independent Shareholders, the Finance
Company will provide deposit services to the Group. The Group
is not under any obligation to obtain any or all of the financial
services from the Finance Company and may obtain relevant

financial services based on its business needs.

2026-2028 Parent Group Financial Services Framework Agreement

As the existing parent group financial services framework
agreement will expire on 31 December 2025, on 23 April 2025,
the Parent Company and the Finance Company entered into
the 2026-2028 parent group financial services framework
agreement, pursuant to which, the Finance Company will
provide financial services to the Parent Group, including
deposit services, non-financing guarantee letter services
and other financial services. Subject to the approval of the
independent Shareholders, the Finance Company will provide
loan services to the Group. The Finance Company is not under
any obligation to provide any or all of the financial services to
the Parent Group and may provide relevant financial services

based on its business needs.

For more details, please refer to the Company’s
announcements respectively dated 23 April 2025 and 12 June
2025, and circular dated 22 May 2025, which were published
on the HKEXnews website of the Stock Exchange (www.

hkexnews.hk).
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(IV) Amendment to the Articles of Association

V)

On 12 June 2025,

meeting for the year 2024 to consider and approve the

the Company held an annual general

resolution to amend the Articles of Association.

The above amendments came into effect on 12 June 2025, the

date on which the relevant resolution was made.

For the above-mentioned amendments to the Articles of
Association, please refer to the circular dated 22 May 2025 and
announcement dated 12 June 2025 published by the Company
on the Stock Exchange’'s HKEXnews website (www. hkexnews.
hk).

Deconsolidation of Subsidiary of the Group

Chongging Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd.* (being the wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, hereinafter referred to as
“Machine Tool Group”), no longer exercised decision-making
control over Chongging Sino-Germany Smart Factory Solutions
Co., Ltd.*
referred to as “Smart Company”). Since the date of approval
by the Board (being 23 April 2025),

will remove Smart Company from the consolidated financial

(being the subsidiary of the Company, hereinafter

Machine Tool Group

statements, but the shareholding ratio remains unchanged.

Financial Impact

According to Smart Company’s 2025 budget, Machine
Tool Group’s revenue of consolidated level is expected to
decrease by approximately RMB33.28 million, and total profit
by approximately RMBO0.35 million in 2025. Smart Company’s
revenue accounted for approximately 0.5% of the Group’s total

revenue for the year ended 31 December 2024.
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Deconsolidation will result in the Group ceasing to consolidate
Smart Company’s assets of approximately RMB51.26 million,
liabilities of approximately RMB19.81 million, owners’ equity
of approximately RMB31.45 million, revenue of approximately
RMB11.06 million, and total profit of approximately RMB0.47
million. However, the Board considers that the deconsolidation
does not have material impact on the Group’s consolidated

financial statements for the six months ended 30 June 2025.

After completion of the deconsolidation, Smart Company’s
financial performance will no longer be consolidated into the
Group’s consolidated financial statements. Despite this change,
segment performance is largely unaffected, and future results

will be recorded as investment income.

Listing Rules Implications

According to Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules, the
deconsolidation of Smart Company does not constitute a

disclosable transaction of the Company.

Auditor’s Opinion

The Company’s auditor has not informed the Company of any
potential audit reservations regarding the deconsolidation.
Saved as disclosed above, the Board is of the view that
the deconsolidation will not materially affect the Group’s

operations, cash flows, or financial position.

For more details, please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 23 April 2025 which was published on
the HKEXnews website of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.
hk).
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(VI) Re-election of the Board of Directors and Supervisory Committee

The Company held its 2024 Annual General Meeting on 12
June 2025 to discuss and approve the re-election of directors
and supervisors. Following the election, Mr. Yue Xiangjun, Mr.
Qin Shaobo, and Mr. Deng Rui were appointed as executive
directors of the Company’s seventh session of the Board. Mr.
Lei Bin, Ms. Zhu Ying, Mr. Dou Bo, and Mr. Cai Zhibin were
appointed as non-executive directors of the Company’s seventh
session of the Board. Mr. Ke Rui, Mr. Liu Lijun, Ms. Pu Huayan,
and Mr. Wong Chun Wa were appointed as independent non-
executive directors of the company’s seventh session of the
Board.

Mr. Sun Wenguang was elected as the chairman of the
Company’s seventh session of the supervisory committee.
Mr. Wang Haibing and Mr. Cao Xingquan were appointed
as independent supervisors of the seventh session of the
supervisory committee. Mr. Duan Lian and Mr. Liu Daohua
were elected as employee supervisors of the seventh session
of the supervisory committee during the Company’s employee

meeting in February 2025.

(For more details, please refer to the Company’s circular
dated 22 May 2025 and announcement dated 12 June 2025,
which were published on the HKEXnews website of the Stock

Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk).)

Save as disclosed above, the Company had no other significant

matters to report during this period.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Group does not have any significant events after the Period.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2025, the Group had no significant contingent

liabilities.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 30 June 2025, the Group’s total capital commitments
amounted to approximately RMB44.8 million (31 December 2024:
approximately RMB35.7 million).

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the Period, the total capital expenditure of the Group was
approximately RMB86.0 million, which was principally used for plant
expansion, improvement of production technology and equipment
upgrade and capacity improvement (for the six months ended 30
June 2024 approximately RMB41.1 million).

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group has adopted treasury policies, which concentrate
the financial resources available to its different subsidiaries to
meet the business needs of its different subsidiaries through the
subsidiaries involved with financial services qualifications of the
Group. For example, the Group has adopted a centralised approach
in managing the funds available to subsidiaries involved, including
cash, bank deposits, bills and other financial instruments. These
assets, such as bills and financial instruments, are managed and
arranged as short-term financing amongst subsidiaries with financial
services qualifications of the Group through proper endorsements
or transfers so that they can be fully utilized to meet payment
obligations of the Group’s relevant subsidiaries with minimal
financing cost. The Group closely monitors the level of use and the
financial guarantees given by the Group at the time of financing and
the value of each of the relevant transactions only represents an

immaterial part of its total assets and business.
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Chongqging Machinery & Electric Holding Group Finance Co., Ltd., a
subsidiary of the Group, provides financial services and establishes
and improves risk management, loan impairment and credit
approval policies, the contents of which are set out in the relevant

supplemental announcement dated 10 October 2023.

RISK OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currencies, primarily with respect to the HKD, GBP and US dollar.
Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions
and recognized assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency
that is not the Group’s functional currency. Management has set
up a management system of foreign exchange hedges, requiring
all subsidiaries of the Group to manage the foreign exchange risk
against their functional currency and adopt foreign exchange tools

recognized by the Group.

EMPLOYEES

As at 30 June 2025, the Group had a total of 6,188 employees (30
June 2024: a total of 6,720 employees). The Group will continue
to upgrade its technical talent base, foster and recruit technical
and management personnel possessed with extensive professional
experiences, optimize the distribution system that links with the
remuneration and performance reviews, improve training supervision
on safety so as to ensure employees’ safety and maintain good and

harmonious employee-employer relations.
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Name of shareholders

BERERR(EE)2F
Chongqing Machinery and Electronic
Holding (Group) Co., Ltd.

ERNEEREEARAA

Chongaing Yufu Holding Group Co., Ltd.

BERIEERNERAA

Chongaing Construction Engineering
Group Group Co., Ltd.

MEPERREEERRNERAT

China CITIC Financial Asset
Management Co., Ltd.

BETEEEREEERZEE

Chongaing State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration
Commission

BB
Ministry of Finance of the PRC

(L) # #HE
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Eh&E

Number of
shares

1,924,225,189

92,670,000

232,132,514

232,132,514

196,962,467

2,388,490,217

92,670,000

196,962,467

gyl

Stock category

HER
Domestic shares
Hi

H shares

MER
Domestic shares
MER

Domestic shares

RS
Domestic shares

mAR

Domestic shares

HiR
H shares
REK

Domestic shares

CHONGQING MACHINERY & ELECTRIC CO., LTD

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
AND OTHER PERSONS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2025, so far as the directors of the Company are

aware, the following persons (not being a director, chief executive

or supervisor of the Company) had interests in the shares of the

Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under

section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”):

Long positions in domestic shares of the Company with par value of

RMB1.00 each

&4

Status

ERABA
Beneficial owner
ExfBA
Beneficial owner
ExfBA
Beneficial owner
ExfBA

Beneficial owner

EERAA

Beneficial owner

REtEER
Controlled corporation
interest

ERRAA

Beneficial owner

R AR

Controlled corporation
interest

(L) Long Position

Hit

Notes

HERT
RERAY
=R
Percentage of
total issued
domestic shares

(%)

74.46(L)

8.98(L)

8.98(L)

7.58(L)

242

758(L)

HERT
HR &%
WEDk
Percentage of
total issued
H shares

(%)

842()

8.42(L)

BB
R
HEA
Percentage of
total issued
shares

(%)
5222
252
630

6.30

532

64.82

2.52

532
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H shares of the Company with par value of RMB1.00 each

EERT HERT
HR 28 R
RREB RABE H4 MRS MBS
Percentage of Percentage of
Number of total issued total issued
Name of shareholders shares  Status H shares shares
i3
Note (%) (%)
The Bank of New York Mellon 87.276000(L) REA 7.93(L) 2.37(L)
(1% [ The Bank of New York ) 0(P) Custodian 0P) 0P
The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation 87,276,000L) AIREFTEHIAEES R ) 793(L) 237(L)
87,276,000(P)  Interest in corporation controlled by 7.93(P) 2.37(P)
substantial shareholders
(L) 75 iFE (L) Long Position
(S) # KE (S)  Short Position
(P) 15 FHELBRG (P) Lending Pool
Wizt Notes:

EERERR(EE) AR EFAEEREREAR
RAREETHEEELEEREZE 22 8HEAN
AFE - BEMfmBA TS BIRFE AR F1,924,225,189
% A & A% 1292,670,00088HA% F1232,132,5140% A &
BRERAEETHAEELEEEEZESHENE

S o

E\

EERTSEROGERAFAEETEEEEEE
ERZECARHESERANEERRTIRALRRSA
REFDRIEAT653%RE  AmMEEETEER
MHBER R BIEFE AR R232,132,5148 W& AR FELR
REETHEAEEEEBRZEGMRER -

As Chongging Machinery and Electronics Holding (Group) Co., Ltd.
and Chongging Yufu Holding Group Co., Ltd. are wholly owned
by Chongging State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission, Chongging State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission is deemed to be interested in 1,924,225,189
domestic shares and 92,670,000 H shares as well as 232,132,514
domestic shares of the Company held by the two companies

respectively.

Chongging Construction Engineering Group Corporation Limited is
held as to 76.53% by Chonggqing State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Commission through its wholly-owned subsidiary,
Chongging Construction Investment Holding Co., Ltd. Therefore,
Chongging State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission is deemed to be interested in 232,132,514 domestic shares
of the Company held by Chongging Construction Engineering Group

Corporation Limited.
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(8) China CITIC Financial Asset Management Co., Ltd. is held as to 63.36%
directly by the Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China
and as to 4.22% indirectly by the Ministry of Finance of the People’s
Republic of China through its wholly-owned subsidiary, China Life
Insurance (Group) Company. Therefore, the Ministry of Finance of the
People’s Republic of China is deemed to be interested in 195,962,467
domestic shares of the Company held by China CITIC Financial Asset
Management Co., Ltd..

(4) The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation holds 100% interest in
The Bank of New York Mellon (formerly known as “The Bank of New
York”), which holds 87,276,000 H shares of the Company. The interest
in 87,276,000 H shares relates to the same block of shares in the
Company and includes a lending pool of 87,276,000 H shares of the

Company.

Save as disclosed above, the directors of the Company are not
aware of any persons holding any interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares which were required to be recorded in
the register pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO as at 30 June 2025.

INTERESTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 30 June 2025, so far as the directors are aware, none of
the directors, chief executive or supervisors of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which the directors or chief executive were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
set out in Appendix C3 of the Stock Exchange Listing Rules.
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COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

During the Period, the Company has adopted and complied with the
code provisions under the Corporate Governance Code set out in

the Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has complied with the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules and has adopted
procedures to regulate securities transactions by directors. The
Company has obtained the respective confirmations by all directors
that they have complied with the provisions of the Model Code for
the six months ended 30 June 2025.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the six months ended 30 June 2025, neither the Group nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the

Company’s listed securities.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

During the six months ended 30 June 2025, there was no material
acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries and associated companies

by the Group.

SIGNIFICANT LITIGATION

During the Period, the Company had no new significant litigation
or arbitration matters that needed to be brought to the attention of

directors and Shareholders of the Company.
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INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to

Shareholders to be our goal.

Subject to compliance with the applicable laws, rules, regulations
and the Articles of Association, in deciding whether to propose
any dividend payout, the Board will take into account, among other
things, the financial results, the earnings, losses and distributable
reserves, the operations and liquidity requirements, the debt ratio
and possible effects on the credit lines, and the current and future

development plans of the Company.

The Board will review the dividend policy from time to time and
reserves its right in its sole and absolute discretion to update,
amend, modify and/or cancel the dividend policy. There can be no
assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for

any given period.

The Board has recommended the payment of a interim dividend of
RMBO0.01 per share (tax inclusive) for the six months ended 30 June
2025 (for six months ended 30 June 2024: nil), which is calculated
based on the total share capital of 3,684,640,154 shares for the six
months ended 30 June 2025 totalling RMB36,846,401.54 (totalling
RMBO for six months ended 30 June 2024). Subject to the approval
by Shareholders at the forthcoming extraordinary general meeting
to be convened on 28 October 2025, the proposed interim dividend
will be paid on 25 November 2025 to Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 11 November
2025 (“Record Date”).

In order to ascertain the entitlements of the Shareholders to
receive the proposed interim dividend, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 4 November 2025 to
Tuesday, 11 November 2025 (both days inclusive), during which
no transfer of shares will be registered. All transfer documents
accompanied by share certificates of the Shareholders must
be lodged with our H Share Registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 3 November 2025.
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HAbE R
OTHER INFORMATION

WITHHOLDING OF ENTERPRISE INCOME TAX FOR
NON-RESIDENT CORPORATE SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic
of China (“EIT Law”) and the implementation rules thereof and the
Circular on Issues Concerning the Withholding of Enterprise Income
Tax by PRC Resident Enterprises on Dividends Payable to H Share
Non-resident Corporate Shareholders (Guo Shui Han [2008] No0.897),
the Company is liable to withhold and pay the enterprise income tax
on dividends payable to non-resident corporate holders of H shares
whose names appear on the register of holders of H shares of the
Company (“H Share Register of Members”) on the Record Date at a

rate of 10% prior to the payment of such interim dividends.

Any H shares registered in the name of non-individual shareholders
will be treated as being held by non-resident corporate shareholders
and hence the dividends payable to them will be subject to the
withholding of enterprise income tax. Non-resident corporate
shareholders may apply to the relevant taxation authorities for tax
refunds in accordance with the applicable tax treaty (if any). The
interim dividends payable to natural person shareholders whose
names appear on H Share Register of Members on the Record Date
is not subject to the withholding of income tax by the Company. For
interim dividends payable to resident corporate shareholders of H
shares whose names appear on H Share Register of Members on
the Record Date, the Company will not withhold enterprise income
tax on such dividends, provided that a legal opinion is provided by
a resident corporate shareholder within the prescribed period and

confirmed by the Company.

2025 iR
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If any resident enterprise (as defined in the EIT Law) whose
name appears on the H Share Register of Members which is duly
incorporated in the PRC or under the laws of a foreign country (or
a territory) but with a PRC-based de facto management body does
not wish to have the 10% enterprise income tax to be withheld by
the Company, it should lodge all transfers with and submit a legal
opinion issued by a PRC certified lawyer (with affixation of common
seal of the law firm thereto) that establishes its resident enterprise
status to the Company’s H Share Registrars, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
no later than 4:30 p.m. on 3 November 2025. Any natural person
investor whose H shares are registered in the name of any such
non-individual shareholders and who does not wish to have any
enterprise income tax to be withheld by the Company may consider
transferring the legal title of the relevant H shares into his or her own
name and lodging all relevant transfer instruments accompanied
by the H share certificates with the Company’s H Share Registrars
for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on 3 November 2025.
Shareholders are recommended to consult their tax advisors
regarding tax issues in respect of the ownership and disposal of H

shares in the PRC and Hong Kong and other tax effects.
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HAbE R
OTHER INFORMATION

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to ascertain the entitltements of the Shareholders to
attend and vote in the extraordinary general meeting, the register
of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 23
October 2025 to Tuesday, 28 October 2025 (both days inclusive),
during which no transfer of shares will be registered. All transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s H Share Registrars, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 22 October 2025.

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The audit and risk management committee, the management and
the Company’s auditor ShineWing Certified Public Accountants
(Special General Partnership) have jointly reviewed the accounting
standards adopted by the Company, laws and regulations and
discussed internal control and financial reporting matters (including
the review of the interim results) of the Group. The audit and risk
management committee considered that the interim results are in
compliance with the applicable accounting standards, laws and
regulations, and the Company has made appropriate disclosures

thereof.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORY
COMMITTEE

As at the date of this report, the executive directors of the Company
are Mr. Yue Xiangjun, Mr. Qin Shaobo and Mr. Deng Rui; the non-
executive directors are Mr. Lei Bin, Ms. Zhu Ying, Mr. Dou Bo and
Mr. Cai Zhibin; and the independent non-executive directors are Mr.
Ke Rui, Mr. Liu Lijun, Ms. Pu Huayan and Mr. Wong Chun Wa.

As at the date of this report, the members of the supervisory
committee of the Company are Mr. Sun Wenguang, Mr. Wang

Haibing, Mr. Cao Xingquan, Mr. Duan Lian and Mr. Liu Daohua.

The interim results announcement has been published on the
website of the Company (http://www.chinacgme.com) and website
of the HKEXnews of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk).
The interim report will also be available on the websites of the
Company and the HKEXnews of the Stock Exchange on or around
10 September 2025 and will be despatched to the shareholders
of the Company thereafter by the means of receipt of corporate

communications they selected.

By Order of the Board

Chongqging Machinery & Electric Co., Ltd.*
Mr. Yue Xiangjun

Executive Director and General Manager

(performing duties and powers of the chairman of the Board)

Chonggqing, the PRC
20 August 2025

* For identification purposes only
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REVIEW REPORT

XYZH/2025CQAA1B0502

Chongqging Machinery & Electric Co., Ltd

To the board of directors of Chongging Machinery & Electric
Co., Ltd.:

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of
Chongqging Machinery & Electric Co., Ltd (the “Company”), which
comprise the consolidated and the Company’s statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2025, the consolidated and the Company’s
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated and the
Company’s statement of cash flow and the consolidated and the
Company’s statement of changes in equity for January-dune 2025
and notes to financial statements. The management of the Company
is responsible for fair presentation of these financial statements.
Our responsibility is to issue our review report on these financial

statements based on our review.

We conducted our review in accordance with the “Review Standard
for Chinese Certified Public Accountants No.2101-Review of
Financial Statements”. The standard requires us to plan and
conduct a review to obtain limited assurance as to whether financial
statements are free from material misstatement. A review is primarily
limited to inquire of company personnel and performing analytical
procedures on financial data. A review provides less assurance than

audit. We have not performed an audit and, accordingly, we do not

express an audit opinion.
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Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes
us to believe that the financial statements do not present fairly, in
all material respects, the consolidated and the Company’s financial
position as at 30 June 2025, the consolidated and the Company’s
results of operations and cash flows for six-month period then ended

in accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises.

CICPA:
PE e A

CICPA:
FEEME R

20 August 2025
—ZOZHENRAZ+H
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INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AR EEMERMARAT B ARET
Prepared by: Chongging Machinery & Electric Co., Ltd. Unit: RMB

M3t 30/6/2025 31/12/2024
| ltems Notes 30 June 2025 31 December 2024
(EEi)
(As restated)
RBEE: Current assets

E¥ES Cash and cash equivalents 1 V1 2,422,827,984.09 2,744,890,888.34
RoteREE Financial assets held for trade T2 V2 631,346,485.52 571,813,953.57
EUNER Notes receivable 73 V3 173,063,254.42 214,166,733.38
FEUREER Accounts receivable T4 V4 4,269,403,218.44 3,353,221,618.15
W ERE Receivable financing f6 V6 552,279,765.06 635,619,888.90
EEY Prepayments 7 VT 197,676,510.82 187,576,858.21
HitBYH Other receivables h8 V8 375,196,522.60 438,631,705.26
Hep: EYORA Including: Dividends receivable 781 V81 218,980,014.96 288,932,461.02
BEHEZNBH Loans and advances to customers T121 V2.1 468,964,281.73 375,714,067.65
FE Inventories f9 V9 2,175,108,889.88 1,890,769,371.53
ERAE Contract assets 5 V5 979,995,495.03 862,088,748.62
—ERIBNERDEE Non-current assets due within one year 710 V.10 18,330,399.68 17,998,806.45
EngEE Other current assets 11V 32,992,385.75 22,146,100.99
RBEEA Total current assets 12,297,185,193.02 11,314,638,741.05

FRBEE Non-current assets
EREZMBH Loans and advances to customers T122 V122 483,930,666.66 493,116,088.78
HEERRE Other debt investments 14 V14 32,422,242.33 -
KW Long-term receivables fi15 V.15 - 8,999,403.23
REARERE Long-term equity investments T-16 V.16 1,736,213,942.47 1,573,555,281.47
HtERTARE Other equity instruments investment 13 V.13 177,599,858.68 164,319,503.68
REERHE Investment properties 17 VA7 190,304,738.70 190,832,462.77
EréE Property, plant and equipment h+18 V.18 2,604,067,092.08 2,598,427,309.26
ERIR Construction in progress 19 V.19 113,769,282.72 125,535,386.16
FREAE Right-of-use assets 720 V.20 400,335,921.36 381,607,675.93
BREE Intangible assets R21 Va2t 411,403,293.90 415,060,747.34
G Development expenditures R22 V2 1,771,698.11 5,001,525.86
Bl Goodwill n23 V.23 57,571,170.83 75,422,670.83
REBEER Long-term deferred expenses R 24 V.24 33,012,714.86 24,605,657.15
BRFMENHEE Deferred tax assets 25 V25 175,217,896.10 168,925,380.33
HtFERaEeE Other non-current assets T2 V.26 117,841,416.68 146,709,428.69
FRBEEAT Total non-current assets 6,535,461,935.48 6,372,118,521.48
BEAH Total assets 18,832,647,128.50 17,686,757,262.53
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INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

AL R ER M A RA T B ARWT
Prepared by: Chongging Machinery & Electric Co., Ltd. Unit: RMB

i 30/6/2025 31/12/2024
BB ltems Notes 30 June 2025 31 December 2024
(Eai)
(As restated)
FBEE: Current liabilities
RHER Short-term loans T-28 V.28 573,077,585.63 416,935,361.78
REFRRFAERR Due to customers, banks and other financial T29 V.29
institutions 1,109,114,982.10 816,169,265.81
ENRE Notes payable 7230 V.30 1,618,083,927.18 1,451,609,682.01
JEfIR R Accounts payable 31 V.31 3,077,235,713.26 2729,113,660.66
A Advance from customers 732 V32 60,218.64 -
ARAE Contract liabilities T34 V34 624,043,926.74 605,086,641.54
ERETHM Employee benefits payables T35 V.35 72,107,396.41 124,539,482.40
EXHE Taxes and levies payables 736 V.36 104,785,936.67 110,776,922.56
HiERR Other payables 733 V.33 590,581,040.37 394,896,077.03
Hep s ERRA Including: Dividends payable 7331 V.33.1 159,373,353.67 44,010,810.13
—ERIHBANERDAR Non-current liabilities due within one year 37 V37 944,285,177.10 723,590,380.09
HeReaE Other current liabilities 738 V.38 81,690,015.68 49,959,782.98
RBREA Total current liabilities 8,795,065,919.78 7,422,677,256.86
FRBaE: Non-current liabilities
KR Long-term loans 739 V.39 620,871,316.66 1,081,259,202.78
REaE Lease liabilities 40 V.40 195,490,202.36 190,502,425.32
AR Long-term payables 41 V4 3,112,936.00 3,893,230.00
R 5 M Long-term employee benefits payable h42 V42 5,559,526.87 5,256,000.00
Bt Al Provisions 43 V43 66,073,496.86 73,980,194.67
BN s Deferred revenue 44 Va4 152,117,702.61 187,006,166.10
EEMBHER Deferred tax liabilities 25 V25 108,988,192.49 103,800,349.28
FRBEEA Total non-current liabilities 1,152,213,373.85 1,645,697,568.15
SR Total liabilities 9,947,279,293.63 9,068,374,825.01
RRESR: Shareholder’s equity
R Share capital F45 V45 3,684,640,154.00 3,684,640,154.00
BANR Capital reserves T 46 V.46 71,477,815.41 99,207,782.69
Hirela Other comprehensive income T 47 V4T 82,071,779.83 78,089,477.42
EEf Special Reserve 49 V.49 12,628,461.20 5,635,596.35
YN Surplus reserves 48 V48 552,310,263.81 515,265,278.90
AOBEHE Undistributed profit 50 V.50 3,968,988,616.92 3,719,023,999.29
FERBAIREESSS Total equity attributable to shareholders of the
Company 8,372,117,091.17 8,101,862,288.65
DERRER Non-controlling interests 513,250,743.70 516,520,148.87
REREZAH Total shareholder’s equity 8,885,367,834.87 8,618,382,437.52
BENRRER A Total liabilities and shareholder’s equity 18,832,647,128.50 17,686,757,262.53

Legal Representative:
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FINANCIAL POSITION STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY

AR  EERER M A RAE A AR
Prepared by: Chongging Machinery & Electric Co., Ltd. Unit: RMB

iR 30/6/2025 31/12/2024
3R tems Notes 30 June 2025 31 December 2024
RBEE: Current assets:
FEES Cash and cash equivalents 1,184,512,775.22 1,080,848,826.94
EUER Notes receivable 445,870.30 4,865,000.00
ERER Accounts receivable 3,073,823.97 4.492,301.05
Bt Prepayments 111,744.27 99,550.64
Hib YR Other receivables T XL 347,589,217.56 43,205,062.75
Hep: e lRH Including: Dividends receivable L1 XL 278,980,014.96 330,447,825.54
—ERFBnETDEE Non-current assets due within one year 1,192,488,091.03 269,683,373.51
HhRBEE Other current assets 4,363,283.03 3,341922.04
hHEEA Total current assets 2,733,484,805.38 1,806,556,036.93
FRBEE. Non-current assets:
KRN Long-term receivables - 906,922,355.41
RERERE Long-term equity investments T2 X2 6,006,759,431.54 5,687,418 48093
ApERTARA Other equity instruments investment 176,172,975.00 162,892,620.00
REMENE Investment properties 104,139,254.40 105,881,680.35
EriE Property, plant and equipment 558,177,301.63 239,556,087.82
fFRIE Construction in progress 17,962,255.69 8,540,391.03
PREAE Right-to-use assets 2,039,414.74 4,078,829.49
BVEE Intangible assets 149,459,319.22 97,395,363.83
ELmERAE Deferred tax assets 509,853.69 1,019,707.37
FRBEEAT Total non-current assets 7,015,219,805.91 721370551623
11 0h) Total assets 9,748,704,611.29 9,020,261553.16
2025 ¥k [ 57
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FINANCIAL POSITION STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

AL R ER M A RA T B ARWT
Prepared by: Chongging Machinery & Electric Co., Ltd. Unit: RMB

i3 30/6/2025 31/12/2024
EH [tems Notes 30 June 2025 31 December 2024
HBaE: Current liabilities
EHEH Short-term loans 185,109,013.89 50,230,555.56
ERER Accounts payable 19,229,963.39 1402341172
il 0 Advance from customers 60,218.64 =
AFEE Contract liabilties - 52,300.22
ERETEMH Employee benefits payables 7,914,527.63 5,448,026.31
ERHE Taxes and levies payables 125,158.39 275,746.82
AR Other payables 569,208,339.70 41,267 413.17
Hep: ERRA Including: Dividends payable 128,962,405.39 =
—ERIANERDAR Non-current liabilties due within one year 823,416,706.60 572,623,429.28
EtREHaE Other current liabilities - 7,828.42
rHEEAH Total current liabilities 1,605,063,928.24 £83,928,801.50
ERBafk: Non-current liabilties
R Long-term loans 620,871,316.66 1,066,241,077.78
EXFERAE Deferred tax liabilities 41,246,882.19 38,436,647.12
FhBERA Total non-current liabilities 662,118,198.85 1,104,677,724.90
L} G Total liabilties 2,267,182,121.09 1,788,606,626 40
RRES: Shareholder's equity
kA& Share capital 3,684,640,154.00 3,684,640,154.00
EpiAks Other comprehensive income 97,641,723.30 87,681,457.05
i IN Surplus reserves 566,685,639.72 529,640,654.81
APENE Undistributed proft 3,132,554,967.18 292969276090
RRERAT Total shareholder’s equity 7,481,522,484.20 7,231655,026.76
BENRRER AL Total liabilities and shareholder's equity 9,748,704,611.29 9,020,261,553.16

Legal Representative

Person in charge of

Person in charge of accounting

accounting function:
FEEFIEABEA

department:

EEREA SRRBEEA
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INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED COMPREHENSIVE INCOME STATEMENT

AR BRI A FRAE B 0 ARWT
Prepared by: Chongqing Machinery & Electric Co., Ltd. Unit: RMB

i3 2025%1-6F 20245167
From January- From January-
EH ltems Notes June, 2025 June, 2024
(EEit)
(As restated)
- EEARA 1. Total operating revenue 51 V51 4,658,076,541.58 4,265,890,940.36
Heb o EEWA Including: Operating revenue 51 V51 4,629,878,065.33 4,240,323,409.63
FEMA Interest income T51 V51 28,180,430.93 25,563,828.14
FEERELWA Transaction fees and commission income 7~ 51 V.51 18,045.32 3,702.59
ZCEEARK 2. Total operating cost 4,570,904,795.95 4,241712,079.65
£ BERA Including: Operating cost 51 V5 3,851,826,723.54 3,538,665,526.98
MEx Interest expenses 51 V5 6,307,112.04 2,804,691.84
FEERAExM Transaction cost and commission fees 7+ 51 V.51 101,920.42 7344171
e RHm Business taxes and surcharges R52 V52 30,244,717.29 33,424,647.82
HEEH Selling and distribution expenses R53 V53 107,982,425.45 100,480,688.18
ERER Administrative expenses h-54 V54 305,461,251.71 322,285,862.75
HEER Research and development expenses 255 V.55 239,851,334.25 198,395,448.00
HBER Financial expenses R 5 V.56 29,039,311.25 45581,772.37
2 RIS ER Including: Interest expenses 56 V.56 29,918,280.46 40,656,683.42
L ON Interest income R 56 V56 6,990,940.29 8,634,304.92
m: Ea Add: Other income 57 V57 54,225,731.41 89,284,316.61
BB MEs (BT - I3 E51) Investment income (Loss listed with *-") 758 V.58 398,084,565.41 281,741,736.33
B HEERCENAEDER Including: Income from investments in R 58 V58
RENE associates and joint ventures 389,133,395.15 285,368,786.74
DrREZ R Gain arising from the changes in fair value 759 V.59
(BAIT-J5EES]) (Loss listed with “-") -4,498,257.68 5,997,041.06
ERREBL(BRNA-15E) Impairment loss of credit (Loss is listed by “-") 60 V.60 -36,112,951.56 -2,438,925.61
BERBERE (BRAT-5HES) Impairment loss of assets (Loss is listed by =) T 61 V.61 -55,952,735.70 -7,306,247.75
EERENE (BRIUT-I5E5) Gain on disposal of assets (Loss listed with ") T+ 62 V.62 8,529,202.73 -59,400,276.22
= BERBSEMUI- JHRET) 3. Operating profit (Loss listed with “-”) 451,447,300.24 332,056,505.13
=E /LU Add: Non-operating income 763 V.63 4,523,436.88 9,258,394.32
B 2Ehem Less: Non-operating expenses no64 V64 2,768,269.77 2,902,980.82
M- FIBAE (FRAEU - 15%E5) 4. Total profit (Total loss listed with “-”) 453,202,467.35 338,411,918.63
W EHER Less: Income tax expenses 165 V65 22,582,816.10 48,006,569.55
BB FERUI- IRES) 5. Net profit (Net loss listed with “-”) 430,619,651.25 290,405,349.08
() REBEREESS (1) Classification by continuing or discontinued
operation 430,619,651.25 290,405,349.08
1RELEFHE 1. Net profit attributable to continuing operation
(FEEMUI-]5E7) (Net loss listed with “-") 430,619,651.25 290,405,349.08
2R BT 2. Net profit attributable to discontinued
(FEEIUI-]5E3) operation (Net loss listed with ") - S
(DI RFMERGENR (2) Classification by ownership 430,619,651.25 290,405,349.08
1ERREARREENFHE 1. Net profit attributable to shareholders of the
controlling company 415,972,007.93 270,407,916.25
2O BREER 2. Net profit attributable to non-controlling
interests 14,647,643.32 19,997,432.83
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IR A& O A A AR ()
INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED COMPREHENSIVE INCOME STATEMENT (Continued)

AL R ER M A RA T B ARWT
Prepared by: Chongging Machinery & Electric Co., Ltd. Unit: RMB

i3 2025%1-6 A 2024%1-6
From January- From January-
EH ltems Notes June, 2025 June, 2024
(@)
(As restated)
A BtGARENRETE 6. Net other comprehensive income after tax T47 V47 5,609,353.73 -15,791572.53
GRENRMAEMEMGS KA Net other comprehensive income after tax ho47 V47
Riess attributable to shareholders of the Company 3,982,302.41 -16,132,785.48
() TEENEEBRNEMSAWE (1), Other comprehensive incomes that cannotbe T~ 47 V.47
reclassified into profit or loss 9,960,266.25 -5,513,062.50
(D) BENBERRNEMEA N (2). Other comprehensive income that can be no47 V47
reclassified into profit or loss -5,977,963.84 -10,619,722.98
1EMEERE AL BES 1. Fair value changes of other debt investments T~ 47 V.47 34,513.65 =
Z%mﬂéfzi AEF AR RS 2. Amount of financial assets reclassified o~ F~47 V.47
WaneE other comprehensive income -463,702.66 -
SEEMEBERERHS 3. Effective part of cash flow hedging 47 V47 8,141,277.75 971,144.55
AHNERBRENEETE 4. Translation differences of financial R47 V47
statements in foreign currencies -13,690,052.58 -11,590,867.53
GRRDHRRR A tRE W a Net other comprehensive income after tax 47 V47
BkFE attributable to non-controlling interests 1,627,051.32 341,212.95
t GAKBAE 7. Total comprehensive income 436,229,004.98 274,613,776.55
(-)BERBLARRRNGAKEAE 1. Total comprehensive income attributable to
shareholders of the Company 419,954,310.34 254,275,130.77
(Z)BBRIERRNGAKEHE 2. Total comprehensive income attributable to
non-controlling interests 16,274,694.64 20,338,645.78
N BREE: 8. Earnings per share
(=) ERERE (/&) 1. Basic eamings per share 0.11 007
(Z)RESRYE (T/k) 2. Diluted earnings per share 0.11 007
Legal Representative Person in charge of Person in charge of accounting
accounting function: department:
EEREA FEEFIIERBEA FEHEBAEEA
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EYNERIES

INCOME STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY

AR BRI A FRAE B 0 ARWT
Prepared by: Chongqing Machinery & Electric Co., Ltd. Unit: RMB

firsE 2025%1-65 2024£1-61
From January- From January-
B Items Notes June, 2025 June, 2024
- EEWA 1. Operating revenue T3 XVI3 7,138,439.21 4,168,227.86
W EERA Less: operating cost T£:3 X3 573,520.41 =
R Business taxes and surcharges 4,086,583.20 2,373,869.07
HEEH Selling and distribution expenses 901,379.96 =
ERER Administrative expenses 49,687,425.17 38,260,913.04
HEER Research and development expenses - 16,685,159.93
FIBER Financial expenses 454,915.89 5,833,188.67
B FISER Including: Interest expenses 16,808,625.55 24,232,302.48
YN Interest income 15,112,615.33 18,863,654.43
m: Aol Add: Other income 15,906.56 25,608.21
BE W (BRI - | 5E30) Investment income (Loss listed with *-") TE4 XVI4 444,362,575.29 592,849,927.03
Hi HRELINARLEN Including: Income from investments in associates T4 XVil4
RE s and joint ventures 384,353,682.47 284,127,804.28
ERREBX(BAN - 585 Impairment loss of credit (Loss is lsted by *) 135,000.00 -
BEREBRK (BRUI-5E) Impairment loss of assets’
(Loss is listed by “") -26,381,091.72 -
BERENa (BRNUI-5E3) Gain on disposal of assets (Loss listed with *-") -655,424.30 -200,035.80
- é%ﬂfﬁ (BRI - %55 2, Operating profit (Loss listed with “-”) 368,911,571.41 533,690,596.59
e EENIA Add: Non-operating income 9,687.35 -
W “%Wiﬁ Less: Non-operating expenses - =
= FEAE (BRARNU - 1%E5) 3. Total profit (Loss listed with “-”) 368,921,258.76 533,690,596.59
W RERER Less: Income tax expenses 51,662.18 84,852.20
M A (AR - I%E5) 4. Net profit (Net loss listed with “-”) 368,369,596.58 533,605,744.39
() BELLFREEHE-J%EF) (1) Net profit attributable to continuing operation
(Net loss listed with *-") 368,869,596.58 533,605,744.39
(Z)RIEBEFAE (FERI-J5ET)  (2) Net profit atiributable to discontinued operation
(Net loss listed with *-") - -
il ﬁf’@ﬁ“lﬁl WRERE 5. Net other comprehensive income after tax 9,960,266.25 5,513,062.50
() EENBERENENGA NG 1. Other comprehensive incomes that cannot be
reclassified into profit or loss 9,960,266.25 5,513,062.50
1HEERTIAREA L BEE 1. Changes in fair value of other equity instrument
investments 9,960,266.25 5,513,062.50
(DIBENRERRN AR R 2. Other comprehensive income that can be reclassified
into profit or loss - -
LEREEREENENES 1. Effective portion of net investment hedging gains
and losses - -
LHNERBRENEER 2. Translation differences of financial statements in
foreign currencies - -
A GRekEEE 6. Total comprehensive income 378,829,862.83 528,092,681.89
Legal Representative: Person in charge of Person in charge of
accounﬂngfuncﬁon accounting department:
EERETA : FEEFIEEBEREA BEMEBAEA
2025 3R |
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FUIE A  F BLB  E R
INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AL R ER M A RA T B ARWT
Prepared by: Chongging Machinery & Electric Co., Ltd. Unit: RMB

DERERENINES
REETAE BNAENLM

Cash received from investments income
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,

321,715,798.66

i3 2025%1-6 A 2024F1-6
From January- From January-
ltems Notes June, 2025 June, 2024
(EEit)
(As restated)
- REIHELNRLER 1. Cash flows from operating activities
HEAR RESBRINES Cash received from sales of goods and rendering of
services 3,462,914,025.04 3,787,649,930.58
REERNAEFHFEFLENE Net increase in customer deposits and interbank
deposits 292,500,268.61 -251,135,183.61
KBHE FEERAEMES Cash received from interest, surcharges and
commission fee 29,999,948.73 27,188,512.65
WEMHERE Cash received from tax refund 14,454,534.79 15,895,094.82
KEEpRLEEDERNRS Cash received relating to other operating activities 231,995,241.94 489,722,378.73
BEEDRERANG Sub-total of cash inflows from operating
activities 4,031,864,019.11 4,069,320,733.17
BEWD BEXEBIANRS Cash paid for goods and services 3,346,699,988.67 3,257,945,858.86
REEZRBAFENE Net increase in loans and advances to customers 81,785,806.01 -177,574,697 67
ERRARTNRAERBZENE Net increase in central bank and interbank
payments 3,078,625.18 -26,058,315.87
IRHE FEERAEHNES Cash paid for interest, surcharges and
commission fee 6,335,491.08 2,539,618.39
IREBINRABBIZNNES Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 581,277,925.89 553,557,545.62
THNEERE Payments of taxes and surcharges 157,190,025.52 138,752,760.10
IHEMEEREHERNRS Cash paid relating to other operating activities 372,159,745.49 571,915,460.47
RETHREMM NG Sub-total of cash outflows from operating
activities 4,548,527,607.84 4,321,078,229.90
RETBELENRERERE Net cash flows from operating activities -516,663,588.73 -251757,496.73
RETHEENEERE: 2. Cash flows from investment activities
RERERE NSRS Cash received from retum of investments 896,739,674.64 683,117,615.42

172,936,031.70

REBENENFEFE intangible assets and other long-term assets 6,181,726.64 103,334,614.41
WHEMBRREEHABEN RS Cash received relating to other investing activities 8,764,287.76 28,563,927.68
RETBHRERA NG Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities 1,233,401,487.70 987,952,189.21
ERETEE EBVEENER Cash paid to acquire fixed assets, intangible assets

RAEESNHRE and other long-term assets 86,702,944.97 94,800,785.73
REINNES Cash paid for investments 984,973,068.82 1,013,806,186.60
IREMEREEDERNR S Cash paid relating to other investing activities 10,257,439.56 =

REFBHRERM NG Sub-total of cash outflow from investing
activities 1,081,933,453.35 1,108,606,972.33
RERDELNESRERH Net cash flows from investing activities 151,468,034.35 -120,654,783.12

INTERIM REPORT 2025

CHONGQING MACHINERY & ELECTRIC CO., LTD




AT & R S E R ()

INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

AR EEMERMARAT B ARET
Prepared by: Chongging Machinery & Electric Co., Ltd. Unit: RMB

i3 2025%1-6F 2024F1-6 1
From January- From January-
EH ltems Notes June, 2025 June, 2024
(EEit)
(As restated)
= BEIHELNELRE: 3. Cash flows from financing activities
R EREIRR S Cash received from investments - -
Eh o FRERKOBRRERE Including: cash received by subsidiaries from
ekl investment of non-controlling interests - =
BEERMKENRE Cash received from loans granted 732,919,522.23 445,762,905.60
BEFNGINERS
KEEMAEEEDERNR S Cash received relating to other financing activities - 2,335,000.00
EETHRSFAANG Sub-total of cash inflows from financing activities 732,919,522.23 448,097,905.60
EREBMIANRS Cash paid for repayment of borrowings 603,899,681.47 774,733,019.47
AEEH - FESERRSHTAHEE  Cash paid for dividends, profits or payments of
interests 55,245,798.16 60,860,435.35
A FRETRGRVERER Including: dividends and profits paid to non-

A - 7 controlling interests by subsidiaries 15,923,582.24 21,167,733.68
IREMAEEEDEBNR S Cash paid relating to other financing activities 7,775,761.60 44,189,875.14
EEZRRSRM Gt Sub-total of cash outflows from financing

activities 666,921,241.23 879,783,329.96
EETHELENRERETE Net cash flows from financing activities 65,998,281.00 -431,685,424.36
mERSHUAERESSENNTE 4. Effects of changes in exchange rate on cash and

cash equivalents 1,326,354.19 492 315.65
I REeRBeEENFENE 5. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents -297,870,919.19 -803,605,388.56
m:-BORERALEENHE Add: opening balance of cash and cash equivalents 2,101,118,496.96 2,181,689,713.81

A BARERASEENGE 6. Balance of cash and cash equivalents attheend 7 V-
of this period 672)  67(2) 1,803,247,577.77 1,378,084,325.25

Legal Representative

EEREA

Person in charge of
accounting function:
TERHIFEREA

Person in charge of accounting

department:

=

SATBEEA
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BRI e E R
CASH FLOWS STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY

AL R ER M A RA T B ARWT
Prepared by: Chongging Machinery & Electric Co., Ltd. Unit: RMB

i3 2025%1-61 2024F1-6
From January- From January-
EH ltems Notes June, 2025 June, 2024
- RETHELNBLRE: 1. Cash flows from operating activities
HERM  RREBRINES Cash received from sales of goods and
rendering of services 2,317,723.38 -
YWEMHERE Cash received from tax refund -49,793.44 27,144.70
KEEpRLEEDERNRS Cash received relating to other operating activities 53,053,945.16 13,570,548.14
BEEDHRERANG Sub-total of cash inflows from operating
activities 55,321,875.10 13,597,692.84
BEWMD BEXEBIANRS Cash paid for goods and services 566,509.41 =
IREBINRABIZHNES Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 12,232,744.25 10,509,291.88
IRMEERE Payments of taxes and surcharges 3,517,732.83 2,373,869.07
THEMELCEEHEHNERS Cash paid relating to other operating activities 54,084,655.63 15,219,816.08
REEDREMM G Sub-total of cash outflows from operating
activities 70,401,642.12 28,102,977.03
RETHELNEERERE Net cash flows from operating activities -15,079,767.02 -14,505,284.19
o RETEHELNEERE: 2. Cash flows from investment activities
KERERIMNAES Cash received from retum of investments - =
REREWERIME S Cash received from obtaining investment returns 358,637,935.26 280,111,817.85

REETEAE BVAENENRHAE

FkEESE 2 HE
WHEMERAEDABNRE

REFDAERANG

BEETAE BVAENEMRIAE

LA
REXMHES
XHEMEREEDRRNRE

REFDRERM DG

REZDEENFERERE

Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term assets
Cash received relating to other investing activities

Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities

Cash paid to acquire fixed assets, intangible assets

and other long-term assets
Cash paid for investments
Cash paid relating to other investing activities

Sub-total of cash outflow from investing
activities

Net cash flows from investing activities

129,571,680.82

221,150,702.35

488,209,616.08 501,262,520.20

894,339.62 412,732.89
200,000,000.00 103,750,000.00
107,127,282.00 384,773,208.28

308,021,621.62

488,935,941.17

180,187,994.46

12,326,579.03
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BB ER ()
CASH FLOWS STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

AR EEMERMARAT B ARET
Prepared by: Chongging Machinery & Electric Co., Ltd. Unit: RMB

i3 2025%1-6F 2024F1-6 1
From January- From January-
| ltems Notes June, 2025 June, 2024
= BEEHELNBERE: 3. Cash flows from financing activities
BERETKINRES Cash received from loans granted 400,000,000.00 50,000,000.00
KEEMAEEEDERNSR S Cash received relating to other financing activities - -
EETHRSHANG Sub-total of cash inflows from financing activities 400,000,000.00 50,000,000.00
BEEEIMANES Cash paid for repayment of borrowings 448,400,000.00 338,700,000.00
AEEF - FEREFFSLFORE  Cash paid for dividends, profits or payments of
interests 14,341,541.12 22,984,331.66
IREMAEEEDEHNAS Cash paid relating to other financing activities 24,976,039.98 1,481,746.80
EEEBRSMM A Sub-total of cash outflows from financing
activities 487,717,581.10 363,166,078.46
EETHELNRERERE Net cash flows from financing activities -87,717,581.10 -313,166,078.46
M EZSHURERBLSENNTE 4 Effects of changes in exchange rate on cash and
cash equivalents 1,297,261.96 3,461.87
I REeRBESEMTLENE 5. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 78,687,908.30 -315,341,321.75
n: BB KRS SRS Add: opening balance of cash and cash equivalents 880,834,203.18 1,338,979,037.28
A BRBAERALSEENNE 6. Balance of cash and cash equivalents at the end
of this period 959,522,111.48 1,023,637,715.53
Legal Representative Person in charge of Person in charge of accounting
‘ accounting function: department:
EEREKA FTEEFIIEEEA: FEHEAR
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INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Continued)
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Prepared by: Chongqing Machinery & Electric Co., Ltd. Unit: RMB
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INTERIM REPORT 2025
CHONGQING MACHINERY & ELECTRIC CO., LTD

From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

GENERAL INFORMATION

Chongqging Machinery & Electric Co., Ltd. (hereinafter
referred to as the Company, and collectively referred to as
the Group when including subsidiaries) was established on
27 July 2007 as a joint share company with limited liability by
Chongging Machinery & Electronics Holding (Group) Co., Ltd.
("*CQMEHG"), Chongging Yufu Capital Operation Group Co.,
Ltd (“Yufu company”, previously named as Chongging Yufu
Assets Management Co., Ltd), China CITIC Financial Asset
Management Co., Ltd. (“CITIC Company”, previously named as
China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd.), and Chongging
Construction Engineering Group Co. Ltd. ("“CCEG”, previously
named as Chongging Construction Engineering Group Corp.,
Ltd.). The address of the Company’s registered office is No.
60, Middle Section of Huangshan Avenue, New North Zone,
Chongging City, the PRC. The Company’s headquarter is
located in Chongqing, the PRC. The Group was established
with a registered capital of RMB2,679,740,154 (RMB1 per

share).

On 13 June 2008, the Company publicly issued 1,004.90 million
H shares to foreign investors with approval of the Circular
“Zhengjian Xuke [2008] No. 285" of the China Securities
Regulatory Commission, and the shares were listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
After issuing the shares, the total share capital increased to
RMB3,384,640,154.

CQMEHG which is a registered company in China, is the
parent company of the Company and Chongging Yufu Holding
Group Co., Ltd* (EE A EZEREE B R 2 7)) which is a
registered company in China, is the ultimate holding company
of the Company. As at 30 June 2025, the registered capital of
the Company was RMB3,684,640,154. The Group are mainly
engaged in the manufacturing, sales and services of clean

energy equipment and high-end intelligent equipment.

The consolidated financial statements have been approved
for issue by the Company’s board of directors (“Board”) on 20

August 2025.
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II. BASIS FOR THE PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance
with the Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises —
Basic Standard, and the specific accounting standards
and other relevant regulations issued by the Ministry
of Finance (hereinafter referred to as “CAS”) and the
disclosure requirements in the Preparation Convention
of Information Disclosure by Companies Offering
Securities to the Public No.15-General Rules on Financial
Reporting issued by the China Securities Regulatory
Commission (hereinafter referred to as “CSRC”). In
addition to the above foundations, it also includes
the relevant disclosures required by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”), and is prepared based
on the accounting policies and accounting estimates set
out in “lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES” in this note.

Going concern

The Group has evaluated its ability to continue operating
for 12 months from 30 June, 2025, and has not found any
significant doubts or circumstances regarding its ability to
continue operating. This financial statement is presented

on a going concern basis.
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INTERIM REPORT 2025
CHONGQING MACHINERY & ELECTRIC CO., LTD

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Specific accounting policies and accounting estimates are
formulated by the Group based on actual manufacturing and
operating characteristics including business cycle, recognition
and measurement of provision for bad debts of accounts
receivable, inventory cost flow assumptions, measurement of
net realizable value of inventory, classification and depreciation
method of fixed assets, amortization of intangible assets,
capitalization of research and development expenses,

recognition and measurement of revenue, etc.

1. Declaration on Compliance with CAS

This financial statement complies with the requirements of
the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and
truthfully, accurately, and completely reflects the financial
position of the Group as of 30 June, 2025, as well as
relevant information such as operating results and cash

flows from January 2025 to June 2025.

2. Accounting Period

The Group’s accounting period is from 1 January to 31

December.

3. Business Cycle
The Group treats 12 months as a business cycle and the

criteria for classifying current and non-current assets and

liabilities.
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Functional Currency

The Group’s accounting base currency and the currency
used in the preparation of these financial statements
are both RMB. Unless otherwise specified, all units are

expressed in RMB yuan.

The subsidiaries, joint ventures, and associated
enterprises of the Group shall determine their accounting
base currency based on the main economic environment
in which they operate. When preparing financial
statements, they shall be converted into RMB according to

the methods described [11.9.

Method and selection basis for determining importance

standards

The preparation and disclosure of financial statements
by the Group follows the principle of materiality. The
Group assesses the importance of financial statement
disclosures from both nature and amount perspectives.
When determining the importance of the nature, the Group
considers factors such as whether the matter belongs to
its daily activities. When determining the importance of
the amount, the Group determines based on whether the

individual amount is greater than or equal to RMB5 million.
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INTERIM REPORT 2025
CHONGQING MACHINERY & ELECTRIC CO., LTD

From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Measurement for Business Combinations under Common
Control and Business Combinations not under Common

Control

As the merging party, assets acquired and liabilities
obtained by the Group through a business combination
under common control shall be measured at their
carrying amounts of the combined party in the ultimate
controlling party’s consolidated financial statements at the
consolidation date. The differences between the carrying
amount of the net assets acquired and the carrying
amount of the consideration paid should be adjusted in
the capital reserve. If capital reserve is not sufficient for

offsetting, the retained earnings shall be adjusted.

The identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
acquired in the merger of enterprises not under the same
control are measured at fair value on the acquisition date.
The consolidation cost is the sum of fair value of cash
paid or non-cash assets paid to get control of acquiree,
liabilities issued or assumed, equity securities issued
and all other direct costs during business combination
(for those business combination achieved in stages, the
consolidation cost equals to the sum of each transaction).
The excess of consolidation cost over the fair value of net
identifiable assets of the acquiree shall be recognised as
goodwill. It should reassess the fair value of all identifiable
assets achieved through business consolidation, liabilities
or contingent liabilities, non-cash assets or equity
securities issued if the consolidation cost is less than the
fair value of net identifiable assets. After reassessment, if
the consolidation cost is still less than the the fair value of
net identifiable assets of the acquiree, the excess shall be

recognised into non-operating income.
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III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements included all
subsidiaries and special purpose entities that the

Company has effective control.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, where
the accounting policies and the accounting periods of
the Group and subsidiaries are inconsistent, the financial
statements of the subsidiaries are adjusted in accordance
with the accounting policies and the accounting period of

the Group.

All major internal transactions, current balances and
unrealized profits within the scope of the merger shall
be offset at the time of preparation of the consolidated
statements. The share of the owner’s equity of a
subsidiary that does not belong to the parent company
and the current net profit and loss, other comprehensive
income and the share of the total comprehensive income
that belongs to the minority shareholders’ equity shall be
listed as “Minority Interests”, “Non-controlling Interest”
and “Other Comprehensive Income” attributable to “Non-
controlling Interest and total comprehensive income”
attributable to non-controlling interest in the consolidated

financial statements.
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76 CHONGQING MACHINERY & ELECTRIC CO., LTD

ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

e

Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

For the subsidiaries consolidated under common control,
its operating results and cash flows shall be included in
the consolidated financial statements from the beginning
of the consolidated period. When preparing comparative
consolidated financial statements, Adjust the related
items of prior year’'s financial statements are adjusted.
The reporting subject formed after the merger is always
present since the time when the ultimate controlling party

began to control.

For the subsidiary acquired through the business
combination not under common control, operating results
and cash flows should be included in the consolidated
financial statements from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. When preparing consolidated
financial statements, it shall adjust the financial statements
of the subsidiary company on the basis of the fair values
of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent

liabilities determined on the acquisition date.

The Group partially disposes of the long-term equity
investments in subsidiaries without loss of control. In the
consolidated financial statements, the difference between
the disposal price and disposal of long-term equity
investments shall be subject to the share of net assets
that the subsidiaries continue to calculate from the date of
purchase or the date of combination shall adjust capital
premium or equity premium. If the capital is not sufficient

for offsetting, the retained earnings shall be adjusted.
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III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

When disposing of part of the equity investment and
losing control of the entity, the Group shall re-measure the
fair value of the remaining equity investment subsequent
to the disposal at the date when the Group lost control.
when preparing the consolidated financial statements,
The sum of the disposal consideration amount and the
fair value of the remaining equity investment less the
difference between the share of the net assets that
the original subsidiary from the acquisition date or the
combination date, the difference is recorded in the loss of
control investment income in the current period and write
down the goodwill. Other comprehensive income related
to the equity investment of the original subsidiaries shall
be transferred to investment profit and loss in the current

period when the control was lost.

The Group disposes of the equity investment in the
subsidiary through multiple transactions until it loses
control. When several transactions related to the disposal
of equity investment in a subsidiary until the control over
the subsidiary is lost belong to transactions in a basket,
each of which is accounted for as disposal of a subsidiary
with a transaction until the control over a subsidiary
is lost; however, the different between the amount of
disposal prior to the loss of control and the net assets
of a subsidiary attributable to the disposal investment
shall be recognized as other comprehensive income in
consolidated financial statements and transferred to profit

or loss at the time when the control is lost.
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CHONGQING MACHINERY & ELECTRIC CO., LTD

From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

e

Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements

(continued)

All significant intra-group balances, transactions and
unrealized profits are eliminated in the consolidated
financial statements. The portion of subsidiaries’ equity
and the portion of subsidiaries’ net profits and losses and
comprehensive incomes for the period not attributable
to the Company are recognized as non-controlling
interests and presented separately in the consolidated
financial statements under equity, net profits and total
comprehensive income respectively. Unrealized profits
and losses resulting from the sale of assets by the
Company to its subsidiaries are fully eliminated against
net profit attributable to shareholders of the Company.
Unrealized profits and losses resulting from the sale of
assets by a subsidiary to the Company are eliminated and
allocated between net profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company and minority interests in accordance with
the allocation proportion of the parent in the subsidiary.
Unrealized profits and losses resulting from the sale of
assets by one subsidiary to another are eliminated and
allocated between net profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company and minority interests in accordance with

the allocation proportion of the parent in the subsidiary.
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III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash in the Group’s cash flows statement represents
cash on hand and deposits that can be readily draw on
demand. Cash equivalents in the cash flow statement
represent short-term (3 months or less), and highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of

change in value.

Foreign currency transactions and translation of financial

statements denominated in foreign currency

(1) Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into RMB
at the spot exchange rate of the transaction dates.
On balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary
items are translated into RMB at the spot exchange
rate of balance sheet date. Exchange differences
arising from these translations are recognised in
profit or loss for the current period, except for those
attributable to foreign currency borrowings that
have been taken out specifically for the acquisition
or construction of qualifying assets, which are

capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
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ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

9. Foreign currency transactions and translation of financial

statements denominated in foreign currency (continued)

(2) Translation of foreign currency financial statements

Asset and liability items in the balance sheet
of foreign operations are translated at the spot
exchange rates at the balance sheet date;
equity items other than undistributed profits are
translated at the spot exchange rates at the date
of the transactions. Income and expense items in
the income statements are translated at the spot
exchange rate at the date of the transactions. The
foreign currency statement translation difference
arising from the above conversion shall be listed in
other comprehensive income item. The impact of the
foreign currency translation on the cash is presented

in the cash flow statement separately.

10. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The Group recognizes a financial asset or liability when it

enters a financial instrument contract.

(1) Financial assets

1)  Classification, recognition basis and measurement of

financial assets

Based on the business mode for management
of the Group and cash flow characteristics of
contracts, the financial assets are classified
into the following categories: (i) financial assets
measured at amortized cost; (ii) financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive
income; (iii) financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss.
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From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
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III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

10. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued)

(1) Financial assets (continued)

1)

Classification, recognition basis and measurement of

financial assets (continued)

The Group classifies the financial assets into
financial assets as subsequently measured at
amortized cost if all the following conditions are
met: a) The objective of the business model
within which the asset is held is to hold assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows, and
b) the contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding. Such financial
asset is measured initially at its fair value, the
relating transaction costs shall be recognized
into the initial amount of the financial asset,
and is subsequently measured at amortized
cost. Except for the case that the financial
asset is designated for hedging project, gain
or loss arising from derecognition, impairment
or amortization for the difference between the
initial amount and the amount due using the
effective interest method are recorded in current
profit or loss. These financial assets include
cash at bank and on hand, notes receivable,
accounts receivable, other receivables,
contractual assets, debt investments and long-
term receivables. Debt investments and long-
term receivables due within 1 year (inclusive) at
the balance sheet date are listed as the current
portion of non-current assets; at acquiring date,
debt investments with maturities within one year
(inclusive) are listed as other current assets.
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ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

10. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued)

(1) Financial assets (continued)

1)

Classification, recognition basis and measurement of

financial assets (continued)

The Group classifies the financial assets into
financial assets as measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income if all the
following conditions are met: a) the financial
asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and b) the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. Such financial asset is measured
initially at its fair value, and the relating
transaction costs shall be recognized into the
initial amount of the financial asset. Gain or
loss incurred by financial assets measured
at fair value through other comprehensive
income excepting the case that the financial
asset is designated for hedging project
shall be recognized in other comprehensive
income except the impairment loss or gains,
foreign exchange profit or loss, and interests
calculated by the effective interest rate method
of financial assets. When the financial asset is
derecognized, accumulated gains or losses
previously recognized in other comprehensive
income shall be transferred to current profit
or loss from other comprehensive income.
These financial assets are listed as receivables
financing and other equity instrument

investments.
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From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

10. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued)

(1) Financial assets (continued)

1)

2)

Classification, recognition basis and measurement of

financial assets (continued)

The Group lists those debt instruments that do
not meet the criteria for amortised cost or fair
value through other comprehensive income
as financial assets held for trading that are
measured at fair value through profit or loss.
At the initial recognition, for eliminating or
dramatically reducing accounting mismatch,
the Group specifies parts of financial assets as
those measured at fair value through current

profit or loss.

Equity instruments

The Group recognises its equity instruments
that have no control, joint control and significant
influence on the fair value through profit or loss
and list them as financial assets held for trading;
the equity instruments that are expected to
be held for more than a year from the balance
sheet date are listed as other non-current

financial assets.
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CHONGQING MACHINERY & ELECTRIC CO., LTD

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

10. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued)

(1) Financial assets (continued)

2)

3)

Equity instruments (continued)

Besides, the Group specifies certain non-
tradable equity instrument investments as
financial assets that are measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income
and presented as other equity instrument
investments. The relevant dividend income of
such financial assets is included in the current

profit and loss.

Recognition basis and measurement of transferring

financial assets

The Group will derecognized the financial asset
if one of the following conditions is satisfied: (a)
The contractual rights to collect the cash flows
from the financial asset terminate; (b) When the
financial asset is transferred, and the Group
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset; (c) When the
financial asset is transferred, the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset

and has not retained control.
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III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

10. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued)

(1) Financial assets (continued)

3)

Recognition basis and measurement of transferring

financial assets (continued)

When a transfer of the financial asset qualifies
for derecognition, the difference between
the carrying amount of the financial asset
transferred and the sum of the consideration
received from the transfer and the cumulative
amount of changes in fair value that has been
previously recorded in other comprehensive
income, is recorded in current profit or loss (the
contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding).

If a transfer of part of a financial asset qualifies
for derecognition, the carrying amount of the
entire financial asset transferred is allocated
between the part that is derecognized and
the part that continues to be recognized,
based on the respective fair values of those
parts. The difference between the sum of
consideration received from the transfer and
cumulative amount of changes in fair value that
shall be allocated to the part derecognized
which has been previously recognized in other
comprehensive income and the above allocated
carrying amount, is recorded in current profit or
loss (the contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding).
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(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

10. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued)

(1) Financial assets (continued)

4)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group conducts impairment treatment and
recognizes loss provisions for financial assets,
contract assets, loan commitments, and financial
guarantee contracts measured at amortized cost

based on expected credit losses.

Expected credit loss refers to the weighted
average of credit losses of financial instruments
weighted by the risk of default. Credit loss
refers to the present value of all cash shortages,
which is the difference between all contractual
cash flows receivable under the contract and
all expected cash flows received, discounted at
the original effective interest rate by the Group.
When considering the method of measuring
expected credit losses, the Group reflects the
following elements: (a) an unbiased probability
weighted average amount determined by
evaluating a series of possible outcomes;
(b) The time value of money; (c) Reasonable
and evidence-based information about past
events, current conditions, and future economic
conditions that can be obtained without incurring
unnecessary additional costs on the balance

sheet date.
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III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

10. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued)

(1) Financial assets (continued)

4)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The Group evaluates the expected credit losses
of financial instruments based on individual and
combination evaluations. When evaluating on a
combination basis, the Group divides financial
instruments into different groups based on
common credit risk characteristics. The common
credit risk characteristics adopted by the Group
include: financial instrument type, credit risk
rating, overdue information, accounts receivable

aging, etc.

The Group’s assessment of impairment of
financial instruments and contract assets
using the expected credit loss model requires
significant judgment and estimation, taking
into account all reasonable and evidence-
based information, including forward-looking
information. When making these judgments and
estimates, the Group infers expected changes
in the debtor’s credit risk based on historical
repayment data combined with economic
policies, macroeconomic indicators, industry
risks, and other factors. Different estimates may
affect the provision for impairment, and the
provision for impairment that has already been
made may not be equal to the actual amount of

future impairment losses.
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ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

10. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued)

(1) Financial assets (continued)

4)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For accounts receivable, notes receivable,
accounts receivable financing, contract assets,
and other receivables that do not contain
significant financing components formed from
daily business activities such as selling goods
and providing services, the Group adopts a
simplified measurement method to measure
the provision for losses based on the expected
credit loss amount equivalent to the entire

existence period.

For accounts receivables containing significant
financing components and contract assets, the
Group chooses to use a simplified measurement
method to measure loss provisions based on the
expected credit loss amount equivalent to the

entire duration.
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III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

10. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued)

(1) Financial assets (continued)

4)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For accounts receivable, except for those with
credit impairment that have been individually
determined, credit losses are usually determined
based on a combination of common credit risk
characteristics. Considering the elements that
should be reflected in the expected credit loss
measurement method and referring to historical
credit loss experience, a comparison table
between accounts receivable aging and default
loss rate is prepared to calculate expected
credit losses based on this. If a customer’s
credit risk characteristics are significantly
different from those of other customers in
the portfolio, or if the customer’s credit risk
characteristics undergo significant changes,
such as severe financial difficulties, and the
expected credit loss rate of accounts receivable
from the customer is significantly higher than
the expected credit loss rate in the aging range,
the Group shall make a provision for losses on
a single item basis for the accounts receivable

from the customer.
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Name of groups

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

10. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued)
(1) Financial assets (continued)

4)  Impairment of financial assets (continued)

@ The combination category and
determination basis of accounts receivable

(with contract assets)

HEBDRE

Basis of determination of groups

2 NCIE/Q

Related company funds

S BB X R X S TR H) IR

Funds formed from transactions with related companies

ERBABRRFES EERBAERRIEFNER

Good combination of payments Customers who have received good payments within the
received within the credit period credit period

—REFFIRES Hith—REP

General customer fund combination Other general customers
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10. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued)
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(1) Financial assets (continued)

4)  Impairment of financial assets (continued)

®

The combination category and
determination basis of accounts
receivable (with contract assets)
(continued)

Based on information such as
the age of accounts receivable
(and contract assets), nature of
payments, credit risk exposure,
and historical collection status, this
group is grouped according to the
similarity and correlation of credit
risk characteristics. a. The Group
evaluates accounts receivable
formed from transactions with related
companies as having low credit risk
and does not recognize expected
credit losses; b. For customers who
have received good payments within
the credit period, our group evaluates
such payments as having low credit
risk and does not confirm expected
credit losses; c. For other general
customers, the Group determines that
aging is the main influencing factor of
their credit risk. Therefore, the Group
evaluates their expected credit losses
based on an aging combination.
Our group determines the aging of

accounts based on the invoicing date.
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=~ HEGFHEOR R aat sk (8) ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

10. 4 b B fn 4 b £ 08 (A8) 10. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued)
1) ZEEE ) (1) Financial assets (continued)
4) B L () 4)  Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Q@ REREERNHEESENR @ Combination categories and determination

TR basis of accounts receivable
HEER HE B DK
Name of groups Basis of determination of groups
IRITRNESR EREBEBERITRRE
Bank acceptance bill Bank notes with lower credit risk
BB A ER AT AR
Related party acceptance bills Related party acceptance bills
HihRigAEE E BRI )RR
Other bill combinations Notes from other units
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III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

10. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued)

(1) Financial assets (continued)

4)  Impairment of financial assets (continued)

@)

Combination categories and determination

basis of accounts receivable (continued)

Based on the credit risk of the acceptor
of accounts receivable as a common
risk feature, the Group divides them into
different combinations and determines the
accounting estimation policy for expected
credit losses: a. The acceptor is a bank
acceptance bill of a commercial bank, and
the Group evaluates this type of payment
as having lower credit risk, but does not
recognize expected credit losses; b. The
group evaluates bills with related parties as
having low credit risk and does not confirm
expected credit losses; c¢. The acceptor
shall recognize the expected loss rate and
make provisions for losses in accordance
with the Group’s accounts receivable
policy for bills issued by other units, which
shall be the same as the combination of

accounts receivable.
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ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

10. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued)

(1) Financial assets (continued)

4)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Impairment testing methods for loan

commitments, and financial guarantee contracts

Except for financial assets, loan commitments,
and financial guarantee contracts that use
simplified measurement methods, the Group
adopts the general method (three-stage
method) to calculate expected credit losses. On
each balance sheet date, the Group assesses
whether its credit risk has significantly increased
since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not
significantly increased since initial recognition
and is in the first stage, the Group measures
the provision for losses based on an amount
equivalent to the expected credit loss for the
next 12 months, and calculates interest income
based on the book balance and actual interest
rate; If credit risk has significantly increased
since initial recognition but credit impairment
has not yet occurred, in the second stage, the

Group measures loss provisions at an amount
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III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

10. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued)

(1) Financial assets (continued)

4)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Impairment testing methods for loan
commitments, and financial guarantee contracts

(continued)

loss provision is measured based on the amount
of the loss and calculates interest income based
on the book balance and actual interest rate; If
credit impairment occurs after initial recognition,
in the third stage, the Group measures the
provision for losses at an amount equivalent to
the expected credit loss for the entire existence
period, and calculates interest income at
amortized cost and actual interest rate. For
financial instruments with lower credit risk on
the balance sheet date, the Group assumes that
their credit risk has not significantly increased

since initial recognition.
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ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

10. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued)

(1) Financial assets (continued)

4)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The expected credit loss for the entire expected
lifespan of a financial instrument refers to the
expected credit loss caused by all possible
default events that may occur throughout the
expected lifespan of the financial instrument.
The expected credit loss within the next 12
months refers to the expected credit loss that
may occur due to a default event of a financial
instrument within the next 12 months after the
balance sheet date (if the expected maturity of
the financial instrument is less than 12 months,
then the expected maturity), which is a part of
the expected credit loss for the entire maturity

period.

Please refer to X, 1 for the disclosure of the
criteria for significantly increasing credit risk and
the definition of credit impairment assets that

have occurred in the Group.
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III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

10. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued)

(2) Financial liabilities

1)

Classification ~ recognition basis and measurement of
financial liabilities

The group classifies the financial liabilities
upon initial recognition as financial liabilities
measured at fair value through profit or loss and

other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities measured at fair value
through profit or loss, including financial
liabilities held for trading and those designated
as measured at fair value through profit
or loss upon initial recognition, (relevant
classification basis is disclosed according to
the classification basis of financial assets), are
measured subsequently at fair value, and profits
or losses resulting from changes in fair value
and dividends and interest expense related to
financial liabilities are recognized in current

profits and losses.
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ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

10. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued)

(2) Financial liabilities (continued)

1)

Classification ~ recognition basis and measurement of

financial liabilities (continued)

Other financial liabilities, (specific disclosure of
financial liabilities according to actual situation),
are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using effective interest method. The Group
classify all financial liabilities as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, except for: (a)
Financial liabilities measured at fair value
through profit or loss, including financial
liabilities held for trading (including derivatives
that are liabilities) and those designated as
measured at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition; (b) Financial liabilities
that arise when a transfer of a financial asset
does not qualify for derecognition or when
the continuing involvement approach applies.
(c) financial guarantee contracts that do not
satisfied (a) and (b), and commitments to
provide a loan at a below-market interest rate

that do not satisfied (a).

The financial liability constituted by contingent
consideration confirmed by the buyer through a
business combination not under common control
by the Group is measured at fair value through

current profit or loss.
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III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

10. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued)

(2) Financial liabilities (continued)

2)

Derecognition criteria of financial liabilities

When the present obligation or a part of the
present obligation of a financial liability is
discharged, a financial liability or a part of
a financial liability shall be derecognized. A
contract is entered into between the Group and
the creditor to replace the existing financial
liability by a new financial liability. And if the
contract terms of new financial liability are
substantially different with those in existing
financial liability, it shall derecognize the
existing financial liability and recognize a new
financial liability. When the Group performed
substantive changes to all or part of the contract
terms of the existing financial liabilities, the
existing financial liabilities or part of it shall be
derecognized. And financial liabilities after term
revision will be recognized as a new financial
liability. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognized
and the consideration paid is recognized in

current profit or loss.
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ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

10. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued)

(3) Methods for determination of the fair value of financial

assets and financial liabilities

The Group measures the fair value of financial assets
and financial liabilities at the prices in principal
market, or in the absence of a principal market,
measures the fair value at the prices in the most
advantageous market, and use valuation techniques
that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data and other information are
available to measure fair value. The input value
used in fair value measurement is divided into three
levels: the first level of input value is the unadjusted
quotation of the same assets and liabilities that can
be obtained on the measurement day in the active
market; the second level of input value is the direct
or indirect observable input value of related assets
and liabilities in addition to the first level input value;
the third level of input value is the unobservable
input level of related assets and liabilities. The Group
prefers the first level of input values, and uses the
third level of input values at last. Investment of
other equity instruments uses the first level of input
values. The level of fair value measurement results is
determined by the lowest level of input values which
are of great significance to fair value measurement

as a whole.
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III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

10. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued)

3)

)

Methods for determination of the fair value of financial

assets and financial liabilities (continued)

The Group measures the investment of equity
instruments at fair value. But in limited cases, if the
short-term information used to determine fair value is
insufficient, or if the possible estimated amount of fair
value is widely distributed, and the cost represents
the best estimate of fair value in the range, the cost
can represent its proper estimate of fair value in the

range of distribution.

Elimination between financial assets and financial
liabilities

The financial assets and liabilities of the Group
are shown separately in the balance sheet and
are not offset by each other. However, when the
following conditions are met at the same time, the
net amount offset shall be shown in the balance
sheet: a) the Group has a statutory right to set off
the recognized amount, and the statutory right is
currently enforceable. b) the Group intends to settle
its financial assets and liabilities in net amount, or
liquidate the financial assets and settle the financial

liabilities at the same time.
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ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued)

(5) Difference between financial liabilities and equity

instruments and relevant measurement

The Group distinguishes between financial liabilities
and equity instruments in accordance with the
following principles: (1) If the Group cannot
unconditionally avoid fulfilling a contractual obligation
by delivering cash or other financial assets, the
contractual obligation meets the definition of financial
liability. Although some financial instruments do
not explicitly contain terms and conditions for the
obligation to deliver cash or other financial assets,
they may indirectly form contractual obligations
through other terms and conditions. (2) If a financial
instrument is to be settled with the Group’s own
equity instruments, it is necessary to consider
whether the Group’s own equity instruments used to
settle the instrument are to be used as a substitute
for cash or other financial assets, or to enable the
holder of the instrument to take residual equity in
the assets after the issuer deducts all liabilities. If
the former is the case, the instrument is the issuer’s
financial liabilities. If the latter is the case, the
instrument is the issuer’s equity instrument. In some
cases, a financial instrument contract sets that the
group shall use or use its own equity instruments to
settle the financial instrument, in which the amount
of contractual rights or obligations is equal to the
number of its own equity instruments available or to
be delivered multiplied by the fair value at the time
of settlement, whether the amount of the contractual
rights or obligations is fixed or changes totally or
partially based on the division of this set variables
other than the market price of the group’s own equity
instruments (such as interest rates, the price of a
commodity or the price of a financial instrument), the

contract is classified as financial liabilities.
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III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued)

(5) Difference between financial liabilities and equity

instruments and relevant measurement (continued)

In classifying financial instruments (or their
components) in the consolidated statements, the
Group takes into account all terms and conditions
reached between the members of the Group and the
holders of financial instruments. If the group as a
whole assumes the obligation to deliver cash, other
financial assets or settle accounts in other ways that
result in the instrument becoming a financial liability,
the instrument should be classified as a financial

liability.

Where financial instruments or their components are
financial liabilities, the relevant interest, dividends
(or stock bonus), gains or losses, as well as gains or
losses arising from redemption or refinancing, shall
be included in the profits and losses of the current

period.

Where a financial instrument or its components
belong to an equity instrument, when it is issued
(including refinancing), repurchased, sold or
cancelled, the Group shall account as a change of
equity, and shall not recognize the change of the fair

value of the equity instrument.
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CHONGQING MACHINERY & ELECTRIC CO., LTD

From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

11.

Inventories

The inventory of the Group mainly includes raw materials,
work in progress, inventory goods, turnover materials,
commissioned processing materials, issued goods,

contract performance costs, etc.

Perpetual inventory system is adopted by the Group.
Inventory is valued at actual cost when acquired.
Weighted average method and individual valuation
method are used to determine the actual cost of the
inventory used or issued. Low-value consumption goods
and packaging material are amortized at one time when

they are used.

The net realizable value of inventory of goods, products in
progress, and materials used for sale, which are directly
used for sale, is determined based on the age of the
inventory or the estimated selling price of the inventory
minus the estimated selling expenses and related taxes.
The net realizable value of material inventory held for
production is determined based on the age of the
inventory or the estimated selling price of the produced
products minus the estimated costs to be incurred until

completion, estimated sales expenses, and related taxes.
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202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

12. Contract assets and Contract liabilities

)

)

Contract assets

Contract assets refer to the Group’s right (depends
on factors other than passage of time) to collect
costs from customers in exchange for goods or
services transferred by the Group. If the Group sells
two clearly distinguishable goods to its customers, it
has the right to collect payment for one of the goods
delivered, but the collection depends on the delivery
of another commodity, the Group regards the right to

collect payment as a contractual asset.

The method for determining the expected credit
losses of the Group on the contract assets is as
shown in note I11.10. Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities (1) Financial assets 4) Impairment of

financial assets.

Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities reflect the obligation of the Group
to transfer goods to customers for consideration
received or receivable from customers. If the
customer has already paid the contract consideration
or the group has obtained the unconditional right to
receive the contract consideration before transferring
the goods to the customer, the contract liability shall
be recognized based on the received or receivable
amount at the earlier of the actual payment by the

customer or the due payment.
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INTERIM REPORT 2025
CHONGQING MACHINERY & ELECTRIC CO., LTD

From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

13. Contractual costs

(1) Method for determining the amount of assets related to

contractual costs

The Group’s assets related to contractual costs
include contract performance costs and contract

acquisition costs.

The cost of contract performance, that is, the cost
incurred by the Group for the performance of the
contract, does not fall within the scope of other
enterprise accounting standards and meets the
following conditions at the same time, is recognized
as an asset as the cost of contract performance:
the cost is directly related to a current or expected
contract, including direct labor, direct materials,
manufacturing costs (or similar costs), costs and
other costs incurred solely as a result of the contract
and is clearly undertaken by the customer. The
cost increases the Group’s resources for future
performance obligations; the cost is expected to be

recovered.

The acquisition cost of a contract, is the incremental
cost expected to be recovered by the Group in
order to obtain the contract, and is recognized as
an asset as the acquisition cost of the contract; if
the amortization period of the asset does not exceed
one year, the profits and losses of the current period
shall be included in the occurrence of the asset.
Incremental cost refers to the cost (such as sales
commission) that will not occur if the group does
not obtain a contract. Expenditures incurred by the
Group for the purpose of obtaining a contract other
than the incremental costs expected to be recovered
(e.g. travel expenses incurred regardless of whether
the contract was acquired) are recorded in the

current profits and losses at the time of occurrence,

except those clearly undertaken by the customer.
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202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

13. Contractual costs

)

3)

Amortization of assets related to contractual costs

The Group’s assets related to contract costs shall
be amortized on the same basis as the commodity
income recognition related to the assets, and shall

be included in the current profits and losses.

Impairment of assets related to contractual costs

In determining impairment losses of assets related to
contract costs, the Group first determines impairment
losses in accordance with other relevant enterprise
accounting standards and other assets related to
the contract; then determines impairment losses in
accordance with their book value higher than the
residual consideration expected by the Group for
the transfer of commodities related to the asset and
estimates the costs to be incurred for the transfer of
the related commodities. If the difference between
the two items exceeds the allowance for impairment,

the provision for impairment shall be calculated and

the impairment loss of assets shall be considered.

After the factors of impairment in the previous period
have changed, and the above-mentioned balance is
higher than the book value of the asset, the provision
for asset impairment which was originally calculated
shall be transferred back to the current profit and
loss, but the book value of the asset after the transfer
shall not exceed the book value of the asset on the
transfer date assumed that the provision for asset

impairment is not included.
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ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

14. Long-term Equity Investment

Long-term equity investments of the Group comprise the
investment towards subsidiaries and investments towards

associates and joint ventures.

The Group’s judgment on joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists
only when decisions about the relevant activities require

unanimous consent of parties sharing control.

If the Group holds, directly or indirectly (e.g. through
subsidiaries) more than 20% but lower than 50% of the
voting power of the investee, it is presumed that the entity
has significant influence. If the Group holds, directly or
indirectly (e.g. Through subsidiaries) less than 20% of the
voting power of the investee, the representation on the
board of directors or equivalent governing body of the
investee, or participation in financial and operation policy-
making process, or the material transaction between the
entity and the investee, or expedition of management
personnel, or the provision of essential technical

information will be considered.

A subsidiary company of the Group is the entity that
controls the invested unit. As for long-term equity
investment acquired through a business combination
under common control, the initial recognition are
measured in accordance with the proportion of the
book value of the owner’s equity of the merged party
in ultimately control party’s consolidated financial
statements. If the book value of the net assets of the
merged party is negative on the date of merger, the cost

of long-term equity investment shall be fixed at zero.
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If a company acquires the equity of the invested entity
under common control step by step through multiple
transactions and eventually forms a merger, it shall
supplement the method of dealing with the long-term
equity investment disclosed in the financial statements
of the parent company during the reporting period of
acquiring the control right. For example, the investee’s
equity is acquired step by step under common
control through multiple transactions, and eventually
the enterprise merges, which belongs to a package
transaction. The Group will treat all transactions as a
control transaction. If it does not belong to the package
transaction, the initial investment cost of the long-term
equity investment shall be the share of the net assets of
the merged party in the book value of the final controlling
party’s consolidated financial statements on the date of
merger. The capital reserve is adjusted by the difference
between the initial investment cost and the book value of
the long-term equity investment before the merger, plus
the sum of the book value of the new share payment on
the merger day, and if the capital reserve is insufficient to

be reduced, the retained earnings shall be reduced.

The initial investment cost is the actual acquisition cost
if the long-term equity investment is acquired through a

business combination not under common control.
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ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

14. Long-term Equity Investment (continued)

If a company acquires the equity of the invested entity
not under common control step by step through multiple
transactions and eventually forms a merger, it shall
supplement the method of dealing with the cost of
long-term equity investment disclosed in the financial
statements of the parent company during the reporting
period of acquiring the control right. For example, the
investee’s shares are acquired step by step through
multiple transactions, and eventually a merger of
enterprises is formed, which belongs to a package
transaction, the Group will treat all transactions as a
control transaction. If the transaction does not belong to
the package transaction, the initial investment cost shall
be accounted for according to the book value of the
original equity investment and the sum of the additional
investment cost. If the equity held is accounted for by
equity method before the acquisition date, the other
comprehensive income accounted by the original equity
method will not be adjusted temporarily, and when
dealing with the investment, the same basis as the
assets or liabilities directly disposed of by the invested
entity shall be adopted for accounting treatment. If the
equity held prior to the purchase date is accounted for
at fair value in the financial assets available for sale, the
cumulative changes in fair value originally included in
other comprehensive gains are transferred to the current

investment gains and losses on the consolidation date.
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In addition to the above-mentioned long-term equity
investments obtained through enterprise mergers, long-
term equity investments obtained by paying cash shall
be regarded as investment costs according to the
purchase price actually paid; long-term equity investments
obtained by issuing equity securities shall be regarded
as investment costs according to the fair value of issuing
equity securities; long-term equity investments invested
by investors shall be regarded as investment costs in

accordance with investment contracts or agreements.

The Group adopts cost method to account for subsidiary
investment and equity method to account for joint venture

and joint venture investment.

The book value of the cost of long-term equity investment
which based on cost method in subsequent measurement
will increase according to the fair value of the cost paid by
the additional investment and the related transaction costs
when additional investment is made. The cash dividend or
profit declared by the invested entity shall be recognized
as the current investment income according to the amount

taken.
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ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

14. Long-term Equity Investment (continued)

The book value of long-term equity investment which uses
equity method in subsequent measurement will increase
or decrease accordingly with the change of owner’s equity
of other invested units. Among them, when confirming the
share of the net profit and loss of the invested unit, based
on the fair value of the identifiable assets of the invested
unit at the time of acquiring the investment, and in
accordance with the accounting policies and accounting
period of the group, and offsetting the internal transaction
gains and losses occurring between the joint venture and
the joint venture, which belong to the invested enterprise
according to the share-holding ratio, the net value of the
invested unit shall be calculated. Profit is confirmed after

adjustment.

When the long-term equity investment is disposed, the
difference between its book value and the actual price
obtained shall be included in the current investment
income. If a long-term equity investment calculated by
the equity method is included in the owner’s rights and
interests due to other changes in the owner’s rights and
interests other than net profit and loss of the invested
entity, the portion originally included in the owner’s rights
and interests shall be transferred to the current investment
profit and loss according to the corresponding proportion

when disposing of the investment.
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III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

14. Long-term Equity Investment (continued)

If the joint control or significant influence on the invested
unit is lost due to the disposal of part of the equity
investment, the residual equity after disposal shall be
accounted for financial assets available for sale. The
difference between the fair value and book value of the
remaining equity on the date of the loss of joint control
or significant influence shall be included in the current
profits and losses. The other comprehensive income of the
original equity investment confirmed by the equity method
shall be accounted for on the same basis as the assets or
liabilities directly disposed of by the invested entity when

the equity method is terminated.

If the disposal of part of the long-term equity investment
loses control over the invested entity, the residual equity
after disposal can exercise joint control or exert significant
influence on the invested entity, the balance between
the book value of the disposal equity and the disposal
consideration shall be accounted for as the investment
income, and the residual equity shall be accounted for
by the equity method after disposal. If the residual equity
cannot exert joint control or exert significant influence on
the invested unit, it shall be accounted for according to
the relevant provisions of the financial assets available
for sale. The difference between the book value of the
disposal equity and the book value of the disposal equity
shall be included in the investment income. The difference
between the fair value of the residual equity on the day of
losing control and the book value shall be included in the

current investment profit and loss.
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14.

15.

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Long-term Equity Investment (continued)

If the transaction from step-by-step disposal to the loss
of controlling rights does not belong to the package of
transaction, each transaction is accounted for separately.
In a “package transaction”, transactions are treated as
a transaction to dispose of subsidiaries and lose control
rights. However, before the loss of control rights, the
difference between the disposal price of each transaction
and the book value of the long-term equity investment
corresponding to the disposed equity is recognized as
other comprehensive income, and when the control rights

are lost, it will be transferred to current profits and losses

of losing control rights.

Investment Properties

Investment properties comprise land-use rights and
buildings which are held for long-term rental yields and
not occupied by the Group, and uncompleted buildings
which are intended to hold for rent. Investment properties
are initially recognized at cost. The subsequently costs
shall be added to the initial costs of the investment
properties when the economic benefit related is likely to
realize and is measurable. Or else, it should be stated in

current profit or loss.
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III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

15. Investment Properties (continued)

Depreciation (or amortization) of investment properties
is calculated using a straight-line method to allocate
the depreciable amounts (cost less residual value) over
the estimated useful life. Below is the table of estimated
useful lives, residual value rate and annual depreciation

(amortization) rates:

Rl EREdET EFEEREE(%) FIEE(%)
Estimated residual Annual depreciation

Category Estimated useful life value rates (%) rate (%)

FEKGEEY 30-504F 0.00-5.00 1.90-3.33

Buildings 30-50 years

WEMEHENEENE AR RE - 8 If the usage is changed into owner-occupied, the
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HEREUFHMENRHERSS « ]/t
FREMFETENEFFRERTET
BRAUEERE -

investment property is reclassified into a property, plant
and equipment or an intangible asset since the day
the change has been made. On the contrary, the fix or
intangible asset is transferred into investment property if
the usage of these properties is to earn rentals or capital
appreciations. When a transfer occurs, the previous

carrying amount shall be used as the new book value.

The estimated useful lives, estimated residual value rates
and depreciation method shall be annually reviewed and

adjusted properly.
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Investment Properties (continued)

An investment property shall be derecognized on disposal
or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. The gains from sale, transfer, written-off
or destroy of the investment properties less the carrying
amount and relevant taxes shall be recognized in current

profit or loss.

When an investment property’s recoverable amount is
lower than its carrying amount, the carry amount shall be

decreased to the recoverable amount.

Property, Plant and Equipment

(1) Recognition and Initial measurement of property, plant

and equipment

Property, plant and equipment comprise buildings,
machineries, transportations, office equipments end
etc. Property, plant and equipment of the group
refer to the tangible assets with a service life of more
than one year held for the production of goods,
provision of labor services, lease or operation and

management.

Property, plant and equipment are recognized when
it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the assets will flow into the entity,
and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
It is recognized at purchase cost or construction cost
for the initial cost. The state owned property, plant
and equipment were recognized at the evaluation
price during the system-changing of the state-owned

enterprise.
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III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

16. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

)

)

Recognition and Initial measurement of property, plant
and equipment (continued)

Subsequent recognition is recorded when the future
economic benefits associated with the asset is likely
to flow into the entity and the cost of the asset can
be measured reliably. The value of the replaced part
shall be derecognized its carrying amount. The other
subsequent expenses are recognized in the current

profit or loss.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Depreciation is calculated using a straight-line
method to allocate the depreciable amounts (cost
less residual value) over the estimated useful life. As
for the property, plant and equipment with impairment
provisions, the Depreciation is calculated using
a straight-line method to allocate the depreciable
amounts (cost less residual and impairment value)

over the estimated useful life.

Fo Wl TEFR(F) FEETRER(%) FHEE(%)
Estimated Estimated Annual
useful lives residual value depreciation rate
Number Category (years) (%) (%)
1 FENMEEY 20-50 3.00-5.00 1.90-4.85
Buildings
2 MesaR 1 7-28 5.00 3.39-13.57
Machinery equipments
3 BRTA 6-12 5.00 7.92-15.83
Transportations
4 WAKRETFRE 3-14 5.00 6.79-31.67
Office equipments
2025 H¥k (147
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ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

16.

17.

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

(2) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (continued)

The estimated useful lives, estimated residual value
rate and depreciation method shall be annually

reviewed and adjusted properly.

When the recoverable amount of property, plant
and equipment is lower than the carrying amounts,
the carrying amounts shall be decreased to the

recoverable amounts.

(3) Disposal of property, plant and equipment

The property, plant and equipment should be
derecognized on disposal or when the property, plant
and equipment is permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposal. The gains from sale, transfer, written-
off or destroy of the property, plant and equipment
less the carrying amount and relevant taxes shall be

recognized in current profit or loss.

Construction in Progress

Construction in progress is recognized according to the
actual costs. The actual costs include construction cost,
installment cost, borrowing costs eligible for capitalization
and other necessary expenses incurred in order to
make the construction in progress ready to use. When
construction in progress reaches the predetermined
usable state, it should be transferred to fixed asset and be
depreciated from the next month. When the recoverable
amount of construction in progress is lower than the
carrying amount, the carrying amount shall be decreased

to the recoverable amount.
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202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
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III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

18.

Borrowings costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalized during the period
of time that is required to complete and prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale. Capitalization
should cease when substantially all of the activities
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale are complete. Capitalization should be suspended
during periods in which active development is interrupted
abnormally for more than 3 months. And it recapitalized

when the abnormal interruption is over.

The actual interest costs incurred by the funds borrowed
specifically less the interest earned by the unused
part deposited in the bank or any income earned on
the temporary investment shall be capitalized; where
funds are part of a general pool, the eligible amount
is determined by applying a capitalization rate to the
expenditure on that asset. The capitalization rate will be
the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to

the general pool.

2025 H#k (41419
EEMERHERAR



ST AR MY A (AT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 1 H 202546130 H
CRIPBS R B RE RS R GE IS0 LA RWEIE51R)

=~ HEEEHBOR & &6 hE ()

120

19. 5 Fi B
EREEE  REASBER/EABAR
EHESAEREEEENEM K&
EHEEEENR T2 EREEREY

ez

@

@

R R 35 A P HE o

kT

EHREHRSK B - REBIZEKAR
HiEREEEETIN 34
AEETIIMEE: OHERENT
REtEER IR AXNHAEE
NHRENRERRAASEERE &
HHENEEEEEMERN @
FEHEHPMSB A AT A
ENRE  FEAEHEN - Mk
EEXNHEMBEREE  O%
EMEERER  AAEREE
P AR ERA @ RFERE
KEEEE EREEEEMES
G HEEERESRE KR
HEMEETRAH R E AR - BRI
REEGTEMZELENRIN -

L

EHEMFRBBR  NEBERAK
AEAGEREEEETRES
B BIARAB REITE R RFHR
ERXTEEHAREE -

REBZREEENERAREE
METEMRERER  HERHEER
REEMREEE -

INTERIM REPORT 2025
CHONGQING MACHINERY & ELECTRIC CO., LTD

From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

19. Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets refer to the right of the Group as

a lessee to use leased assets during the lease term.

The types of leased assets of the Group mainly include

buildings, machinery and equipment and site use rights.

(1) Initial measurement

2)

At the start of the lease period, the Group initially
measures the right-of-use asset at cost. The cost
includes the following four items: (i) The initial
measurement amount of the lease liability, that is,
the present value of the outstanding lease payments
is recognized as the lease liability, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets; (ii)
Lease payments paid on or before the start of the
lease period, where lease incentives exist, deduct
the relevant amount of lease incentives already
enjoyed; (iii) The initial direct costs incurred, that is,
the incremental costs incurred to reach the lease;
(iv) Expected costs incurred to demolish and remove
leased assets, rehabilitate the site where the leased
assets are located, or restore leased assets to the
state agreed in the lease terms, except for costs

incurred for the production of inventory.

Subsequent measurement

After the start of the lease period, the Group adopts
a cost model for subsequent measurement of the
right-of-use asset, that is, the cost-of-use asset is
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses.

If the Group remeasures the lease liability in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the lease
standards, the book value of the right-of-use asset

shall be adjusted accordingly.
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III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)
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19. Right-of-use assets (continued)

Q) EIREEEN I (3) Depreciation of right-of-use assets
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From the start of the lease period, the Group
depreciates the right-of-use assets. The right-of-
use asset is generally depreciated from the month
in which the lease term begins. The amount of
depreciation accrued is included in the cost of the
relevant asset or the current profit or loss based on

the use of the right-of-use asset.

When determining the depreciation method of the
right-of-use asset, the Group makes a decision
based on the expected consumption of the economic
benefits related to the right-of-use asset, and
depreciates the right-of-use asset on a straight-line

basis.

When determining the depreciation period of
the right-of-use asset, the Group adheres to the
following principles: If it can reasonably determine
the ownership of the leased asset at the end of the
lease period, depreciation will be accrued within
the remaining useful life of the leased asset; it
cannot be reasonably determined that the lease
can be obtained when the lease period expires For
asset ownership, depreciation is accrued during
the shortest period between the lease term and the

remaining useful life of the leased asset.

If the right-of-use asset is impaired, the Group
depreciates the book value of the right-of-use asset

after deducting impairment losses.
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From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

20.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets comprise the land-use rights, technical

know-how, brand, customer relationships, franchise rights

and software etc, it is recognized at cost. The state-owned

intangible assets were recognized at the evaluation price

during the system-changing of the state-owned enterprise.

(1) Categories of intangible assets

1)

2)

Land-use right

Depreciation is calculated using a straight-line
method to allocate the depreciable amounts
over the useful life of 30 to 50 years. If it is
difficult to identify the purchase price of the
land-use right to that of the building, the whole

price is recognized as a fixed asset.

Technical know-how

The proprietary technology invested by the
owner shall be recorded at the value confirmed
by both parties at the time of investment, and
shall be evenly amortized over an estimated
useful life of 5-10 years. The proprietary
technology acquired by the Group through
external purchases is accounted for at the time
of purchase and amortized on a straight-line
basis over an estimated useful life of 5 to 10

years.
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III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

20. Intangible Assets (continued)

(1) Categories of intangible assets (continued)

3)

4)

Brand and customer relationships

The brand and customer relationships were
mainly generated by the acquisition of
subsidiaries by the Group, and were recorded
based on the evaluation results at the time
of acquisition. The trademark is an intangible
asset with an uncertain useful life, which does
not need to be amortized during the holding
period and is subject to impairment testing in
each accounting period; Customer relationships
are amortized on a straight-line basis over an

estimated useful life of 10-12 years.

Software

Software licenses are capitalized by the
purchase price and are amortized over their

estimated useful lives of 2-10 years.
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ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

20.

Intangible Assets (continued)

)

Categories of intangible assets (continued)

3

Franchise rights

The Group engages in certain service
concession arrangements in which the Group
carries out construction work for the granting
authority and receives in exchange a right to
operate the assets concerned in accordance
with the pre-established conditions set by the
granting authority. The franchise rights are
classified as intangible assets or accounts

receivable from the granting authority.

According to the contract, in a certain period
after the construction, the Group is entitled to
receive a certain amount of monetary resources
or other financial assets from the granting
authority; or when the charge for the user is
lower than a certain limitation, the granting
authority will compensate for the difference,

which is shown as financial assets while the

Group recognize the revenue.

Also if the operator receives a right to charge
user within a certain period, but the amount
is uncertain and unable to claim a right for
accounts receivable, it is stated as an intangible

asset while recognizing the revenue.
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III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

20. Intangible Assets (continued)

(1) Categories of intangible assets (continued)

3

6)

Franchise rights (continued)

If intangible assets model is applicable, the
Group classifies the relevant non-current assets
linked to the long-term investment in these
franchise arrangements as “franchise rights”
within under intangible assets classification
on the consolidated balance sheet. Once
the relevant infrastructure projects under the
franchise arrangements have been completed,
the franchise rights will be amortized over the

term of the franchise period on the straight-line

basis under the intangible assets model.

If financial assets model is applicable, the
Group classifies the assets under these
franchise arrangements as financial assets
on the consolidated balance sheet. Once
the relevant infrastructure projects under the
franchise arrangements have been completed,
the interest of financial assets will be calculated
using effective interest rate method and related
gain/(loss) will be charged to the profit or loss

within the franchise period.

Research and development

Internal research and development costs
will be separated into research expenditure
and development cost based on their nature
and whether there is great uncertainty of the
research and development will finally form an

intangible asset.
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(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

20.

Intangible Assets (continued)

)

Categories of intangible assets (continued)

0)

Research and development (continued)

Research expenditure is recognized as

expenses as incurred. Costs incurred on

development projects are recognized as

intangible assets when all the following criteria

are fulfilled:

(a)

It is technically feasible to complete the
intangible asset so that it will be available

for use or sale;

Management intends to complete the

intangible asset to use or sell it;

It can be demonstrated how the intangible
asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

Adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development
and to use or sell the intangible asset are

available;

The expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development

can be reliably measured.
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ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

20. EIEEE () 20. Intangible Assets (continued)
(1) FEIEEEHR () (1) Categories of intangible assets (continued)
6) HFFEELRIEE (4E) 6)  Research and development (continued)
TR BB B R R If development costs don’t meet the above
M REARETAE criteria, they are recognized as an expense
Bz AR EIEE R AlEm as incurred. Development costs previously
BRI B N TE AR HARR & recognized as an expense cannot be
FHERBEE BEERNEH reclassified as an intangible asset in subsequent
REBBRNXELEEAEAR periods. Capitalized costs are recorded as
REITRBRESTL  B#% development expenditures on balance sheet
BEEINBEREzARE and are transferred into intangible assets only
RIEFEE - after technical and commercial feasibility of the

asset for sale or use have been established.

2) SEIEE AN (2) Impairment of intangible assets
ERFEENFWE SR ERE When the recoverable amount is lower than its
EREEER  REEERTSZEUTK carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
Bl &% shall be written down to the recoverable amount.

Q3)  EHYE 7 i A S Ty (3) Regular review of the useful lives and the amortization

method

HERSHARNEFLEENTE As for intangible asset with a definite useful life,
RS RBHEAENEESF the useful lives and depreciation method shall be
ERTETEZIAEEE A - annually reviewed and adjusted properly.
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ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

21.

Impairment of long-term assets

At the end of each reporting period, long-term equity
investments, investment property carried at cost, property,
plant and equipment, construction in progress, right-of-
use asset, intangible assets with definite useful lives and
operating lease assets are assessed for impairment by
the Group when there is any indication that an asset may
be impaired. Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives shall be assessed for impairment at the end of
each reporting period no matter there is any indication for

impairment or not.

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The recoverable amount should be determined for
an individual asset. If it is not possible to determine
the recoverable amount for an individual asset, the
recoverable amount shall be determined for cash-
generating units in which the asset included. The
identification of an asset’s cash-generating unit shall be
based on whether the main cash inflows generated by the
asset’'s cash-generating unit are independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or cash-generating units. When
the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
shall be written down to its recoverable amount. The
reduction shall be recognised as the current profit or loss,
and the corresponding provision for impairment of assets

is also recognised.
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III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

21.

22.

Impairment of long-term assets (continued)

When testing the impairment of relevant cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units containing
goodwill, if there are signs of impairment of cash-
generating units or groups of cash-generating units
related to goodwill, the impairment test of cash-generating
units or cash-generating units without goodwill is carried
out first, and the recoverable amount is calculated to
confirm the corresponding impairment loss. Then the
impairment test is carried out on the cash-generating units
or groups of cash-generating units containing goodwill,
and the carrying amount and the recoverable amount are
compared. If the recoverable amount is lower than the
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units;
and then, reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets
included in the cash-generating units or groups of cash-

generating units pro rata on the basis.

Reversal of an impairment loss for the above assets is
prohibited.

Long-term deferred expenses

Long-term deferred expenses include the improvement
expenditures of property, plant and equipment under
operating lease, and other expenses which incurred in the
current period but are required to be amortized for more
than one fiscal period. Long-term deferred expenses are
amortized on the straight-line basis over the expected
benefit period and are recorded as the actual expenses

less the accumulated amortization.

As for the molds stated in the long-term deferred
expenses, the service life average method is used to

apportion them to the benefit period.

2025 FR
EEMERHERAR =



AR R I T (A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(A B i e I G PR AR T s WA A0 > 38 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

=~ HEEEHBOR & &6 hE ()

23, BRTH

BITHMEASESRSERTRENR
BRI S BREMA THSEL AR
WM AEE - BIEEMEE  BERRE
Mo BEREMME MR TENE -

RHHFNEREIE - &e  RRLMMERL -
BIRNE BRRRE LHRREE
EERBRE FRARS IeNHAE
KE ERTHFRE  AEEERT
RERBHOS M BEREEHE
HEWERLAE Wit AEHBREN
MHEEERAR - Hf - FEBHRMIR
RARBETS -

AEEBREBRENTE D BERRTER
Trat BI MR E R aiat 8l - RERFATE

EREE B NESHFREEEME
PEEAEE - PXNBRBOREBRER
A8 REX mat Bl R R ERFRTE
PAOMNEO BB 12 t2 A AT 8 - IRIRERA -
AEBNMBRENEIEERE THMN
MEARZRRBMEZERE  HBNR
FEfRTFatEl -

130 INTERIM REPORT 2025
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ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

23. Employee Benefits

Employee benefits of the Group refer to rewards or
compensations paid for services provided by employees
or employer layoffs benefits, which include short-term
employee benefits, post-employment benefits, termination

benefits and other long-term employee benefits.

Short-term employee benefits include salaries, bonus,
allowance and subsidies, staff benefits, medical
insurance, employment injury insurance, maternity
insurance, housing fund, union and educational
appropriations, short-term paid absences, etc. Short-term
benefits are recognized as liabilities during the accounting
period when employees render service to the Group.
Employee benefits are recognized as profit or loss in the
current period or allocated to the cost of related assets.

The non-monetary benefits are measured at fair value.

Post-employment benefit schemes are classified as
defined contribution plan and defined benefit plan.
Defined contribution plans of the Group are a kind of
post-employment benefit scheme in which the Group
pays fixed fees to an independent fund and is no longer
obligated to make further payments. Defined benefit plans
are post-employment benefit plans other than a defined
contribution plans. The post-employment benefits of the
Group mainly refer to basic pension and unemployment
insurance during this reporting period, both of which

belong to the defined contribution plan.
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202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

23.

Employee Benefits (continued)

Employees of the Group are all involved in employee’s
endowment insurance policy implemented by local labour
and social security department. The Group makes the
monthly payment to the local institution of employee’s
endowment insurance at a regulated base and proportion.
After employees are retired, local labour and social
security department has the obligation to pay their basic
pension. The payment made according to the policy when
employee render service to the Group is recognized as a
liability and stated as profit or loss or allocated to the cost

of related assets during the period.

Termination benefits are the compensations made to
employees when the Group terminates the employment
relationship with employees prior to the expire of the
employment contracts or provides compensations as
an offer to encourage employees to accept voluntary
layoffs. When the Group provides termination benefits, the
employment benefit liabilities generated from termination
benefits are recognized to profit or loss in the current
period on the early date of the followings: (a) when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits
or layoff plans unilaterally; and (b) when the Group
recognizes costs for a restructuring related to termination

benefits.
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CHONGQING MACHINERY & ELECTRIC CO., LTD

From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

23. Employee Benefits (continued)

The Group offers early retirement benefit for the
employees who accept the internal retirement
arrangement. Early retirement benefit refers to the wages
and social insurance paid for the employees who do not
attain the statutory retirement age and being approved
by the Group’s management team for retirement. The
Group will pay such retirement benefit for the early
retired employee from the date of early retirement to date
where statutory retirement age is attained. The basis of
accounting treatment for early retirement benefits shall
be the same as the termination benefits. If the recognition
conditions for termination benefits were satisfied, the
employment benefit liabilities generated from wages and
social insurance paid for the early retired employees shall
be recognized to profit or loss in the current period all at
once. Any difference arising from the changes of actuarial
assumptions or adjustment of the welfare standard shall

be included to the profit and loss in the current period.
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From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

24. Lease liabilities

(1) Initial measurement

The Group initially measures lease liabilities based

on the present value of lease payments that have not

been paid at the start of the lease period, except for

short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.

1)

Lease payment

Lease payments refer to payments made by
the Group to the lessor related to the right to
use leased assets during the lease period,
including: (i) fixed payments and substantial
fixed payments, where lease incentives exist,
deductions related to lease incentives; (i) A
variable lease payment that depends on the
index or ratio, which is determined at the initial
measurement based on the index or ratio on the
start date of the lease period; (iii) The Group
reasonably determines the exercise option
purchase price when the purchase option
is exercised; (iv) The lease term reflects the
amount to be paid when the Group will exercise
the option to terminate the lease; (v) The amount
expected to be paid based on the residual value

of the guarantee provided by the Group.
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ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

24. Lease liabilities (continued)

(1) Initial measurement (continued)

2)

Discount rate

In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate as the discount rate because it
cannot determine the interest rate inherent in
the lease. The incremental borrowing interest
rate refers to the interest rate payable by the
Group to borrow funds with similar mortgage
conditions in similar periods in order to obtain
assets close to the value of the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment. The
interest rate is related to the following: (i) The
Group’s own situation, namely the group’s
solvency and credit status; (ii) The term of the
“borrowing”, that is, the lease term; (iii) The
amount of “borrowed” funds, that is, the amount
of the lease liability; (iv) “Mortgage conditions”,
that is, the nature and quality of the underlying
assets; (v) Economic environment, including the
jurisdiction in which the lessee is located, the
currency of valuation, the time of signing the
contract, etc. Based on the bank loan interest
rate, the Group adjusted the above factors to

obtain the incremental borrowing interest rate.
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III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

24. Lease liabilities (continued)

(2) Subsequent measurement

After the start of the lease period, the Group
conducts subsequent measurement of the lease
liability according to the following principles: (i)
When confirming the interest of the lease liability,
increase the carrying amount of the lease liability; (ii)
When paying the lease payment, reduce the carrying
amount of the lease liability; (iii) When the lease
payment changes due to revaluation or lease change,

the book value of the lease liability is remeasured.

The interest expense of the lease liability in each
period of the lease period is calculated at a fixed
periodic interest rate and is included in the current
profit and loss, except for those that should be
capitalized. Recurring interest rate refers to the
discount rate used by the Group in the initial
measurement of lease liabilities, or when lease
payments need to be remeasured at a revised
discount rate due to changes in lease payments or
lease changes, The revised discount rate adopted by

the group.

2025 FR
EEMERHERAR i



ST AR MY A (AT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 1 H 202546130 H
CRIPBS R B RE RS R GE IS0 LA RWEIE51R)

=~ HEEEHBOR & &6 hE ()

136

24.

25.

LR £ ()
3 HEHal#
EHEMFABBR  BETIBEY
o NREBZRRESRBEENTER
%DflgéT?éﬁ’\J?ﬁfE”EJrﬁﬁ’ﬁiﬁi
- WA EBER
%ﬁ?ﬁ’ﬂ%ﬁ@@%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁ@
FEEEDSARES  BEHEAR
DT E— TR ZlSE@z‘Hﬂ%
SR AEHES c OBLGREEN
REBALRD  ORMETRATHE
NEeEBELEEE  ORNEEMEE
NRENIERA L RELES) @
BEEEENTGEREES L
OFEMEERIR LTHERERED
AHEERIERITRBELEER L -

R A

EEIMER - RRFAKME EmE

EREF ALEZEUREMROERK

B2 BERITZBBRALEBEET

mERE - BHE S Hr S 2R
RETEFALE -

B ERBEITHERRREEMEX
HEREGTEUEITOR 8 - WA
EZRENEFEARNRR - THEE M
MEMKHEESERE - EBKHEEE

FEBAN  BBEHEBARRSR
ETINIRRETE & EGFE BAEER
IR P 1T IR & R T E B A TR AT

BEREEEANIEINSE  BRAHNE
M-

INTERIM REPORT 2025
CHONGQING MACHINERY & ELECTRIC CO., LTD

From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

24. Lease liabilities (continued)

25.

(3) Remeasurement

After the start of the lease period, when the following
circumstances occur, the Group remeasures the
lease liability based on the changed lease payments
and the present value calculated by the revised
discount rate, and adjusts the book value of the
right-of-use asset accordingly. If the carrying value
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero, but the lease liability still needs to be further
reduced, the Group will include the remaining
amount in the current profit and loss. (i) Changes
in the actual fixed payment amount; (ii) Changes in
the expected payable amount of the residual value;
(iiiy Changes in the index or ratio used to determine
the lease payment amount; (iv) The evaluation result
of the purchase option changes; (v) Changes in the

evaluation results or actual exercise of lease options.

Provisions

Current obligations arising from external guarantees,
pending litigation or arbitration, product quality assurance,
acceptance bills converted into cash, etc., are recognized
as estimated liabilities when the fulfillment of such
obligations is likely to result in the outflow of economic

benefits and the amount can be reliably measured.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate
of the expenditure required to perform the present
obligation. Lots of factors, such as risks and uncertainties
that surround the underlying events and the time value of
money etc, are taken into account. Where the effect of time
value of money is material, the best estimate shall be the
present value of the future cash flow. Where discounting
is used, the increase of a provision to reflect the passage

of time shall be recognized as borrowing costs.



=~ HRGGHBOR & a6 ihEt ()

25.

26.

SAB R T AE (A7)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(A BB i e I G PR AR L s B A0 > 35 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)
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Provisions (continued)

Provisions shall be reviewed as at balance sheet date and

adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Provisions expected to be paid within a year since

balance sheet day are presented as current liabilities.

Revenue Recognition and Measurement

The Group’s operating revenue mainly includes sales
revenue of goods, revenue of providing services, revenue
of EPC construction contract, interest income, revenue of

leasing contract, etc.

(1) Revenue recognition

The Group shall recognize revenue when the Group
satisfies the performance obligation of the contract,
that is, the customer obtains control of relevant
goods or services. Control of a good or service refers
to the ability to direct the use of the good or service,
and obtain substantially all of the benefits from the

goods or services.

When the contract contains two or more performance
obligations, on the inception of the contract, the
transaction price is allocated to each separate
performance obligation in proportion to the stand-
alone price of the promised goods or services,
and the revenue is recognized according to the
transaction price allocated to each performance

obligation.
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(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

26. Revenue Recognition and Measurement (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

The transaction price is the amount of consideration
to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring promised goods or services to a
customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. The transaction price confirmed by
the Group does not exceed the amount that is highly
probable that a significant reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur
when the uncertainty associated with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved. An entity
shall recognize a refund liability if the entity expects
to refund some or all of the consideration to the
customer which is not included in the transaction
price. Where there is significant financing component
in the contract, the Group shall determine the
transaction price on the basis of the amount payable
in cash when the customer assumes control of the
goods or services. The difference between the
transaction price and the contract consideration shall
be amortized by the effective interest rate method
during the contract period. The Group shall not take
into account the existence of a significant financing
component in the contract if the Group expects, at
contract inception, that the period between when the
customer acquires the control of a promised good or
service and when the customer pays for that good
or service will be one year or less. If the customer is
expected to acquire control of the goods or services
more than one year after the customer pays the price,
The Group shall consider the significant financing

element in the contract.
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26. Revenue Recognition and Measurement (continued)

Q) WBAEZR (4)

(1) Revenue recognition (continued)
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The Group satisfies a performance obligation over
time, if one of the following criteria is met; otherwise,
it satisfies a performance obligation at a point in
time: (i) the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs; (ii) the customer
can control the asset which is created by the Group’s
performance; (iii) the Group’s performance does not
create an asset with an alternative use and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date during the whole contract period.

For a performance obligation satisfied over time,
the Group shall recognize revenue over time by
measuring the process towards complete satisfaction
of the performance obligation. If the Group cannot
be able to reasonably measure the progress towards
complete satisfaction of a performance obligation and
the costs incurred by the Group can be expected to
be compensated, the revenue shall be recognized
according to the costs incurred until such time that
it can reasonably measure the process towards

complete satisfaction of the performance obligation.
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ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

26. Revenue Recognition and Measurement (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

For a performance obligation satisfied at a point
in time, the Group shall recognize revenue when
the customer obtains control of relevant goods or
services. In judging whether customers obtain control
of promised goods or services, the Group considers
the following indications: (a) the Group has a present
right to the payment for the goods or services; (b)
the Group has transferred the legal title of the goods
to customers; (c) the Group has transferred physical
possession of the goods to customers; (d) the group
has transferred the significant risks and rewards of
the ownership to the customers; (e) customers have

accepted the goods or services.

Specific accounting policies related to the Group’s main

revenue-generating activities are described below:

(a) Sales contracts

Sales contracts between the Group and its
customers usually contain only the performance
obligation to transfer goods. The Group
usually takes into account the following factors
and identifies revenue at the time when the
customer accepts the goods: the present right
to the payment for the good; the transfer of the
significant risks and rewards in the ownership of
commodities; the transfer of legal ownership of
commodities; the transfer of physical possession
of the goods, and the acceptance of goods by

customers.
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III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

26. Revenue Recognition and Measurement (continued)

(2) Specific accounting policies related to the Group’s

main revenue-generating activities are described below:

(continued)

(b)

Service contracts

Services contracts between the Group and
its customers usually include performance
obligations such as technical services, product
after-sales maintenance services, etc. Since the
Group’s customers simultaneously receive and
consume the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs, and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date during the whole
contract period, the Group will recognize it as a
performance obligation satisfied over time and
recognize revenue according to the progress
of performance, except that the progress of
performance cannot be reasonably determined.
The Group determines the progress of service
delivery according to the input method. If the
costs incurred by the Group can be expected
to be compensated, the revenue shall be
recognized according to the costs incurred until
such time that it can reasonably measure the
process towards complete satisfaction of the

performance obligation.
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ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

26. Revenue Recognition and Measurement (continued)

(2) Specific accounting policies related to the Group’s

main revenue-generating activities are described below:

(continued)

(c)

Revenue from construction contracts (Only applicable

if control is transferred over a period of time)

For the project business contracts between the
Group and its customers, the Group recognizes
revenue according to progress of performance
within such period for satisfying such
performance obligations during a period of time.
Progress of performance refers to the contract
cost actually incurred on a cumulative basis as
of the balance sheet date as a percentage of
the expected total cost under contract (the input
method). Based on the progress of performance
of the project, revenue from project business
contracts is recognized as the contract cost
actually incurred plus the gross profit margin
under contract. If the total contract cost is
likely to exceed total contract revenue, the
expected loss is recognized as expenses for

the current period immediately. If the sum of
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III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

26. Revenue Recognition and Measurement (continued)

(2) Specific accounting policies related to the Group’s

main revenue-generating activities are described below:

(continued)

(c)

Revenue from construction contracts (Only applicable
if control is transferred over a period of time)

(continued)

the cost actually incurred and the recognized
gross profit margin under contract exceed the
contract settlement fee, the excess is taken to
contract assets. Where the contract settlement
fee exceeds the sum of the cost actually
incurred and the recognized gross profit margin
under contract, the excess is taken to contract
liabilities. When the progress of performance of
project business contracts cannot be reasonably
determined, if the costs incurred are expected
to be compensated, the Group recognizes
revenue based on the amount of costs incurred,
until the progress of performance can be
reasonably determined. If the costs incurred are
not expected to be recovered, it is recognized
as expenses for the current period immediately
when the contract cost is incurred. For changes,
claims and awards under contract, revenue is
recognized only when it is likely to happen and

the amount can be reliably estimated.

2025 FR
EEMERHERAR L



SARS TR L (A7)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(A B i e I G PR AR T s WA A0 > 38 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

=~ HEEEHBOR & &6 hE ()

26. WO i R DS A B 5 i (4)

) HARLE IR BN B I BB
HY R i BOR T ¢ (#)

@ HREH
RIEERKNE  ERREE
REBRTIHENE M
BENEESRHEESRSE -
HRRBATFREMBEN
HmAFEERENRELR
BEREF AEEEEBMN
BEITEERIE - R AR
EEFREMEENERTE
MEREZIMEMT —HE
BREORBGEEERE -
REEGEHEL-—BBERE
W& RBIR AR @ AR
BREAEREFNEBEEN
B LA BB HRZER
DBERBEEERE W
TE & 5 HRAG AR 7% 122 il 422 5 1
RN - EFTHEEREZ
BEME P REHEE S @
REMEFLEZIMRET —
BHEBRGE NEBEEE
ZEERBRER/EETER -
E 2 RE HR A R AN & B &
HEETEBNEESREE -

144 INTERIM REPORT 2025
CHONGQING MACHINERY & ELECTRIC CO., LTD

ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

26. Revenue Recognition and Measurement (continued)

(2) Specific accounting policies related to the Group’s

main revenue-generating activities are described below:

(continued)

(d)

Warranty obligations

In accordance with contractual arrangements
and legal requirements, the Group provides
warranty for goods that it sells and assets that it
builds. For the guarantee-type warranties under
which the Group warrants to the customers that
the goods sold satisfy certain pre-set criteria,
accounting treatments are as set out in Note
IV.25. For the service-type warranties under
which the Group provides a separate service in
addition to the warranty to the customers that
the goods sold satisfy certain pre-set criteria,
it is treated as a standalone performance
obligation and part of the transaction price is
apportioned to the service-type warranty based
on the proportion of the separate selling prices
under the guarantee-type and service-type
warranties, and revenue is recognized when
the customer acquires control of the service.
In assessing whether a separate service is
provided to the customer in addition to the
warranty that the goods sold satisfy certain pre-
set criteria, the Group considers whether the
warranty is a statutory requirement, the validity
period of the warranty and the nature of the

Group’s commitment to perform.
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III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

26. Revenue Recognition and Measurement (continued)

(2) Specific accounting policies related to the Group’s

main revenue-generating activities are described below:

(continued)

(e)

0]

Principal/Agent

For the Group, after acquiring control of the
goods from a third party, it transfers them to
customers or integrates the purchased goods
with other goods into a portfolio of output
through the provision of significant services. The
Group has the right to decide the price of the
goods or services it trades independently, that
is, it can control the goods or services before
transferring them to customers. Therefore, the
Group is the main principal, and revenue is
recognized by the total consideration received
or receivable. Otherwise, the Group, as an
agent, shall recognize revenue in the amount of
any fee or commission to which it expects to be
entitled. The amount shall be determined based
on net amount of total consideration received
or receivable less amounts payable to other
interested parties, or based on the established

amount or proportion of commission.

Interest income
It is calculated and determined according to

the time when other people use the Group’s

monetary fund and the actual interest rate.
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ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

26. Revenue Recognition and Measurement (continued)

(2) Specific accounting policies related to the Group’s
main revenue-generating activities are described below:

(continued)

(g) Rental income

The rental income of operating lease is
recognized by the straight line method
during each period of the lease term, and the
contingent rental is included in the profits and
losses of the current period when it actually

occurs.

27. Government grants

The Group’s government grants include tax return,

financial subsidies etc.

The Group’s government grants include government
grants related to assets and government grants related
to income. Government grants obtained by the Group
which are relevant to purchase, construction or acquisition
of long-term assets in other ways are classified as
government grants related to assets; all other government
grants are classified as government grants related
to income. If the subsidies are not specified in the
government documents, the Group judges them according
to the above distinction principle. If it is difficult to
distinguish, the whole is classified as government grants

related to income.
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III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

27. Government grants (continued)

If the government grants are monetary assets, it shall be
measured according to the amount actually received. For
the government grants allocated according to the fixed
quota standard, or for the end of the year, when there is
conclusive evidence that it meets the relevant conditions
stipulated by the financial support policy and is expected
to receive the financial support funds, it shall be measured
according to the amount receivable. If the government
grants are non-monetary assets, it shall be measured at
fair value; if the fair value cannot be reliably obtained, it

shall be measured at a nominal amount.

Government grants related to assets shall be recognized
as deferred income and amortized to profits or losses of
the current period using the straight-line method within the

useful life of the relevant assets.

If the relevant assets are sold, transferred, scrapped or
damaged before the end of their useful life, the balance
of related deferred income that has not been allocated
shall be transferred to the profits and losses of the current

period of asset disposal.

Government grants related to income, as compensation
for costs and expenses in subsequent periods, are
recognised as deferred income and shall be recorded in
profit or loss over the period in which the relevant costs
or losses are recognized. The government grants related
to daily activities shall be recognized in other income or
offset the relevant costs and expenses according to the
essence of economic business. Those that are not related
to daily activities shall be recognized in non-operating

income and expenses.
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ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

27. Government grants (continued)

If the Group obtains the policy-based preferential loan
discount, it shall distinguish between the cases where the
finance allocates the discount funds to the lending bank
and that the finance allocates the discount funds directly
to the Group. The accounting treatment shall be carried

out according to the following principles:

(1) If the finance allocates the discount funds to the
lending bank and the lending bank provides loans
to the Group at the policy-based preferential interest
rate, the group shall use the amount actually received
as the entry value of the loan, and then calculate the
relevant borrowing costs according to the borrowing
principal and the policy preferential interest rate (or
use the fair value of the loan as the entry value of the
loan and calculate the borrowing costs according to
the effective interest method. The difference between
the amount actually received and the fair value of the
loan is recognized as deferred income. The deferred
income is amortized by the effective interest method
during the duration of the loan, and the related

borrowing costs are reduced.)

(2) The finance will directly allocate the discount funds
to the Group, which will deduct the related borrowing

costs from the corresponding discount.
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=~ HEGFBOR & gatihEt () III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

27. BUN B (4) 27. Government grants (continued)
AEEDBERNBFENEZREA If the government grants confirmed by the Group needs to
EHRZREMNE RS ERRBUATHE be returned, the accounting treatment shall be conducted
EITEERIE in accordance with the following provisions in the current

period in which it needs to be returned:

1) VRERRPREAEEEREE 1) Adjust the book value of assets if the book value of
BER  AREERMEE - the relevant assets is written off at the time of initial

confirmation.

2) TGFEMEBEEWZER  HFRAEBRE 2) If there are related deferred incomes, the carrying
NIRRT - BEHBITAE amount of related deferred income shall be deducted
iR o and the excess part shall be included in the current

profits and losses.

3) EBREMIBZAN EETAEHE 3) If it belongs to other circumstances, it shall be

Bk

® directly included in the profits and losses of the

current period.
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ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

28. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
recognized based on the temporary differences between
the tax bases and the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities. A deferred tax asset shall be recognized for
deductible losses to the extent that it is probable that tax
profit will be available against which the deductible losses
can be utilized in accordance with tax law Deferred tax
liabilities for temporary taxable differences relating to
goodwill are not recognized to the extent they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognized if the temporary differences
arise from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. As at balance sheet date, deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are determined using
the applicable tax rates that are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realized, or the

deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise

those temporary differences and losses.
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III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

29.

Lease

On the contract start date, the Group evaluates whether
the contract is a lease or includes a lease. If one party in
the contract transfers the right to control the use of one or
more identified assets within a certain period in exchange
for consideration, the contract is a lease or contains lease.
In order to determine whether the contract has given up
the right to control the use of the identified assets within
a certain period of time, the Group assesses whether the
customers in the contract are entitled to receive almost
all of the economic benefits arising from the use of the
identified assets during the period of use and have the
right to This use period dominates the use of identified

assets.

If the contract includes multiple separate leases, the
Group will split the contract and account for each separate
lease. If the following conditions are met at the same time,
the right to use the identified assets constitutes a separate

lease in the contract:

—  The lessee can profit from using the asset alone or

with other resources that are readily available;

—  The asset is not highly dependent or highly related to

other assets in the contract.

Where the contract contains both the leased and non-
leased parts, the group, as lessor and lessee, shall
conduct accounting treatment after splitting the leased

and non-leased parts.
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=~ HEGFHEOR R aat sk (8) ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

29. HE (&) 29. Lease (continued)
@ E#BAMN (1) Lessee

AEBHEEAENBENEZERRE The types of leased assets of the Group mainly

FEEEEY) - #ERERIGHERA include buildings, machinery and equipment and site

o use rights.

@ Wipita (a) Initial measurement
ERERKBE  AEEBE On the lease start date, the Group recognizes
AEHEHNEAEEERE its right to use the leased asset during the lease
WIENERBEREEE term as a right-of-use asset, and recognizes the
158 AR HEE N KRB present value of outstanding lease payments as
RERRAHEEARG BH lease liabilities, except for short-term leases and
HEMEEBEEEMEERN leases of low-value assets. When calculating
EErEHENFENRER - the present value of lease payments, the Group
REEBRBASMERERT uses the embedded interest rate as the discount
BER EEAmTHEHENSH rate; if it cannot determine the leased interest
RH) HEAARBEAEEER rate, the lessee’s incremental borrowing interest
FRERITERE - rate is used as the discount rate.
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III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

29. Lease (continued)

(1) Lessee (continued)

(a)

Initial measurement (continued)

The lease term is the period during which the
Group is entitled to use the leased asset and is
irrevocable. If the Group has a renewal option,
that is, it has the right to choose to renew the
asset and it is reasonably determined that the
option will be exercised, the lease period also
includes the period covered by the renewal
option. The Group has the option to terminate
the lease, that is, has the right to choose
to terminate the lease of the asset, but it is
reasonably determined that the option will not
be exercised. The lease period includes the
period covered by the termination lease option.
If a major event or change occurs within the
Group’s control and affects whether the Group is
reasonably certain that the corresponding option
will be exercised, the Group will reasonably
determine whether it will exercise the lease
renewal option, purchase option or not terminate

the lease option Rights for reassessment.
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ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

29. Lease (continued)

(1) Lessee (continued)

(b)

Subsequent measurement

The Group uses the straight-line method to
depreciate the right-of-use assets. If it is
reasonably possible to determine the ownership
of the leased asset at the expiry of the lease
term, the Group depreciates it over the
remaining useful life of the leased asset. If it is
not possible to reasonably determine that the
ownership of the leased asset can be obtained
when the lease term expires, the Group
depreciates it within the shortest period between
the lease term and the remaining useful life of

the leased asset.

The Group calculates the interest expense of the
lease liability in each period of the lease period
based on the cyclical interest rate of the fixed
assets, and calculates it into the current profit

and loss.

The variable lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities are included in
the current profit and loss when they actually

occur.
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III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

29. Lease (continued)

(1) Lessee (continued)

(b)

(c)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

After the start of the lease period, when the
actual fixed payment amount changes, the
estimated residual payable amount of the
guarantee changes, the index or ratio used to
determine the lease payment amount changes,
the purchase option, the lease renewal option,
or the termination option evaluation When the
result or the actual exercise situation changes,
the Group remeasures the lease liability based
on the present value of the changed lease
payments and adjusts the book value of the
right-of-use asset accordingly. If the book value
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero, but the lease liability still needs to be
further reduced, the Group will include the

remaining amount in the current profit and loss.

Lease changes

Lease changes are changes in the lease scope,
lease consideration, and lease duration that are
outside of the original contract terms, including
adding or terminating the right to use one or
more leased assets, extending or shortening the

lease period stipulated in the contract.
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ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

29. Lease (continued)

(1) Lessee (continued)

(c)

Lease changes (continued)

When a lease is changed and the following
conditions are also met, the Group accounts for

the lease change as a separate lease:

— The lease change expands the scope of
the lease by adding the right to use one or

more lease assets;

—  The increased consideration is equivalent
to the individual price of the enlarged
part of the lease scope adjusted for the

contract.

If the lease change is not accounted for as a
separate lease, on the effective date of the lease
change, the Group re-determines the lease term
and uses the revised discount rate to discount
the changed lease payment to remeasure the
lease liability. In calculating the present value
of lease payments after the change, the Group
uses the leased interest rate in the remaining
lease period as the discount rate; if it is not
possible to determine the leased interest rate
in the remaining lease period, the Group’s
increment on the lease change effective date

The borrowing rate is used as the discount rate.
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29. P (%)

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

29. Lease (continued)

1) (EHBARN (4) (1) Lessee (continued)

() MHEZE () (c) Lease changes (continued)
RLEMEEEEARHTE - Regarding the impact of the above adjustments
AEEROSNATBEHETE on lease liabilities, the Group distinguishes the
FTRIE following situations for accounting treatment:

- MHEZFZIHESE — If the lease change results in a reduction in
e/ s HE B Y - the scope of the lease or a shortened lease
AEERBEAEEE term, the Group reduces the book value of
RIBREEME - AR the right-of-use asset to reflect the partial
ENHDRIEHTEK or complete termination of the lease. The
e REREBEHD KR IE Group counts the gains or losses related to
HEERKR ISR the termination or partial termination of the
FEBRFAE BB lease in the current profit and loss.

- HmHEERE XEH —  For other lease changes, the Group adjusts
EEARFREEERN the book value of the right-of-use asset
REEE - accordingly.
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From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
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ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

29. Lease (continued)

)

Lessee (continued)

(d)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

On the lease start date, the Group’s lease
term does not exceed 12 months, and leases
that do not include purchase options are
considered short-term leases; leases whose
single leased assets are brand new assets that
do not exceed RMB30,000 are considered low-
value asset leases. Where the Group subleases
or anticipates subleasing leased assets, the
original lease is not recognized as a low value
asset lease. The Group does not recognize
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets.
In each period of the lease term, the relevant
asset costs or the current profit and loss are
calculated in accordance with the straight-line
method, and the contingent rent is included
in the current profit and loss when it actually

occurs.

(2) Lessor

During the reporting period of the Group, all leases

were operating leases, and the rental income from

operating leases was recognized in the current

period’s profit and loss on a straight-line basis during

each period of the lease term. Contingent rent was

recognized in the current period’s profit and loss

when it was actually incurred.
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III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

/} l'll.; f“ H /oy 30.

FEBUAARTEBEE EBE
RS HERERBEELED
ENBLAEREERSE

B o
N

2 - LS

I %58 5 &b

YaNi
)R

[

i

mT

TR AL A\ 3
K=n ElB

, EASBEARERE T F
RO ED Y+ ()X R D RESFE R
BEBRELRA - BLEEBR QX%
BE 12 [E B 507 HART Bz ALK BB 0 O 48
BRR  UARAERAEEEER
XA QA EEREAIGSZAERE D
BB BERRNIRESRELFH
SFHER - MEHZ ERLDILAFH
MRS X BEmE —E &R
QAT & o m—fER = D H -

juni]

B E R A T 31.

MBREREAEZREHEREGRAFAEA
REEERE - AERERAZI BT
BITERGRE  KAEMNERFAEA
MEX - ARERMBRERARERS
RIT SRMEENEGER  SEABA
AIER  EX IS EMIRITEE R M
R

Segment Information

The Group determines the operating segment based
on internal organizational structure, management
requirements and internal reporting system. The reportable
segment and disclosing the information are determined

based on the operating segment.

Operating segment refers to the components within the
Group that satisfy all the following conditions: (1) the
components can generate income and expenses in daily
activities; (2) the operating results of the components are
regularly reviewed by the management of the Group to
make decisions about resources to be allocated to the
segment and assess its performance; (3) Discrete financial
information including the financial position, operating
results and cash flow of the component is available. If
two or more operating segments have similar economic
characteristics and meet certain conditions, they can be

merged into one operating segment.

Financial Guarantee Contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require
the issuer to make specific payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payment when due. Such financial guarantees
are given to banks, financial institutions and other entities
to secure related party’ loans, overdrafts and other bank

facilities.
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From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

31.

32.

Financial Guarantee Contracts (continued)

The financial guarantee contract is initially recognized at
fair value on the date the guarantee was given, and shall
be subsequently measured at the higher of amortized
value and the best estimate of the reserves required for
the performance of the group’s guarantee obligations on
balance sheet date. The increased liabilities associated
with the contract and shall be recorded in current profit
or loss. These estimates are based on similar business

experience, past losses and management judgment.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The Group
makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed

below.
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III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

32. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments (continued)

)

Taxation

The Group is subject to various taxes in many
countries, such as income tax and VAT. Significant
judgment is required in determining the account
for such taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Based on the estimates of anticipated tax items,
the Group determines whether additional taxes are
required in the future to recognize the liabilities of tax
items. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will affect the tax amount

for the period in which the judgment is made.

Deferred tax assets are recognized as management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences
or tax losses can be utilized. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax
assets and income tax in the periods in which such

estimate is changed.
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2)

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

32. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments (continued)

Method of ascertaining of performance progress for
construction contracts (Only applicable to situations

where control is transferred within a period of time)

The input method is adopted by the Group to
ascertain the progress of performance of construction
contracts. Specifically, the construction costs actually
incurred on a cumulative basis as a percentage of
estimated total costs is used to ascertain progress
of performance. Costs actually incurred on a
cumulative basis include direct and indirect costs
incurred by the Group in the course of transfer of
goods to customers. The Group considers that the
consideration of construction contracts signed with
customers is determined based on construction
costs. The construction costs actually incurred on
a cumulative basis as a percentage of estimated
total costs can practically reflect the progress of
performance of the construction service. The Group
determines progress of performance by referring
to the construction costs actually incurred on a
cumulative basis as a percentage of estimated total
costs, and recognizes revenue accordingly. As the
period of validity of construction contracts is relatively
long and may span over a number of accounting
periods, the Group shall review and revise budget as
the duration of the construction contracts continues,
and adjust the amount of recognized revenue

accordingly.
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III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

32. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments (continued)

(3) Impairment of financial assets

The Group uses the expected credit loss model to
evaluate the impairment of financial instruments.
The application of the anticipated credit loss model
requires significant judgments and estimates.
All reasonable and evidence-based information,
including forward-looking information, should be
taken into account. In making such judgments and
estimates, the Group infers the expected changes
in the debtor’s credit risk based on historical
repayment data combined with economic policies,
macroeconomic indicators, industry risks and other

factors.

The difference between the actual results and the
original estimates will affect the carrying amount of
financial assets and the provision or reversal for bad
debts of financial assets during the estimated period

of change.
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ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

32. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments (continued)

(4) Impairment of non-financial assets

(a)

Provision of impairment on goodwill

The Group conducts an annual impairment test
on goodwill. The recoverable amount of cash-
generating units or groups of cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated is the
present value of its future cash flows estimated

on the basis of (Notes I11(21)).

If the management modified the gross profit
rate used in the calculation of the future cash
flow of cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units, the Group shall recognize
the provision of impairment on goodwill when
the modified gross profit rate is lower than the

current gross profit rate.

If the management modified the pre-tax discount
rate used for cash flow discounting, the Group
shall recognize the provision of impairment on
goodwill when the modified pre-tax discount

rate is higher than the current discount rate.

The provision of impairment on goodwill cannot
be reversed if the actual gross profit rate or
pre-tax discount rate is higher or lower than the

estimates of the management.
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III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

32. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments (continued)

(4) Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

(b)

Impairment of long-term assets

Long-term assets are reviewed for impairment
annually according to the accounting policy of
the Group. The recoverable amount of an asset
or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and the present
value of the expected future cash flow. The
calculation of value in use requires the company
to estimate the future cash flows expected to
be derived from the cash-generating unit and
the appropriate discount rate based on the
assumptions and estimates of the management.
After sensitivity analysis, the management
believes that the carrying amount of the asset

will be fully recovered.

If the management modified the gross profit
rate used in the calculation of the future cash
flow of cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units, the Group shall recognize the
provision of impairment on long-term assets
when the modified gross profit rate is lower than

the current gross profit rate.
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From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

)

(6)

(7)

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

ITI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

32. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments (continued)

Valuation of inventory

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. The net realizable value of inventory
is determined by taking into account the age of
the inventory and the estimated selling price of the
inventory, minus the estimated costs to be incurred
until completion, estimated sales expenses, and

relevant taxes and fees.

Estimated use

The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of fixed
assets and intangible assets at least once at the end
of the year. Estimated useful lives are determined
by the management based on historical experience
of similar assets and expected technological
advancement. Corresponding adjustment to
depreciation expenses for future periods will be
made in case of substantial changes in previous

estimates.

Quality warranty

For groups of contracts with similar characteristics,
the Group reasonably estimates maintenance fee
charge based on historical data on and current
situation of maintenance, and taking into account all
relevant data including product upgrade and market
changes. The Group re-assesses maintenance fee
charge at least on every balance sheet date and
determines accruals and provisions based on the re-

assessed maintenance fee charge.
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202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

III. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)
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32. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments (continued)

Defined benefit plan

The management of the Group determines the net
liabilities of the defined benefit plan based on the
present value of the defined benefit obligation minus
the fair value of the planned assets calculated by
the model. The calculation of the present value of
the defined benefit obligation includes a number of
assumptions, including the benefit period and the
discount rate. If future events are inconsistent with
these assumptions, they may lead to significant
adjustments to the net liabilities of the defined benefit

plan set on the balance sheet date.

33. Changes in critical accounting policies and estimates

There are no significant changes in accounting

policies of the Group in the current period.

There are no significant changes in accounting

estimates in the current period.

There are no major adjustments of prior accounting

errors in the current period
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202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
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(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

IV. TAXATION

1. Main categories of tax and corresponding tax rate

BE BB B=
Category of tax Tax base Tax rate
HERE
Chinese enterprise
—(EEMEH FE ML IS 8 15% * 25% 0%
Enterprise income tax Taxable income
—IBER JEMNTIIE ERE (RN BIR AN TI H B B A B AR X 13% * 9% * 6%

Value-added tax (“VAT”")

—1BEH (B0
VAT (easy to collect)

— T AR

City maintenance and
construction tax

— B B

Educational surcharge

—FEM

Property tax

— L E R

Land use tax

BAMEHR
Profit tax in Hong Kong
HAtbih R, B R A5

Profit tax for other regions/countries

kR & B2 FHR e EIR B SRR B
Taxable value-added amount (Tax payable is calculated
using the taxable sales amount multiplied by the
applicable tax rate less deductible VAT input of the
current period)
JE TG E R SR MG (E T B K 5% ~ 3%
Taxable value-added amount multiplied by VAT collection
rate
REBR NS EDETH 5%K7%

Taxable amounts of VAT

REM NI ET A 2% 3%
Taxable amounts of VAT
FERENT0%HEEKRA 1.2%3%12%
70% of the original value of the property or rental income
T e AEE AR¥3.27t—207T
SRR E
Land occupation area RMB3.2-20
yuan/m?/year
= 16.5%

= 15% > 16.5% -
19% ~ 26%
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SAB R T AE (A7)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30 H

IV. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

1.

From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

Main categories of tax and corresponding tax rate

(continued)

Explanation of taxpayers of different enterprise income tax

rates:

FrisBis =

Income tax rate

FEBBERE

Income tax preference

BEERERNABRAR

Chongqing Machinery & Electric Co., Ltd.

BB RRFE B 1 F)

Chongaqing Chengfei New Materials Co., Ltd.

EEREEREENEER AR

25%

25%

25%

Chongqing Machinery & Electric Holding Group Finance Co., Ltd.

EMRRARF T BR DR

Jilin Chengfei New Material Co., Ltd.
EEFREAEHBERARGERAT

25%

15%

Chongqging CAFF Automotive Braking & Steering System Co., Ltd.

EEREEREBARAR

15%

Chongaqing Pigeon Brand Electric Wire & Cable Co., Ltd.

HEREARKRFMEERA A
Gansu Chong Tong Chengfei New Material Co., Ltd.

BRI AR A A

Xinjiang Chengfei New Material Co., Ltd.

BEEKRBEREERR

Chongging Pump Industry Co., Ltd.
EEBEAEFRIEEBRAA

Chongaing Mengxun Electronic & Technology Co., Ltd.
EERK(KE)BEREEAT

Chongqing Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd.

EEERFREBETENTEEER AR

15%

15%

15%

15%

15%

15%

Chongaqing Holroyd Precision Rotors Manufacturing Co., Ltd.

EFREELEERAA

Chongaqing Pigeon Brand Electric Porcelain Co., Ltd.
ERIEEBAERERETEAA

15%

15%

Chongaing Shunchang General Electric Equipment Co., Ltd.

FrigBEEIER(T)
Income tax preference (1)
Frig BB (1)
Income tax preference (1)
FRIS BB BRI (T)
Income tax preference (1)
FRIS BB BB (T)
Income tax preference (1)
PRIS BB BB (T)
Income tax preference (1)
PRIS BB B (T)
Income tax preference (1)
FRISTUB B (2)
Income tax preference (2)
FRISTB BRI (2)
Income tax preference (2)
ST EBEBUR(2)
Income tax preference (2)
ST EBERBUR(2)

Income tax preference (2)

2025 FR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A B i e I G PR AR T s WA A0 > 38 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

Py~ FEIE (%) IV. TAXATION (CONTINUED)
1. FEBRERBLR (4) 1. Main categories of tax and corresponding tax rate
(continued)
A [ 4 3 75 B B 5 A BE 3 el WY Explanation of taxpayers of different enterprise income tax
(%) rates: (continued)
MB TR AR FREBBE ERBEEX
Taxpayers Income tax rate Income tax preference
EETABEBREEAR 15% FRSBEEBR(2)
Chongaqing Tool Factory Co., Ltd. Income tax preference (2)
BEEKGEBAREEQR 15% FTSTBEBUR(2)
Chongqing Water Turbine Works Co., Ltd. Income tax preference (2)
BEEBEATIX(GE)BEREMELA 15% FriS B EEEE2)
Chongqing General Industry (Group) Co., Ltd. Income tax preference (2)
BEBEAREERBIHER AT 15% FTS T BREBUR(2)
Chong Tong Chengfei Wind Power Equipment Jiangsu Co., Ltd. Income tax preference (2)
EEMETREGRAA 15% FrSMmEBERREQ2)
Chongqing Machinery & Electronic Intelligent Manufacturing Co., Ltd. Income tax preference (2)
EEREERERBARIEAR 15% FTS T B RBUR(2)
Chongqing Gas Compressor Factory Co., Ltd. Income tax preference (2)
BETEBERFTOBERAF 15% FriSmEBEREE2)
Chongaqing Industrial Enabling Innovation Center Co., Ltd. Income tax preference (2)
MEBRARBREARAR] RIEEMET AEHERBRXRQ)
Xinjiang Fubaotian Cotton Harvesting Service Co., Ltd. Exemption Income tax preference (3)
HiBh @R RIRSBERET QA 20% FriSMEBEIE4)
Xinjiang Zhongxinhong Energy Service Co., Ltd. Income tax preference (4)
BERMEEAR AR ([EBEPTGEE]) 19% =
Precision Technologies Group (UK)) Limited.
BERIMEE ([BPTG]) 26% -
Precision Technologies Group (US) Limited (PTG US)
ERFEBEAERAR 19% -
Holroyd Precision Screw and Rotors Company
KRERIZEBRAR 19% -
Milnrow Investments Ltd.
BETHEINTAERAA] 19% -
Precision Components Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
PTGEEI A A 15% -
PTG Deutschland GmbH
BERTEEREHERARAA 16.50% -

Precision Technology Group Investment Development Co., Ltd

INTERIM REPORT 2025
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202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

IV. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

2. Corporate income tax preferences

(1)

According to the Announcement of the Ministry of
Finance, the State Administration of Taxation, and
the National Development and Reform Commission
on Continuing the Enterprise Income Tax Policy for
Western Development (Announcement No. 23 of
2020), from January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2030,
the enterprise income tax will be levied at a reduced
rate of 15% on encouraged industrial enterprises
located in the western region. The Group has filed
with the Chongqging State Taxation Bureau for a
subsidiary enjoying a preferential corporate income
tax rate of 15% for encouraged industrial enterprises
in the western region. Due to no significant changes
in the main business, the preferential corporate

income tax rate of 15% will continue to apply in 2025.

According to the relevant tax preferential policies
of the state for high-tech enterprises, certified high-
tech enterprises can enjoy preferential policies of
enterprise income tax and pay enterprise income tax

at a reduced rate of 15%.

2025 FR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(A B i e I G PR AR T s WA A0 > 38 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

P9~ BedE (4) IV. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

2. ASEPEBLBBOE R () 2. Corporate income tax preferences (continued)

2 @& @)

REBAXN T FRABERSEH
BMEEESE)  KFEZFX15%H
BEHE - EBBERNOT

MBEREE

Name

(continued)

The following companies in this Group enjoy a
preferential tax rate of 15% in this period because
they have obtained the Certificate of High-tech

Enterprises:

B REERERT

Certificate of high-tech enterprises

BEHK(RE)ERETAT
Chongqing Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd.
BEEERFRETETEHERRAR

GR202451102460

GR202351101402

Chongaqing Holroyd Precision Rotors Manufacturing Co., Ltd.

BEERRELBRAF
Chongqing Pigeon Brand Electric Porcelain Co., Ltd.
EFIEEEAEREREER

GR202251101875

GR202351101160

Chongaqing Shunchang General Electric Equipment Co., Ltd.

EFTAHEREMEAR

Chongaqing Tool Factory Co., Ltd.

ERKGEBAREELR

Chongaqing turbine works Co., Ltd.

EFBAIX(RE)BEREEAR

Chongqing General Industry (Group) Co., Ltd.
BAREEREIHFER DA

GR202251101839

GR202351102408

GR202351100798

GR202432000253

Chong Tong Chengfei Wind Power Equipment Jiangsu Co., Ltd.

EEMEEHEERRA

GR202351102911

Chongaing Machinery & Electronic Intelligent Manufacturing Co., Ltd.

EERERERBEREEAR
Chongging Gas Compressor Faotory Co., Ltd.
EFTEMELATLOBERA

GR202451102575

GR202451101028

Chongaqing Industrial Enabling Innovation Center Co., Ltd.
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202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

IV. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

2. Corporate income tax preferences (continued)

(3)

According to Article 27 (1) of the Enterprise Income
Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China, income
from agricultural, forestry, animal husbandry, and
fishery projects can be exempted or reduced from
enterprise income tax. The Group‘s subsidiary,
Xinjiang Fubaotian Cotton-picking Service Co., Ltd. is
engaged in agricultural machinery operations and its

income is exempted from enterprise income tax.

According to the Announcement on Further
Supporting the Development of Small and Micro
Enterprises and Individual Businesses Regarding
Tax and Fee Policies (Announcement No. 12 [2023]
of the Ministry of Finance and the State Taxation
Administration), the policy of calculating taxable
income at a reduced rate of 25% and levying
corporate income tax at a rate of 20% for small and
low-profit enterprises will be extended and remain in

effect until December 31, 2027.
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202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(A A 55 i 2 B S BR AR I Gk WA b > B RL AR JTI7%)  (All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ A 0 B B R 2 BEIH H Rk R

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TOIFMBENSBEREREE  BESRIEAZ
O EEBLA/ARET

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED

Unless otherwise stated, among the following disclosed data in

the financial statements, currency unit is RMB.

1. B¥&ES 1. Cash and Cash Equivalents
2025%6 H30H 2024%12A31H
H B ltems 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
(feEat)
(As restated)
Re Cash in hand 64,700.90 46,398.29
RITIF Cash at bank 1,958,163,026.09 2,192,385,712.64
Hih g ES Other monetary assets 461,847,144.35 550,693,225.77
FERTFI B Accrued interest on cash at bank 2,753,112.75 1,765,551.64
o~ Total 2,422,827,984.09  2,744,890,888.34

Hep: FRAEBIINIFIBEEE Including: cash deposited abroad

120,190,108.11

86,306,682.11

i AEEFRURIMNYFIRRE LR RE o
deposits.

Financial assets held for trade

20256 H30H
30 Jun 2025

Note: There is no limit on the remittance of the group’s overseas

2024%12H31H
31 Dec 2024

2. ROBEEREE 2.
H H ltems
UAREBEFEAEZFH Financial assets at fair value through
AEHEBETNERMERE profit or loss
Heh: EmTHEKE Including: Equity instrument
investment
&5 Bonds
Sy Interbank negotiable
certificate of deposit
&5t Total

631,346,485.52

2,641,437.94
529,091,184.78

99,613,862.80

571,813,953.57

2,644,701.72
440,716,755.27

128,452,496.58

631,346,485.52

571,813,953.57
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A BB i e I G PR AR L s B A0 > 35 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ A OF 5 3 3 2 0H H R (80 V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3.0 EWCERER 3.

Notes receivable

) R TFEIEAS I

(1) Classification of notes receivable

a5t Total 173,063,254.42 214,166,733.38
2)  TRIEHE A B Ty 20 B (2) Classified by bad debt provision method
2025564308
30 Jun 2025
REHE REER
Book Balance Provision for bad debts
8 HA(%) £8  HREELA(%) KEERE
Proportion
of bad debt
g3 [tems Amount  Proportion (%) Amount provision (%) ~ Carrying amount
RARTIERRER Provision for bad debts by portfolio ~ 176,026,402.67 100.00 2,063,148.25 168 173,083,254.42
A RAERES Including: Bank acceptance bil 67,441,885.63 38.31 - - 67,441,885.63
—%EEES General bill combination ~ 108,584,517.04 61.69 2,963,148.25 273 105,621,368.79
ait Total 176,026,402.67 100.00 2,963,148.25 168 173,063,254.42
2045127318
31 Dec 2024
(@Eim)
(As restated)
BERE SRER
Book Balance Provision for bad debts
o8 $5%) 28 EREERLO%) BEEMA
Proportion
of bad debt
BB Items Amount Proportion (%) Amount provision (%)~ Carrying amount
ERAHRERER Provision for bad debts by portfolio ~ 216,389,139.05 100.00 2,202 405.67 103 214,166,733.38
EhRARESR Including: Bank acceptance bil 34,874,135.84 16.12 - - 3487413584
-REEER General bill combination 181,515,003.21 83.88 2,202,405.67 122 179,292,597.54
CHl Total 216,389,139.05 100.00 2,202 405.67 103 214,166,733.38
2025 3R (4

202596 A30H 2024F12F31H

I8 H ltems 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
(&)

(As restated)

RITARIESR Bank acceptance bills 67,441,885.63 34,874,135.84
EEARESR Commercial acceptance bills 108,584,517.04 181,515,003.21
REAG Total original value 176,026,402.67 216,389,139.05

B REE R

Less: provision for bad debts

2,963,148.25

2,222,405.67

EERERNERAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A B i e I G PR AR T s WA A0 > 38 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ ORI 5 H a 3 S H H R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3. JEBCERR (%) 3. Notes receivable (continued)
3 B W] ~ 15 ] B RE N B pE (3) Provision for bad debts of notes receivable that are
S ff accrued, collected or transferred back in this period
Change amount for the current period
202412318 iR A% 2025567308
A Items 31 Dec 2024 Add: accrual Other changes 30 Jun 2025
(gEim)
(As restated)
EUZESHER Provision for bad debts of notes receivable 2,22 405,67 740,742.58 = 2,963,148.25
&t Total 2,202,405.67 740,742.58 - 2,963,148.25
@) FA AT [ AL SR 1% (4) The Group have pledged notes receivable at the end of the
period

2025%6H30H 2024%12H31H

EEHSE EEfHeR

Pledged amount Pledged amount

EH ltems on 30 Jun 2025 on 31 Dec 2024
MITHRHESR Bank acceptance bills 67,441,885.63 33,289,624.49
A ESE Commercial acceptance bills - -
&Er Total 67,441,885.63 33,289,624.49
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202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A BB i e I G PR AR L s B A0 > 35 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ A OF 05 e 1 0E H Rk R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3. R () 3. Notes receivable (continued)
5) HARLEF T Z kB HTEE (5) At the end of the period, the Group’s notes receivable
(576 H i AR 2B 1 e % - have endorsed or discounted and have not matured

RIEEAEH R TER TR

Termination The confirmed
confirmation amount not
amount on terminated on
B H ltems 30 Jun 2025 30 Jun 2025
RITHENER Bank acceptance bills - -
BEANER Commercial acceptance bills - 7,606,874.30
a5 Total - 7,606,874.30
(6) 75 JB] 7K J) A 5 12 41 1) HE W B 1% (6) There are no notes receivable that have been actually
written off by the Group this period
(7) BB 5L I 1 e i (7) Aging of year-end notes receivable
N @ E ol B R E U R 4 A BR Bk The age of accounts receivable for the above-
BHE—FUA - mentioned year-end notes of the Group is within one

year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A A 55 i 2 B S BR AR I Gk WA b > B RL AR JTI7%)  (All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ ORI 5 H a 3 S H H R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. JEWBIRK 4.

Accounts receivable

@) FEYCIR 1530 B8 A (I) Accounts receivable listed by aging

178

202546 H30H
30 Jun 2025
FEWBR R HREE IR =B L (%)
Accounts Provision for
R Aging receivable bad debts Percentage(%)
1F AR Within 1 year 3,225,589,007.50 77,685,864.45 2.41
1-26F 1-2 years 729,353,219.24 67,768,935.37 9.29
2-3%F 2-3 years 345,788,831.42 30,287,845.37 8.76
3FEE Over 3 years 793,023,797.00 648,608,991.53 81.79
Hr : 3-4%F  Including: 3-4 years 150,670,411.29 77,161,263.34 51.21
4-5%F 4-5 years 66,545,905.38 44,123,069.86 66.30
5% E Over 5 years 575,807,480.33 527,324,658.33 91.58
a5 Total 5,093,754,855.16 824,351,636.72 16.18
202412A31H
31 Dec 2024
(e E)
(As restated)
JE Y BR 3R HARAEE AR = L 1(%)
Accounts Provision for
AR R Aging receivable bad debts Percentage(%)
1F AR Within 1 year 2,612,068,394.35 86,777,798.81 3.32
1-24F 1-2 years 586,730,951.39 40,052,361.92 6.83
2-3%F 2-3 years 228,510,811.18 51,921,232.77 22.72
3EL L Over 3 years 701,023,130.56 596,360,275.83 85.07
Hrh @ 3-44%  Including: 3-4 years 93,091,679.59 46,038,132.12 49.45
4-5%F 4-5 years 192,426,995.93 156,944,817.62 81.56
5% A E Over 5 years 415,504,455.04 393,377,326.09 94.67
= Total 4,128,333,287.48 775,111,669.33 18.87

INTERIM REPORT 2025
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202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
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(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. Accounts receivable (continued)

(2) Accounts receivable classified by bad debt provision

method

2025568307

30 Jun 2025
B SREELA®) BRER FAEE

Provision for
BADE Classification Original value Percentage(%) bad debts  Carrying amount
REBERRER Provision for bad debts is recognized separately ~ 592,247,507.85 87.57 518,607,125.22 73,640,382.63
FAAHIRRER Provision for bad debts is recognized by group ~ 4,501,507,347.31 6.79 305,744,511.50  4,195,762,835.81
b BRLRNE Including; Related parties 82,251,608.60 - - 82,251,608.60
ERERBRRHES Customers with good credit 1,520,000.00 - - 1,520,000.00
—REPTBER General customers 4,417,735,738.71 6.92 305,74451150  4,111,991,227.21
2 1ENR Including: Within 1 year 3,130,496,176.98 167 52,406,548.00  3,078,089,628.89
125 12 years 695,439,662.58 4,88 33,936,656.60 661,503,005.98
2-3F 2-3 years 313,194,340.16 731 22,893,213.80 290,301,126.36
4% 34 years 111,802,166.96 41,81 46,746,733.25 65,055,433.71
45% 45 years 44,544,235,69 61.74 27,502,203.42 17,042,032.27
5ELE Qver 5 years 122,259,156.34 100.00 122,259,156.34 -
A Total 5,003,754,855.16 16.18 824,351,636.72  4,269,403,218.44
2025 H#k (4179
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(A B i e I G PR AR T s WA A0 > 38 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ ORI 5 H a 3 S H H R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. JEWRSK (4) 4. Accounts receivable (continued)
Q) MEW IR K 15 5 T B2 T 32 4 0 9 (2) Accounts receivable classified by bad debt provision
(#) method (continued)

2024%12A318
31 Dec 2024
(i)

(As restated)

RE  SREEWLH) SEERE FHER
Provision for

Ha0E Classification Original value Percentage(%) bad debts Carrying amount
REEHERRER Provision for bad debts is recognized separately — 576,974,139.90 87.95 507,449,020.75 69,525,119.15
RARHIE ﬂﬁﬁﬁ Provision for bad debts is recognized by group 3,551,359, 147.58 754 27,662,64858  3,263,696,499.00
Heb BRAFR Including: Related parties 69,409,302.55 - = £9,409,302.55
1 WWE EWEA Customers with good credit 1,800,000.00 = = 1,800,000.00
—REFFBER General customers 3,480,149,845.03 7.69 267,662,648.58 3,212,487,196.45
Hb 18 HR Including: Within 1 year 2,595,169,830.57 217 56,437,083.50 2,538,732,747.07
1-2% 1-2 years 483,346,633.78 503 24,320,44317 459,026,190.61
2-3% 2-3 years 183,141,386.10 1161 21,263511.18 161,877,874.92
34E 3-4 years 70,518,839.12 42.30 29,828,923.98 40,689,915.14
455 4-5 years 30,186,480.34 59.72 18,026,011.63 12,160,468.71
58 F QOver 5 years 117,786,675.12 100.00 117,786,675.12 -
&t Total 4,128,333,287.48 18.78 775,111,669.33 3,353,221,618.15

3 AEEBRRIEBESNERTFS
HNTERERBRNSBET 2R
WAR SR E R B - WA B R
HEBNIBARAEWTEHTE
HEFAIBK - BROBARERB
E35FHEB =R BAREH
B 0 IRBRIE S BR e s HARE
OB - & B AR AR R B R
SEEGRTEFEBRRE K
BRI = & 2 PR = 21T
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Note: The Group always measures the impairment allowance
of accounts receivable at an amount equivalent to
the expected credit loss over the entire duration,
and calculates its expected credit loss based on the
number of overdue days and the default loss rate.
The LGD is calculated based on the actual credit
loss experience in the past 3-5 years, and is based
on the differences between the economic conditions
during the historical data collection period, the current
economic conditions, and the economic conditions
estimated by the Group during the expected duration

make adjustments.
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202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. Accounts receivable (continued)

(2) Accounts receivable classified by bad debt provision

method (continued)

1)  Accounts receivable are provisioned for bad debts on

i a single basis
2025564308
30 Jun 2025
REHE BRER  RBRERLA(%)
Provision for
Bfigf Company Book balance bad debls  Percentage(s) M2 Reason for provision
EEEEERAR NongHai Group Ltd. 13456993402 80,815,988.22 60.06 FErAE2EME  Not expected to be fully
recoverable
FRERIEERAR Beijing Wanyuan Industry Co., Ltd 70,692,679.52 70,692,679.52 10000 B EEKE Not expected to be recoverable
BIH%ERERAT Qijiang Gear Transmission Co., Ltd. 65,447,654.87 65,447,654.87 10000 B EEKE Not expected to be recoverable
ZERARARLA Huayi Wind Energy Co., Ltd. 34,705,986.18 34,705,986.18 100.00 B EEKE Not expected to be recoverable
HBRAEREERERES Gansu Aerospace Wanyuan Wind Power 2979973397 29,799,733.97 10000 FEarEEKE Not expected to be recoverable
RAF Equipment Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
EELEEMHERAA  Chongaing Adaman Technology Co., Lid. 27,996,000.00 27,996,000.00 100.00 B EEKE Not expected to be recoverable
LWREEEERERRRDE  Shandong Guofeng Wind Power Equipment 12598,000.00  12,598,900.00 10000 EztEEKE Not expected to be recoverable
Co,, Ltd.
ABEASERRARRAT  Chengdu Mingran Intelligent Technology 12,493,959.01 6,325,016.67 5062 FEtEE2EME  Not expected to be fully
Co,, Ltd. recoverable
RBEEB(RAEREER  Chengdu Operations Office (Dongfang Flectric ~ 11,151,012.11 11,151,012.11 10000 B EEKE Not expected to be recoverable
BERERAR) corporation Dongfeng Electric Machinery
Co., Ltd.)
EHAFRENTEERAF Jiin Zhongtong Electric Power Engineering 10,528,389.04 10,528,389.04 10000 B EEKE Not expected to be recoverable
Co, Ltd.
BETILEABRAMLR  Chongging Jiangbei Machinery Co., Lid. 10,187,071.36  10,187,071.36 10000 EEEULE Not expected to be recoverable
Water Gen Power S.r.I. (WGP) 8,343,351.78 8,343,351.78 10000 BiHEEME Not expected to be recoverable
MEEMAERMEREE  Inner Mongolia Aerospace Wanyuan New 7,900,000.00 7,900,000.00 10000 B EEKE Not expected to be recoverable
BRAE Energy Development Co., Lid.
RERERERYE Tokio County Hongchang Machinery 7,011,308.09 5,600,046.47 80.00 FEFEE2EUE  Not expected to be fully
BRAR Manufacturing Co., Ltd. recoverable
ERELARERAR Chongqing Huahao Smelting Co., Ltd. 6,285,499.20 6,285,499.20 100.00 Not expected to be recoverable
ERPEREARAA Chongging Zhongzhan Commercial Co., Lid. 5,048,726.50 5,048,726.50 100.00 Not expected to be recoverable
PEERRNERAA Zhongdian Electric Machinery Co., Ltd. 5,044,520.63 5,044,520.63 10000 % Not expected to be recoverable
HRERE Total of other unimportant customers 132,442,78157  120,127,548.70 9070 BHEERERE  Not expected to be fully
recoverable
At Total 592,247,507.85  518,607,125.22 87,57
2025 1k (4181
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A B i e I G PR AR T s WA A0 > 38 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ ORI 5 H a 3 S H H R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. W () 4.  Accounts receivable (continued)
Q) HENCIR 5 #5 IR Gl 38 T o 4 B s (2) Accounts receivable classified by bad debt provision
(#) method (continued)
D) JENCHR 3K 1% I 5 42 SR 1) Accounts receivable are provisioned for bad debts on
1 (48) a single basis (continued)
i AEEAXRHIZRERTIRE Note: The Group’s receivables based on single
REFENERREZAA item provision for bad debts in this year are
RER B4 B 15 R 2 sk mainly due to financial difficulties of the debtor
HEERRRWE N2 or a longer ageing of the account or a lower
Uy ] 7T B M R FRA o probability of full recovery.
Q3 AHFIHE - I (B Y IT) 1B (3) Bad debt reserves provisioned, reversed (or recovered) this
Vat/ period
8-} kR

Movement in current period

n:ApERE

BENERR
24E12831H ith ENELE KEHER h HitEY  2025%6R308
The amount
reclassified for
impairment
of other
non-current  Withdrawal or
B3l ltems 31 Dec 2024 Provision assets reversal Write-off ~ Other decreases 30 Jun 2025
(B&5)
(As restated)
EUES  Bad debt provision for
REER acoounts receivable 775,111669.33 3420953721  17,093,155.27 - 36,450.00 2,026,275.09  824,351,636.72
&it Total 775,111669.33 3420953721  17,093,155.27 - 36,450.00 2,026,275.09  824,351,636.72
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A BB i e I G PR AR L s B A0 > 35 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ A OF 5 3 3 2 0H H R (80 V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.  FEWIRK (4) 4. Accounts receivable (continued)
) ASH BB 1% 5 1 W 5 (4) Accounts receivable actually written off this period.
ZiHE R
HH Items Written-off Amount
B R A% 8 9 FE AR 3R Actually written-off accounts receivable 36,450.00
RS2 rRIBRFR IR R | Significant accounts receivable written-off particulars:
FEREHBHRHE
g FWESRULE R#eRE RERR BrtREER &g
Nature of Whether the payment
Accounts Written-off Written-off Procedures arises from related-
Company Receivable Amount Reason for Written-off Performed party transactions
EEMBRENEREERAA & 25,000.00 T EEKE F-EEFLABEE-N &
BEeERE
Chongging Fitedon Payment for goods Not expected to be Resolution of the First Interim No
Electromechanical Equipment recoverable Meeting in 2025 of the First
Co., Ltd Board of Directions
Wl TR R Lt 7,35000 FEFEENE F-EEFRNBEE-R g
BEeERE
Zhuzhou Qiaodong Hotel Payment for goods Not expected to be Resolution of the First Interim ~ No
recoverable Meeting in 2025 of the First
Board of Directions
BT L B R g3 400,00 FEiHEEKE E-EEER006FE X g
BEgHRE
Sahnxi Lishan Fan Factory Payment for goods Not expected to be Resolution of the First Interim No
recoverable Meeting in 2025 of the First

Board of Directions

&% 36,450.00
Total

2025 3R |
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A B i e I G PR AR T s WA A0 > 38 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ ORI 5 H a 3 S H H R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. JEWRSK (4) 4. Accounts receivable (continued)
(5) LR Ty B B B B i 44 19 (5) Accounts receivable and contract assets of the top five
JEE W 50 A 5 Il B 1 period-end balances collected by the debtor

HERERA ERERA

BUEZA  AREEHABE AHEERE

BUBRREAHE AREEARBE  AREESAE ChE L4 REARBE
The ending

Proportion to balance of bad

The ending balance the total ending debt provisions

The ending balance The ending of accounts  balance of accounts for accounts
of accounts balance of receivable and receivable and receivable and
B4 Company receivable contract assets contract assets contract assets contract assets
SEMRRABBLTR Goldwind Technology Co., 806,489,779.69 205,664478.33  1012,154,258.02 16.37 10,970,201.70
SN Ltd.
EERERHEERNE Yunda Energy Technology 172,821,680.00 24,393,970.00 197,215,650.00 319 2,129.929.02
RAE Group Co., Ltd.
HEHMETEERR  China Shipbuilding Industry 63,901835.59 86,905,158.56 150,806,994.15 2.44 1508,069.94
Corporation
EREEERAR NongHai Group Ltd. 134,569,934.02 - 134,569,934.02 2.18 80,815,988.22
FRERTEBRAFR Beijing Wanyuan Industry 108,392,413.49 - 10839241349 175 103,380,746.49
SN Co., Lid. and its
subsidiaries
ait Total 1,286,175,642.79 316,963,606.89 1,603,139,249.68 2593 198,804,935.37
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A A TS R 2 B sk R R L G A A0 - ¥ RA NIRRT H117R%) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ A OF 05 e 1 0E H Rk R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

5. HH&EE 5. Contract assets
1) FHEERFHE (1) The situation of contractual assets
2025F6H30H
30 Jun 2025
RHAE HEERE REEE
Provision for
JEH ltems Book balance impairment Carrying amount
22 EARERA Contract assets related to
AREE construction contracts 23,075,674.63 - 23,075,674.63
—MEBFAR  Contract assets formed by
ARBE general business 1,064,581,854.41 107,662,034.01 956,919,820.40
&t Total 1,087,657,529.04 107,662,034.01 979,995,495.03
202412 A31H
31 Dec 2024
RESE REEE FEEE
Provision for
A ltems Book balance impairment Carrying amount
B EARIERA Contract assets related to
AR&E construction contracts 18,321,668.60 - 18,321,668.60
—MREWMAA  Contract assets formed by
aREE general business 941,480,154.12 97,713,074.10 843,767,080.02
&t Total 959,801,822.72 97,713,074.10 862,088,748.62
2)  ARHBPAHE IET (B fE P 1 K58 (2) The amount and reasons for significant changes in book
B value during this period.
KRETKBARBHEEFES Except for transferring into account receivable due to
ANEBYERFSN - & REEMREE the fulfillment of obligation or settlement procedure,
BERHAREESKNEE - the carrying amount of contractual assets has not

changed significantly during this period.

2025 FR
EEMERHERAR i
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A A TS R 22 B sk R R L G A A0 - ¥ RA N RO H117R%) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ ORI 5 H a 3 S H H R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

5. HF&EEE) 5. Contract assets (continued)
QB Gl & EE LI G T B (3) Contract assets are classified and presented according to

the bad debt provision method

202556530
30 Jun 2025
FEGE REEE
Book balance Provision for bad debts
£ $A %) ¢E STRLBI%) FEEE
Provision
B tems Amount  Percentage(%) Amount ratio (%) ~ Carrying amount
BREEHRERESE  Provision for bad debts based on
individual items 16,410,480.27 1.51 12,989,527.00 79.15 3,420,953.27
B —BEPHBEA Including: General customer fund
combination 16,410,480.27 1.51 12,989,527.00 79.15 3,420,953.27
RAAITEEEESE  Provision for bad debts by
combination 1,071,247,048.77 98.49 94,672,507.01 8.84 976,574,541.76
B EREAFBEER Including: Contract assets related to
AREE construction contracts 23,075,674.63 212 - - 2307567463
—REPHBER General customer fund
combination 1,048,171,374.14 96.37 94,672,507.01 9.03 953,498,867.13
&t Total 1,087,657,529.04 100.00 107,662,034.01 9.90 979,995,495.03
004128318
31 Dec 2024
Book halance Provision for bad debts
x| H (%) 8 FTREAI%) SHER
B tems Amount Percentage(%) Amount  Provision ratio (%)  Carrying amount
REEHRERESE  Provision for bad debts based on
individual items 15,479,220.22 1.61 15,479,220.22 100.00 -
H: —BEPHBEA Including: General customer fund
combination 15,479,220.22 1.61 15,479,220.22 100.00 -
RAAREREESE  Provision for bad debts by
combination 944,322,602.50 98.39 82,233,853.88 8.7 862,088,748.62
He: EREAABH Including: Contract assets related to
AREE construction contracts 18,321,668.60 191 = - 1832166860
-REFREAL General customer fund
combination 926,000,933.90 96.48 82,233,853.88 8.88 843,767,080.02
af Total 959,801,822.72 100.00 97,713,074.10 10.18 862,088,748.62

186 INTERIM REPORT 2025
CHONGQING MACHINERY & ELECTRIC CO., LTD



R B BRI R BR A I G W40 > B AR THIR)

T~ BB R S BOE H RERE (A

5. A% &)

(€

7 [ 5 2 12 R it #8074 AP

(#)

D

S5 R MY o (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

5. Contract assets (continued)

(3) Contract assets are classified and presented according to

the bad debt provision method (continued)

7 ] B 14 I F 48 AR 1)  Provision for bad debts on a single basis for contract
1 assets
202556308 K8
30 Jun 2025
& REBE BERR SRIEB(%) Eig3:dc]
Provision for Provision Reason for
Company Book balance bad debts ratio (%) provision
Sanima Middle Tamor Hydropower Limited SMTHL 8,256,083.85 4,835,130.58 5856 BEEE2EHE
Not expected to be recoverable
LRENBRERARAR 6,600.00 6,600.00 10000 BiEEHE
Shanghai Electric Power Construction Co., Ltd. Not expected to be recoverable
BYRAERAERAR 479,040.30 479,040.30 10000  BEEERE
Taosha Village Development Co., Ltd. Not expected to be recoverable
HPD Tan Loc JSC 1,324,814.13 1,324,814.13 10000 BREZHE
Not expected to be recoverable
BN kRRERRAERAR 65,000.00 65,000.00 10000 BiEEHE
Guizhou Zhongshui Construction Management Co., Lid. Not expected to be recoverable
EREERKERLERAR 389,000.00 389,000.00 10000 BEEERE
Youyang County Xingyuan Hydropower Development Not expected to be recoverable
Co., Ltd
BREZERAMEEARALAR 5,700,000.00 5,700,000.00 10000 BEEERE
Lintan County Zibao Water Conservancy and Power Not expected to be recoverable
Generation Co., Ltd
RERERREZREREERAR 189,941.99 189,041.99 10000 BiEERE
Shaanxi Praise Gas Industry Equipment Not expected to be recoverable
Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
i 16,410,480.27 12,989,527.00
Total

2025 ¥k (4187

EERERNERAR



SARS TR L (A7)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(A A 55 i 2 B S BR AR I Gk WA b > B RL AR JTI7%)  (All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ &R R ROE H sERE (A V.

5. AFEE )

) B ELRIR 7 58RI
(#)

2) Bl EERAGFHRRIRE

NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

5. Contract assets (continued)

(3) Contract assets are classified and presented according to

the bad debt provision method (continued)

2)  Provision for bad debts of contract assets by portfolio

i
202556 H30H
30 Jun 2025
REHE BEEE TR (%)
Book Provision for Provision
EA Company balance bad debts ratio (%)
EREAFMEMA Contract assets related
AREE to construction
contracts 23,075,674.63 - -
—REPFIEBA General customer fund
combination 1,048,171,374.14 94,672,507.01 9.03
&t Total 1,071,247,048.77 94,672,507.01 8.84
202412 A31H
31 Dec 2024
FE#E ERER FTHRLL (%)
Book Provision for Provision
2 Company balance bad debts ratio (%)
HEEASRIEEA Contract assets related
AREE to construction
contracts 18,321,668.60 - -
—REPFIEMAA General customer fund
combination 926,000,933.90 82,233,853.88 8.88
&t Total 944,322,602.50 82,233,853.88 8.71
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202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

+ il & 2 (48) 5. Contract assets (continued)
@ G EERS R~ W] s gy (4) The provision for bad debts of contract assets provisioned,
SEIE I g 5 recovered or reversed during this period.
Recovered or Transfer or
Provision for reversed for write off for
this period this period this period Reason
EH ltems AEEE  AHRERER  AHEE RE RE
ARBEZE Bad debt provision for 9,053,364.80 = - RREBEREXERNGE
2 contract assets
Provision based on expected
credit loss model
CE Total 9,053,364.80 = =
(5) AHEBEEENE & E (5) Actual contract assets written off during this period.
i3 None.
JRE Wk L i 6. Receivable financing
202566 H30H 2024F12H31H
HH ltems 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
(ﬁ«« )
(As restated)
RRAREBETEMRT Banker's acceptance measured
O ER at fair value 369,351,164.05 320,8083,304.33
BRARBEFENEE Debt assignment certificate
BEEIRE measured at fair value 182,928,601.01 314,816,584.57
&% Total 552,279,765.06 635,619,888.90

2025 3R |
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 1 H 202546130 H
CRIPBS R B RE RS R GE IS0 LA RWEIE51R)

From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ AU BA R R EIE H R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
6. JEWERIERLE (4) 6. Receivable financing (continued)
(1) TN K TE il B 2 H0 1 2 ot 52 1) e 4 (1) Changes in receivables financing and fair value
R E BN - Sfluctuations for the current period:
2025%6H30H 2024F12HA31H
HH Items 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
B AR Cost 552,898,035.28 635,619,888.90
AREE Fair value 552,279,765.06 635,619,888.90
St AR LR A Y E R Cumulative amount of fair value
ARBELZLHEE changes recognized in other

comprehensive income

-618,270.22 =

H1: AKERBELESERNTE
HRITEGERE R EEERRE
DERAARBEFEEEED
FARMGERENSREE -
HRBRARBEEHHBRKE
BN MUREE SRR E
REEBEEEER -

2 EREEEEREASERGH

EiE BESHFCERERE -
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Note 1: According to the needs of daily fund management,
the Group classifies bank acceptance bills and
the debt transfer certificate into financial assets
measured at fair value and the changes of which
are included in other comprehensive income. Since
the change of fair value at the end of the period has
little impact on the statements, the group presents
receivables financing according to book value.

Note 2: The debt transfer certificate refers to the digital debt

certificates such as Yunxin and Rongxin obtained by

the Group.
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202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. Receivable financing (continued)

(2) Accounts receivable financing is classified and presented

PZEN by bad debt provision method
2025568308
30 Jun 2025
REBE BEER
Book balance Provision for bad debts
8 HA(%) 2 FHRIA(%) FEEE
Provision
g3 Items Amount  Percentage(%) Amount ratio (%)  Carrying amount
RBAHRERERE  Provision for bad debts by
combination 554,074,283.18 100.00 1,794,518.12 032 552,279,765.06
b BALEZ  Including: Bank acceptance il 369,351,164.05 66.66 - - 369,351,164.05
ErEEhE Debt transfer certficate 184,723,119.13 33.34 1,794,518.12 097 182,028,601.01
HbBBAEZEES  Including: Combination of related
party tickets 1,568,010.91 0.28 - - 1,568,010.91
-BEERE General ticket combination 183,155,108.22 33.06 1,794,518.12 098  181,360,590.10
&t Total 554,074,283.18 100.00 1,794,518.12 032 552,279,765.06
20245121318
31 Dec 2024
FEAE SRER
Book balance Provision for bad debts
x| $5(%) g STRILBI%) RHERE
g7 Items Amount Percentage(%) Amount  Provision ratio (%)  Carrying amount
BAAHEREESE  Provision for bad debts by
combination 638,910,758.89 100.00 3,290,869.99 052 635619,888.90
A RITREES  Including: Bank acoeptance bil 320,803,304.33 50.21 - - 320,803,304.33
[EEEzEz Debt transfer certificate 318,107 454.56 4979 3,290,869.99 103 31481658457
b BESZEMA  Including: Combination of related
party tickets 944 660.87 0.15 - - 944,660.87
-hEEES General ticket combination 317,162,793.69 49.64 3,290,869.99 104 313871923.70
&t Total 638,910,758.89 100.00 3,290,869.99 052  635,619,888.90

i AEESEBEGRREEENE
WRIERLE © BIR A R B IR E
EFERRBERERERE
- REER B AIRIT A
RERTHEHEERERAAR T
BRRTEOMELEEAEK -

Note: The Group does not have a single bank acceptance

bill for impairment provision. At the end of the period,

the Group measures bad debt provisions based on

the expected credit losses throughout its lifetime. The

Group believes that the bank acceptance bills held

do not have significant credit risk and will not cause

significant losses due to bank defaults.

2025 73 (4191
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ST AR M (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A B i e I G PR AR T s WA A0 > 38 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ ORI 5 H a 3 S H H R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. JEWERIERLE (4) 6. Receivable financing (continued)
3 HENC I A AR W] B (3) The provision for bad debts in the annual provision,
I 1337 B I 3 i e O recovery or reversal of accounts receivable financing
rHRHLE
Movement in current period
224512318 ith KEHEE EE RfbES  2005%6A30R
Withdrawal or Transfer or
A Items 31 Dec 2024 Provision reversal write off  Other decreases 30 Jun 2025
HEER Impairment provision 3,290,869.99 -1,368,351.87 - - 128,000.00 1,794,518.12
&t Total 3,290,869.99 -1,368,351.87 - - 128,000.00 1,794,518.12
@) HIA O E AP0 o TE i & (4) Receivable financing already used for pledge at the end of
the period
f o None.
(5) HIAKRARIERE G EHA B HEE (5) Receivable financing that have been endorsed or
JEE F (57 H i AR 2 2 1 JE W e i discounted by the Group and have not expired at the end
& of the period:
KRIEEZASHE RERLEREE
Termination The confirmed
confirmation amount is not
EH ltems amount terminated

A
=]

=113

Bank acceptance bill
Document of creditor’s
rights transfer

Total

1,607,948,031.98

251,637,277.43

29,504,806.00

1,859,585,309.41

29,504,806.00
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SAB R T AE (A7)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(A BB i e I G PR AR L s B A0 > 35 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ 5 BF S R T ROH H RERE (A

6. MEWLH

(&)

oK JE il ()

HYA AL B 28 & 2 b 5 H e &
JBE A 76 H 135 AR 2 1 JE W5k
& (4F)

HF BRAEESETHEENUXM
H bR B BRoR B H A FE MR
& A R #1,859,585,309.41
T AKBEEERE:(NEE

EH RN AR A M AR EHERT
A K ERFTA SRR K E R
EEEEYE  WmT2RIEHER
HERBRIERE R EM AR

RIE AEEHZETERILE
TR A B HP e U RO A Y A
FBARENEBZRITEEAZRE
BEAEERBAR - AREBEH
B AFTEX AT RE R AE X
REAKESETHE®HORIE
EWHBERERXREHRARE
1,859,585,309.417% : () B E
F BEEESEERALRA
iR B H ) AR RRE AR
HHTBRE - TR K IERERZ
SRKFERE R EMEER
1§ o

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. Receivable financing (continued)

(5) Receivable financing that have been endorsed or
discounted by the Group and have not expired at the end
of the period: (continued)

Note: As of the end of the period, the Group has endorsed
unexpired trade receivables financing amounting to
RMB1,859,585,309.41 to suppliers for payment of
material purchase prices. The management of the
Group is of the view that:(1) For bank acceptance bills
that have been endorsed, transferred or discounted
but not yet expired, the risks and rewards associated
with the ownership thereof have been substantially
transferred. Therefore, such trade receivables
financing and payables to suppliers have been
completely derecognized. The Group’s continuing
involvement in such completely derecognized
unexpired trade receivables financing is limited to
the scenario where the issuing bank fails to settle the
amount with the bill holder. The maximum possible
loss that the Group may bear due to such continuing
involvement is the ending balance of the unexpired
trade receivables financing endorsed by the Group to
suppliers, which is RMB1,859,585,309.41.(2) For debt
transfer instruments (other than Yunxin, Dilian, etc.)
that have been endorsed, transferred or discounted
but not yet expired, since they are with recourse, such
trade receivables financing and payables to suppliers

have not been derecognized.

2025 FR
EEMERHERAR S



ST AR MY A (AT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A B i e I G PR AR T s WA A0 > 38 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ ORI 5 H a 3 S H H R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. MEWGKIEBLE (A1) 6.

Receivable financing (continued)

(6)  AHE B s 25 e Mk T ¢

(6) Financing of accounts receivable actually written off

during the period.
i None.
7. FARE 7. Prepayments

(1) HKIEWE# A (1) Aging analysis

2025%6 A30H 2024F12H31H

HHE ltems 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024

(z«< )

(As restated)

1F AR Within 1 year 180,684,755.30 179,134,225.50

1-24F 1-2 years 12,426,912.53 8,204,816.07

2-3%F 2-3 years 4,516,009.41 1,224,148.48

3FE More than 3 years 5,438,854.74 4,315,195.42

a5 Total 203,066,531.98 192,878,385.47
R EERE Less: Provision for diminution

in value 5,390,021.16 5,301,527.26

A IRFORE Net value 197,676,510.82 187,576,858.21

o BARAEBREBRE SN0 EH
T8 7 0 5K & %8 /522,381,776.687TC
(FH&8 - ARM13,744,159.97
TT)  EBAEMAMHER  #E
BEHERR - MEHEARDE -

Note: On 30 Jun 2025, the Group’s prepaid accounts with
an age of more than one year were RMB22,381,776.68
(The beginning of the period: RMB13,744,159.97),
which were mainly prepayments for materials, because
the delivery cycle was long and the materials had not

arrived.
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T~ 5 BF S R T ROH H RERE (A

o

AT #E (4) 7. Prepayments (continued)
2) B AN BEAB1AFE H 2 5 0 (2) Prepaid accounts with an aging of over 1 year and
i significant amounts
1B TE 4 5RIA F R R 8
BB 2025F6H30H  FRE B ETEH L BI(%)
Name of debtors 30 Jun 2025 Aging Percentage (%)
EEER A A 8,852,531.38 1 MR 4.36
Saker Germany Co., Ltd. Within 1 year
EFEEHRERBERAR 8,417,900.44 15 AR 4.15
Chongging Xingteng Within 1 year
Electromechanical Equipment
Co., Ltd.
AR F (B BRAF 8,242,360.04 1F AR 4.06
Siemens (China) Co., Ltd Within 1 year
BENMEBEMBERAR (RE) 7,960,759.64  1E LA 3.92
Shenyang Kejin Special Materials Within 1 year
Co., Ltd. (Nuclear Power)
FFERGER) B AR AR 6,551,576.00 1FE AR 3.23
Zenith Precision (Beijing) Within 1 year
Technology Co., Ltd.
&5t 40,025,127.50 - 19.72
Total
Q3)  AKBYE TR - I (54 1) By 5 i (3) Provision made for bad debts, transferred or recovered
/ﬁ this period.
AthIERBEE
REERENEZE
BHEL 2004512A31R REEE BEghE  ERRRREES 202556430
Reclassification of
other non-current
assets impairment
provisions to
prepayments
Collected or impairment
Name of debtors 31 Dec 2024 Accrued transferred back provisions 30 Jun 2025
BNRFNERES 5,301,527.26 -220,906.10 - 309,400.00 5,390,021.16
Prepayment account provision for
bad debts
&t 5,301,527.26 -220,906.10 - 309,400.00 5,390,021.16
Total
2025 7%k (495

R B BRI R BR A I G W40 > B AR THIR)

BB AR et (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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ST AR M (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

20254F 1 H 1 H %#20254F6 30 H

(R B R I R BR AR T GEWI 40 > B A R THIR)

T~ &R R ROE H sERE (A

196

8. It HEWEKk

From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

8.  Other receivables

202566 H30H 20245 12H31H

5 H ltems 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
(&)

(As restated)

JFE L A% ) Dividend receivable 218,980,014.96 288,932,461.02
H b & IR Other receivables 502,784,303.98 490,315,670.13
& Total 721,764,318.94 779,248,131.15
OB EEE Less: provision for bad debts 346,567,796.34 340,616,425.89
R Net value 375,196,522.60 438,631,705.26

81 JEWRF
(1) JENRFI

8.1 Dividend receivable

(1) The classification of dividend receivable

2025%6530H 2024412 A31H

EE (FHIREEN) ltems (or Investees) 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024

EEERHMBEHMAERAA  Chongging Cummins Engine Co., Ltd 217,042,558.58 286,995,004.64
EELAARNAERE Chongging Hongyan Fangda Automobile

BRAT Suspension Co., Ltd. 1,937,456.38 1,937,456.38

S Total 218,980,014.96 288,932,461.02

) EEHTIRE W 1E 09 B

F

BB (IR EER)

ltems (or investee)

(2) The major dividend receivable aged over 1 year

202556A30 & AYERE REEEHERE &R
The reason for not  Whether the impairment occurs and
30 Jun 2025 Aging receiving its judgment basis

ERAERAAEREBRAT

Chongqing Hongyan Fangda
Automobile Suspension Co.,
Ltd.

&t
Total

1,937,456.38 SN LE HARARN — RRASEER ABHXAH
Over 5 years  No payment The enterprise operate normally and
have the ability to pay

1,937,456.38
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S5 R MY o (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

8. b Eak (%) 8. Other receivables (continued)
82 HbEEWH 8.2  Other receivables
(1) HAESEN K IG I (1) Other receivables are classified by the nature of the
amount listed below
20256 H30H 2024F12H31H
FIAMNLE Nature 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
(g &)
(As restated)
R R AT FRIE Collection and payment on agency

@

BE THERER
)i NETE /O

e R A B
REE
FREBEES
ik
BB E R
Ht

basis

Assets and land disposal
receivable

The related companies of other
receivable

Borrowing and interest

Deposit receivable

Housing repair fund

Imprest fund

Prepayment for house purchase

Others

202,993,937.83

20,576,671.73

38,053,564.95
90,421,799.69
51,417,384.18
25,227,726.41

8,586,157.56
12,622,437.20
52,884,624.43

202,728,461.68

12,327,550.00

45,399,018.48
88,5631,658.42
47,502,011.70
25,168,211.66

8,694,215.06
12,622,437.20
47,442,105.93

Hit EWFRERFAEREE S5 Total 502,784,303.98 490,315,670.13

W R E R Less: provision for bad debts 346,567,796.34 340,616,425.89

HiEWERE FE S5 Net value 156,216,507.64 149,699,244.24
[d g e (2) Aging analysis

20256 A30H 2024%12A31H

Bk Aging 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024

(fE &)

(As restated)

1ELAR Within 1 year 81,443,019.32 82,481,031.44

1226 1-2 years 29,719,456.92 19,959,559.27

2E3F 2-3 years 9,997,624.12 27,933,983.15

3ELE Over 3 years 381,624,203.62 359,941,096.27

B 3244 Including: 3-4 years 26,640,199.77 22,190,846.88

4FE5F 4-5 years 21,507,306.36 208,431,070.83

5P E Over 5 years 333,476,697.49 129,319,178.56

HttERFRR GBS Total balance of other accounts

receivable 502,784,303.98 490,315,670.13

B ERERE Less: provision for bad debts 346,567,796.34 340,616,425.89

HttEWRREFEA Total net book value of other receivables 156,216,507.64 149,699,244.24

2025 ¥k (4197
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ST AR MY A (AT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A B i e I G PR AR T s WA A0 > 38 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ ORI 5 H a 3 S H H R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

8. b EWak (%) 8.  Other receivables (continued)
82 HbKENH (%) 8.2  Other receivables (continued)
2)  HHRE AT () (2) Aging analysis (continued)
H: AEEEMERERERE Note: The ageing of other receivables of the Group is
H e W R e R B R aa ah calculated from the date when other receivables
Ho are recognized.
) LT B R (3) The other receivables recognized provision for bad
JRHE A 19 A EN K debts according to expected credit risk characters
#-Ra F_RR £ZRR
BEGES BEGES
AR1268 A BHEREX BHEREX
BHEREX  (REEGRRA)  (BREGREE) ait

The First Stage ~ The Second Stage The Third Stage
Expected credit Expected credit
loss within the entire  loss within the entire

Expected credit ~ duration (No credit duration (Credit
loss within impairment has impairment has
SHER Bad Debt provision 12 months oceurred) occurred) Total
20245128318 Balance on 31 Dec 2024 1,026,648.04 9,444 876.76 330,144,901.09 340,616,425.89
20241231 B E45 /M The book balance of bad debt
ZREEERASE  provision for other receivables as of
i December 31, 2024 in the current
period - = = =
-BAEZKR - Moving on to the second stage - = = -
-BAZ=R E“ - Moving on to the third stage - = - .
-EpE- F - Switch back to the second stage - - - =
-BRZ-} - Switch back to the first stage - = = -
TR Provision -1,000,722.39 9,377,544.40 -2,425,451.56 5,951,370.45
HED Transferred back = - - -
ey Transfer = . - ,
R Write-off - - - .
EEY Other changes = - - -
2025%6A30A Balance on 30 Jun 2025 25,925.65 18,822,421.16 327,719,449.63 346,567,796.34
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S5 R MY o (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A A 55 i 2 B S BR AR 3 G WA b > LN R THI7R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ A OF 5 3 3 2 0H H R (80 V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

8. HthEWK (4) 8.  Other receivables (continued)
82 HAbHENH (#) 8.2  Other receivables (continued)
() LTI I B R (3) The other receivables recognized provision for bad
SR HE G 7 A EN K (7 debts according to expected credit risk characters
(continued)
1) BEETEHAEAIR 1) The other receivables recognized provision
KIFRIA for bad debts separately:
2025567308
30 Jun 2025
REGE BRERE $A(%)
Provision for
25 Name of debors Book balance bad debts  Percentage (%)  iTIREH Reason
EEAEMILIERAR Chongging GENERAL Trading  267,276,230.04  287,276,230.04 10000 BFEEKE  Not expected to
Chemical Co., Ltd be recoverable
BIEGEHERDA Qiiang Gear Transmission Co,  19,325,365.24  19,325,365.24 10000 BHEZKE  Not expected to
Ltd be recoverable
EEARNERRAA Chongging Gangtian Property  9,680,000.00 9,680,000.00 10000  BFEEKE  Not expected to
(BIAE) Co., Ltd. (Huigong Building) be recoverable
EEREBHERRR Chongoing Quanhai Machinery ~ 4,981,900.79  4,981,900.79 10000 BHEENE  Notexpected to
Co,, Ltd be recoverable
ERZARMMELRAChongging Major Hi Tech 20043720 2,942,437.20 10000 BHEEKE  Not expected to
RAT Property Development Co., be recoverable
Ltd
ERSEE ) TR MAChongging Dingjin Power 1,500,000.00  1,500,000.00 10000 BHEEKE  Not expected to
RAT Enginegring Technology Co., be recoverable
Ltd.
Hfh 8 Other companies 201351626 2,013,516.26 10000  BFEEKWE  Not expected to
be recoverable
&t Total 327,719,449.53  327,719,449.53
7 AREEANHIBIEEE Note: The provision for bad debts of the other
123 BE Y {85 ) H b JiE U receivable made individually during
REEZHANEBA this period were mainly due to financial
B% A B S TR B4 sk BE S difficulties or long-aging accounts of the
RERA AEFEE debtor. The management of the Group is
I8 [Z F8 5+ 4 A Uk O] 5k expected to be unable to recover them or
ML EEIND o to recover them in full.

2025 3R |
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ST AR M (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 1 H 202546130 H
CRIPBS R B RE RS R GE IS0 LA RWEIE51R)

T~ &R R ROE H sERE (A

200

From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

8. IfthHEWEk (A1)

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

8. Other receivables (continued)

82 HbKENH (%) 8.2  Other receivables (continued)
@) B B (Y ) 7 (4)  Provision for bad debts that are accrued, collected or
SRR i 15 transferred back during this period:
AEEBER
Movement in current period
EpEE
N24E12831A it WEZER s GLE HiED  20056R308
Collected or Reclassified
transferred to prepaid Other
Lh] Items 31 Dec 2024 Accrued back Write-off accounts decreases 30 Jun 2025
HftERES  Provision for bad debts
SRER of other receivable 34061642589 5,951,370.45 - - - - 656779634
a3 Total 340,616,425.89 5,951,370.45 - - - - 346,567,796.34
(5) AN LE [ I 42 5 19 Al A (5) Other receivables written off by the Group during this
AIEH period
& o None.
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S5 R MY o (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A A 55 i 2 B S BR AR 3 G WA b > LN R THI7R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ A OF 5 3 3 2 0H H R (80 V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

8. i EWEk (4) 8. Other receivables (continued)
82 HAbHENH (#) 8.2  Other receivables (continued)
(6)  H X 3K T B 5E 79 H K B B AT (6) Top five debtors of other receivables collected
T B AN K5 according to the arrears
2
BRpEATEN
HhEl HEME 5F6AR  E thice)  BRERELE
Provision for bad
Name of debtors Nature 30Jun2025  Aging Percentage (%) debts amount
ERAH I IRRAR REAEBVRMBR BF 20727623004  5ELE 5714 087,276,30.04
R,
Chongging GENERAL Trading ~ Advances, borrowings and Qver 5 years
Chemical Co., Ltd. interest arising from trading
operations
EIEREDERAA ERRHE 19841,74324  45F 5EN L 39 19,841,743.24
Qijiang Gear Transmission Co., Ltd. Borrowing and interest 4.5 years, over 5 years
MREHHR TiiHES 1430607000 126 - 2-3% 285 -
Rudong County Finance Bureau  Land transfer fee 1-2 year, 2-3 years
ERTERAREERETD FREEES 14,282,00332  1ELIA 12 2:3F 284 -
34E 458 5EILF
Chongaing Housing Provident Fund Housing repair fund Within 1 year, 1-2 year,
Management Center 2-3 years, 3-4 years, 4-5
years, over 5 years
ERRNANELAEREREE MHREN 12,32755000  1&L0R 245 -
eRANARERR
Planning and Natural Resources  Compensation for land Within 1 year
Bureau of Chongging High tech  acquisition
Industrial Development Zone
Management Committee
fit 348,034,496.60 69.23  307,117,973.8
Total
2025 3% (201
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ST AR M (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(R B R I R BR AR T GEWI 40 > B A R THIR)

T~ &R R ROE H sERE (A V.

202

3ot Wk (%)

82 HbKENH (%)

)

®)

] & < 5 o BB T 9 R
I K

4 o

JEN A LK E

ERALER

Name of borrower

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

8. Other receivables (continued)
8.2  Other receivables (continued)

(7) Reported as other receivables due to centralized fund

management

None.

(8) Receivable employee loans

AEETEET
Employees under the Group

B A&

Usage of loan

BRER

Loan amount

— KRB (ARETT)

— This period (RMB)
—FBR(ARET)

— Last period (RMB)
EREHEEE(ARET)

Bad debt provision amount (RMB)

HRE

Imprest

8,686,157.56
8,5694,215.06

2,789,918.66
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S5 R MY o (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A A 55 i 2 B S BR AR 3 G WA b > LN R THI7R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ A OF 5 3 3 2 0H H R (80 V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ety 9. Inventory
1) HFEZH (1) Classification of inventory
2025%6A30A
30 Jun 2025
REBEEE /AR
RESAE BREAHEER BHEE
Provision for
EHH Items Book balance impairment Carrying amount
R4 8 Raw materials 548,824,853.18 79,947,858.33 468,876,994.85
EEM Work in progress 870,910,050.60 195,060,777.17 675,849,273.43
EFEm Finished goods 822,382,616.13 69,864,495.37 752,518,120.76
BBk Revolving materials 7,064,734.83 - 7,064,734.83
ZREMINE Consigned processing
materials 43,014,119.43 20,530.97 42,993,588.46
EHEm Release products 113,619,636.52 643,463.69 112,976,172.83
AREHKR Contract performance cost 114,830,004.72 - 114,830,004.72
) Total 2,520,646,015.41 345,537,125.53 2,175,108,889.88
202412H31H
31 Dec 2024
(&)
(As restated)
FEREER/ AR
EEBE BORARERS EEEE
Provision for
JEH ltems Book balance impairment Carrying amount
R Raw materials 463,594,827.92 75,046,570.94 388,548,256.98
EER Work in progress 801,655,818.78 182,484,855.24 619,170,963.54
EEER Finished goods 802,588,331.59 67,219,005.04 735,369,326.55
BB KL Revolving materials 5,565,993.19 = 5,565,993.19
ZREMNINE Consigned processing
materials 24,588,635.27 20,530.97 24,568,104.30
g Release products 19,131,714.58 1,096,183.61 18,035,530.97
ERBHOKAK Contract performance cost 99,511,196.00 = 99,511,196.00
&t Total 2,216,636,517.33 325,867,145.80 1,890,769,371.53

2025 ¥ [ 9
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

20254F 1 H 1 H %#20254F6 30 H

T~ &R R ROE H sERE (A

9. 8 ()

From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(B BB R R M RE BRI GE A A0 > BRI RT3 7R)

) AHFE - B () B9 7 5

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

9. Inventory (continued)

(2) Provision of impairment that are accrued, collected or

P g transferred back during this period:
KN px:ih O
Increase Decrease
N245128318 it ift EEEy AfEH 20056R308
Collected or Other
A tems 31 Dec 2024 Accrued Other  Transferred Back transfers out 30 Jun 2025
(@Ei)
(As restated)
el Raw materials 75,046,570.94 4,672,468.9 26460492 35,786.49 - 79,047,858.33
kER Work in progress 182,484,855.24 12,114478.11 - 65,701.78 7285500 195,060,777.17
ERER Finished goods 67,219,005.04 2,663,483.35 - 17,993.02 - 69,864,495.37
ZRNINA Consigned pracessing materials 2053097 - S - - 2053097
HEm Release products 1,096,183.61 6168831 - = 391,031.61 643,463.69
At Total 325,867,145.80 19,988, 742.71 264,604.92 119,481.29 463,886.61 345,537,125.53
FEREEFREENT : The provision standards for inventory depreciation
reserves are as follows:
EH BEAZRFENABKE AHEE N EERA
[tems The determine basic of net realizable value The reasons of collected and transferred back
R REERREENERBHEEREZZETIMAEAN BREEEREELR KEEBTUER-

Raw materials

EER

Work in progress

ER#E®
Finished goods

A

Subtract the estimated cost incurred until completion

from the estimated selling price based on inventory

age and production of products

FEBRREENERM
AR

AEEBREET I REN

Subtract the estimated cost incurred until completion

from the estimated selling price based on inventory

age and production of products

HAER

ERFEERERRREABENER

The price of the final product rose, provision for impairment
is transferred back

RAEEEMEE LR KEEETAEMD -

The price of the final product rose, provision for impairment
is transferred back

NRIEER R T B EREEBNEKX AT ERFE L

Comblmng mventory age and the difference between the The net realizable value of finished good with provision

net realizable value and the book value of inventory

goods

impairment for inventory in previous year is increased

Q) ALEBHIA 171 5 5 1 S B
BARAMAGH -

@) ARG I JE 7 A A 5 %
#119,904,867.08C °
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3)

The situation where the end of period inventory balance

of the Group does not include the capitalization amount

of borrowing costs.

“)

The performance cost of this contract in this period is

amortized in the amount of RMB119,904,867.08.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ SOFEAE R R EIH H R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
10. —FRB IR B E E 10. Non-current assets due within one year
202556530 2024512318
R Items 30 Jun 2025 31Dec2024 1E Nature
—ERFENER Loans due within one year 17,400,000.00 1740000000 AEAFBR Loans from joint ventures
—ERIBNERFE Interest on loans due within one year 930,399.68 59880645 AERABRME  Interest on loans from joint
ventures
At Total 18,330,399.68 17,998,806.45
11, Hofl oy B & e 11. Other current assets
202546 A30H 2024%12H31H
EH ltems 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
(&)
(As restated)
FEAIGER Unused deductible VAT 32,231,114.34 19,164,847.95
TEEDEREH Prepaid corporate income tax 756,200.24 2,822,067.50
HAI5 H Others 5,071.17 159,185.54
ShEr Total 32,992,385.75 22,146,100.99

2025 FR
EEMERHERAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A A 55 i 2 B S BR AR I Gk WA b > B RL AR JTI7%)  (All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ ORI 5 H a 3 S H H R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

12, BB B Bk 12. Loans and advances to customers
12.1 —4F L I 28 T B3k & 3k 12.1 Loans and advances to customers aged within one year

202566 H30H 2024512 A31H

B H Items 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
T EERMER Loans and advances to
corporations - -
—B% - Loans 456,522,320.00 379,522,320.00
—BhIREE — Deposit of capital discounted 24,105,478.94 7,319,672.93
— R FI B — Accrued interest 353,948.27 358,456.87
ﬁgﬁ"kfﬂ BN Total 480,981,747.21 387,200,449.80
W BB REE Less: Provision for impairment 12,017,465.48 11,486,382.15
EXRNBREEEE Carrying amount 468,964,281.73 375,714,067.65
(1) B3 B A B 11T (1) Industrial-based classification of loans and advances
fg% to customer
2025568307 H (%) 2024E12A31H Hofl(%)
GESN Industry 30 Jun 2025 Percentage (%) 31 Dec 2024 Percentage (%)
By Manufacturing 480,981,747.21 100.00 387,200,449.80 100.00
LR ET Total 480,981,747.21 100.00 387,200,449.80 100.00
(2) BT B A B 14 I (2) Location-based classification of loans and advances
fgﬁ to customer
2025568307 H (%) 2024E12A31H 1 fil(%)
HEA Area 30 Jun 2025 Percentage (%) 31 Dec 2024 Percentage (%)
& Southwest 480,981,747.21 100.00 387,200,449.80 100.00
CEvEEET Total 480,981,747.21 100.00 387,200,449.80 10000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A A TS R 2 B sk R R L G A A0 - ¥ RA NIRRT H117R%) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ A OF 05 e 1 0E H Rk R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

12, Rk & ok (41)

12. Loans and advances to customers (continued)

12.1 —4E YA B B i Bt R sk (4)

12.1 Loans and advances to customers aged within one year

(continued)
3) BB IGIE AR Ty 20 M (3) Guarantee type based classification of loans and
T advances to customers

@)  IE BRI~ A4 2 i i B (4) No overdue loans of both beginning balance and
A e ending balance.
(5)  AHFHE - B (B ) B (5) Provision of impairment that are accrued, collected
o (E 2 i 15 20 or transferred back during this period:
2025%1-6A 20245164
From Jan-Jun 2025 From Jan-Jun 2024
ER RARREX ER RAERR%
expected Expected
EH Items Single item credit loss Single item credit loss
20245128318 31 Dec 2024 - 11,486,382.15 - 12,466,641.89
in: REE Add: Accrued in current period - 531,083.33 = -980,259.74
202564308 30 Jun 2025 - 12,017,465.48 - 11,486,382.15
2025 ¥k (207

20256 H30H 202445 12H831H
IEH ltems 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
ERER Unsecured loan 310,022,433.89 172,174,002.35
RBEER Guaranteed loan 62,202,413.32 99,243,701.89
MR E R Collateral loan 108,756,900.00 115,782,745.56

Hep - W ER

ERMBRAE

Including: Mortgaged loan

Gross loans and advances

108,756,900.00

115,782,745.56

480,981,747.21

387,200,449.80
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A A 55 i 2 B S BR AR I Gk WA b > B RL AR JTI7%)  (All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ ORI 5 H a 3 S H H R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

12, BBk 3Gk () 12. Loans and advances to customers (continued)
12.2 —4FY EZi B R 3K 12.2 Loans and advances to customers aged over one year:

202566 H30H 2024512 A31H

B H Items 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
T EERMER Loans and advances to
corporations - -
-8B —Loans 496,000,000.00 508,000,000.00
— T L& —Accrued interest 330,666.66 454,850.00
ERFBREEHE Gross loans and advances 496,330,666.66 508,454,850.00
B BB REE Less: Provision for impairment 12,400,000.00 15,338,761.22
RNBREEEE Carrying amount of loans
and advance 483,930,666.66 493,116,088.78
(1) BRI AT T (1) Industrial-based classification of loans and advances
10 to customer
2025568308 HA(%) 2024F12831H H (%)
BEHL Indlusry 30 Jun 2025 Proportion (%) 31 Dec 2024 Proportion (%)
HER Manufacturing 496,330,666.66 100.00 508,454,850.00 100.00
LEGIEE L Total 496,330,666.66 100.00 508,454,850.00 10000
) Bk B A A LA I 7 (2) Location-based classification of loans and advances
i/ to customer
2025568308 HA(%) 2024F12831H $ (%)
HEA Area 30 Jun 2025 Proportion (%) 31 Dec 2024 Proportion (%)
filepl Southwest 496,330,666.66 100.00 508,454,850.00 100.00
ERNBHAE Total 496,330,666.66 100.00 508,454,850.00 100.00
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S5 R MY o (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

12. Loans and advances to customers (continued)

12.2 Loans and advances to customers aged over one year:

B K Bk AR B4 (R T =C (3) Guarantee type based classification of loans and
THIFH advances to customers

202546 H30H 2024%12H31H
HH ltems 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
REE N Guaranteed loan = -
EREX Credit loans 496,330,666.66 508,454,850.00
ERMBREE Total 496,330,666.66 508,454,850.00
I LE [E] 1 K~ 1 4] 4 S da 1Y (4) The beginning balance and ending balance of the

Bk

AR 5t 42 B E (AL ) HY

group are no overdue loans.

(5)

Provision of impairment that are accrued, collected

e B PE A 1 or transferred back during this period:
20255168 20245168
From Jan-Jun 2025 From Jan-Jun 2024
Ef RHEREL £ RBERER
Expected Expected
ER Items Single item credit loss Single item credit loss
2024F12A31R 31 Dec 2024 - 15,338,761.22 - 9,756,043.40
M AdEHE Add: Accrued in current period - -2,938,761.22 = 5562,717.82
2025568308 30 Jun 2025 - 12,400,000.00 - 15,338,761.22
2025 3R |
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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S5 R MY o (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

14. Other debt investments

(1) Other debt investment situations

202596 A30H 2024412F31H
5 H ltems 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
- Bond 32,422,242.33 -
&5t Total 32,422,242.33 -

Q) BIAEZRGH A R

(2) Significant other debt investments at period-end

BititARfEA |
& hshag B B
A BRNE ArEE 2948 EheR
Accumulated amount
of changes in fair
value recorded in The amount of
other comprehensive  impairment provision
EREEREEE  ftems par value amortized cost fair value income already made
BERAEHER Extraordinarily long-term
05(2500005) special treasury bond
(2500005) 32,356,502.04 32,356,502.04 32,422,242.33 65,740.29 -
At Total 32,356,502.04 32,356,502.04 32,422.242.33 65,740.29 -
2025 13k (241
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 1 H 202546130 H
CRIPBS R B RE RS R GE IS0 LA RWEIE51R)

T~ &R R ROE H sERE (A

15, R IIHEWGK

M)  RAEN R

From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

15. Long-term receivable

(1) Situation of Long-term receivable

2025565308 2024E12A31A
30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
FEBE AERE REERE BaBE REERE BHER
Provision for Carrying Book Provision for Carrying
ER Items Book balance Impairment amount balance impairment amount
JEUREER 73 (1) Receivable loans from related
parties (Note 1) 17,400,000.00 - 17,400,000.00  26,100,000.00 - 26,100,000.00
EREBHEHAE Receivable interest on related
party loans 930,399.68 - 930,399.68 898,209.68 - 898,209.68
B —ERIEA  Less: long-term receivables
e due within one year 18,330,399.68 - 18,330,399.68  17,998,806.45 - 17,998,806.45
ait Total - - - 8,999,403.23 - 8,999,403.23

F RERJBABNZBHEBIMES
OMABENEB R EERER -
EHEREESAERAFZEEAR
FERITRMDBRARIRIAEER
BRERERIEREBEALRSH
ZEAEBITRA - ZEENEHE
£ §1122,000,0007T * f& K EABR B
201643 A 140 £202643714
B -ERAREEEHANASA
BRI E P LRMAE B
BREERERRE  BRFE
BETEMNE12%  BEHKL -
AEBBZEERE S URRSE

RARE4EE S B RRALT -

@ M S - 14 5
7 52 B 5 HA 0 5K R 4 B O £
ORESEESWMEERHEK
5 REHREIERL -
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Note: In order to construct the R&D center of high-powered

engine technology and production line project of
high-powered engine, National Development Fund
Co., Ltd entrusted China Development bank Co., Ltd
to issue the entrusted loan to the Group for project
capital investment. The total amount of this loan is
RMB122,000,000 which is restricted to the construction
of the R&D center of high-powered engine technology
and production line project of high-powered engine.
The term of the loan is from 14 March 2016 to 14
March 2026. The loan interest shall be calculated
at the fixed annual rate of 1.2% and paid quarterly.
Chongging Cummins borrowed from the Group through

shareholder loan.

(2) Long term receivables provisioned for bad debts

The Group’s long-term receivables are loans to

related parties. According to the Group’s financial

asset accounting policies, no provision for bad debts

is made.
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202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
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(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 1 H 202546130 H
CRIPBS R B RE RS R GE IS0 LA RWEIE51R)

T~ &R R ROE H sERE (A

214

16. =R IVIBCHE % & (41)

1) RABHELE NG ()

A1 ISAREC P EROR B L I 2 R Rk
B E A SRR I Z R -

2 AL BT E20184F E ¥ B A F
WGPl R E 2 HERRIRAE
K ARWGPKE & W # - %A A
B 720198 A6 H M & A |18 78
ERIRR B ESERE B
1E2025%6 A30H Z 2 7] i K /B

HEg o

3 IR AR KB F N E E F 820235
F-—REH REXAKEERK
EREBERENBERATML
BEARRYHERNEEAR
EMERF - FEMEAR166ET
HhAREEAR € H 48,1348
T * 5 EL49% + # 1E20254F6 430
H &R &8,134.008 7T °

INTERIM REPORT 2025
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From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

16. Long-term equity investment (continued)

(I) Long term equity investment situation (continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Difference between the percentage of shareholding
and voting rights is derived from the difference
between numbers of shareholders in the board of

directors and the percentage of shareholding.

The Group has fully recognized the investment
loss of Italian WGP equity investment in 2018.
Due to WGP’s operating difficulties, the company
has submitted a voluntary bankruptcy liquidation
application to the relevant Italian court on August 6,
2019. The company has not completed liquidation

on 30 June 2025.

According to the first meeting of the 6th Board of
Directors of the Group in 2023, it was agreed that
the Group and State Energy Group Gansu Electric
Power Co., Ltd. would establish a joint venture
company, Mingin Guoneng Wind Power Co., Ltd.,
with a registered capital of RMB166 million. Among
them, the Group contributed RMB81.34 million in
cash, accounting for 49%. As of June 30, 2025, the

actual contribution was RMB81.34 million.
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202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A BB i e I G PR AR L s B A0 > 35 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ A OF 05 e 1 0E H Rk R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED

17. BeE PP HE

M) R T By 1 B 17

EH

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

17. Investment property

ltems

ERE - EZEY
Buildings

(1) Investment property at cost measurement model

At
Total

CRERE

202412A31H

. Book balance

Balance on 31 Dec 2024

258,207,5631.88

258,207,531.88

RERE & 58 Increase this period 11,364,106.49 11,364,106.49
Ed - EEEEEA Including: transfer from fixed
assets 9,405,808.69 9,405,808.69
A Purchase 1,958,297.80 1,958,297.80
RER A &5 Reduced this period 11,332,045.21 11,332,045.21
HE - @HEETEEE Including: transferred to
fixed assets 6,532,045.21 6,532,045.21
EHEEFEE transferred to intangible
assets 4,800,000.00 4,800,000.00
20256 H30H Balance on 30 Jun 2025 258,239,593.16 258,239,593.16
— - A5t E . Accumulated depreciation
2024%12A31H Balance on 31 Dec 2024 67,375,069.11 67,375,069.11
NERIE N & 58 Increase this period 5,316,404.47 5,316,404.47
HAp o GriRskEiE Including: accrued or
amortized 3,381,865.03 3,381,865.03
BEEE#EA Transfer from fixed assets 1,934,539.44 1,934,539.44
PN D e Reduced this period 4,756,619.12 4,756,619.12
Hf - EBHEBRTEE Including: transferred to fixed
assets 2,740,619.12 2,740,619.12
BHEREEE transferred to intangible
assets 2,016,000.00 2,016,000.00
202556 H30H Balance on 30 Jun 2025 67,934,854.46 67,934,854.46
= REEE I. Net carrying amount

1.2025%6 A30H

2.2024%12H31H

1. Balance on 30 Jun 2025
2. Balance on 31 Dec 2024

190,304,738.70
190,832,462.77

190,304,738.70
190,832,462.77

2025 FR

EERERNERAR
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17. & PE 5 A (41)

) HUA S AR 2 s 2 1 12
B 7 o

) HUARALE 157l A 7 T

From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

V.

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

17. Investment property (continued)

(2) The Group had no investment real estate without a

property right certificate on June 30, 2025.

(3) There is no significant impairment in the group’s

K WgBF5 - investment property and no accrued is made for related

impairment on June 30, 2025.
18. [l & & & 18. Property, Plant and Equipment

202546 H30H 2024 12H31H

EH ltems 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024

€ 3=319)

(As restated)

BE &&= PPE 2,604,067,092.08  2,598,427,309.26

BrEERE Disposal of fixed assets - =

PaS
=

oy

Total

2,604,067,092.08

2,698,427,309.26

INTERIM REPORT 2025

CHONGQING MACHINERY & ELECTRIC CO., LTD
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202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A BB i e I G PR AR L s B A0 > 35 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ A OF 05 e 1 0E H Rk R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

18. & & g () 18. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
181 A& & E 18.1 Property, Plant and Equipment
1) BEEEFNT (1) The situation of the Property, plant and equipment
BEREN EERU] ERTA W% fit
Machinery
ER liems Buildlings Equipment Transportation ~~ Office Equipment Total
- FEEE I, Book halance
1. 20245120318 (£E1) 1. Balance on 31 Dec 2024 (As restated) 248920491385 1,977,355,955.93 51,476,204.54 85,056,273.29  4,603,093,437.61
LEEENSE 2. Increase 25,390,869.32 100,640,984.38 1,415,179.00 1,63,125.71 129,086,158.41
(1)EE (1) Purchase 1,745,318.32 4496170292 969,148.01 1,301,728.35 48,967 957.60
(QERIEEA (2) Tranfer from CIP 1474097741 514425289 44603099 3373973 6,966,994 68
(QREHEREEL (3) Transfer from investment properties 6,532,045.21 = = = 6,532,05.21
(8 (4) Others 2.372,468.38 424675254 - - 6,619,220.92
SAHE)CE 3. Decreases 17,2,424.68 19,200,749.20 58175469 3,782,762.60 40,807 89147
(RE4 58 (1) Disposal or scrap 783,615.99 17319,859.86 58175469 2,105,541 44 2844377198
(BHERERRNE (2) Transfer nto Investment properties 9.405,808.69 = = = 9.405,808.69
(Q)ELZERIE (3) Transfer into CIP - 354,437.56 - - 34,437.56
[)Ek (4) Others - 1,526.451.78 - 107720116 260367294
4, 202556 F30R 4, Balance on 30 Jun 2025 2,497,353,358.49  2,058,796,191.11 52,309,718.85 82,912,636.40  4,691,371,904.85
= BitfE Il Accumulated depreciation and amortization
1. 204128318 (8EH) 1. Balance on 31 Dec 2024 (As restated) 636,105,206.75  1,255,532,227.02 39,158,331.17 59,727,688.74  1,990,523,453.68
LEBENEE 2. Increase 30,210,457.48 61,155,278.88 986,872.66 2,465,185.21 103,817,794.23
(i (1) Accrue 31,569701.12 58,178,611.69 986,872.66 2465,185.21 93,200370.68
(QREHEHEEL (2) Transfer from investment properties 274061912 = = = 274061912
(3)Ef (3) Others 4900,137.24 2976,667.19 - - 7.876,804.43
3. Wﬁ%@f 3. Decreases 3,165,326.88 17,366,114.55 553,721.38 3,505,590.00 24,500,754.81
(EESHE (1) Disposal or scrap 1,230,789.44 16,195,960.74 553,721.38 2,599,652.06 20,580,123.61
(BHEREERNE (2) Transfer nto Investment property 1934530 44 = = = 193453044
(JEHEERIE (3)Transfer o O - 01,9909 - - 01,9909
(WEfR (4) Others - 868,163.52 - 905,937.9 1,774.10147
4, 202556 F30R 4, Balance on 30 Jun 2025 672,150,335.35  1,299,321,391.35 39,591,482.45 56,667,283.95  2,069,750,493.10
z HEER II. Provision for impairment
1, 204512831 1, Balance on 31 Dec 2024 421351117 9,836,547.80 - 32,549.10 14,142,674.67
LERENEE 2. Increase 1,746,289.48 - - - 7746,289.48
(1R (1) Accrue 7,746,280.48 - - - 7.746,280.48
3 EBH)LE 3. Decreases 3,862,864.29 43998240 - 31,797.79 4,334,644.48
(EESHE (1) Disposal or serap 386286429 43998240 - 3179779 433464448
4, 20556730R 4, Balance on 30 Jun 2025 8,157,002.36 9,396,565.40 - 751.91 17,554,319.67
m REEE IV. Net carrying amount
1, 04E123318 (8Ei) 1. Balance on 31 Dec 2024 (As restated) 1,046,826,129.93 711,987,181.11 12,317,963.37 2520600485 2,598,427,300.26
2, 2025%6F30R 2, Balance on 30 Jun 2025 1,817,046,020.78 750,078,234.36 12,718,236.40 2420460054 2,604,067,092.08
2025 7k (247

EERERNERAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
O A TS R 2 B Sk R AR Bl G R A0 - 2 AN R T 31 7))

T~ &R R ROE H sERE (A

18. [l & & (%)
18.1 [BE & (#)
(1) [EEZEFW ()
g AHBETEEEMEHR
EEHIEETRAEER
NATMAEHEBE &

ERRENRREXZ(L
e

@2 BHFRE R EE B E

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

18. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
18.1 Property, Plant and Equipment(continued)

(1) The situation of the Property, plant and equipment
(continued)

Note: The other movements of property, plant
and equipment in the current period were
attributable to the exclusion of Chongging Sino-
Germany Smart Factory Solutions Co., Ltd.
from the consolidation scope, asset category

reclassification, and exchange rate fluctuations.

(2) Temporarily idle property, plant and equipment

RERE ZEME WEERE EEER

Book Accumulated Provision Carrying

EH ltems balance depreciation for impairment amount
FERHE Buildings 669,432.12 257,928.57 410,712.88 790.67
KERE Machinery equipment 19,892,107.30  10,779,218.87 9,024,772.49 88,115.94
MARME Office Equipment 20,790.26 20,038.35 751.91 -
At Total 20,582,329.68 11,057,185.79 9,436,237.28 88,906.61

(3) AT [ A8 8 A
Y 1] E B

() RHPZE RS N5 E B

INTERIM REPORT 2025
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(3) The property, plant and equipment leased out by the

Group through operating leases this period

None.

(4)  The property, plant and equipment without completed

property ownership certificates

None.



T~ 5 BF S R T ROH H RERE (A

18. [l ¥ (#f)

18.1 [ & 2 (#)

&

SRS T R ML (A2

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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TTRERS - BEER

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

18. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

18.1 Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

(5) Impairment testing of fixed assets

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED

The Group conducted impairment testing on idle

fixed assets at the end of the period, and the

SMAAT provision for impairment is as follows:
REEE A E & RESHE RERRA
Recoverable Impairment Reason for
| ltems Carrying amount amount amount impairment
NG Office equipment 751.91 = 751.91 5 mE
To be scrapped
FEREY Buildings 23,544,723.28 15,387,720.92 8,157,002.36 EGRERE
No use value
R Machinery equipment 9,483,199.34 86,633.94 9,396,565.40 friRE
To be scrapped

At Total 33,028,674.53 15,474,354.86 17,554,319.67

2025 3R |
EERERMNERRA]
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202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A A 55 i 2 B S BR AR I Gk WA b > B RL AR JTI7%)  (All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ ORI 5 H a 3 S H H R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

19. g T 19. Construction In Progress

202546 H30H 20245 12H31H

EH Items 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
(g &)
(As restated)
EEITRE Construction in progress 113,769,282.72 125,535,386.16
TEME Project material = -
a5t Total 113,769,282.72 125,535,386.16
191 #ETLF 19.1 Construction In Progress
) EEILFEEN (1) The situation of construction in progress:
2025565308 2024%12A318
30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
(%)
(As restated)
REGE AEER KafE FESE HEEE BHER
Provision for Carrying Provision for Carrying
1EH Items Book balance impairment amount  Book balance impairment amount

FERIBEBEE  Xinjiang Cotton Picking

Machine Project 68,169,005.61  68,169,005.61 - 68,169,005.61  68,169,005.61 -
AHAEREREE Large scale reciprocating
MR diephragm pump project  39,652,087.18 - 398500718 4606801638 - 4506801638

¥ThERES Digital workshop project 16,194,099.92  1,967,858.49  14,226,241.43  13,612,647.81 1,217,415.92  12,395,231.89
FEEREELER Ningde Times Production

Line Project 6,956,775.82 - 6996,77582  6375536.88 - 637553688
ifh Others 59,731,672.29  6,797,694.00  52,934,17829  67,494.296.01  6,797,69400  60,696,601.01
At Total 190,703,840.82  76,934,558.10  113,769,262.72  201,719,501.69  76,184,115.53 125,535,386.16

220 INTERIM REPORT 2025
CHONGQING MACHINERY & ELECTRIC CO., LTD
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202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A A 55 i 2 B S BR AR 3 G WA b > LN R THI7R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ A OF 5 3 3 2 0H H R (80 V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

19. 7eRE TR (%) 19. Construction In Progress (continued)
19.1 #H#TLF(#H) 19.1 Construction In Progress (continued)

Q) HEEHETEIHHA AN (2) The changes of significant construction in progress

T during this period:

KERD

Decrease
E\EATEE/
BREE/RY

ENBE REEN FEER s ERBE

Transferred to
fixed assets
or intangible
assets or Long-
term deferred

T4 Project Name 31 Dec 2024 Increase expenses  Other decreases 30 Jun 2025
(#E)
(As restated)
AEGEREREY Large scale reciprocating 46,068,016.38 - 64159202 - 39,652,087.18
YiEEE diaphragm pump project
KEETERBEREE  Digital workshop project 13,612,647.81 2581,452.11 = - 16,194,099.92
ABTERERHRTA  Construction project of large 6,267,382.05 - 626738205 = -
FER process compressor test
platform
UL Chang'an Project 3,344,735.65 1,498,428.08 - - 4,843,163.73
EERREERER Ningde Times Production Ling 6,375,536.88 581,238.94 = - 6,956,775.82
Project
SHGRERER Electromagnetic wire construction ~~ 3,713,00294 535535363 4,645,132.98 - 440320359
project
NERFEERERS Complete equipment project for - 3544881.29 = - 3544,881.29
hydrogen refueling stations
fit Total 7938132171 1356135405  17,328444.23 - 75614,23153
2025 ¥k (221
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(A A 55 i 2 B S BR AR I Gk WA b > B RL AR JTI7%)  (All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ &R R ROE H sERE (A

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

19. feEg T (4H) 19. Construction In Progress (continued)

19.1 #&TF(#)

19.1 Construction In Progress (continued)

) HEE @ TR H A ) (2) The changes of significant construction in progress
15U during this period:
TREHEA \ HeERl ghorERE
BEE  EEEMOI%)  TRER®) 2ifeE Exe®  EeRR
Including:
Accumulated Capitalized
Ti4aR The ratio of input Project amount of interest amount of interest
Project Name Budget fo budget(%) Progress(%) capitalization for this year  Capital Source
AR ERER RHIERE 76,832,000.00 97.00 95.00 - - fx8%
Large scale reciprocating diaphragm Self-collected
pump project fund
KeE TP ERERRR 22,000,000.00 7400 90.00 - - 1%8%
Digital workshop project Self-collected
fund
AUTEEERARTARZER 7,300,000.00 8585 100,00 - - P%8%
Construction project of large process Self-collected
compressor test platform fund
RZER 4,860,000.00 87.00 87.00 - - {%8%
Chang'an Project Self-collected
fund
SEERFESER 4,900,000.00 98.00 98.00 - - t%BE
Ningde Times Production Line Project Self-collected
fund
BHSERER 47,700,000.00 3.56 3556 - - {%8%
Electromagnetic wire construction project Self-collected
fund
MERREREER 6,855,000.00 51.71 51.71 - - (%gE
Complete equipment project for hydrogen Self-collected
refueling stations fund
it 170,447,000.00

Total

222 INTERIM REPORT 2025
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202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A BB i e I G PR AR L s B A0 > 35 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ A OF 5 3 3 2 0H H R (80 V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

19. 7eRE TR (%) 19. Construction In Progress (continued)
19.1 #H#TLF(#H) 19.1 Construction In Progress (continued)
3) AR LR I (T (3) Provision for impairment of construction in progress
T this period

EsE KEEH KERD ERBE  HRRE

Reason for
g7 Items 31 Dec 2024 Increase Decrease 30 Jun 2025 provision
BREERE Machine Tool Group Equipment 4,069,126.78 - - 406912678  EFEEMH

No useful

value
BRERTR Casting and relocation engineering ~ 2,557,627.00 - - 255762100 BB

Stopped
BRE-MERRMEAER  Xinjang Coton Picking Maching ~ 68,169,005.61 = - 68,169,005.61  EFREM

Project No useful
value
TEBEARE Polishing robot equipment 1,217415.92 = - 107M592 KE

Leave unused
KEEERRREZBEAS  Hydraulic turbing production 170940.22 = = 17094022 B

equipment and supporting Leave unused

projects, etc

BRETEERHEH  Ineligent welding robot for stay = 75044257 = 75044257  HE
BEA ring fixed guide vane Leave unused
ait Total 76,184,115.53 750 442.57 - 7693455810
2025 ¥k (223
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202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A B i e I G PR AR T s WA A0 > 38 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ ORI 5 H a 3 S H H R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

19. Feg TR (4) 19. Construction In Progress (continued)
19.1 #&TF(#) 19.1 Construction In Progress (continued)

@) LT 36 (4) Impairment testing of construction in progress
AEBRHAXREEIAEZT At the end of the period, the Group conducted
BETTRENS  RE an impairment test on suspended construction
RIERAT : in progress, and the provision for impairment is

as follows:

EREEE BE ek REER RERE

Carring Recoverable Impairment Reason for

EH ltems amount amount amount impairment

BRM-#BFHBHER  FuBaotian-Xinjiang Cotton Picking Machine  68,169,005.61 - 68,169,005.61 EfREE

Project No useful value

BREERE Machine Tool Group Equipment 4,069,126.78 - 4069,12678 EffRERE

No useful value

AR Casting and relocation engineering 2,557,627.00 - 2557,627.00 BELE

Stopped

TEREANGE Polishing robot equipment 121741592 - 121741592 WE

Leave unused

K& £ AR REER E %Hydraulic turbine production equipment and 17094022 - 17094022 RE

supporting projects, etc Leave unused

BRETEERHEH  Inteligent welding robot for stay ring fixed 750,442.57 = 75044257 WE

HEEA guide vane Leave unused
fit Total 76,934,558.10 - 76934558.10

224 INTERIM REPORT 2025
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202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A BB i e I G PR AR L s B A0 > 35 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ A OF 05 e 1 0E H Rk R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

20. fEAIRER B 20. Right-of-use Assets
) (EIHRER AT (1) Usage rights and asset situation
FEREN HESlE 5 At
Machinery Right to use
EH ltems Buildings equipment of site Total
- R . Book balance
20245128318 8% Book balance on 31 Dec 2024 492,152,693.82  16,583,279.73 7,519,345.94  516,255,319.49
(BEi) (As restated)
1ABENEE 1. Increase 46,066,467.93 13,741,436.26 7.059,428.32  66,867,332.51
e HA Including: leased 46,066,467.93  13,741,436.26 705942832  66,867,332.51
2AEEV 2R 2. Decrease 4,013,305.21 = = 4,013,305.21
A& EER Including: Termination of contract 4,013,305.21 = = 4,013,305.21
20255630 A A58 Book balance on 30 Jun 2025 534,205,856.54  30,324,715.99  14,578,774.26  579,109,346.79
= RihE II. Accumulated depreciation
2024512831885  Book balance on 31 Dec 2024 128,860,270.34 3,289,887.49 2,497,485.73  134,647,643.56
(REi) (As restated)
1ABENEE 1. Increase 42,985,357.60 2,166,180.89 193946298 47,091,001.47
e RETHR Including: accrued 42,985,357.60 2,166,180.89 193946298 47,091,001.47
2ABHL 2B 2. Decrease 2965,219.60 = = 2,965,219.60
& FAR Including: termination of contract 2,965,219.60 = = 2,965,219.60
2025%6A300 8%  Book balance on 30 Jun 2025 168,880,408.34 5,456,068.38 4,436,948.71  178,773,425.43
= REEE IIl. Carrying amount

2025%6430H84% 1. Carrying amount on 30 Jun 2025 365,325,448.20 24,868,647.61 10,141,825.55  400,335,921.36
20245123108 % 2. Carrying amount on 31 Dec 2024 363,292,423.48 13,293,392.24 5,021,860.21  381,607,675.93
(EEi) (As restated)

(2) Impairment testing of right of use assets
(2) 1S R 1 00 A st I D

4 o

None.

2025 FR
EEMERHERAR
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202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A B i e I G PR AR T s WA A0 > 38 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ ORI 5 H a 3 S H H R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

21. WMIEEE 21. Intangible Assets

a1 FEIEE WA

(1) The situation of intangible assets

HHERE o EFil iR IPEE L &l
Landuse Technica
%A fiams fights Softre fnow-tow Brand  Customer relatonshs Others Totl
- FERE I Gross carying amount
1508380 1. Book balance on 31 Dec 2024 475,394,349 nanne 204,150204.26 11,060,540.62 51,195,711.42 14,392,058.80 828,664891.41
(As rstated)

1AERNEE 2. Increase 4,500000.00 §,154399.00 AR - 51062 16,019,117.59
(12 (1) Puchase - 1030,18867 - 261062 10677929
(JEETEEL (2) Transferfrom CIP - 81242103 - 8142103
(REERRE (3) Trange fom nvestment 480000000 - 480000000

g\ properes
(hER (4) Others - - 103710797 - 103710797

RER)EE 3. Decrease 6753894 £39,630.28 2055874 - 315627 5,567,298.53
(EE (1) Disposal 287538 - 240258374 - 489009268
(5 (2) Others - 639,636.28 - 3156251 677.20085

LERRE 4, Book balance on 30 Jun 2025 A71,106,80045 40.986,768.64 200,764758.49 11,060540.62 51,195,711.42 14382106, 838,116,71547

= Eifd I Accumulated amortizaion

1EHE(EED) 1.Book balance on 31 Dec 2024 1i7.621,180.44 937354684 169,263,419.36 10921,72857 51,195,711.42 1402010347 4241560470

(As restated)

LRERNEE 2 Inerease 6,702,083 4433,25460 24117 - 833960 13,556,261.76
(THHR (1) Accruel 1686933 4 433,25460 241TUR 833060 1154026176
(REERNE (2 Tranfr fom et 20160000 - - . 20160000

£} piopers
(3 (3) Oters . . .

IRER)EE 3. Decrease §52,569.05 5119745 - - 1,230286.50
(&3 () iose IS - 5%
(5t (2 Othrs - 5TT60745 STT0745

157RE 4, Book balance on 30 Jun 2025 12367151432 320910399 171,695,163.89 10921,72357 51,195,711.42 fa0e4m 247016309
Z jBRE . Provison formparment
1EBE(TEL 1. Bookbalance on 31 Dec 2024 - - Wmn - 28565 118845037
(As restated)

LEERNISE 2 Increase T304 - - - T30
115 (1) Aorel B0 B0

VEERDEE 3, Decrease - - - - -
(&2 (1) Disposa

(835 4,Book balance on 30 Jun 2029 83024 - 90577372 - 282,685.65 1.071,761.61

B EARE IV Netcarrying amount

1-H75EEE 1. Carrying amount on 30 Jun 2025 363,61,96289 21,757,684.65 30,183,82088 138817.05 - 1097843 41140329390

2 BiRAER 2. Carrying amount on 31 Dec 2024 367775,168.25 25,098,461.08 3396101098 136,817.05 - 49,2699 415,060,747.34
(E50) (As estate)

S AHERESEEMEE AT Note: The other movements of intangible assets in
TG GHEE S E R PR
ARERLEESZRERF LI

R 27

the current period were due to the exclusion of
Sino-Germany from the consolidation scope and
exchange rate fluctuations. The restriction on
intangible assets is detailed in V.27.
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BB AR et (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A A 55 i 2 B S BR AR 3 G WA b > LN R THI7R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ A OF 05 e 1 0E H Rk R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

21. B E (%) 21. Intangible Assets (continued)
2)  AHE BB AR R A0 - (2) The Group has no land-use rights without a property right
il & JH B - certificate at the end of this period.
Q3)  HETE B 1y ot e )k ey D (3) Impairment testing of intangible assets
AEERHREUNERLEEE The Group conducted impairment testing on idle
TTREAR  REFHRERST intangible assets at the end of the period, and the

provision for impairment is as follows:

RREE REEka HESE HERA
Recoverable Impairment Reason for
EH ltems Carrying amount amount amount impairment
RIRERRERE Exclusive technology for trial production 905,773.72 - 905,773.72 Bk TEERER
EERM of cotton picking machines using cotton Biis
picking heads The technical level

cannot meet the
existing market

demand
RiRsE 5 Trial production of cotton picking machine 282,685.65 = 282,685.65 BkTEARER
head B

The technical level
cannot meet the
existing market

demand
BEIREZTHEZEY  The stadium at No. 24, Sanjiu Road, 739,144.22 S 739,144.22 #EMNERE HE
245 3%5% Sanjiang Street, Qijiang District HEX
Due to its remote
geographical
location,
leasing is quite
challenging
BEIE=TIHE=EE  Cooling water pool, No. 24, Sanjiu Road, 11,555.82 = 11,585.82 B
4R AKX Sanjiang Street, Qijiang District Abandoned
EIR=THE=ERE  Ar Pump Room, No. 24, Sanjiu Road, 32,602.20 S 3260220 235
URRRE Sanjiang Street, Qijiang District Already collapsed
Bt Total 1,971,761.61 - 1,971,761.61
2025 ¥k (227
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ST AR M (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A A 55 i 2 B S BR AR I Gk WA b > B RL AR JTI7%)  (All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ ORI 5 H a 3 S H H R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

22. PH#EEM 22. Development expenditure
AEEN LX)
Increase Decrease
A4F12R3B MERERE B BAERPEE  EAEHAE  225%6A%A
Internal Transfer into
development Transfer into current profit
28 Items 31 Dec 2024 expenditure Others  intangible assets and loss 30 Jun 2025

ERETRmERN Construction of Workshop loT Process

BEIRZGR System Based on Cloud Platform 5,001,525.86 - - = 322982775 1,771,698.11
i Total 5,001525.86 = = = 3209821.75 1,771,698.11
23. TR 23. Goodwill
D) HEEME (1) Original value of goodwill
20245125318 R KER D 2025%6730A
HRAEEM LR Name of the invested entity 31 Dec 2024 Increase Decrease 30 Jun 2025
PTGEZR A A PTG five entities 127,650,489.00 = = 127,650,489.00
<EHE CAFF brake 15,368,000.00 = = 15,368,000.00
BER Power Transformer 293,946.00 = = 293,946.00
&it Total 143,312,435.00 = = 143,312,435.00
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SAB R T AE (A7)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(A A 55 i 2 B S BR AR 3 G WA b > LN R THI7R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ 5 BF S R T ROH H RERE (A

23.

i 35 (%)

2) BT

(€

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

23. Goodwill (continued)

(2) Provision for impairment of goodwill

2024127318 AREE RERD 2025%6A30A
RREBM AR Name of the invested entity 31 Dec 2024 Increase Decrease 30 Jun 2025
PIGRZ A F] PTG five entities 67,595,818.17 17,851,500.00 - 85,447,318.17
B Transformer 293,946.00 - = 293,946.00
&5t Total 67,889,764.17 17,851,500.00 - 85,741,264.17

T B A A A G
Bt B

PIGAR AR BIE : BRFE K
BEIRE BEZHBMY  PTGER
R RPTGER - PTGRR A A
SEREIEHIR DI - RiEmlBAn
SERBHHEERNEMDEL o

(3) Information related to the asset group or combination of

asset groups where goodwill is located

PTG’s five companies include: Holloway, Miloway
Investments, Precision Components, PTG Advanced
Development, and PTG Germany. The five PTG
companies belong to the CNC machine tool division,
while CAFF brake and Transformer belong to other

divisions.

2025 FR
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SARS TR L (A7)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

(B BB R R M RE BRI GE A A0 > BRI RT3 7R)

T~ &R R ROE H sERE (A

23, Hi2(4)

(@) ATH I 2 B A R A E Ty

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

23. Goodwill (continued)

FETRERER SR - REEK
HHEEREEHEES (BERHE)
#) B TE B B B2 L AT e [l BT
L& IR A E e B ERREE
B HREZSEAAEHER - A%
BHEEO BN ARELRL -

BEAMEERASHATREIEE
RENEEEIENTFNEE -
ZRBREABERIERE (IMTRA
i) BERETHE  RARDR
BRAITEE -

RAKFRSRBARIENE
BH®

(4) The specific method for determining the recoverable

amount

When conducting a goodwill impairment test, the
Group compares the book value of the relevant
assets or asset group portfolio (including goodwill)
with its recoverable amount. If the recoverable
amount is lower than the book value, the relevant
difference is included in the current profit and loss.
The Group’s allocation of goodwill has not changed

at the end of this period.

The recoverable amount of cash-generating units
or groups of cash-generating units is determined
based on the five-year budget approved by the
management and calculated using cash flow
forecasting method. As for the cash flow over five
years, the below estimated growth rate is applied for

calculation.

Major assumptions for discounted cash flow method:

PTGERA A
HA Items PTG five entities
BrEHER Growth rate 0%
ERE Gross profit rate 40.93%-54.82%
IR K Discount rate 12.00%
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BB AR et (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A BB i e I G PR AR L s B A0 > 35 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ A OF 05 e 1 0E H Rk R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
23, TE (%) 23. Goodwill (continued)

@) A 2 AR R i Ty () (4) The specific method for determining the recoverable

REBRBERELERRETSER
BRI B 1 R R A EFIR - WK
R B S EANEEAR
AT RBEOT AR XA
B o FERI AL R L A ARRE A B
BEMEEMABSCHENHENR
AR T FHTEE T K R4.25%-
16.73%HEE  BEMERX /AR
EEBARFHEEENR SR
S PTERA E) INHEF 1L R E0%
EITTE RS TR A TR R — 5
THRASERNRATFHERE .

amount (continued)

The Group determines the growth rate and gross
profit margin based on historical experience and
market development forecasts, and adopts a pre-tax
interest rate that reflects specific risks of relevant
asset groups and asset group combinations as the
discount rate. The growth rate during the forecast
period is determined by the average five-year budget
growth rate of 4.25%-16.73% of the approved sales
revenue for the relevant asset groups and asset
group combinations. The stable period growth rate
is the weighted average growth rate of 0% used by
the Group to predict the cash flow after the five-year
budget, which is consistent with the forecast data in
industry reports and does not exceed the long-term

average growth rate of each product.

2025 FR
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ST AR M (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A A 55 i 2 B S BR AR I Gk WA b > B RL AR JTI7%)  (All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ ORI 5 H a 3 S H H R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

24. RUIEEN 24. Long-term deferred expenses

2024124318 REEM AEEE  AHEERES  2025F6A30A

Other
BH ltems 31 Dec 2024 Increase Amortization decreases 30 Jun 2025
R4 Mold 857,828.66 - 857,828.66 - -
REREIE Equipment decoration and
- renovation 12,535,070.38  15,103,336.65 2,310,606.76 - 25,327,800.27
RS Heating fee 2908472259 214974203 5,134,464.62 = =
2 Others 8,228,035.52 1,029,126.59 1,572,247.52 - 7,684,914.59
CH Total 24,605,657.15  18,282,205.27  9,875,147.56 - 33,012,714.86
W REEE Less: provision for
impairment-Mold - - - - -
EHER Net Carrying Amount 24.605657.15  18,282,205.27  9,875,147.56 - 33,012,714.86

232 INTERIM REPORT 2025
CHONGQING MACHINERY & ELECTRIC CO., LTD



S5 R MY o (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A A TS R 2 B sk R R L G A A0 - ¥ RA NIRRT H117R%) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ A OF 5 3 3 2 0H H R (80 V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

25.  ARAL P 49 B A R A0 AR 1 B A B £ AR 25. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
(1) REEHCH 19 AT o 1 B B o ~ B (I) Deferred income tax assets and liabilities without set-off
20256 H30H
30 Jun 2025
CIE: k-2 3 EEFBSHEE
(TG =8 (BfE)
Deductible
temporary Deferred
differences tax assets
(Deductible (Deferred tax
HH ltems tax losses) liabilities)
— EERSHEE l. Deferred tax assets 1,125,011,781.28 175,217,896.10
BEREER Provision for impairment 704,978,714.23 110,100,810.65
AEMEE Deductible tax loss 110,629,893.93 16,616,924.54
HEAE Lease liabilities 222,688,012.03 33,262,120.07
RIEW Deferred revenue 35,351,658.77 5,617,292.40
RN EHRBA Retirement and termination benefit 8,914,658.03 1,412,536.09
EIREA Accrued expenses 39,821,870.85 7,659,598.78
AREBEED Change in fair value 2,626,973.44 548,613.58
— EEFBHAE II. Deferred tax liabilities 587,162,278.35 108,988,192.49
Hipigm TERE Changes in fair value of other
DABEES equity instrument investments 129,479,914.00 32,376,761.74
EEHEE Appreciation of assets valuation 76,584,206.46 15,840,240.85
Bar— kMt One-time deduction of land use
FAERTERE right before tax 136,429,045.89 20,464,356.88
FRAT— X IEIBR#EE  One-off deduction of book value of
HEE@EE machinery and equipment
before tax 16,829,928.35 2,524,489.24
DR EEED Changes in fair value 16,977,440.28 2,696,545.07
EREEE Right of Use Assets 210,861,743.37 35,085,798.71
2025 ¥k (233
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ST AR M (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A A TS R 22 B sk R R L G A A0 - ¥ RA N RO H117R%) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ ORI 5 H a 3 S H H R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

25. I E P 45 B A A SE P 19 B B AR

25. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities (continued)

(%)
(1)  REEICHI BT 13 BB~ A (1) Deferred income tax assets and liabilities without set-off
(#) (continued)
2024%12A31H
31 Dec 2024
A 4 A EEFEHEE
(TENBR)ER (BE)
Deductible
temporary Deferred
differences tax assets
(Deductible (Deferred tax
HH Items tax losses) liabilities)

- EERSHEE

|. Deferred tax assets

(&) (As restated) 1,057,074,959.17 168,925,380.33
BEREER Provision for impairment 656,160,146.07 102,829,689.84
AEAEE Deductible tax loss 110,629,893.93 16,616,924.54
HEAME Lease liabilities 198,637,928.74 33,599,182.75
B E W = Deferred revenue 32,730,490.64 5,403,572.87
RIK R BHR AR A Retirement and termination benefit 10,915,278.01 1,912,891.09
EiREA Accrued expenses 45,374,248.34 8,169,073.22
N EEZH Changes in fair value 2,626,973.44 394,046.02
ZEEFRESHERs Il. Deferred tax liabilities

(&) (As restated) 554,944,750.50 103,800,349.28
Hib R T EH/E R Changes in fair value of other

REEZ equity instrument investments 116,199,559.00 29,049,889.75
BEHIEE Appreciation of assets valuation 74,656,807.04 15,474,034.95
AT — K43+ One-time deduction of land use

FHAEREEE right before tax 138,283,004.61 20,742,450.69
Al — K EIMBR#EE  One-off deduction of book value of

RIGREEE machinery and equipment

before tax 14,627,755.08 2,194,163.24

NAEEEE Changes in fair value 11,004,098.73 2,350,684.68
CREEE Right of Use Assets 200,173,526.04 33,989,125.97

(2) AR HE B AEHE T 13 B 1 WA

(2) Unrecognized deferred tax assets

202596 H30H 2024%12H31H
I8 H ltems 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
(& &)

(As restated)

ARMEETEER

Deductible temporary differences

1,233,388,713.97

1,123,670,693.52

AT A8 Deductible tax losses 1,844,975,036.81 1,723,690,784.69
&t Total 3,078,363,750.78 2,847,361,478.21

INTERIM REPORT 2025
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SRS T R ML (A2

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(A A TS R 2 B sk R R L G A A0 - ¥ RA NIRRT H117R%) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ 5 BF S R T ROH H RERE (A

25. B AE P 13 BB A AR %E Pt 79 Bt £ 1

(#1)

&)

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

25. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities (continued)

TR B AL T 17 B 1 ] G A0 (3) Deductible tax losses unrecognized in deferred tax assets
TEAFHLL A B2 will be expired in the following years

2025%6H30H 2024F12H31H
F1H Year 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
(g &)
(As restated)
20244 2024 = -
20254 2025 = 61,670,115.25
20264 2026 154,150,767.83 154,150,767.83
20274 2027 44,255,288.94 44,590,272.54
20284 2028 68,363,316.95 70,164,718.62
20294 2029 240,676,953.06 271,694,531.22
20304 2030 233,195,064.15 202,038,433.35
20314 2031 89,152,392.54 112,647,600.09
20324 2032 185,595,025.41 213,338,639.34
20334 2033 496,661,092.18 126,719,604.14
20344 2034 139,216,847.97 466,676,102.31
2035%F 2035 193,708,287.78 -
&5t Total 1,844,975,036.81 1,723,690,784.69

i PIGEEZEEEIEA & Note: The accumulated loss of PTG Group has no expiry

B T B PTG B HI R K e
RIBELEFEREEN RTEBA
R #355,297,215.237C (4] & 5+
B8 AR¥322,068,470.417T) °

date, so the above data does not include the
accumulated loss of PTG Group’s unrecognized
deferred income tax assets at the end this period
of RMB355,297,215.23 (the accumulated loss at the
beginning of the period was RMB322,068,470.41).
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ST AR MY A (AT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 1 H 202546130 H
CRIPBS R B RE RS R GE IS0 LA RWEIE51R)

T~ &R R ROE H sERE (A

From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

26. HAbIEWR B E B 26. Other non-current assets
202556 A30H
30 Jun 2025
IR &R EE WIEEE REEE
Book Impairment Carrying
BH Items balance provision amount
AR E R TER Prepaid equipment and
engineering 27,767,081.26 - 27,767,081.26
ERIBH KA Contract performance
costs 80,176,492.17 - 80,176,492.17
BEEE Debt housing 8,002,837.00 8,002,837.00 =
BEaREKE Contract assets formed
GREE by construction

BNEER

contracts
Prepaid lease payments

36,836,244.94
9,897,843.25

36,836,244.94

9,897,843.25

a5t Total 162,680,498.62 44,839,081.94 117,841,416.68
2024%F12H31H
31 Dec 2024
BRE AR B 2 REEE
Book Impairment Carrying
EH ltems balance provision amount
FERNEERIRER Prepaid equipment and
engineering 22,893,477.11 309,400.00 22,584,077.11
& REARA Contract performance
costs 76,994,418.26 - 76,994,418.26
BEFE Debt housing 8,002,837.00 8,002,837.00 =
BEEAREKEN Contract assets formed
cREE by construction
contracts 68,751,997.80 55,985,696.66 12,766,301.14
FEREER Prepaid lease payments 34,364,632.18 = 34,364,632.18
&5t Total 211,007,362.35 64,297,933.66 146,709,428.69

H BEARERNEREE FERA
SE BT ARIKH R FFRREPCHEE
B BIRHEEIMNERETRE
B - RETETIRA(E % 4536,836,244.94
T AREEHR0.007T ©

Note: The contract assets formed by the construction contract are
mainly formed by the EPC project carried out by the second
level subsidiary of the Group, the Water Turbine Company.
At the end of the period, impairment tests were conducted
on projects that have been suspended, and a cumulative
provision for impairment was made of RMB36,836,244.94. In

this period, a provision of RMB0.00was made.
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SRS T R ML (A2

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

27. Assets with restricted ownership or usage rights

REHE

Book balance

REEE

Carrying amount

2025%6A830H
30 Jun 2025
ZRER

Restricted situation

BURE

Cash and cash
equivalents

Notes receivable

616,955,004.04

67,441,885.63

616,955,004.04

67,441,885.63

BROFEALERRESR RTEERHERS K

ERERED

EE

As a guarantee amount for issuing acceptance bills
by banks, the central bank’s statutory reserve
requirement, guarantee deposit, letter of credit
deposit, pledge of fixed deposit certificates.

FRERRTRAALESR

Acceptance bills issued by banks pledging bills of

exchange

ltems

FES®E
Book balance

REEE
Carrying amount

2024F12HA31H
31 Dec 2024

RRER

Restricted situation

Cash and cash
equivalents

Notes receivable

642,156,043.25

33,289,624.49

642,156,043.25

33,289,624.49

BROFAALERRESR  RTEERHERS K

ERERED

EREE-

As a guarantee amount for issuing acceptance bills
by banks, the central bank’s statutory reserve
requirement, guarantee deposit, letter of credit
deposit, pledge of fixed deposit certificates.

FREARTRAALESR

Acceptance bills issued by banks pledging bills of

exchange

2025 3R |
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ST AR M (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A A 55 i 2 B S BR AR I Gk WA b > B RL AR JTI7%)  (All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ ORI 5 H a 3 S H H R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

28. MG 28. Short-term loans
a FHEH S (1) The category of short-term loans
20256 H30H 202412 H31H
&L R Category 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
(&)
(As restated)
IR ER Pledged loans 347,177,822.45 185,876,718.53
EHRE R Mortgage loans - =
ERER Unsecured loans 225,000,000.00 230,600,304.99
FEEHAIE Accrued interest 899,763.18 458,338.26
&ast Total 573,077,585.63 416,935,361.78
H AEBLEREROEREBERF Note: On June 30, 2025, the annual interest rate of the above
F R A2.11%-6.00% (B ¥ A : borrowings of the Group was 2.11%-6.00% (31 Dec
2.30%-5.91%) ° 2024: 2.30%-5.91%).
) ANHE B S A R 1 48 1Yt (2) At the end of this period, there is no overdue short-term
13k loan.
29. WM AT Kk B [ 2E AL 29. Due to customers, banks and other financial institutions
2025%6H30H 2024%12H31H
HR Category 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
T EFEHER Current deposit 605,589,209.93 408,088,941.32
ERBER (Z@MER) Time deposit (including notification
deposit) 500,330,000.00 405,330,000.00
FEETFE Accrued interest 3,195,772.17 2,750,324 .49
&ast Total 1,109,114,982.10 816,169,265.81
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31.

S5 R MY o (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A A 55 i 2 B S BR AR 3 G WA b > LN R THI7R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED

JE A 5 30. Notes payable

20256 H30H 2024F12H31H
FEEE ltems 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
RITEAER Bank acceptance bill 1,618,083,927.18  1,433,852,853.05
PEAHESR Commercial acceptance bill - 17,756,828.96
&st Total 1,618,083,927.18  1,451,609,682.01

i AEEBHAEE IR ENRE -

2 AEEHRENRENRESEIF N

A o
JEASF i sk

D) ERIEFI R

BEH

end of this period.

period is within one year.

31. Accounts payable

(1) The types of accounts payable

202546 H30H
[tems 30 Jun 2025

2024F12H31H
31 Dec 2024
€=319)

(As restated)

Note 1: The Group has no bills payable due and unpaid at the

Note 2: The age of notes payable of the Group at the end of this

AR UR RN
FErER
AR EN
FEf TR
Hit

a3t

Material payable
Freight payable
Equipment payable
Project payable
Others

Total

2,871,707,676.80
30,304,202.02
106,178,131.53
2,997,637.39
66,048,065.52

2,5639,426,958.80
38,915,746.07
96,064,410.09
4,656,207.53
50,150,338.17

3,077,235,713.26

2,729,113,660.66

2025 3R |
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ST AR M (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A A TS R 22 B sk R R L G A A0 - ¥ RA N RO H117R%) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ ORI 5 H a 3 S H H R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31. JEAHR (%) 31. Accounts payable (continued)
(2)  JEB 8 A 14F 1Y HE T JE o 0 5K (2) Important accounts payable with an age of over 1 year at

the end of this period:

2025%6H30F AKEEILEEMNER

BT Company name 30 Jun 2025 Unpaid and untransferred reasons
RBEERTRKEER  Inspur Smart City Technology Co., Ltd 26,699,445.07 EEIF - REAREG

NS Rolling payments, not yet due
MME%EHEBBKS  Hangzhou Turbine Power Group Co., 18,148,975.00 EHH - KEIMHE

ARAT Ltd.(HTC) Rolling payments, not yet due
RANEER(PE) WEIAM Electric Motors (China) Co., Ltd. 8,920,5675.22 RBINH + REINHE

BRARA Rolling payments, not yet due
EERMEZEZEFMR  Chongging Changli Wire & Cable Co., 7,903,981.72 KRB - REINRH

NS Ltd. Rolling payments, not yet due
BEEAMEEBESBR  Chongging Daherongi 7,864,278.50 EENFIF - REIHHG

/NG Electromechanical Co., Ltd. Rolling payments, not yet due
i) Total 69,537,255.51

Q3 JEFT IR IR B (3) The aging analysis of account payable based on its invoice
date:

2025%6H30H 2024%12H31H

BRER Aging 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
(&)

(As restated)

1F AR Within 1 year 2,341,513,005.45 2,269,111,108.17
15224 1-2 years 446,192,497.09 270,560,938.39
2E3F 2-3 years 148,559,146.15 57,918,042.10
3FELF More than 3 years 140,971,064.57 131,523,572.00
&5t Total 3,077,235,713.26 2,729,113,660.66
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32.

33.

S5 R MY o (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

R B BRI R BR A I G W40 > B AR THIR)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED

A IR 3K 32. Advance from Customers
20256 H30H 2024F12H31H
I8 H ltems 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
B U FE & Rent Received in Advance 60,218.64 -
&% Total 60,218.64 =
H At FE A 3% 33. Other payables
2025%6H30H 2024F12H31H
I8 H ltems 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
(&)
(As restated)
JE 15 R A Dividends payable 159,373,353.67 44,010,810.13
H A 3R Other payables 431,207,686.70 350,885,266.90
&5t Total 590,581,040.37 394,896,077.03
33.1 MEMTRF 33.1 Dividends payable
202546 H30H 2024F12H31H
5 H ltems 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
L5 AR AR A Common stock dividends 159,373,353.67 44.010,810.13
&5t Total 159,373,353.67 44,010,810.13

2025 FR

EERERNERAR
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ST AR M (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A A TS R 22 B sk R R L G A A0 - ¥ RA N RO H117R%) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ ORI 5 H a 3 S H H R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

33, HAhREAF K () 33. Other payables (continued)

332 HMMER 3 33.2 Other payables

242

(1) HAGREN IG5 (1) Classification of other payables by the nature
202546 H30H 202412 H31H
EH Nature of Payables 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024

FERTIRZRER Purchase of Engineering
equipment 72,994,465.80 44,202,405.35
JE 1< BA B N ) Payable to related parties 123,580,146.95 91,657,322.61
J& 15 1R .EE% Margin payable 52,386,264.73 49,187,905.57
EREREFS REME
EIH Risk funds and staff payable 26,936,904.83 28,823,039.36
JE A< A 3R Payable on behalf of others 11,691,316.51 12,458,604.74
ENBIEERR Staff housing fund payable 8,330,600.30 8,330,599.18
ENEREEE&BIEEE  Maintenance of housing and
equipment 3,595,385.83 2,695,295.75
JEMIAEE K& Project funds payable 1,807,986.14 2,595,719.09
eI iE & Transportation fee 13,934,969.64 17,860,893.12
SRERIEK Notes pledge collection 903,000.00 28,000.00
ER T B Audit fees payable 1,216,471.66 1,216,471.66
B ABRIRK Relocation staff social
security cost 15,985,861.60 14,972,469.41
Hitb Others 97,844,312.71 76,856,541.06
&% Total 431,207,686.70 350,885,266.90
Q) JRESE W IAF 1 B0 A M (2) Important other payables with an age of over one
i year
2025F6H30F AKEEFILEEMRR
Reason for unpaid or
BAETE Company name 30 Jun 2025  carried forward
EFMERREBEE  Chongaing Electronic & Machinery 44,903,641.60 K4&E
ERERRA Holding Group Asset Management Unsettled
Co., Ltd.
SEMEER(EE) A7 Chongging Machinery & Electronics 26,533,465.20 K&
Holding (Group) Co., Ltd. Unsettled
RHERENEE Mingin Guoneng Wind Power 14,455,000.00 K&
AREEAH Generation Co., Ltd. Unsettled
i%ﬂllﬁ%_%ﬂﬁ{ FEER  Shenzhen Gaoxin Investment 9,450,000.00 K#iE
BRR Guarantee Co., Ltd. Unsettled
it,?\ﬂ%%ﬁﬂ bbb Beijing Ant God Shengyuan Logistics 3,902,461.48 K#EE
BRR Co., Ltd. Unsettled
&t Total 99,244,568.28

(z«( )
(As restated)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

R B BRI R BR A I G W40 > B AR THIR)

T~ 5 BF S R T ROH H RERE (A

3. FHAM

1) FlRHAEFHE

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

34. Contract liabilities

(1) The situation of contract liabilities

202556 H30H 202412 A31H
I8 H ltems 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
AR EE Contract liabilities 624,043,926.74 605,086,641.54
&5t Total 624,043,926.74 605,086,641.54

ERAEEIERAKERELH
$HE A R AP WER A B - 3% TR
WHIRIRERR PR AT A RUER -
ZARERBABERREE
TRHBBEER - AEEER
ERABLFRREKNEREA

Note: Contract liabilities mainly represent advances received

by the Group from sales contracts with customers.

The advance payment is collected according to the

contract with the customer. The relevant revenue of

the contract will be recognized after the Group fulfills

BRED KR —FRBERA -

its performance obligations. The management of the

Group expects that most of the estimated liabilities

formed by the end of this period will be transferred to

income within one year.

2)  JEB B IAE 1y B H A I A 65 (2) Important contract liabilities with an age of over 1 year at
the end of this period:
2025%6A308 KEEILENRE
Unpaid and
BAATE Company name 30Jun 2025 untransferred reasons
FEENGEERMAER  Yulong Kashi Electromechanical 20,596,460.17 AZEZTE
AAIEERTEESE & Metal Structures Project Shipping incomplete
EEH Department, China Gezhouba
Group Co., Ltd.
SWBEMEWMAEREMTA  Ansteel Heavy Machinery Co., Ltd. 10,854,000.00 FKFEZTE
G Shipping incomplete
THEKEEZEEBR  Fuzhou Branch of Jiangxi Provincial 6,473,893.80 AHETE
NAEMA AT Water Investment Construction Shipping incomplete
Group Co., Ltd.
FHZEEREARAR  Tibet Huaxia Mining Co., Ltd. 6,172,566.38 KHETE
Shipping incomplete
AERERERTERE Chengde Tianbao Group Luanping 4,792,745.33 ALEZE
EBRAA Tietai Mining Co., Ltd. Shipping incomplete
&t Total 48,889,665.68

2025 FR
EEMERHERAR
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ST AR M (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A A TS R 22 B sk R R L G A A0 - ¥ RA N RO H117R%) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ ORI 5 H a 3 S H H R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. HFARFEE) 34. Contract liabilities (continued)
@) Gl A 1R I A 1A A 2 (3) The book value of the contract liabilities has not changed
HEAEG - significantly during the current period
35, AT IR TN 35. Employee benefits payables
(1) JEfT I L3 A4 4 (1) Classification of employee benefits payables
20245127318 REE A& D 2025564308
JEEB [tems 31 Dec 2024 Increase Decrease 30 Jun 2025
ySEEA)] Short-term employee benefits
payables 117,940,337.19 483,730,326.11 530,161,359.61 71,509,303.69
BERREN- Post-employment benefits -
RERFHE defined contribution plan 585,545.60 57,873,189.04 57,860,641.92 598,092.72
BERBMN Dismission welfare 6,013,599.61 -3,438,678.56 2,574,921.05 -
&it Total 124,539,482.40 538,164,836.59 590,596,922.58 72,107,396.41
Q) FHE (2) Short-term employee benefits
2004512A31R REEM KRS 202556530
EH Items 31 Dec 2024 Increase Decrease 30 Jun 2025
(BEit)
(As restated)

1% %% 2HMEE Salaries, bonuses, allowances

and subsidies 90,974,071.61 386,569,40.88 433,758,317.48 43,785,164.01
BIRME Staff welfare 8,353,147.71 16,032,305.51 15,026,429.78 9,359,023.44
reRRE Social insurance 3,473,308.56 35,413,119.77 35,173,563.32 3,712,865.01
i BERRE Including: Medical insurance 3,451,229.74 31,127,592.29 30,888,543.05 3,690,278.98
IERERE Employment Injury Insurance 22,078.82 4,285527.48 4,285,020.27 22,586.03
FELES Housing provident fund 200,524.84 26,258,644.66 26,104,771.66 354,397.84
TeEENET Trade union and educational
HELE funds 14,939,284.47 7,165,472.17 7,806,903.25 14,297,853.39
EthiEBEm Other short-term benefits = 12,291,374.12 12,291,374.12 -
&it Total 117,940,337.19 483,730,326.11 530,161,359.61 71,509,303.69
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(A BB i e I G PR AR L s B A0 > 35 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ 5 BF S R T ROH H RERE (A

35, MEAH W L0 ()

(€

RIE AT

AR BRI TE 2 BR8] 5L
MR - RIRFT S KK
B 12 R 2 BRT & A B AR TE A A%
FErEBFER KL EER
O REBTBAELE - S RNE
% o B HRNE LR AEH
Ba AR EERA o

REBERFERD B AEZHRR  F
& RERRBRFEBFERWT :

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

35. Employee benefits payables (continued)

(3) Defined contribution plan

The group participates in the social insurance
program established by government. Under the
program, the group will deposit the relevant expense
to the scheme in accordance with the relevant
provisions for the local government. In addition to the
above deposit fees, the group shall not undertake
any further payment obligation. The corresponding
expenditure is recorded into the current profit and

loss or the cost of related assets when it is incurred.

The group’s contributions to the endowment
insurance, annuity and unemployment insurance

plans, respectively, for the period are as follows:

2024512318 REEN RER D 2025%6A30R
EH ltems 31 Dec 2024 Increase Decrease 30 Jun 2025
EXEZRR Basic endowment insurance 561,871.33 49,521,888.24 49,515,901.74 567,857.83
RERRE Unemployment insurance 23,674.27 1,592,688.67 1,592,515.43 23,847.51
T¥EFLHE Corporate annuity contributions S 6,758,612.13 6,752,224.75 6,387.38
Bt Total 585,545.60 57,873,189.04 57,860,641.92 598,092.72

REBABEASHBNDTIRT
FTEISTF B A AR 57,873,189.04
7L (2024F1-6A : AR
53,509,019.267T) ° 7202556 430
B & E R A AR K598,092.72
JL (2024%F12A31H : AR®
585,545.607T) ) JE B 17 B F =
AL R EmMAZ NS - BH
FEATFERAENRERES M-

The Group shall pay a fee of RMB57,873,189.04
(January-June 2024: RMB53,509,019.26). As of
30 June 2025, the Group’s fees of RMB598,092.72
(December 31,2024: RMB585,545.60) were not paid
at the expiration of this reporting period, and the fees

have been paid after the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

20254F 1 H 1 H %#20254F6 30 H

(7 B 5 0 2 I R B AR 1 2k W 4

From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
A REITCIIR)

T~ &R R ROE H sERE (A

246

35.

36.

37.

R £k Wk 357 M (78)

3 RERZAH (H)

A E2024912 A31H K&202546
A30H IEMER - AEBEERE
ARG BB T AR Mtk (B E*
KRN T2 58 7 4t KA B F &
ZWRE) IEAEELURKIRE

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

35. Employee benefits payables (continued)

(3) Defined contribution plan (continued)

During the two periods ending on December 31,
2024 and June 30, 2025, the Group has no forfeited
contributions (the employee represented by the
Employer leaving the Plan) available to the Group to

reduce the existing contribution level.

KR FOKFE o

JEAZ BB 36. Taxes and levies payables

202566 H30H 2024%12A31H
BERE| ltems 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
EMEN Enterprise income tax 10,036,657.19 24,375,172.24
BER Value-added tax 87,712,727.67 76,353,257.30
T IR AR AT City maintenance and

construction tax 1,935,745.37 2,282,358.38

+ s A City land use tax 229,928.55 229,906.39
BER Real estate tax 456,747.32 455,959.94
(EVNGIESE Individual Income Tax 1,075,868.12 3,408,874.08
Hpth Others 3,338,262.45 3,671,394.23
&ast Total 104,785,936.67 110,776,922.56
—4F g 2 39 04 JE 7R B A 6 37. Non-current liabilities due within one year

20256 H30H 2024%12H31H
HH [tems 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024

—ERIHMHRHER
—FRIHMNHEHERE

—FRIHNEMRMAE

a3t

Long-term Loans due within

one year 924,410,000.00 703,306,750.00
Lease liabilities due within
one year 19,329,390.18 20,049,676.46

Other long-term liabilities

due within one year 545,786.92 233,953.63

Total 944,285,177.10 723,590,380.09
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38, HAbiRE) A

SRS T R ML (A2

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

38. Other current liabilities

20256 H30H 20245 12A31H

I8 H ltems 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024

(fEE )

(As restated)

FRESHIR R Pending VAT 81,690,015.68 49,959,782.98

a5t Total 81,690,015.68 49,959,782.98
39. RHIfE#® 39. Long-term loans

202546 A30H 2024412 A31H

& SR 7 ltems 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024

REBER Guaranteed loans 23,000,000.00 34,000,000.00

ERER Unsecured loans 597,500,000.00  1,046,600,000.00

VNG Total principal 620,500,000.00  1,080,600,000.00

o EEFLE Add: Accrued interest 371,316.66 659,202.78

a5t Total 620,871,316.66 1,081,259,202.78

ISR ASARIA THREE -

Above loans need be repaid in following period:

202556 A30H 2024%F12A31H
5 H ltems 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
—F AR Within 1 year 924,410,000.00 703,306,750.00
BEBBRABRBBE—F - 1 year after balance sheet date,
(ERN GRS but no more than 2 years 554,100,000.00  1,059,900,000.00
EEBBERBEBRBEME - 2 years after balance sheet date,
BrBBERTF but no more than 5 years 61,800,000.00 13,800,000.00
EEABERARBRBBRAT 5 years after balance sheet date 4,600,000.00 6,900,000.00

B REBER TR
—FREHNER

REERER

Less: Loans due within one year
under current liabilities

Net amount of long-term loans

924,410,000.00

703,306,750.00

620,500,000.00

1,080,600,000.00

2025 FR
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ST AR M (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A A 55 i 2 B S BR AR I Gk WA b > B RL AR JTI7%)  (All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ ORI 5 H a 3 S H H R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

39. REHifask () 39. Long-term loans (continued)

HlASEEBARPERONXRER A
1.20%-2.40% (Bi#1 51.20%54.35%) °

Note 1: The interest range of the group's long-term borrowing is
1.20% to 2.40% at the end of this period (from 1.20% to
4.35% at the beginning of the period).

2 0 AEBEERER - ERERE SR Note 2: For details of the Group’s mortgage and pledge loans at

248

FRH 27 the end of this period, please refer to note V.27.
40. MEAME 40. Lease liabilities

20256 H30H 202412 H31H
HE Items 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
B EREY) Buildings 165,762,077.90 172,484,356.81
i ] Mechanical equipment 21,840,093.53 13,479,706.39
B Site 7,888,030.93 4,538,362.12
&5 Total 195,490,202.36 190,502,425.32

FABEE BEHREEZAER A

THRR(EE -
—F R’

BEERBRAKBBE—F -

Above lease liabilities need to be
paid in following period:

Within 1 year

1 year after balance sheet date,

43,000,738.72

20,049,676.46

BABBEMRFE but no more than 2 years 21,316,824.61 1,377,921.14
EEBERBERBBMSE 2 years after balance sheet date,

BABBERSE but no more than 5 years 86,288,069.73 87,367,863.65
BEARKAERBARST 5 years after balance sheet date 87,885,308.02 101,756,640.53
65 Total 238,490,941.08 210,552,101.78

o RBREE TR —FR
A ESRERE

FRBEBEETHREERE

Less: Amounts shown under
current liabilities for lease
liabilities due within
one year

Lease liabilities shown under

non-current liabilities

43,000,738.72

195,490,202.36

20,049,676.46

190,502,425.32

41. RHEA % 41. Long-term payables
2025%6830H 202412 F31H
IEH ltems 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
HIFEMR Special payables 3,112,936.00 3,893,230.00
a5t Total 3,112,936.00 3,893,230.00

INTERIM REPORT 2025
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S5 R MY o (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
B4 Al 5k B AL > B AN RSB TS 7R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

41. RN (4]) 41. Long-term payables (continued)
41.1 FHIEWEN 41.1 Special payables
2024512A31R AREE RERD  2025%6A308  FRREA
EH ltems 31 Dec 2024 Increases Decreases 30Jun2025 Reason
BIRBEEF  National project funding 3,893,230.00 = 780,294.00 3,112,936.00 Rtk
Note
it Total 3,893,230.00 - 780,294.00 3,112,936.00
7 BREEEMEEMNMBEREZS Note: According to the Notice on Printing and Distributing
eEHH(ERDNEEEMRE Implementation Rules of Fund Subsidy for Indemnity
HHETFEEB AWM E A Rental Housing Projects issued by Chongging Housing
Alg@A) IR AEBEERE and Urban-Rural Development Commission, the Group
B B KA R%3,112,936.007T * #5 will allocate RMB3,112,936.00 for national projects
AREHREERETEERK at the end of the year, which will be used to support
BEER o the construction, operation and management of
indemnificatory rental housing.
42. 1= JIVE A Wk %7 P 42. Long-term employee benefits payables
(1) AW e % 5 (I) Classification of long-term employee benefits payables
202566 H30H 2024%F12H31H
BIRE| ltems 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
JEBEREIRA B NI E® Benefits payable to retirees and
BHAERA new through trains 5,559,526.87 5,789,000.00
BB —FEARAEZEE S Less: Amounts paid
within 1 year - 533,000.00
&5t Total 5,559,526.87 5,256,000.00
i BR—FAXAMEMRKAB

1@ FI A0 RE A @R fR FIFE AT T
DR o

Note: Retired employee benefits payable and dismissal
benefits payable within one year are listed in the

employee compensation payable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A A5 4R 2 B R R AR T G E WA - B DL N R TT I 7R

T~ &R R ROE H sERE (A

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED

43. HHEMAGE 43. Provisions
202546 H30H 2024%12A31H
IR ltems 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
RINEERE Off-balance sheet asset impairment 100,998.09 1,092,173.97
BEE K Compensation - 1,909,618.12
Accrued expenses of three
BIR=BPEH guarantees 65,972,498.77 70,978,402.58
a5t Total 66,073,496.86 73,980,194.67
44, B\ 44. Deferred revenue
(1) BN (1) Classification of deferred revenue
REEm PNy
Increase this period Decrease this period
024F12R318  WEIRFER Efogm  AHEESE it 2025468308
Government Amortization

R [tems 31Dec2024  grantreceived Other increases during this period Other decreases 30 Jun 2025

BRHE- Government subsidies-
&R Government Grant 140,389,070.74  10974,022.68 - 1535192092 2487472413  111,136,448.37

BT RE - Government subsidies-
BERD Relocation 40,906,980.77 - - 557714112 - 35329,839.65
TiEE SR Proceeds of land disposal ~ 5,710,114.59 = = 58,700.00 - 5,651,414.59
I Total 187,006,166.10  10,974,022.68 - 2098776204 2487472413  152,117,702.61

INTERIM REPORT 2025
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S5 R MY o (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A BB i e I G PR AR L s B A0 > 35 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ A OF 5 3 3 2 0H H R (80 V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. B\ s () 44. Deferred revenue (continued)
Q2 BHAHHEH (2) Government grants projects
AERAYA ABEGANA  EEEEE/
BE OMERESE SAREMA  ARGME MANAERSE  AE) BE  HleiE
Recorded in Amount offset
Newlyadded ~ non-operating  Recordedin  against costs Assetrelated
e Government subsidlies projects 31Dec 2024 subsidy amount income  otherincome  and expenses Other decreases  30Jun2025  eamings-related
BrRERRmEe Pant constcton subsidy 3308849272 - - T8 - - RM95RN  EEERE
Related to assets
i Innovaton Technalogy Award 334280148 - - s = - 307042 EEERE
Related to assets
O ) Subsicles for technological 309979395 = - 8425001 = - 255094  ENHEE
transformation projects Related to eamings
BRMERE Universal Relocation Compensaion ~ 40,038,147.97 = - 550761552 = - 34530545 EEERE
Related to assets
VELE Projectgrant funds 6373860154 924402268 - 79304306 - 19G4TA413  MATTAOT03  EEEAE
Related to assets
BEfERESLBE  Govemment Suppor Tesing Center 483000000 - = = - - 483000000 EEERE
Project Related to assets
BHEEER Smart Manufacturing Project 1130.28181 = - 514804 - - SR EEERE
Related to assets
KNEETEEN Hydropower demonstraion base 9374458 = - 70000 = - BTSN HEAERE
AR construction project Related to assets
EHFH#Y Other govemmen granis 2450681 173000000 - 47T 88361 - 500000000 145964320 EMEAE
Related to eamings
ait Total 18129605151 1097402268 - 2092906204 - 2487472413 146,466,266.02
2025 ¥k (251
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202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A A 55 i 2 B S BR AR I Gk WA b > B RL AR JTI7%)  (All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ ORI 5 H a 3 S H H R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

45. JBEAR 45. Share capital

THRBER(+-)

Changes in current period (+ or -)

N24E12R31A Kok 7R IR Kb I 205%6A308
Reserved funds
converted into
&R Items 31Dec 2024 Issue new shares  Share donation shares Others Subtotal 30 Jun 2025
ERERHERR-E Restricted shares- state-
BEABR owned legal person
shareholdings
£ EEHEERE Including: COMEHG 1,924,225,189.00 = = = = - 1,924,225,189.00
hEEE CITIC Company 195,962,467.00 = = = = - 195,962,467.00
NEER Yufu Company 232,132,514.00 = = = = - 232,132514.00
BEI%H CCEG 232,132,514.00 - - - - - 232,132,514.00
ERERERAA Total restricted shares 2584.452,684.00 = = = = - 2,584,452,684.00
ERERHERS  Non-restricted shares
£ EAEBHE  Including: Overseas listing
H shares 1,100,187 470.00 - - - - - 1,100,187,470.00
EREFERHAH Total non-restricted shares  1,100,187,470.00 - - - - - 1,100,187,470.00
RiasE Total 3,684,640, 154.00 = = = = - 3,64,640,154.00
46. HEARNTH 46. Capital Reserve
202412318 REEN KD 2025%6430A
Increase in Decrease in
EH ltems 31 Dec 2024 current period current period 30 Jun 2025
(EEi)
(As restated)

RHEERRAEEA  The capital reserve of the

original system is transferred -15,166,711.00 - - -15,166,711.00
HEEARE Others capital reserve 114,374,493.69 21,426,886.53 49,156,853.81 86,644,526.41
CH) Total 99,207,782.69 21,426,886.53 49,156,853.81 71,477,815.41
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T~ 5 BF S R T ROH H RERE (A

46.

BA N (4

w1

EEKRHEREERAKRE BT
MBEEAERB RIEBHMHRE
FFABARRE HEARTEE M
21,335,200.007T °

CRE(EESRESREREER LA

BEMBEINTE BRIMERX
mARY32,800.008 T MEAR
#48,703.03038 7T + ¥ M E A
15,903.03038 THEEKERH B R
RAEAT AR R (WVRKEBEE
BUKAEERREEETHEMEME
ERARIEAN(EESMESREE
BRAREETHRE) GIAEEER
20245F10A318) FiER MG EE A
825BIT RER RIXERERERS
25152447 c QEE R ERMN ER A
RN SEEN AR - AEFR2.515244
TCHE BAR TR R R R FT I A&
AN EEAMBTTE B R RSN
fit & 7815,903.03038 7t * & it & A &
32,800.00% 7T 1% %48,703.0303& 7T
¥ N & AN N $624,096.9697 8 It o H
2025F3A BRI 5 —FE & 2B
T RSB REE N E YK AR7951.51515
BT EINERRTE12,048.484858
T ° 20265F3 A K AT TR 5 —E I E 2
BITH B &L o RO AL AR R B &R
REMENHHE LA

202541 1 H 202546130 H
CRIPBS H R B RE RS GE A1 - LA RIESES1R)

From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

46. Capital Reserve (continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Chongging Pump Works Co., Ltd. received government
capital grants for R&D, resulting in an increase of

RMB21,335,200.00 in other capital surplus reserve.

Pursuant to the Capital Increase Agreement of Chongqing
Pigeon Brand Electric Wire & Cable Co., Ltd., the
registered capital of Pigeon Brand will be increased from
RMB328 million to RMB487.030303 million. The newly
added registered capital of RMB159.030303 million will
be subscribed by Chongging Machinery & Electronics
Co., Ltd. in the following manner: (1) The pricing of
this capital increase is based on the assessed value of
RMB825 million confirmed in the “Asset Appraisal Report
of Chongging Pigeon Brand Electric Wire & Cable Co.,
Ltd.” issued by Chongging Tianjian Assets Appraisal
& Real Estate Valuation Co., Ltd. (with the appraisal
benchmark date of October 31, 2024), and the final
price per share is determined as RMB2.515244. (2)
Chongaging Machinery & Electronics Co., Ltd. will make
the capital increase in cash, contributing RMB400 million
at the price of RMB2.515244 per share to subscribe for
the above-mentioned newly added registered capital
of Pigeon Brand. After the completion of this capital
increase, the registered capital of Pigeon Brand will
increase by RMB159.030303 million, from RMB328
million to RMB487.030303 million, with a simultaneous
increase in capital reserve of RMB240.969697 million.
Among them, the first installment of the capital increase
of RMB200 million was actually paid in March 2025,
which resulted in an increase in paid-in capital of
RMB79.5151515 million and an increase in capital reserve
of RMB120.4848485 million for Pigeon Brand; the second
installment of RMB200 million will be fully paid by the end
of March 2026. Dividend distribution will be implemented
in accordance with the proportion of paid-in capital

contributions of each shareholder of Pigeon Brand.
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202541 1 H 202546130 H
CRIPBS R B RE RS R GE IS0 LA RWEIE51R)

T~ &R R ROE H sERE (A

254

46. BEARLXT (4)

22 ()

ek

EERERMNERAF2025F3/58M
EERREREEARAREREE2
B - EEMRERT - BARIREER
AR KRR E IR BTG R
O ERZEETARIABER (3G
HH) RBFETENFEENEZM
M= BECESEARARE
B S B H At B AN A F513,535,653.81

JT °©

EERERNCBERARENEESS
20265 B -—RGHFEZERBBILR
BEREIER(EE) QRME  REE
EHRRK(EEAREEADNIREER
BEREELEEERBRAAZIEF
N AT EREETNTEE
3562128 T (REAEBEHERERE)
LSERFmET NN EEEHE TR
SEEEEREERARMBEEEH
BRI BRAF100%KE %X 5
MR2025F4 A B R E| & HBRPF
BRR—EH T RES G - ZAHSIHEE
MR R EEKE RN ARAD A
RHIA NG GTEE - 15120245 ) H th
& AN A%835,621,200.007T * J L 20254F
& 0F B & B E 0 & R 2 7835,621,200.00

JT ©

INTERIM REPORT 2025
CHONGQING MACHINERY & ELECTRIC CO., LTD

From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

46. Capital Reserve (continued)

Note 2: (continued)

Chongging Machinery & Electronics Co., Ltd. actually
injected RMB200,000,000 into Chongaing Pigeon Brand
Electric Wire & Cable Co., Ltd. on March 5, 2025. In
the consolidated financial statements, according to the
relevant provisions of the Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises, the difference between the newly
acquired long-term equity investment from the parent
company due to the capital increase and the share
of the subsidiary’s net assets that should be enjoyed,
calculated based on the newly increased shareholding
ratio and continuously measured from the acquisition
date (or combination date), resulted in a decrease of
RMB13,535,653.81 in the Group’s other capital surplus.

Note 3: The first interim meeting of the Sixth Board of Directors

of Chongging Machinery & Electronics Co., Ltd. in
2025 reviewed and approved the matter, which was
then reported to Chongqing Machinery & Electronics
Holding (Group) Co., Ltd. for approval. It was agreed
that Chongqging Machine Tool (Group) Co., Ltd. would
acquire 100% equity of Chongging Panlian Transmission
Technology Co., Ltd. held by Chongging Machinery
& Electronics Holding Group Asset Management
Co., Ltd. through a non-public agreement, with the
consideration determined based on the appraisal
value of RMB35,621,200 as stated in the appraisal
report issued by an intermediary institution entrusted
by Chongging Machinery & Electronics Holding Group
Asset Management Co., Ltd. (the final amount shall
be subject to the record-filed value of the Group). The
transaction was completed and delivered in April 2025.
In the consolidated financial statements, this constitutes
a business combination under common control. This
combination should be considered as having been
controlled by Chongqging Machinery & Electronics Co.,
Ltd. since its establishment and thus included in the
consolidated scope. As a result, other capital surplus as
of the beginning of 2024 increased by RMB35,621,200.00,
and other capital surplus for the current period
as of the combination date in 2025 decreased by
RMB35,621,200.00.
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202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A BB i e I G PR AR L s B A0 > 35 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ A OF 5 3 3 2 0H H R (80 V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

47. Other Comprehensive Income.

FHEEE
Amount of this period
WA
THRE  Ebiolss Gt
AUERRNR  HAREE BORE N MEHER REEEAELT DERE  02556R%R
Minus: Other
comprehensive
income is
included in the
previous period
Amount incured ~ and converted After tax Alter tax
before income into profit or attibution attribution
fax for the loss for the ~ Minus: Income fothe o minority
ER ltems 31Dec 2024 current period  current period faxexpense parentcompany  shareholders 30 Jun 2025
— WETHEABERRNER 1. Oher comprehensive income that
Faka cannot be reclassiied into proft o
loss in the future 87,782561.37  13,280,355.00 - 33008875 996026625 - 91,742,806
Incluing: Recalculation of changes
in net liabilties and net
assets of the set benefit
plan 74432 - - - - - 774432
EHERTAREDLE Changes infai value of oher equiy
& instrument investments 87,064617.05  13280,355.00 - 33008875 996026625 - 97,025,083.30
= WERENBEBRNENE 2 Other comprehensive income thatwil
e be reclassied info profit and loss in
the future 96930839 276783252 - 158308000 597796384  1627,061.32  -15,671,047.79
EERETARREE  Including: The share of oter
likpEN BE comprehensive income
EREMLtER YN under the equity method
AMZENRE that will be reclassified
into proft or loss after
the investee unit 616,639.00 - - - - - 616,639.00
SHEEENETAZMSE  Amountof financial assels
ahaneE reclassified to ofher
comprehensive income - -618,270.23 - -154.567.56 -463,702.67 - -463,702.67
EfERREALRER Fair value changes of other debt
nvesments - 65,740.9 - 16435.07 3451365 1479157 34,513.65
NEEERENEEE Foreign currency financial statements
translate the difference -12.804,132.12 -13,690,062.58 - - -1369005258 - 2649418470
REREENRITS The effective porton of the cash flow
hedge 249440047 11474750.00 - T4 8412176 161225975 10,635,686.93
EhgahEait Total other comprehensive income 7808047742 1051252248 - 4316875 302341 162705132 8207177983
2025 iR
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202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A A TS R 22 B sk R R L G A A0 - ¥ RA N RO H117R%) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ ORI 5 H a 3 S H H R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

48. BN 48. Surplus Reserves
20245128318 REEM RS 2025%6A30A
Increase Decrease
JEH ltems 31 Dec 2024 in this period in this period 30 Jun 2025
EERHBAR Statutory surplus reserves 515,265,278.90 37,044,984.91 = 552,310,263.81
At Total 515,265,278.90 37,044,984.91 = 552,310,263.81
49. B 49. Special Reserve
20245128318 KM KA 2025%6A30A
Increase Decrease
R ltems 31 Dec 2024 in this period in this period 30 Jun 2025
(BEi)
(As restated)
ZEEEEHGHE Work safety special reserve 5,635,596.35 8,664,520.43 6,812,717.70 7,487,399.08
HerEEe R&D reserve - 36,883,065.93 31,742,003 81 5,141,062.12
A3t Total 5,635,596.35 45 547 586.36 38,554,721.51 12,628,461.20
50. A4 ECAHHE 50. Undistributed profit
2025%F1-6 A 2024 E
HH ltems Jan-Jun 2025 2024
(/&)

(As restated)

2024F12A31A XA EAE  Undistributed profit as of 31

(FBEA) December 2024 (before adjustment)  3,719,023,999.29  3,396,460,951.56
N BHBREEABRLR Add: Accounting policy changes
Hx and adjustments - =
20251 B1H A2 EAE Undistributed profit as of 1 January
(FAZE#) 2025 (adjusted) 3,719,023,999.29  3,396,460,951.56
e AEBEREARNAESA  Add: Net profit attributable to
B % A owners of the parent
company for the period 415,972,007.93 431,837,743.23
B REVEEBBRAE Less: Withdrawal of statutory surplus
reserve 37,044,984.91 35,413,321.29
ROBISZBRENES Withdrawal of employee
incentive and welfare funds = 168,571.13
JFE 11 3 37 iR AR Dividends payable on common
stock 128,962,405.39 73,692,803.08

202556 A30H & 2 B Fl 78 Undistributed profit as of 30 June
2025 3,968,988,616.92 3,719,023,999.29

256 INTERIM REPORT 2025
CHONGQING MACHINERY & ELECTRIC CO., LTD



SAB R T AE (A7)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

T~ 5 BF S R T ROH H RERE (A

50.

A4 A (%)
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1R 15 7N & 202556 A 12H A 20244
ERREAFAE  REZLIELRSE
E2024F ERE B S R - BERIKE
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i SE 185 P A SR ol L 1 SR A B B0 R R\ PR
EREOELfEIBK - Z—REB%E
BIERFIEAERIE  ERAEETRN
HERER S - RAI EEMER RS EF
REBEHI5% - FRABEEHREE
& 5= B B PR A 7 — AR E bR B IR ER
HIEE 5] B1.5% (20244 : 15%) ° #iR
AEBRASEMEFRIEEEKEIER
SE B AR DR FHEA — R E R AE
# &5 B AR #49,333,995.677T (2024
F12831H £ 5 A/ AR #49,333,995.67
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202541 1 H 202546130 H
CRIPBS H R B RE RS GE A1 - LA RIESES1R)

From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

50. Undistributed profit (continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

According to the annual general meeting of the Group
for the year 2024 held on 12 June 2025, the meeting
considered and approved the Group’s profit distribution
plan for the year 2024, i.e., RMBO0.035 (inclusive of tax)
per share, which based on the 3,684,640,154 shares in
issue, resulted in a total amount of RMB128,962,405.39
required to be distributed as dividend. The Group has
paid the aforesaid dividends in July 2025 to each of the

shareholders.

According to the Measures for the Administration of
Reserves and Provisions of Financial Enterprises issued
by the Ministry of Finance (Finance [2012] No.20),
Chongqging Mechanical and Electrical Holding Group
Finance Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group, sets up a
general risk preparation on the basis of extracting the
asset impairment provision to make up for the unidentified
potential losses related to the risky assets. The general
risk provision, as a profit distribution treatment, is a
component part of the owner’s equity, and in principle
should not be less than 1.5% of the balance of the risky
assets at the end of the year. At the same time, the
measure stipulates that the proportion of the general
reserve balance of financial enterprises in the year-
end balance at the end of risky assets, which is difficult
to reach 1.5% at one time, can be in place by year, in
principle shall not exceed 5 years. The year-end balance
of general risk preparation withdrawal of Chongqging
Electromechanical Holding Group Finance Co., LTD.
is 1.5% (2024:1.5%). At the end of the period, the
undistributed profits of the Group included the subsidiary
Chongging Machinery & Electronics Holding (Group)
Co., Ltd. with general risk provision of RMB49,333,995.67
(Initial amount, RMB49,333,995.67).
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202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A A 55 i 2 B S BR AR I Gk WA b > B RL AR JTI7%)  (All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ &R R ROE H sERE (A

51 BEWA - BERAK

M) BEUAFEFELART

V.

NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

51. Operating Revenue & Operating Cost

(1) The situation of operating income and operating costs

2025%1-68 2024%1-6
Jan-Jun 2025 Jan-Jun 2024
(EEi)

(As restated)
KA KA WA KA
BE ltems Revenue Cost Revenue Cost
FEER Main business 4,554,612,700.67 3,807,338,010.95 4,173,852,614.55 3,508,315,483.57
Ll Other business 75,265,364.66 44,488,712.59 66,470,795.08 30,350,043.41
1L ON Interest income 28,180,430.93 6,397,112.04 25,563,828.14 2,804,691.84

FEERAEWA  Transaction fees and

commission income 18,045.32 101,920.42 3,702.59 73,441.71

|t Total

4,658,076,541.58 3,858,325,756.00 4,265,890,940.36 3,541,543,660.53

g MERAMFEERMSKRAY
KERMBARER S
FMFEE XA B FIRN B
R B AR ©
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Note: Interest income and fee and commission income are
derived from the business of the financial company;
Interest expense and handling fees and commission
expenses are derived from the costs associated with

the finance company.
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202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A BB i e I G PR AR L s B A0 > 35 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ A OF 05 e 1 0E H Rk R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

51. BEWA - BEMA () 51. Operating Revenue & Operating Cost (continued)
Q)  GHELERABEH (2) Income from contracts
BRERERER BREREEESR
High-end intelligent equipment business Clean energy equipment business
BERA BERA BEHRA BERNA
ARAE Classification of contract Revenue Cost Revenue Cost
REEHEDE Classified by region 880,896,050.15 723,510,023.50 3,738,135,999.77 3,124,359,295.26
-GN Including: Mainland of China 791,859,205.25 666,753,568.61 361493335588  3,008,105.992.13
Hipih e Others 89,036,844.90 56,756,454.89 123,202,643.89 116,253,303.13
RERER Types of contracts 880,896,050.15 723,510,023.50 3,738,135,999.77 3,124,359,295.26
Ed REHEAR  Including: Equipment sales
contract 402,574,286.82 307,852,778.01 2,477,715,469.42 2,038,607,967.51
REAR Service contract 214,892,531.77 192,230,706.62 66,496,892.11 55,812,654.77
MREERR Materials sales
contract 263,429,231.56 223,426,538.87 1,193,923,638.24 1,029,938,672.98
BUABABBAE Classified by time of revenue
recognition 880,896,050.15 723,510,023.50 3,738,135,999.77 3,124,359,295.26
E EE—(EKE  Including: Recognizes revenue
5% at a point in time 870,041,479.49 723,510,023.50 3,729,406,277.09 3,119,138,786.83
EE-BRA Provide during a
R certain period of
time 10,854,570.66 - 8,729,722.68 5,220,508.43
REEREDE Classified by sales channel 880,896,050.15 723,510,023.50 3,738,135,999.77 3,124,359,295.26
b EH Including: Direct sales 845,738,343.46 69471247845  3718594,151.24  3,109,691,522.24
(s Distribution 35,157,706.69 28,797,545.05 19,493,303.95 14,638,482.22
BRHE Internet sales - - 48544.58 29,290.80
2025 ¥R
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202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A B i e I G PR AR T s WA A0 > 38 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ ORI 5 H a 3 S H H R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

51, BEWA - BERAK (H) 51. Operating Revenue & Operating Cost (continued)
Q) G lELERA I () (2) Income from contracts (continued)
IRBER A3 Bif
Industrial service husiness Headquarters Total
EEUA EERA gEHA L 2EUA ESP
ARAE Classification of coniract Revenue Cost Revenue Cost Revenue Cost
REEHENE Classified by region 31,910,363.02 9,862,907.83 7,134,128.64 57352941  4,658,076,541.58  3,858,325,756.00
Ao B KR Including: Mainland of China 31910,363.02 9,882,907.83 7,134,128.64 57352041  4445837052.79  3,685,315,997.98
EfE Others - - - - 21223948879 173,009,758.02
hRREE Types of contracts 31,910,363.02 9,862,907.83 7,134,128.64 57352941  4,658,076,541.58  3,858,325,756.00
Ed - REHEAR  Including: Equipment sales
contract - - - - 20880,280756.24  2,346,460,745.52
REAR Service contract 31,910,363.02 9,882,907.83 7,134128.64 573,529.41 320,433,915.54 268,499,798.63
MHEEAR Materials sales
contract - - - - 145735286980  1,253,365,211.85
RUABREELE  Classified by time of revenue
recognition 31,910,363.02 9,862,907.83 7,134,128.64 57352941  4,658,076,541.58  3,858,325,756.00
A4 EE-BY  Including: Recognizes revenue at
gz apoint i time - - 3,312,785.22 57352941 460282054180  3,843.222,339.74
EE-RAR Recognizes revenue
et over time 31910,363.02 9,882,907.83 3,761,343.42 - 55,255,999.78 15,103,416.26
REERENE Classified by sales channel 31,910,363.02 9,862,907.83 7,134,128.64 57352941  4,658,076,541.58  3,858,325,756.00
Hi:B# Including: Direct sales 31910,363.02 9,882,907.83 7,134,128.64 57352941  4603376,986.36  3,814,860437.93
o Distribution - - - - 54,651,010.64 43436,027.27
BiHeE Internet sales - - - - 48,5448 29,2900
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202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(A BB i e I G PR AR L s B A0 > 35 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)
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V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Operating Revenue & Operating Cost (continued)

(3) Information related to performance obligations

The Group’s transactions involving performance
obligations are in the form of the sale of goods,
services and materials, and the Group has fulfilled its
contractual obligations to recognize revenue when
the customer acquires control of the relevant goods

or services.

During this reporting period, the Group determines
the performance obligations of the financial
company’s business and some machine tool business
contracts to be fulfilled within a certain period of
time in accordance with the standards. Revenue
is recognized based on the performance progress
of the project, that is, based on the performance
progress of the project, the Group recognizes the
actual contract costs incurred plus the contract gross

profit as project business contract revenue.

The Group’s sales of goods and equipment
performance time is 3-4 days to about 2 years, the
relevant performance terms are according to the
type of customer, first receive part of the feeding
payment, after the completion of the product, in
advance receipt of part of the payment after delivery.
Typically, control of the product has been transferred

after it has been delivered to the carrier.

2025 FR
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From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

51. Operating Revenue & Operating Cost (continued)

“)

(5)

(6)

(7)

Information about the transaction price allocated to the

remaining performance obligations

The amount of revenue corresponding to the Group’s
performance obligations that have been signed
but have not yet been performed or have not been
fulfilled in the current period is RMB4,883,258,482.22
(of which the amount of income corresponding to
the performance obligations that have been signed
but not yet fulfilled is RMB4,056,954,861.23, and the
corresponding income amount of the performance
obligations that have been signed but not yet
performed is RMB826,303,620.99). Among them,
RMB3,737,216,224.25 is expected to be recognized
as revenue in 2025; RMB1,146,042,257.97is

expected to be recognized as revenue in 2026.

Information related to variable consideration in the

contract

None.

Significant contract changes or significant transaction

price adjustments

None.

Revenue and costs from trial operation sales that belong

to daily activities

None.
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202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A BB i e I G PR AR L s B A0 > 35 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ A OF 5 3 3 2 0H H R (80 V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

52. Bi4 K Bm 52. Taxes and surcharges

2025%1-6 A 2024 1-6 A
BHE Items Jan-Jun 2025 Jan-Jun 2024
(&Ea)
(As restated)

T A R AR AR Urban maintenance and construction
. tax 5,077,724.24 4.675,511.29
HE B Education surcharge 3,820,562.00 3,738,153.45
BER Property tax 10,232,334.01 10,453,462.74
+ bR A Land use tax 6,488,888.03 7,010,530.90
ENERR Stamp duty 3,978,685.14 5,763,496.38
T Hb IR ER Land-value increment tax 403,874.12 1,535,098.91
EAh Others 242,649.75 248,394.15
a5 Total 30,244,717.29 33,424,647.82

53. HEEH 53. Selling and Distribution Expenses

2025%1-6 A 20245 1-6 A
HH ltems Jan-Jun 2025 Jan-Jun 2024
(&)
(As restated)
B3k T 57 B Employee Compensation 47,284,544.11 45,712,084.50
=ik & Travel expenses 8,642,924.74 13,046,830.14
HERGE Sales service fee 16,996,947.19 7,704,954.81
EEEEE Business entertainment expenses 10,324,113.65 7,957,291.04
BEEREEBE Advertising and publicity expenses 4,634,196.65 4,330,666.47
FENE ¢ Office expenses 1,198,950.71 1,891,639.93
WERRE Property insurance premium 4,378,574.94 3,851,787.85
L% e Labor costs 856,798.60 963,561.80
H Others 13,665,374.86 15,021,871.64
&ast Total 107,982,425.45 100,480,688.18

2025 ¥ [ 9
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202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A A 55 i 2 B S BR AR I Gk WA b > B RL AR JTI7%)  (All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ ORI 5 H a 3 S H H R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED

264

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

54. BHEN 54. Administrative expenses

2025%1-6 A 2024F1-6 A
BEYE| ltems Jan-Jun 2025 Jan-Jun 2024
(e E)
(As restated)
B T %7 B Employee compensation 164,165,098.31 186,621,675.25
mEE Depreciation expenses 35,661,356.30 33,314,076.61
BiseE Labor costs 15,372,735.88 10,972,746.69
BEE Repair costs 14,539,101.76 11,337,099.87
BB Consulting fees 11,765,142.67 7,795,136.97
—Fi R E A — Audit service fees 1,287,365.96 2,839,375.18
— %R E A — Tax service fees 127,332.37 334,214.03
—H R & — Other service fees 10,350,444.34 4,621,547.76
| A EE Amortization of intangible assets 5,605,197.08 7,514,190.27
¥BREE Business entertainment expenses 2,469,759.11 2,606,436.93
WAER Office expenses 10,663,797.29 12,688,571.95
HE"s Rental fees 4,305,431.02 2,471,245.44
R E Insurance expenses 850,206.17 844,247.27
MEETEE Property management fee 3,277,035.58 5,752,304.44
EwE Transportation expenses 1,519,740.65 2,105,271.64
EIRE Travel expenses 3,044,660.52 3,165,207.59
EHAh Other 32,221,989.37 35,097,651.83
&% Total 305,461,251.71 322,285,862.75

55. WrEEEH 55. Research and Development Expenses
2025%1-6 A 2024%F1-6 B
5 H ltems Jan-Jun 2025 Jan-Jun 2024
(&)
(As restated)
Mk & Material costs 115,355,194.79 78,097,668.12
A TLRA Labor cost 85,334,213.73 82,395,162.09
AEB Prototyping costs 8,011,612.67 7,957,588.84
heEs Depreciation expenses 6,286,899.28 5,485,650.88
A E Amortization of Intangible assets 3,213,458.05 6,965,741.44
PN = Office expenses 3,103,442.52 2,364,808.90
BB Consulting fees 1,044,978.72 731,363.73
HAt Others 17,501,534.49 14,397,464.00
&5t Total 239,851,334.25 198,395,448.00

INTERIM REPORT 2025
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A A 55 i 2 B S BR AR 3 G WA b > LN R THI7R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ A OF 5 3 3 2 0H H R (80 V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

56. WMEEMN 56. Financial Expenses
2025%1-6 B 2024%1-6 A
HH Items Jan-Jun 2025 Jan-Jun 2024
(&)
(As restated)
A EEA Interest expense 29,918,280.46 40,656,683.42
o FLEIRA Less: Interest income 6,990,940.29 8,634,304.92
o EREK Add: Exchange loss -931,844.76 519,656.18
mn: BEMBRT T Add: Bill discount expenses 2,369,971.88 9,175,377.55
mn:HEaEEH Add: Amortization of lease liabilities 367,864.04 230,362.75
pn Efb Add: Other expenses 4,305,979.92 3,633,997.39
&5t Total 29,039,311.25 45,581,772.37
57. Hibdkss 57. Other Income
2025%1-6 8 2024F1-6 A
5 H Items Jan-Jun 2025 Jan-Jun 2024
(&&Eam)
(As restated)
BT 7 B Government subsidies 40,196,633.51 75,251,498.65
BEEF T HE 0 MR R Value added tax deduction and
exemption 13,767,078.83 13,219,743.67
B = W= Debt restructuring gain -73,568.00 =
=i} Others 335,587.07 813,074.29
&5t Total 54,225,731.41 89,284,316.61
58. L&MW 58. Investment Income
2025%1-6 8 2024 1-6 A
HH Items Jan-Jun 2025 Jan-Jun 2024

REREZE B R ERE

Income from long-term equity

5B W e investments accounted for by the
equity method 389,133,395.15 285,368,786.74
BB PR AN A R B AR Income from long-term equity
& W investments accounted for by the
disposal of cost-method - -
v Rl E Gain on debt restructuring 7,579,089.36 -3,838,657.47
HtERTAREDA Dividends on investments in other
equity instruments - -
BREXSGHEESRMEEEEN Investment income arising from the
& W= disposal of trading financial assets 1,372,080.90 211,607.06
SaEr Total 398,084,565.41 281,741,736.33

2025 ¥ [ 9
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(R B R I R BR AR T GEWI 40 > B A R THIR)

T~ &R R ROE H sERE (A

59. A AfEME2BEE

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

59. Gain arising from the changes in fair value

2025 1-6 8 20244 1-6 A
EHH Items Jan-Jun 2025 Jan-Jun 2024
EEXEAREBEZHN Financial assets at fair value through
TREE profit or loss -4,498,257.68 5,997,041.06
&t Total -4,498,257.68 5,997,041.06
60. 5 HI Il 18 2% 60. Impairment loss of credit
2025%1-6 B 2024F1-6 A
HA Items Jan-Jun 2025 Jan-Jun 2024
=i EES S Deposit inter-bank payments 21,493.04 2,400,748.93
R EERER Bad debt provision for note
receivable -740,742.58 524,440.48
FEUBR S AR Bad debt provision for accounts
receivable -34,209,537.21 -12,464,615.44
FE U 5K TR Bh B R (B X Provision for impairment of accounts

H i R ik
BERERRBFERER
(B

a3t

receivable financing

Bad debt provision for other
receivables

Provision for bad debts in loans and
advances issued

Credit commitment

Total

1,368,351.87 278,469.80
-5,951,370.45 1,955,997.02
2,407,677.89 4,441,540.69
991,175.88 424,492 .91
-36,112,951.56 -2,438,925.61
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R B BRI R BR A I G W40 > B AR THIR)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ BB R S BOE H RERE (A

61. B R IRAEIE LR

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

61. Impairment losses of assets

2025%1-6 A 2024 1-6 A
BHE Items Jan-Jun 2025 Jan-Jun 2024
FEBEERE Impairment loss on inventory -19,988,742.71 -15,451,368.65
AREERBEEE Provision for bad debts of contract
assets -9,053,364.80 -13,681,553.35
EEEERBELER Provision for impairment of fixed
assets -7,746,289.48 -508.90
EBREAERBELEE Provision for impairment of intangible
assets -783,302.24 -
EETIRRELEE Impairment provision of projects
under construction -750,442.57 -0.04
B R B Provision for impairment of goodwill -17,851,500.00 =
HiIERBEERMEREM  Provision for impairment of other
non-current assets - 22,315,079.55
T8 - 1R FOR B 2 Impairment provision for prepaid
accounts 220,906.10 -487,896.36
&st Total -55,952,735.70 -7,306,247.75
62. & E WA 62. Gains on disposals of assets
FFARE
FEEMER
2025%1-6 A 20245 1-6 3 k]

Amount recorded
in extraordinary

EH ltems Jan-Jun 2025 Jan-Jun 2024 profit and loss
KE D BB FER Disposal income of non current
ERBEEREW assets not classified as held for
= sale 8,529,202.73 -59,400,276.22 8,529,202.73
Hep : IRRMBIEZ Including: Loss from environmental
(FBKIAT— ] relocation (Loss listed
5 R) with “-”) - -61,681,249.92 =
EFTEEREWZE Income from disposal of fixed
assets 4,736,013.93 2,463,320.83 4,736,013.93
B EEREWRZ  Income from disposal of intangible
assets 3,751,916.61 - 3,751,916.61
FREEEREWE Income from disposal of right of
use assets 41,272.19 -182,347.13 41,272.19
&t Total 8,529,202.73  -59,400,276.22 8,529,202.73
2025 ¥R (9
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

20254F 1 H 1 H %#20254F6 30 H

T~ &R R ROE H sERE (A

63. EBEIBA

HH

From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(B BB R R M RE BRI GE A A0 > BRI RT3 7R)

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

63. Non-operating income

ltems

2025%1-6 8

Jan-Jun 2025

2024%1-6 A

Jan-Jun 2024
(&)
(As restated)

TARE

LR M

jibatok
Amount recorded
in extraordinary
profit and loss

FRBA - BOER

Penalty income, penalty and

BEESE compensation, etc 1,577,494.77 1,109,153.49 1,5677,494.77
R NAIERR Unpaid payables 435142 1,107,706.78 4,351.42
B IT# B Government grants 5,000.00 = 5,000.00
Hith Others 2,936,590.69  7,041,534.05  2936,590.69
&t Total 4,523,436.88 9,258,394.32 4,523,436.88
64. BEIZH 64. Non-operating expenses
FHARER
FRFE
202551-6 4 2024%1-6 A B0kt
Amount recorded
in extraordinary
1EH Items Jan-Jun 2025 Jan-Jun 2024 profit and loss
SRR EZH Penalty and overdue surcharge 2,374,469.84 2,658,778.45 2,374,469.84
FREBEERIE Loss from damage and
WEEEX scrapping of non-current assets 211,580.93 108,293.38 211,580.93
N ) g Donation for public welfare 170,000.00 = 170,000.00
HAh Others 12,219.00 135,908.99 12,219.00
&5t Total 2,768,269.77 2,902,980.82 2,768,269.77
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202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A BB i e I G PR AR L s B A0 > 35 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

65. FifsBLEN 65. Income tax expense
1) Frftwi g (1) Income tax expense
2025%1-6 8 2024F1-6 A
HH ltems Jan-Jun 2025 Jan-Jun 2024
ERERABETEFTER Current income tax calculated
EHMEH according to tax law and
provision 28,937,046.65 43,5083,628.10
RIEFTIS T & A Deferred income tax -6,354,230.55 4,502,941.45
&5t Total 22,582,816.10 48,006,569.55
66. IHAbLRA AR 66. Other comprehensive income
HRAWEIR  47EMERA Wes] B Please refer to V. 47 Other comprehensive income for
R o details.
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202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A B i e I G PR AR T s WA A0 > 38 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ ORI 5 H a 3 S H H R () V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

67. HOFBlEW MR TR

67. Supplementary information to the consolidated cash flow

statement

1) HEmEFEWTEER

(1) Supplementary information to the cash flow statement

270

2025%1-6 8 2024%1-6 A
BH ltems Jan-Jun 2025 Jan-Jun 2024
(EEit)

(As restated)

1L RENERGAREEHRERE

1. Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from

operating activities

EHE Net profit 430,619,651.25  290,405,349.08
mn:EEREER Add: Provisions for asset impairment 55,952,735.70 7,306,247.75
m: ERREER Add: Impairment loss on credit 36,112,951.56 2,438,925.61
EEEENE /REMREMENE,/  Depreciation of PP&E\Depreciation of investment
TREEERE property\Depreciation of right-of-use assets 143,673,237.18  135,332,620.84
BREESH Amortization of intangible assets 11,540,261.76 29,882,200.40
REGEEREH Amortization of long-term deferred expenses 9,875,147.56 24,117,034.41
REETEE BVEEREMRY  Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment,
BEMBA Wi l-185) intangible assets and other long-term assets (gain
listed as *-") -8,529,202.73 59,400,276.22
BT AERERELR(WMaET-JET])  Losses on retirement of property, plant and equipment
(gain listed as “") 211,580.93 108,293.38
AREEZEER (RENU-EF])  Gains or losses on changes in fair value
(gain listed as “") 4,498,257.68 -5,997,041.06
HEER (A [-]E5)) Financing expenses (gain listed as *-") 30,286,144.50 40,639,893.82
REBX (W IA-1E7) Investment losses (gain listed as *-") -398,084,565.41  -281,741,736.33
BRFMEHEENR D (G- Decrease in deferred tax assets
$251)) (increase listed as “-") -6,118,131.55 -1,957,388.32
ERPMEHARMEM R LAT-] Increase in deferred tax liabilities
#5) (decrease listed as *-") -236,099.00 6,460,329.77
BT E R 3E 0 CRl D BAT- 13851 Increase in deferred revenue (decrease listed as ") -20,929,062.04 -1,507,887.89
HFERRD (EMAT-1185) Decrease in inventories (increase listed as *-") -304,009,498.08 41,900,853.49
/\H BERRD (EMAT-1E5) Decrease in contractual assets (increase listed as “-")  -127,855,706.32  -106,317,698.96
eV RRIIAR MR (B IBAT-] Decrease in operating receivables
tEﬁlJ) (increase listed as *') -955,382,534.78  -633,696,933.23
e EAIER MM (R IAT-] Increase in operating payables
$851) (decrease listed as *-') 562,753,957.86  146,423,123.54
BRAGEHNEM D IAT-1E5) Increase in Contractual liabilities
(decrease listed as “-") 18,957,285.20 -4,453,959.25
Hith Others - -
BEFHELINRESTELE Net cash flows from operating activities -516,663,588.73  -251,757,496.73

2 AHRBERXNEAREN

. Significant non-cash investing and financing

i VT activities:

EBEREAR Debt converted to capital - -

—FRHEHATEANAES Convertible corporate bonds due within one year - =

REBAETAE Leased fixed assets through financing - =
L. ESSENFREER . Changes in cash equivalents:

ReMBRHE Ending balance of cash 1,803,247,577.77  1,378,084,325.25

B RanRTRE
n: ReEENNHREE

Less: Beginning balance of cash
Add: Ending balance of cash equivalents

2,101,118,496.96

1,781,689,713.81

B ReSENNERNSRE Less: Beginning balance of cash equivalents - 400,000,000.00
BeRReSEMFENE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents -297,870,919.19  -803,605,388.56

INTERIM REPORT 2025
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

67. Supplementary information to the consolidated cash flow

statement (continued)

(2) Net cash paid for acquiring subsidiaries this year

o None.
AW B0 JE B 1 5 A1 B8 A (3) Net cash received from disposal of subsidiaries this year
;o None.
Bl & 1Bl FEY (4) Cash and cash equivalents
202566 H30H 20246 A30H
ER ltems 30 Jun 2025 30 Jun 2024
(gesEi)
(As restated)
Re Cash 1,803,247,577.77 1,378,084,325.25
HE:EFHEe Including: Cash in hand 64,700.90 176,352.38
A BE R AR /Y Bank deposits available for use
RITHF K on demand 1,736,964,322.30  1,372,351,012.10
ARER AR M EM  Other monetary funds available
BE¥%Ee for use on demand 66,218,554.57 5,556,960.77
ReEEY Cash equivalents - -
Eeh o B={AAAREEH Including: Financial assets for
BEARESRE resale due within
E three months - =
FREELMIBELZEEY  Ending balance of cash and
BREE cash equivalents 1,803,247,577.77  1,378,084,325.25
Eer o FRFIHFEB AT  Including: Restricted cash and
NG cash equivalent in
MRS MReE parent company or
=) subsidiaries of the
Company 3,112,936.00 4,207,050.00
2025 iR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A A5 4R 2 B R R AR T G E WA - B DL N R TT I 7R

T~ &R R ROE H sERE (A V.

67. G SWERATER (B)

(5)  FEHT T [E] 2 B 05 6 7 B < e B

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

statement (continued)

NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

67. Supplementary information to the consolidated cash flow

(5) Restricted but still classified as cash and cash equivalents

FEY AN
2025%6A30A 2024F6A30F REBRESRRESEVMMNESR
Reasons for belonging to
EH ltems 30 Jun 2025 30 Jun 2024 cash and cash equivalents
R E [ E R Funding for affordable rental 3,112,936.00 4,207,050.00 EBEZRAE#
housing Dedicated use
aF Total 3,112,936.00 4,207,050.00

(6) BT3B 8 R Bl F W9 10 B

(6) Monetary funds that do not belong to cash and cash

& equivalents
2025%6A30H 202456A30F TERAGRALZENNER
Reasons for belonging to
JER ltems 30 Jun 2025 30 Jun 2024 cash and cash equivalents
BT EZRES Bank acceptance guarantee 141,889,720.38 163,919,639.85 FAXR
deposit Restricted use
RKRE & Letter of guarantee margin 99,414,267.35 141984,112.92 HFAXR
Restricted use
ETEES Statutory reserve 114,437,777.04 124,175,179.87 FEZR
Restricted use
EHERER Fixed deposit pledge 221,326,414.26 165,826,9556.23  EAXMR
Restricted use
FANRE Litigation freeze - 44255072  ERAXR
Restricted use
HERES Futures margin 23,086,003.50 - FRARR
Restricted use
ERERES Letter of credit deposit 16,800,821.51 9,284,77484  FATRE
Restricted use
&t Total 616,955,004.04 605,633,213.43

i ERERESeEEEMERIE
wE®EEeT HME¥ESE
BEMBLARBETRERSS
IR °
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Note: The above-mentioned monetary funds are included

in Note V.1 Other monetary funds, which also include

funds such as excess deposit reserves of financial

companies.
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202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A BB i e I G PR AR L s B A0 > 35 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

T~ A OF 5 3 3 2 0H H R (80 V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

68. R MERR AR RIEH 68. Items in the Statement of Changes in Shareholders’
Equity
30 None.
69. MW HEIEHE 69. Foreign currency monetary items
2025%6 430H
30 Jun 2025
SVEERRER FHER ARBBRE
Foreign
currency Exchange CNY
HH ltems balance rate balance
EFEE Cash in hand - - 25,164.80
e GBP 2,560.00 9.83 25,164.80
RITER Cash at bank - - 136,050,938.56
ET uSD 114,810.51 7.16 821,882.51
ot HKD 87,560.00 0.91 79,850.34
BT EUR - - -
R GBP 13,748,647.58 9.83  135,149,205.71
ENRE Notes payable - = =
% BP CHF - - —
FE Wi BR 3R Accounts receivable - -  54,830,191.77
e usb 1,488,136.26 7.16 10,652,972.22
R GBP 4,494,122.03 9.83  44,177,219.55
BT EUR - - -
Hth ER Other receivables - -  15,151,325.08
okt HKD 4,705.46 0.91 4,291.14
Hg GBP 1,540,898.67 9.83 15,147,033.94
BHER Short-term loans - - 347,177,822.45
W GBP 35,318,191.50 9.83 347,177,822.45
Y usD = = =
IR Accounts payable - - 42,194,045.97
7T usD 43,380.57 7.16 310,544.16
T GBP 4,260,783.50 9.83 41,883,501.81
Hit AR Other payables - _ 3.417.172.44
e GBP 347,626.90 9.83 3,417,172.44
—FREBWHIERE Non-current liabilities due within
=i one year - - 88,470,000.00
g GBP 9,000,000.00 9.83 88,470,000.00
70. Hfh 70. Others
4 o None.
2025 ¥R (9
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

20254F 1 H 1 H %#20254F6 30 H

(R B R I R BR AR T GEWI 40 > B A R THIR)

N~ WEEE

From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

VI. R&D EXPENDITURE

2025%1-6 A 2024%F1-6 A

B H ltems Jan-Jun 2025 Jan-Jun 2024

(=)

(As restated)

BRCHEZ L () Expensed R&D expenditure (Note) 239,851,334.25 198,395,448.00

= Total 239,851,334.25 198,395,448.00
T ANEEFERLEBRAGRMER 55 Note: The R&D expenditure details of the Group are detailed in Note V,

558
t - &OrHiER Sk VII.CHANGES IN CONSOLIDATION SCOPE

1. AEEAHEIER—EHTOESH 1. No business combination not under common control in the

2. AEEAHRIEHTEEEH

@)

AR B8 2L 1 — P R 4 3 4

current period.

2. No business combination under common control in the

current period.

Business combinations under common control in the

1)

current period

274

RAE-24 AHEEENE  AHEEENZ
PEAUAREN  ToEANN SHER Al RH HeEER HBEER
kaknzR Bat Al fx# AR AFAMEEME  AMEMUA  SHEMENE  ARENRA  ARENEAR
Revenue of Net Profit of
Basis for the Acquired Party  the Acquired Party
Determining from the from the Revenue of Net Profit of
Proportion of a Business Basis for Beginning of Beginning of the Acquired the Acquired
Equity Obtained Combination Determining the Year to the Year to Party during Party during
Name of the acquired in the Business under Common Date of the Date of the Date of the Date of  the Comparable  the Comparable
party Combination Control Combination Combination Combination Combination Period Period
EREREGHK  100%
ARDA XBEE@A 2643  REERGE 25245260 1826923 402227193 302,264 51
Chongaqing Panlink Controlled by
Transmission Electromechanical Equity Transfer
Technology Co., Ltd Group Agreement
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

R B BRI R BR A I G W40 > B AR THIR)

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

£~ AR HE E AL () VI.LCHANGES IN CONSOLIDATION SCOPE
(CONTINUED)
2 HUFRA (2) Consolidation Cost
EREBRESHRIK
BRAR
Chonggiing Panlink
Transmission
BH ltems Technology Co., Ltd
Re \ Cash 35,621,200.00
Xl N Total Consolidation Cost 35,621,200.00
() H0FHBG OF 05 B - £ B R T (3) Carrying amount of the acquiree’s assets and liabilities at
ViR the acquisition date
EEEBREHRNEERAT
Chongqing Panlink Transmission
Technology Co., Ltd
A6tR EEFR
BH Items Acquisition date  The end of last year
BE Assets:
EEe Cash and cash equivalents 879,349.68 259,810.65
W E & Notes receivable 3,810,529.98 6,810,156.42
& U BR 5K Accounts receivable 34,610,325.64 26,675,769.11
H{h g U AR Other receivables 7,184.84 3,243.52
rE Inventories 18,900,359.29 20,633,408.11
EE&E PPE 2,168,138.86 1,757,715.75
FrIR Construction in progress 1,546,017.70 1,654,017.70
BEEE Intangible assets 37,562.57 37,562.57
BIEFTSRHEE Deferred tax assets 604,684.66 604,684.66
BEMAG Total assets 62,564,153.22 58,436,368.49
afE: Liabilities:
SEGIERA Short-term loan - 3,002,750.00
AN Account payable 22,166,516.06 19,165,306.95
B RIE Advance for customers 3,209,089.35 3,209,089.35
X B Taxes payable 84,033.27 -314,405.19
HERRK Other payables 3,668,129.58 418,672.13
BEAR Total liabilities 29,127,768.26 25,481,413.24
FERE Net assets 33,436,384.96 32,954,955.25
o DERR R Less: non-controlling interest - =
REHFEE Acquired net assets 33,436,384.96 32,954,955.25
3. AREEARHMEE TN EER 3. No absorption combination under common control in
R & of the current period
4. AREEBEXRBAEAMFERNE 6 E 4.  Changes in the Consolidated Scope of the Group for
k=) other reasons during this period
2025 ¥k (275
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202541 1 H 202546130 H
CRIPBS R B RE RS R GE IS0 LA RWEIE51R)

£ & OF A A (4)
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©)

& OF B & OF 0 8 ~ A0 i R 8
fH (%)
RIBFEEHHEREREFRA A (A
TR IR AR ]) 2025F4 A 108 ik
RE(2025FEE—IRNGH
% [ THFEALSE
BRI ZINNEBEFER=S 2 U LES
FORBBENA - HIKEAREEEH
FAMRK  ERF=FhBEHK(EE)
BEREECARME  BRENAAER
HNEEEERBEFTA= I ZULES
FRBB EEMK(EE)EREER
AEERHIERY  RAHEIBEAA
B ¥E 4 - 7R20255F4 A KT IS
NEMAEOEHE -

FVEF)

BE=—208H -

INTERIM REPORT 2025
CHONGQING MACHINERY & ELECTRIC CO., LTD

From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

VILCHANGES

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

IN CONSOLIDATION SCOPE

(CONTINUED)

3)

Carrying amount of the acquiree’s assets and liabilities at

the acquisition date (continued)

According to the Resolution of the First Shareholders’
Meeting in 2025 of Chongqging Sino-Germany Smart
Factory Solutions Co., Ltd.
‘Sino-Germany’) dated April 10, 2025:

(hereinafter referred to as
‘The following
matters shall require unanimous approval by all directors,
while other matters shall require approval by more than
two-thirds of the directors.” The board of directors of
Sino-Germany consists of five members, three of whom
are nominated by Chongging Machine Tool (Group) Co.,
Ltd. With the revised Articles of Association stipulating
that board resolutions now require approval by more
than two-thirds of the directors, Chongqging Machine Tool
(Group) Co., Ltd. can no longer control the board and
has consequently lost control over Sino-Germany. As a
result, Sino-Germany was excluded from the consolidated

financial statements at the end of April 2025.
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SAB R T AE (A7)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

VIII. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

AL 23 v v i A A 1. Interests in Subsidiaries
1) B FHELE Bk (1) Group structure
SR Ie)
Shareholding (%)
fr thE%E LEEAER TP Hftk FhtE ifex(En) E& B% 0853
Registered
Major business Place of capital
No.  Name of subsidiaries Business category  location registration  Nature of business (RMB'0000)  Direct Indirect Acquisition method
1 EE%EE’%%@%M%}E FRERAAGEAER) ERAME  ERMIE  BE HE WERERHM 2328000 10 - BE
RA7
Chongaing CAFF Automotive - Limited liability company Yubeldistict ~ Yubel district, ~ Manufacturing » sale and Invest
Braking & Steering System  (sole legal person) Chongging Chongging ~ R&D of vehicle parts and
Co, Ltd. compongnts
2 EREEEVEESRLA AREMLA(EARE) ERGRE  EROERE M BE BEIZEEL 16,161.04 10 - E-BHTHeER M
(MEREAFRE) EAEGE
Chongaing Machingry & ~ Limited liability company Nan'an district, Nan'an district,  Design, manufacture and sale Busingss combinations
Electronic Inteligent (wholly owned by Chongging~ Chongaing ~ of industrial rabolts, intelligent under common
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. alegal person) equipment, elc. control
(nvestment by a
foreign-nvested
enterprise)

20 BREASTHRARLW ARACAA(MNGE) BRERE ERERE  NISTEm 548124 - 8% F-BHTHbzal
Chongaing Mengxun Limited liability company  Nan'an district, ~ Nan'an district,  Processing Electronic Products Busingss combinations
Electronic Technology (Sino-foreign joint Chongging~~ Changaing under comman
Co, Ltd. venture) control

3 ERER(%E) BREAAR(:ABE) 2RERE  ERMRRE  ARNIER ERWE 28 5942413 100 - k3
ARALAT e
Changqing Machin Tools  Limited liabilty company Nnan distrct,  Nan'an district,  R&D, Manufacturing and Sales Invest
(Group) Co,, Ltd. (sole legal person) Chongging ~~ Chongaing ~ of Gear Processing Machine

Tools and Lathes
31 FERRRARREARLA EMARELAT  FEMME FEUME REERLEERE: FRER 500 - 5 #E
i)
Fu Baotian Cotton picking ~ Other limited liabilty ~ Tacheng district, Tacheng district, Mechanized picking Semvices Invest
services Co, Lid. companies Xinjiang for cotton; Cotion machinery
and spare parts sales,
mainfenance

32 BRIAWARAALT  ARAEDACIAEE) BRIZE ERIIE IR 550000 - 0 %8
Chongging Tool Factory ~ Limited Liabillty Jiangjin district,  Jiangjin distrct,  Cutting tool Invest
Co,, Ltd. Company (Wholly Chongging~ Chongajng

State-owned)

33 EREAREETENEE AREAALA(MIAE) EETERR EETRRE RUERORG 2E BE 400000 = 100 %4
RRERAA
Chongaing Holroyct Precision  Limited liabilty company  Nan'an district, — Nan'an district,  Precision screw design, Invest
Rotors Manufacturing Co,,  (Sino-foreign joint Chongging ~ Chongaing ~ manufacturing, marketing
Ltd. venture)

2025 ¥k (277
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202541 1 H 202546130 H
CRIPBS R B RE RS R GE IS0 LA RWEIE51R)

I\~ LRl RS RO RE R (AF)

From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

VIII. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

1. ErAwPRRER (4) 1. Interests in Subsidiaries (continued)
1) BFELEE K (4) (1) Group structure (continued)
R
Shareholding (%)
fh F0A4R LEEAER TEOE  af FHRE ifek(En) E# HE BEHH
Registered
Major business Place of capital
No. ~ Name of subsidiaries Business category location registration ~ Nature of business (RMB’0000)  Direct Indirect Acquisition method
4 (PTG) Limited BREFAR 8 £ 247 2000855 100 - FR-BHTHEH
Precision Technologies Iimited liabilty company  United Kingdom  United Kingdom  Shell company (3BP 20 millon Business combination
Group (PTG) Limited ot under common
control
41 Precision ComponenisLid.  EREEAH L S EASEERTTE 14 - 100 FE-E3THAK
(FzEsH)
limited fiabilty company  United Kingdom  United Kingdom  Screw and various complex GBP 1 Business combination
parts not under common
control
42 Minow Ivestments Lid. -~ BREFA7 8 G Ve 10855 - 100 FE-E8THAR
(REFRE)
limited liability company  United Kingdom ~ United Kingdom ~ Leasing of properties (BP 198 Business combination
not under common
control
43 PTGDeuschend GrbH ~ AREFAA £ (8 BREERRE 258E T - 100 FR-BHT Ak
(PTGEEE)
limited fiabilty company ~ Germany Germany Maching Tool Production and EUR 25,000 Business combination
Sales ot under common
control
44 PTG Investment Deve\opmen t BRERLT Bk i BRARIHES B0BET - 0 %&
Company Lid. (PTGE7S)
Iimited fiabilty company HongKong ~ HongKong ~ Trade in machinery and raw HKD 600,000 Invest
materials
45 Holroyd Precision Limted ~ AREAAT 48 i Bz 10085 - 10 #E-25THAK
(THPLI%E)
limited liabilty company  United Kingdom  United Kingdom  Manufacturing of machine tools (BP 100 Business combination
not under common
control
46 BERNSEAA(EE)  RREMLA #f G AXELHRH-ASPY 155 - 0 %%
ARAF(US HoldngE )
Precision Technologies limited fiabilty company  United Kingdom  United Kingdom First class SPV buil for GBP 1 Invest
Group (US) Limited American plant
(US Holding)
461 Precision Technologies AR EA AR 8 3 BRETHRN -SSP 10007 - 0 %
Group Inc (PTGEE)
limited liabilty company  The Unted ~ TheUnited ~ Second class SPV buit for USD 1,000 Invest
States States American plant
4611 BRFEBIGADA  ARERLF e 8 SEitaE 17 - 0 RE
([USHPR 2E)
Holroyd Precision Screw and  imited liability company  The United ~ The United ~ Manufacturing of screws USD 1 Invest
Rotors Company (US HPR) States States
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

VIII. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

1. fEFAuh e (4) 1. Interests in Subsidiaries (continued)
(1) BFELEBE N (4 (1) Group structure (continued)
fRuAI)
Shareholding (%)
fr 10948 PEEAEH Efigy  Afig Ehg ek (En) B# BE BEAH
Registered
Major business Place of capital
No.  Name of subsidiaries Business category location registration ~ Nature of business (RMB'0000)  Direct Indirect Acquisition method
5 ERKRBEEREELA RRAELTGEAEE) ERMIRE ERMIRE R AE PEKRR R 14,709.71 100 - R&
SREHRE
Chongaing Water Turbing  Limited liabilty company  Jiangjin district, - Jiangjin district, - Design, Development and Invest
Works Co., Ltd. (sole legal person) Chongging ~~ Chongaing ~~ Manufacture of Turbines,
Governors and Auxiliary
Devices

6 EREMESEEARAR ARRELA ERTANE ERTANE SREHEEHE BIB03 84 - 3
Chongaing Pigeon Brand  Limited liabilty company  Yubei district, ~ Yubei district,  Manufacture electric wires and Invest
Electric Wire & Cable Co., Chongging~~ Chongqing ~~ cables
Ltd.

61 ERRRELARLY  AREAAA(ZABE) EETREE ERTREE REASHE 530000 - M RE
Chongqing Pigeon Electric ~ Limited liabiity company Changshou ~ Changshou  Manufacture electrical porcelain Invest
Porcelain Co., Ltd. (sole legal person) district, district,

Chongging~ Chongaing

T ERERIZ(RE) RREEAR(EAEE) ERERRE  ERMRR  AEEMAHS 5150901 100 - R&
ARALAT
Chongaing General Industry  Limited liability company Nan'an distrct,  Nan‘an district, ~ Production of fan coolers, ete. Invest
(Group) Co,, Lid. (sole legal person) Chongging ~ Chongging

11 BRIEEBAEE RREAAR(AEE) EETHRE EEMRE  BHER RREGNERER 250000 - 100 %%
ARALAT e
Changging Shunchang Limited liabiity company - Nan'an district, ~ Nan'an district, ~ Network products, Invest
General Electrical (sole legal person) Chongging ~~ Chongaing ~~ environmental products and
Equipment Co., Ltd. gas products sales

8 BRARMHELLT E%@%ﬁﬁﬁ@i ERTERE ERTHRR ENRERERR 0508 % - FR-EHTHak

(3 £7m)
Chongaing Chengfei New  Other corporations Nan‘an district,  Nan'an district,  Manufacturing of wind-power Business Combination
Material Co,, Ltd (unlisted) Chongging ~~ Chongajing ~~ equipment ot under Common
Control
81 HBERNRMMHERLT ARREAA(KEMA WEEHET HELHET BSEERAEN 500000 - 100 %%
REABROEAEE)
Gansu Chongtong Chengfei  Limited Liability Weiwy City, ~ Weiwu Clty,  Manufacturing of wind-power Invest
New Material Co,, Ltd. Company (Whally- Gansu Gansu equipment
owned legal person ~ province province
invested or controlled
by a non-nafural
person)

82 ERFARERAIE  RREMDACEERA IHENREE IRANREE EHRERERN 10,000.00 - 0 #4
AR REIBROEAGE) RER FEE
Chongtong Chengfei Wind  Limited Liabilty Rudong district, Rudong district, Manufacturing of wind-power Invest
Power Equipment Jiangsu~ Company (Whlly- Jiangsu Jiangsu equipment
Co,, Ltd. owned legal person

invested or controlled
by anon-natural
person)
2025 H#k (279
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202541 1 H 202546130 H
CRIPBS R B RE RS R GE IS0 LA RWEIE51R)

I\~ LRl RS RO RE R (AF)

From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

VIII. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

1. ErAwPRRER (4) 1. Interests in Subsidiaries (continued)
Q) EFEEER R (4) (1) Group structure (continued)
R
Shareholding (%)
fr FhELR LEEAER TEOE  af FHRE ifek(En) E# HE BEHH
Registered
Major business Place of capital
No. ~ Name of subsidiaries Business category location registration ~ Nature of business (RMB’0000)  Direct Indirect Acquisition method
83 HEGRAMIMERLE  ARARLACKEAA FEAZDRE FEEDRA TREAASHRER 500000 - 0 %&
REARRIEARE) NEET  RMERT
Xinjiang Chengfei New Limited Liability Changji Changji Electrical machinery and Invest
Material Co,, Ltd Company (Whlly- Kinjiang Xinjiang equipment manufacturing
owned legal person industry
invested or controlled
by a non-natural
person)
84 EHARFMHARDR  RRERLAGEAAN FRADNAA SHEREMA EN AnEENLEZ 10815.00 - 00 %
REABROEARE) il
Jilin Chengfel New Materials — Limited Liabilty Daan Clty, DaanCity, ~ Electriciy, heat production and Invest
Co, Ltd Company (Wholy- Baicheng City,  Baicheng City,  supply industry
owned legal person ~ Jiin Province  Jilin Province
invested or controlled
by anon-natural
person)
9 BRARWERRELA  ARERAG(ENEE) ERTMNSE ERTDIEE Iﬁ?g@%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ@%ﬁﬂ@%& 19641.15 100 - K&
Chongging Pump Industry ~ Limited liability company Shapingba ~ Shapingba ~ Design and Manufacture of Invest
Co,, Ltd. (sole legal person) district, district, Industrial Pumps and Parts
Chongging ~ Chongging ~~ and Pressure Vessels
0 EERREGHEAREL ABREALT EFTARE ERTERE REREEGARTIM 1872139 100 - RE
Al
Chongging Ges Compressor - Limited liabilty company  Shapingba ~~ Shapingba ~~ Manufacturing of Gas Invest
Factory Co,, Lid. distict, district, Compressors and
Chongging ~ Chongging ~ Companents
11 ERIfBMEFRL  AREADA(EARE) ERLUNE ERIONE  AERERATEER 3,000.00 100 - E-BHTHRERH
AR (MERELZRE)
Changging Indusrial Limited ligbilty company Northernew  Northernnew  Consultation on Research and Business combinations
Enabling Innovation Center ~ (wholly owned by district, district, Development of Mechanical Under common
Co, Ltd. a legal person) Chongging ~ Chongaing ~ and Electrical Equipment control
(investment by a Technology
foreign-invested
enterprise)
1 i?ﬁﬁﬁx%@ﬁﬁ% RRERAA ERIPRE ERMANR  ANEENREMBOEARE 10000000 70 - BE
RA7
Chongaing Machinery & ~ Limited liabilty company Northemnew  Norther new  Providing financial and Invest
Electric Holding Group distict, district, financing services to member
Finance Co,, Ltd. Chonggng ~ Chongging~~ units
13 HEPEMMAREARLT ARAMLA(EARR) MERNRHME FEWRELE T RARREGMHNT 300000 5 -
Xinjiang Zhongxinhong Limited Liabilty Aksu Prefecture, Aksu Prefecture, Processing of Pefroleum, Invest
Enerqy Service Co, Ltd. ~ Company (State- Kinjlang Xinjiang Natural Gas and Other Fuels
controlled)
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202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

VIII. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

1. fEFAuh e (4) 1. Interests in Subsidiaries (continued)
2 EEMFEZETFAH (2) Significant partly-owned subsidiaries
HYERRH 8008 KEEROE  HpRR2DR  AHROERR  HRRBELH
HRbAICe) RRés RRbEs ROHRREE ARBH RRE
Change in
Shareholding Profit orloss  defined income Dividends 30 Jun
of minority 31 Dec 2024 of attributable  plan belongs to distributed 20250f non-
shareholders  non-controlling to minority  non-controlling to minority controlling
FL7ER Name of subsidiary (%) interest shareholders interest shareholders interest
EEEHERSERRAT Chongaing Pigeon Brand
Electric Wire & Cable Co.,
Ltd. 1653 10084394031 5,748.491.72 15,364,688.56 37419244 121582,928.15
ERARHAMBRAAE  Chongging Chengfei New
Material Co., Ltd 158 5,809,909.95 309,114.36 9,52069 6,128,545.00
BERELR(SE)8E  Chongaing Machinery & Electric
BRAH Holding Group Finance Co.,
Ltd. 0 790311177 5,306,675.84 1479157 353,224579.18
Q3) HEEIFZE L alng LY BB (3) Key financial information of significant partly-owned
subsidiaries
25567308
30 Jun 2025
k4] FhBEE EEAH ik 1L FRBEE | Chy
FhA%E Name of subsidiaries Current assets ~ Non-current assets Total assets  Current liabilities Non-current liabilities  Total liabilities
EFEREREEARLF Chongging Pigeon Brand Electric
Wire & Cable Co,, Lid. 1,648,010,546.49 2295748682 10860968,033.31  1,110,663,145.17 147598221 1,12543,127.38
ERARMIERAAT  Chongging Chenglei New
Materials Co,, Lid. 2,683,235,842.55 940630,196.17  3,623,866,038.72  2,150,436,925.98 50794077148 2,667,377,697.16
EFHENR(ZE)  Chongging Machinery &
HHERAR Flectrc Holding Group
Finance Co, Ltd. 3,175,121,131.41 648,981,356.12 382410248753  2,640,825,895.82 582024160 2,646,646,137.42
AUE12R3A
31 Dec 2024
WHEE HRBAE BEaif AR P El-Gh)
FRAAR Neme of subsidiaries Current assets — Non-current assets Total assets ~ Current liabllties  Non-current liabiiies Total liabilies
EFEREREEARAT Chongging Pigeon Brand Flectric
Wire & Cable Co,, Lid. 1430,343,865.89 2250643046 1,632,940,296.35 91082057254 81062737 114191684991
EERRAMERAAT  Chongaing Chengei New
Materials Co,, Lid. 2,153416,450.76 95257937994 310500583070 1,644820,056.02 52430050718 2,169,210562.20
ERHELR(ZE)  Chongging Machinery &
HERRLT Electic Holding Group
Finance Co, Ltd. 3,380,874,006.53 54905085631 392992486284  2758,122,618.94 1208411849 2770,206,737.43
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I\~ 7 I 3 b HE £ (A VIIL. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (CONTINUED)
1. ErAwPRRER (4) 1. Interests in Subsidiaries (continued)
Q) BEEIFZE L Alng LY B8 (3) Key financial information of significant partly-owned
(#) subsidiaries (continued)
0255168
Jan-Jun 2025
EEUON #HR RAVEEE feEBnene
Total comprehensive Cash flows from
FR74H Name of subsiciaries Operating revenue Net profit income operating actvities

ERSRELEEARAT Chongaing Pigeon Brand Electic Wire

& Cable Co, Ltd. 1,160,033,124.91 34,776,114.43 44,529,651.93 -238,614,108.50
ERARMITRRA AT Chongaing Chengfei New Materals
Co, Ltd. 1,295,888,555.51 19,564,200.23 19,100,497.57 +25,768,989.11
ERREER(SE)BHERRT  Chongging Machinery & Electric
Holding Group Finance Co., Ltd. 41,444.326.11 17,688,919.48 17,138,224.70 -341,670,520.05
NUE16A
Jan-Jun 204
EEMA R Felags mEEIRLRE
Total comprehensive Cash flows from
AR Name of subsidiaries Qperating revenue Net profit income operating activies

ERSEELEEARAT Chongging Pigeon Brand Electic Wire

& Cable Co, Lid. 1000,113,127.40 321171183 34,524,069.33 -25,908,272.38
ERARMIERAAE Chongging Chengfei New Materals

Co, Ltd. 1,119,144 97361 1055843297 1955843297 70241683
EFWEAR(2B)ERERRT  Chongging Machinery & Flectric

Holding Group Finance Co., Ltd. 44400,161.14 24,508,564.46 24,588,564.46 -323,581,773.56

() A ZE B f 1 ] A 5 5 B A (4) The Group has no significant restrictions on the use of
A S B (5 1 FE A R o corporate group assets and settlement of corporate group
debts.
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BB AR et (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A A 55 i 2 B S BR AR 3 G WA b > LN R THI7R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

N~ 7R FC 32 58 b i RE £ (4 VIIL. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (CONTINUED)
1. EFAFEPRRRELR (8) 1. Interests in Subsidiaries (continued)

(5)  ALEBE AN G OF R 5 (5) The Group has no financial or other support to structured
W45 HEAL 3 HE T2 01 1 35 5% # 2 HE entities included in the scope of consolidated financial
fib 3 1 © statements.

6) BN G OF 1 5 # 76 T [ g (6) The Group has no structured entities included in the
AL E R - scope of consolidated financial statements.

(7)  AZE LB 4 v] A AT IR AR (7) The Group and its subsidiaries have not issued equity or
EH &% - debt securities.

2. TEFA VMR H R B AR s L 2. The situation in which the owner’s equity share of a

HLAP ¥ 2 W) i 4 D subsidiary company changes and the subsidiary company

is still under control

F:: 30 None.
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ST AR MY A (AT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A B i e I G PR AR T s WA A0 > 38 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

I\~ 7 Al S 8 v i R 2 (A) VIII. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (CONTINUED)
3. LEEBEARLBEAE PR 3. Interests in Joint Ventures or Associates
(1) FEEPEGERELIELFE (1) Significant joint ventures or associates
Y

Proportion of HampEgpa
shareholding (%) PEREREHE

REbRIBELELE LEEAER TEREY  Hfie 3 B& BE Bt
Business Principal place  Place of Nature of Accounting
Name of associates or joint venture category of business ~ registration  business Directly  Indirectly method
Ael%-
Joint venfures-
EERRNEIRERAT ERERQA(RACE) EETYTEE EEMYT  GERANBEAAENEDRER 5000 - B
B $ETR
Chongging Cumming Engine Co., Ltd. ~ Limited liabiity company Shapingba ~ Shapingba  Largest professional manufacturer of Equity method
(Sino-foreign joint District, Distrct, heavy-cuty and high-horse power
venture) Chongging~~ Chongajng ~~engines in China
Bets-
Associates-
ERRUKRRERARAA(RL 2R AREFAR(WHAE) ERTNERE EEOAER %ﬂ”‘ﬂ%ﬁ 8 BEERARZE 3780 - Bai
ABBEEERRAT) £5 B¥z & RREXREZER NERGR
Chongaing Hitachi Energy Transformer Co., Limited liabilty company - Huayan, Huayan, Power 1 ansf ormer, reactor, HVDC Equity method
Ltd. (formerly known as Chongajng ABB ~ (Sino-foreign joint Jiulongpo Julongpo  converter transfo me‘UHVAC
Transformer Co,, Lid.) venture) District, District, {ransformer, sets of insulator
Chongging~~ Chongaing
ERTIHRARRAAAT RRERAT igﬁ}litlﬁﬁ igg}liuﬁ RUAERAREZRNSERE 400 - &%
Chongaing jiangbei machinery Co, Ltd.  Limited liabilty company Yufu, Jiangbei  Yufu, Jiangbei - Manufacturing and sale of large Equity method
(‘Chongqing Jiangbel Machinery’) District, District, separation machingry and its systems
Chongging~~ Changaing
ERF(2R)EDZARRDA RREEAR(MIGE) ERMRR  ERMRRE  LENEERS BAER M - R
Exedy (Chongqing) Drive System Co., Ltd.  Limited fibility company - Nanan District,  Nanan District, manufacturing and sale of clutch and Equity method
(Sino-foreign joint Chongging~~ Chongaing ~ clutch pump
venture)
BRIEHANEERERAT BRALAR ERMALE ERTRIE R PR BEADAREE BT 4“0 - Bhit
SER EpEEhEzin
Chongaing Hongyan Fangda Automotive  Limited liabilty company  Yubei District, ~ Yubei District,  Development, manufacturing and sales Equity method
Suspension Co,, Lid. Chongging ~ Chongging ~ of carleaf spring, auto air Suspension,
Quide arm and other auto parts
SREY(ER) RENABRAMLAT  AREERA ERGEE  ERMRR  NEEBE - B0 ERE
Chongaing Arrows Auto Transmission Parts - Limited liabilty company  Neman District,  Nenan District, - Automabile transmission Equity method
Co, Ltd. Chongging~~ Chongajng
RHBEREZN(ER) RO ﬁﬁ&ﬁfggf}(é%iﬁﬂﬁi ERTALE ERTAME BREREERLERE 3400 - Bai
ERaE)
Knorr Bremse Commercial Vehicle Systems ~ Limited liabilty company  Yubei District, ~ Yube District,  Manufacturing and sale of commercial Equity method
(Chongging) Co., Ltd. (Taiwan, Hong Kong, ~ Chongging ~ Chongaing ~ vehicle valves
Macao and domesic
joint venture)
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BB AR et (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A A 55 i 2 B S BR AR 3 G WA b > LN R THI7R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

N~ 7R FC 32 58 b i RE £ (4 VIIL. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (CONTINUED)
3. ERBECFEBECFEPHRELS () 3. Interests in Joint Ventures or Associates (continued)
(1) FERGE B FEG A (4) (1) Significant joint ventures or associates (continued)
(Y

Proportion of HAE EAHE
| stachodng()  pxrgna

RELRABELELR HEEAE TEAGE  dfie 3 h Bk Bk Bhit
Business Principal place ~ Place of Nature of Accounting
Name of associates or joint venture ~ category of business ~ registration  business Directly  Indirectly method
REEHENEEERALLT HpEREADD  HBARATR HBERAD %) HOEEAMLER 1900 - &
9g Ré&
Mingin Guoneng Wind Power Co., Ltd Other Limited Liabilty  Mingin County, ~ Mingin County, Electriciy, heat production and supply Equity method
Companies Wuwel Cty, ~ Wuwei Clty, ~ indlustry
Gansu Gansu
Province Province
ERtARENMERRAT RREAAG(IERE ERARE  ERERE  RBL BMARRREGNEENEE - 0 E&i
#BE)
Chongging Shimade Inteligent Limited Liabilty Company Nan'an Distrct,  Nan'an District, Production and sales of automated and Equity method
Manufacturing Co,, Ltd. (Forelgn-invested, Non- - Chongging ~~ Chongging inteligent equipment and accessories
whlly Foreign-onned)
2 FEEGELFE (2) Unimportant associates
BRI
Proportion of
shareholding (%) Hompegme e
e £2 HEEAEH TEOEY e $HkE B BE RENEHAEAR
Principal place ~ Place of Nature of Accounting
Name of associates Business category  of business  registration  business Directly  Indirectly method
Water Gen Poer 1. BREALT EAH EXH ENREE TNE REERARSE 900 o i
B HEERREES AEEHY
limited liabilty company ~ Italy lialy Power transformer, reactor, HVDC Equity method

converter transformer, UHVAC transformer,
complte set of insulation
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ST AR MY A (AT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 1 H 202546130 H
CRIPBS R B RE RS R GE IS0 LA RWEIE51R)

I\~ LRl RS RO RE R (AF)

286

3. EEEARKEE SRR (8 3.

) HEEWGEEFN LTS

HH

From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

VIII. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

ltems

EE A 5

Interests in Joint Ventures or Associates (continued)

(3) Key financial information of significant joint ventures

CQ Cummins

2025468308,
2025%F1-6 A

30 Jun 2025/
Jan-Jun 2025

202496 A30H
2024 1-6 A

30 Jun 2024/
Jan-Jun 2024

MEEE

Hd : ReMReSEY
FRBEE

BEAR

nERE

FRBAE

BEAR

DEIRRE S

BENERARRER

BERLOIGENFEE
Gk

HEBEIE

-HE
—~ABRXZRERMNE

—H At

HBECXREREN
EHEEE

BEAHBENBEDCX
RENAREE
EERA

BBER

FEHER

AN

FEAE D ANENE

e B

AEKERRAXEGELE
5 &7 B A BA

AEEARFREKEIMRE
BB EAOBA

Current assets

Including: cash and cash equivalents

Non-current assets

Total assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Non-controlling interest

Total equity attributable to
shareholders of the Company

Net assets calculated based on
shareholding ratio

Adjustments

— Gooduwill

- Unrealized profit in internal
transactions

- Others

Book value of the equity investment in
the equity associates

Fair value of an associate investment
with a public quotation

Operating revenue

Financial expenses

Income tax expense

Net profit

Net profit attributable to shareholders
of the controlling company

Total comprehensive income

Recognized dividends from joint
ventures

Received dividends from joint ventures
in the year

2,687,360,988.07

472,003,463.79
1,478,263,232.50
4,165,624,220.57
2,593,088,286.07

102,657,238.66
2,695,745,524.73

1,469,878,695.84

734,939,347.92
955,019.75

955,019.75
735,894,367.67
2,595,001,222.30
-1,609,660.00
118,556,420.00
658,007,042.30

658,007,042.30
658,007,042.30

286,995,004.64

286,995,004.64

2,087,379,008.90

503,070,658.98
1,476,838,969.85
3,564,217,978.75
2,113,667,761.13

123,175,110.65
2,236,842,871.78

1,327,375,106.97

663,687,553.49
955,035.75

955,035.75
664,642,589.23
2,170,163,423.02
-1,470,938.15
95,704,277.46
515,503,443.10

515,503,443.10
515,503,443.10

166,592,518.54

166,592,518.54
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S5 R MY o (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A A 55 i 2 B S BR AR 3 G WA b > LN R THI7R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

J\ > A At T 4 o R 2R () VIII. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

3. EAEMAESEE SRR (A) 3.

Interests in Joint Ventures or Associates (continued)

) EZRWE AN TR 5

(4) Key financial information of significant associates

ABB HE-D ERE
ABB chonggqing Hongyan fangda EXEDY (Chongging) Co., Ltd
N25E6A30R,/ 2024565308/ 202556308,/ 2024F6A08/ 2025¥6A0R/ 2024F6F30E/
2255165 A04E1-6 20255168 20416 20255168 NUE1-6F
300un2025  30Jn2024  30Jun2025 042024 30dun205  30Jun 2024
1 [tems Jan-Jun 2025 Jan-Jun 2024 Jan-Jun 2025 Jan-Jun 2024 Jan-Jun 2025 Jan-Jun 2024
THEE Current assets 2,669,230,647.05  2,086,859795.80  473,801,891.30  466,6881140 25721584776 288:818.236.69
Ed:BEMES  Including: cash and cash equivalents
&0 48907,461.08  86,699,309.29 2587970168 143321330 8527800406  24,158,367.04
FrRoAE Non-current assets 708,722,006.60 74230321316 213,846,181.85 22950752677  91,603,225.63  110,151,665.76
BERN Total assets 340795273365 262925300896  667,648,073.15  695,776,338.17  348,819,073.39 39896990245
LIl Current liabities 1948,668,05.96 152160599337 299.201,124.27  358,047,25299  45,530,899.65 6460513431
FRBEE Non-current liabilies 406,982,13018 34924135735 47,648,041.62 MTE8712 148044452 166355560
BEA Total liabilties 2,355,650,190.14 187084735072  346,849,166.00 35849494011  47,028344.17  66,266,680.91
PeREER Non-controlling interest - - 2489948446 2415143504 - =
EEREATRRTES  Total equily atiibutable to
shareholders of the Company 1,02,302,543.51 95840565824  315,899,422.60 31312996302  301,790,729.22  332,701,212.54
TR ER Net assets calculated based on
FEENE shareholding ratio 39777036145 36419415013 13899574594 13777718373  §1483,496.89  89,829,327.39
ABLR Adjustments 2082120394 790439264 1624475443 1607895200 84638203 84638293
-HE - Goodil = - -
-MBRBRERHE - Unrealized proftin internal
transactions = = =
-Hf - Others 2082120394 2790439264 -16,24475443 1607895202 846382023 846382923
HBEQZREREN  Book value of the equity investment in
FHERE the equity associates 427591,565.39 39200854277 12275099151 12169823171  73.019.667.66  81,365498.16
REAFREHBED  Fair value of an associate investment
ERENDAEE  witha public quotation - = =
BEHA Operating revenue 129737007093 982565,98641 24935044738 26393544649  141,362,018.96  209,576,069.05
HEER Financial expenses - 209137 169201160 228061166 -952,808.53 166,126.35
HEHER Income tax expense 11,738544.22  10,156,438.02 - - 799,395.04
I Net proft 124.967,212.90 48,696,406 79057005 988619584 2282199777 2,600,666.10
SEREAANZFHE  Net profi attributable to shareholders
of the controling company 12496721290  48,696,420.56 O7217376 998980007 2282199777 2600,666.10
GalssE Total comprehensive income 12496721290 48696,420.56 9057005 980619584 2282199777 2,600,666.10
KREBETREA%L  Recognized dividends from foint
FEESMNEA  ventwres 28,768,673.30 = - - 135000000 296238324
KEEAEEREIMA  Received dividends from joint ventures
AELEARA  intheyear 28,768,673.30 - - - 135000000 296238324
2025 ¥k (287
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SARS TR L (A7)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

20254F 1 H 1 H %#20254F6 30 H

(7 B 5 0 2 I R B AR 1 2k W 4

I\~ LRl RS RO RE R (AF)

From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
A REITCIIR)

3. EEEARKEE SRR (8

4 HEZEI G E AR EEY A

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

VIII. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

3. Interests in Joint Ventures or Associates (continued)

(4) Key financial information of significant associates

(#) (continued)
2R LLER 85(ER)
Arrows Auto Transmission Double
Knorr Chongqing Jiangbei Machinery Ring Transmission (Chongging)
N25E6A0R/ 2004F6F30H,/ 2025568308/ 2024F6A30F,/ 2025%68NR/ 2024F6F308,/
2025%1-68 2045167 2025%1-68 20045167 2025%1-68 20245167
30 Jun 2025/ 30Jun 2024/ 30 Jun 2025/ 30Jun 2024/ 30 Jun 2025/ 30 Jun 2024/
EH Items Jan-Jun 2025 Jan-Jun 2024 Jan-Jun 2025 Jan-dun 2024 Jan-Jun 2025 Jan-Jun 2024
RHEE Current assefs M3G1065046 41784023334 37231418759 37880750640  312,340,310.09 26547957486
Ed R8BS Including: cash and cash equivalents
£EN 106,246,335.77  87,04247483 4626479049 3561904904  15,753,354.29 1949622.79
FRAEE Non-current assets 67405457 6666366105  117417,00223  127537.0256  453,618,264.23 355,396,594 95
EEAH Total assets 511,081,175.03  484,503914.39  489,731,189.82  506,34479896  765,958,574.32  620,876,169.81
iEtE Current liabiltes 25021897154 24982444098 288,639,048.81  319557.958.66  254,209.217.85  417,866,306.63
E Non-current liabilities 36,001,568.14 3099532834 217788430 41043170 8240767233 910226429
BE4% Total liabilities 286,220,539.68  280,819769.32  290,817,833.11 32366227586  336,706,890.18  426,968,570.92
HERRER Non-contralling interest - = - - - .
SENTNARRER  Total equiy atiibutable to
shareholders of the Company 204,860,635.35  203,684,145.07  198,913,356.71  182,682,523.10 ~ 429,251,684.14  194,843,634.83
RERCAES  Netassets calculated based on
FEERE shareholding ratio 7645261602 6925260032 8155447625 7489983447 8207292201  68,195,272.49
AEEE Adjustments 8,080,673.17 8,080,673.18 20,207,962.08 22,342,923 22 4,842,679.77 7,987,569.03
-HE Goodwil - - = - = -
~RERFFERFE  Unrealized profitin internal
fransactions - - - - - -
-Hfy Others 8,080,673.17 8,080,673.18 20,207,962.08 22,342,923 22 4,842,679.77 7,987,569.03
HBEOFERRERN  Bookvalue of the equity investment in
FHEE the equity joint venture 84,533,289.19 7733328250  101,762,438.33 97,.242.757.69 86,915,601.78 76,182,841.22
BFAARREABEQD  Fairvalue of an associate investment
£RENDAEE  withapublic quotation - - - = - =
BEHA Operating revenue 233,768,786.11  233.263632.88  185,905,076.87  173528,774.27  165,748,000.46  200,067,267.68
HBER Financial expenses -753,749.72 021398 116380229 153980738 05500062  5241750.28
HEHER Income tax expense 420574526 215472464 160531383 111753429 969,642.07 -32,690.03
eih Net proft 2,14176836 2120040932 8825420011 856644208 2207188893 448170011
SENBARMEHE  Net profit attributable to shareholders
of the controlling company 28,141,768.36  21,220,409.32 8,825,420.11 856644298  22,271,388.93 4,481,700.11
GalEaE Total comprehensive income WAATE036 2120040932 B84 856644208 22.071,88893 448170011
KEEBAKEAEL  Recognized dividends from joint
SEEDEMRY  ventures - - - - - =
REFRERREINR  Recelved dividends from joint ventures
SEREHRY  inthe year - - - - - -
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SAB R T AE (A7)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(A A 55 i 2 B S BR AR 3 G WA b > LN R THI7R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

I\~ LRl #E RO RE SR (A

3. S

(&)

(6)

)

®

4. K%

5. A4
#hHE

B A S I A S v R 2R (A

S I g e T g P
BEEREN AR EARE -

AL {7 B A T R B
B -

A5 B AL oy A S 1B I 9 A
B AR o

A5 B A Ly A S S T A K AR
FEH 9 26 7 A 1 -

P e o B L R R o

P 1 AR AP\ B DOF B B e 3 i IR Y
L4 -

VIII. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (CONTINUED)

3.

Interests in Joint Ventures or Associates (continued)

(5) No significant restrictions on the ability of the Group’s
joint ventures or associates to transfer funds to the

company.

(6) No excess losses incurred by the Group’s joint ventures or

associates.

(7) The Group has no unconfirmed commitments related to

Jjoint venture investment.

(8) The Group has no contingent liabilities related to

investments in joint ventures or associates.
The Group has no significant joint operations.

The Group has no structured entities that are not

included in the scope of consolidated financial statements.
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ST AR M (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A A 55 i 2 B S BR AR I Gk WA b > B RL AR JTI7%)  (All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

Ju ~ BUR i Bl IX. GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Lo IR i e A < 4 e 0 ¥ RO ORY By 1. Government subsidies recognized at the end of the year

based on the amount receivable

& o None.
2. WRBEHBIMARFEH 2. Debt items related to government subsidies

20045 AR AETAER AHEA LY w55 HEE/

12A31H EHEE  MMASE  HitthEeE 28 68308 WERE
Amount Amount
included in transferred
New subsidy  non-operating to other
31 Dec amountfor ~ incomethis income this  Other changes 30Jun  Related to
EHEE] Accounting subjects 2024 this year year year this year 2025  assetsfincome
Etha Deferred income 181,296,051.51  10,974,022.68 - 2092906204 2487472413  146466,288.02 -
At Total 181,296,051.51  10,974,022.68 - 20929,062.04 2487472413 146,466,288.02 -
3. REOAE I AR 0 BN #l Bh 3. Government subsidies included in current profit and loss
2025%1-6 A 202441-6 A
25RE Accounting subjects Jan-Jun 2025 Jan-Jun 2024
H ez Other income 40,196,633.51 74,891,627.97
BEEINRA Non-operating income 5,000.00 =
At Total 40,201,633.51 74,891,627.97
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SAB R T AE (A7)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(A B i e I G PR AR L s B A1 > 35 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

Sl < i T FLR R L B

AEFERELIHPEHESESHTARR -
TE2EEMHRER (X2 RIMNER BRI F X E
) ERERMTSERRSE - HELDH
TEBBOER  ARAKREERREEELLR
B P R EX A ol fe B SR IR SR AN T AT o AN SR
BB B S L R O 1T B I M B AR
PRI it B 2 A PR TE BV EEE 2 A

1. AR R P E R R BUR
AEEEERRERY B ERERR
Wad 2 MERGEE 8T E - BEREAR

B LXK ENEEEREDRKEK
FoERERETERREEN S
Kb o ERZERERBIZ AEER
e 5 222 ) R AN R B R TR E M D AT AR £R [
AT e ) - T R B - 3 S 3 A R B
RERFWETRARELR - W R A5
HEBREETES  SERBRIZESER
EHEEZA

X. RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS

The Group faces various financial instrument risks in its daily
activities, including market risk (foreign exchange risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk, etc. The risks
associated with these financial instruments, as well as the risk
management policies adopted by the Group to mitigate these
risks, are described below. The management of this group
manages and monitors these risk exposures to ensure that the

above risks are controlled within a limited range.
1. Various risk management objectives and policies

The goal of the Group’s risk management is to achieve
an appropriate balance between risk and return,
minimize the negative impact of risk on our group’s
business performance, and maximize the interests of
shareholders and other equity investors. Based on this risk
management objective, the basic strategy of the Group’s
risk management is to identify and analyze various risks
faced by the Group, establish appropriate risk tolerance
thresholds and carry out risk management, and timely and
reliably supervise various risks to control them within a

limited range.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 1 H 202546130 H
CRIPBS R B RE RS R GE IS0 LA RWEIE51R)
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1) SMEEE SR
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BR - TEEBUARELE
o BAREEDHEROINE

BEMAERARIKAINE R
5 ONEEEMAERIMER
SNFEEETERET
R FEINERR - AEHE
BB REERE
SINERXZMINEBEER AR
MRE  URARERER
B O SMERER - Bt A%
BRI ARBERINES
BB ERSHH T R
2 B 58 SN R B O B A
HRAEBRBEZTMED
SMNERHREHEREH -

INTERIM REPORT 2025
CHONGQING MACHINERY & ELECTRIC CO., LTD

From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

X. RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

1. Various risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

(1) Market risk

1)

Foreign exchange risk

The principal operations of the Group are
located in China, and its primary business
transactions are settled in RMB. However, the
Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from its recognized foreign currency
assets and liabilities, as well as future foreign
currency transactions (which are primarily
denominated in USD and GBP). The Group’s
headquarters finance department is responsible
for monitoring the scale of foreign currency
transactions, assets, and liabilities to minimize
foreign exchange risk. To mitigate this risk, the
Group may enter into forward foreign exchange
contracts or currency swap agreements. As of
the end of the reporting period, the Group had
not entered into any forward foreign exchange

contracts or currency swap agreements.
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X. RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

1. A&%)EREE P E B R BOR () L

(1) 5 EE (4

D

SHIER B ()

AEERAEMNINESREE
MINEEBMAEBHIEKRAR

Various risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
(1) Market risk (continued)

1)  Foreign exchange risk (continued)
The amount of foreign currency financial assets

and liabilities held by the Group converted into

RMB are shown follows:

R SEIRET
025564308
30 Jun 2025
£n%R AuEg B3 EnEg 8 fif
b [tems Usp HKD GBP EUR FRF Total
MEeREE Foreign currency financial assets
L E (Cash and cash equivalents 821,882.51 79,850.34  135,174,370.51 - - 136,076,103.36
EHES Accounts receiveble 10852,972.22 - W4T 1955 - - 548019177
LN Other receivables - 429114 15,147,033.94 - - 15,151,325.08
S Total 11,474,854.73 84,141.48  194,498,624.00 - - 206,057,620.21
EeRaE Foreign currency financil iabilfes
REEs Shortderm loans - - TR - - 1T 82245
EfZE Notes payable - - - - - -
ERER Accounts payable 310,544.16 - 41,883,501.81 - - B 190597
AR Other payables - - 3pTinM - - 3Tinu
R Non-current liablies due within one year - - 8847000000 - - 8847000000
REHET Long-tem loans - - - - - -
A Total 310,544.16 - 480,946,496.70 - - 481,259,040.86
2025 ¥k (293
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+ Bl ik T A R L B (4 X. RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

1. KRB B E R R R (4) 1. Various risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

) B (4) (1) Market risk (continued)

- 1 Forei ] ]
1) SMERESR () ) oreign exchange risk (continued)
. Continued
BR ( )
N24E12R31A
31 Dec 2024

ESiE AR AR BiER HHEE &%
ER ltems UsD HKD (BP EUR FRF Total
MEeREE Foreign currency financia assets
gHEd Cash and cash equivalents 2,650577.03 81,01997  100,141,654.68 - - 10287331168
EHES Accounts receivable 312263174 - 31.904706.36 - - 3502733810
£ Other receivables - 435744 1455095460 - - 1455531204
i Total 5713208.11 8543741 146,507 315.64 = - 152455,961.82
MEeReE Foreign curtency fiancial iabiies
EEE Short-term loans - - 21821534154 - - 21821534154
EfRE Notes payable - = - - - -
EfES Acoouns payedle 31165655 - B - YRy
EER Other payables - - 3 - - 3482130
-ERIBNERDAR Non-current iabilies due witin one year - - 862675000 - - 062675000
RS Long-term loans = = = = = -
i Total 311,658.59 - 407076,20251 - - 407,387,861.06

294 INTERIM REPORT 2025
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
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(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

X. RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Various risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

T2 b 2)
AEEF = RERKE SR
THERRER - RZ X
AEMNRITEFARERS AR
SEAZRERENKEAR
BB E N KR EHRITFER
RERSAREBAZRAAE
BEMNXER AKERER
TMHRTRE B E FFH
MK R L - A& B A F
B R RNRITERRE
FTAARKE X BT -8
¥ KBE2 - FAEERK

I 8 e ) R @

AEBEFEBFXRBITERR
EIE A RIBITEFIITRAT

(1) Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from interest
bearing bank deposits and borrowings. Floating
rates on bank deposits and borrowings expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Fixed
rates on bank deposits and borrowings expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The
Group determines the proportion of its fixed
and floating rate contracts depending on the
current market conditions. The Group’s bank
deposits and borrowings at floating rates were
denominated in RMB, USD, EUR, HKD, and
GBP. The Group currently does not hedge its

exposure to interest rate risk.

The Group’s bank borrowings at floating rates

and at fixed rates are as follows:

30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024

IS Nature of borrowings 2025%6H30H 2024%12H31H
(fE &)

(As restated)

ZE) T EAER Borrowings at floating rates 1,590,589,842.74 1,865,041,652.51
& 7 F R &R Borrowings at fixed rates 306,899,763.18 336,176,869.62
a5t Total 1,897,489,605.92 2,201,218,522.13

2025 FR
EEMERHERAR &
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From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

X. RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Various risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

(2) Credit risk

The Group manages the credit risk by portfolio.
Credit risk mainly arises from cash and cash
equivalents, notes receivable, accounts receivable,
accounts receivable financing, other receivables,

contract assets and long-term receivables, etc.

To reduce credit risk, the Group has established
a dedicated department to determine credit limits,
conduct credit approvals, and implement other
monitoring procedures to ensure necessary measures
are taken to recover expired debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recovery status of each individual
receivable on each balance sheet date to ensure
that sufficient bad debt provisions are made for
uncollectible amounts. Therefore, the management of
the Group believes that the credit risk undertaken by

the Group has been significantly reduced.

The fluid capital of the Group is stored in banks with
higher credit ratings, so the credit risk of fluid capital

is relatively low.
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From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

X. RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

1. Various risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

(2) Credit risk (continued)

The Group has adopted necessary policies to

ensure that all sales customers have a good

credit record. Except for the top five accounts

receivable and contract asset amounts, the Group

has no other significant credit concentration

risks. The total amount of the top five accounts

receivable and contract assets of the Group is

RMB1,603,139,249.68, accounting for 25.93% of the

total accounts receivable and contract assets of the

Group.

1)

Criteria for judging significant Increase in credit risk

On each balance sheet date, the Group
determines whether the credit risk of financial
instruments has significantly increased
since initial recognition by comparing the
probability of default within the expected
lifespan determined at initial recognition and
the probability of default within the expected
lifespan determined at the balance sheet date.
However, if the Group determines that financial
instruments only have a lower credit risk on the
balance sheet date, it can be assumed that the
credit risk of the financial instrument has not

significantly increased since initial recognition.

2025 FR
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From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

X. RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

1. Various risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

(2) Credit risk (continued)

1)

2)

Criteria for judging significant Increase in credit risk
(continued)

The main criteria for judging a significant
increase in credit risk by the Group are
significant changes in one or more of the
following indicators: the operating environment
in which the debtor operates, internal and

external credit ratings, and significant adverse

changes in actual or expected operating results.

Definition of credit impairment assets that have

occurred

When one or more events that have an adverse
impact on the expected future cash flows of
a financial asset occur, the financial asset
becomes a financial asset that has experienced
credit impairment. The main criteria for
determining credit impairment in the Group are:
significant financial difficulties of the issuer or
debtor; the debtor violates the contract, such as
paying interest or principal in default or overdue;
due to economic or contractual considerations
related to the financial difficulties of the debtor,
the Group will not make concessions to the
debtor in any other circumstances; the debtor is
likely to go bankrupt or undergo other financial
restructuring; the financial difficulties of the
issuer or debtor have led to the disappearance

of the active market for the financial asset.
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From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

X. RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

1. Various risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

(2) Credit risk (continued)

3)

Credit risk exposure

As of June 30, 2025, the maximum credit risk
exposure that may cause financial losses to the
Group mainly comes from the losses incurred
by the Group’s financial assets due to the failure
of the other party to fulfill its obligations under
the contract, as well as the financial guarantees

assumed by the Group.

The credit risk exposure of the Group includes
on balance sheet items and off balance sheet
items related to credit risk. On the balance sheet
date, the book value of the Group’s financial
assets represents its maximum credit risk
exposure. The maximum credit risk exposure
outside the balance sheet (excluding available

collateral or other credit enhancements) is as

E AL W - follows:

2025%6H30H 2024%12H31H
1B H ltems 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
B Credit Commitment 507,629,743.43 754,024,529.54

2025 FR
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From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

X. RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Various risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

(2) Credit risk (continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Group
is unable to fulfill its financial obligations
on the due date. The method of managing
liquidity risk in this group is to ensure sufficient
liquidity to fulfill maturing debts, without
causing unacceptable losses or damaging the
reputation of the enterprise. The Group regularly
analyzes its debt structure and maturity to
ensure sufficient funding. The management of
this group monitors the use of bank loans and
ensures compliance with loan agreements. At
the same time, negotiate financing with financial
institutions to maintain a certain credit limit and

reduce liquidity risk.
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X. RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

%% A\ B 4 P I A % B (4 1. Various risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

@) AR (4)

(€))

TV B (AT)

(2) Credit risk (continued)

AEERBRCREE &8
BEARFTRNERE SR

(3) Liquidity risk (continued)

The various financial assets and financial

liabilities of the Group are presented as

undiscounted contract cash flows at maturity as

ERFEBAITRAT ¢

follows:

202556330
30 Jun 2025

-EUR -HcE s BENE i
B8 liems Within 1 year 1-2 years 25 years Over 5 years Total
SHEE Financial assets
KKES Monetary funds 2,427,859,645.45 - - - 247859564545
RAtEREE Trading financial asses 631,346,485.52 - - - 631,346,48552
e Notes receivable 176,026,40267 - - - 17602640267
ERER Accouns receivable 5,093,754,855.16 - - - 5,093,754,55.16
EUHERE Receivable financing 554,074,283.18 - - - 554,074,263.18
L e Other receivables 502,784,303.98 - - - 50278430398
REE E Non-curent assets dug witin one year 18,330,399.68 - - - 18,330,399.68
EHERRER Loans and advances granted 480,981,747.21 301,200666.66  195,130,000.00 - mAMaT
ElEERE Other debt investments 834,410.96 846,000.00 2,540,317.81 32517,130.73 36,737,868.50
EHERTARE Other gquiy insruments investment - - - TI59085B68  177,599,856.68
Gl Total 98059925381 30204666666 19767031781 210,116,99841  10,595,826,516.69
SHER Financial liabilities
BEER Shortterm loans 585,804,234.53 - - - 58580423453
RAEFRRERFN Receipt of deposits and deposit from ther banks 1,109,114982.10 - - - 1,109,11498210
ERZE Notes payable 1,618,083927.18 - - - 161808392718
ERER Accouns payable 3,077,235,713.26 - - - 3072571326
EEf3 Other payables 431,207,686.70 - - - 431,207,686.70
e e Non-curent iabilties due within one year §70,926,739.01 - - - 97092673901
3 Long-term loans - 602830,78000 6411441356 4712000 671,716,31356
HERR Lease liabilfies - BONA0S 1504683398 10901575207 259,783996.57
i Total TTRNRT8 6284519052 1026124754 1378687207 872387359291

2025 3k (301
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+ Bl ik T A R L B (4 X. RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

1. KRB B E R R R (4) 1. Various risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

@ R (4) (2) Credit risk (continued)

3) R () (3) Liquidity risk (continued)

= (Continued)
AAUEFSIA
31 Dec 2024
(#Ei)

(As restated)
~Fl -3zf 2 AENE i
EE Items Within 1 year 12 years 2 years Qver 5 years Total
SHEE Financial assets = = = . .
g¥ES Cash and cash equivalents 274327454021 - - - QTARATABH01
LAtEREE Trading financil assets 57181398357 = - - ST181398357
e 4 Notes receivable 216,389,130.05 = - - 216,389,139.05
EUES Accounts receivable 4,119,184963.31 - - - 4119,184.963.31
ElzERE Receivable financing 636.910,756.89 - 5 - 6391075689
Aozt Other receivables 490315,670.13 = = = 49031567013
“ERHEhERSAE Non-current assets due within one year 17998,806.45 - - - 1799880645
BHERRAR Loans and advances HOTA003437 2028181045 0318357777 - 0375463159
RERUR Long-tem receivables - 906842323 - - 9,068423.23
EHERTARE Other equity nstruments investment - - - 16431950068 16431950368
& Total Q28606598 23180024268 JRIBBETITT 16431950368 990803039011
1 ELH Financial iabilities = = . . =
28R Short-term loans 4251924741 - - - 5104t
THEARERER Receint of deposits and deposits rom other banks 817,201 985.75 - - - BIT21985T
EfZE Notes payable 1451,609,662.01 - 5 - 145060968201
AR Accounts payable 2,729,113,660.66 - - - 279,11366066
EHEAR Other payables 350,885,266.90 - - - 35088526690
-ERHEnERSAE Non-current iabiites due within one year 72359038009 = . - 7359038009
REES Long-term loans - 108482375672 14,379,600.00 70040000 1,106213756.72
HE8RE Lease liabities - 906347279 111,469,169.75 11313015397 233,662,796 51
fif Total BATEBA06 10038872951 158876975 120140597 783747000285

302 INTERIM REPORT 2025
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X. RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. Sensitivity analysis
The Group applies sensitivity to analyze the rationality
of technical risk variables and the effect of possible
changes on the current profit and loss or shareholders’
equity. As any risk variable seldom varies independently,
and correlation among variables could affect significantly
the ultimate amount of a certain risk variable. Therefore,
following tests are carrying out on the assumed condition

that each variable changes independently.

(1) Sensitivity analysis of foreign exchange risk
The hypothesis of sensibility analysis of foreign
exchange risk: all the foreign operations and

investments and cash flows are highly effective.

The influence of reasonable movements of exchange
rates on the current net profit and loss and equity

under above assumptions with other variables as a

ST constant is listed as following:
2025568308 2024%12A318
30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024

A EX2H HENENYE HRREENYE HEAENYE HRREENTE

Effect on Effect on Effect on Effect on
tems Change in exchange rate net profit owners’ equity net profit owners’ equity
X B L7%5% 558,215.53 568,215.53 273,077.51 273,077.51
usD Exchange rate up 5%
X7 EXTH5% -558,215.53 -558,215.53 -273,077.51 27307751
Usb Exchange rate down 5%
A X ER5% -14,322,493.64 -14,322,493.64 -13,023,044.34 -13,023,944.34
GBP Exchange rate up 5%
af & T H#5% 14,322,493.64 14,322,493.64 13,023,944.34 13,023,944.34
GBP Exchange rate down 5%

2025 FR
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X. RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. Sensitivity analysis (continued)

2)

Sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk

The sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk is based

on the following assumptions:

The fluctuation of market interest rate has an impact
on interest income or expense of variable interest-

rate financial instrument;

For the fixed interest-rate financial instrument
measured at fair value, the changes of market
interest rate can only affect its interest income or

expense;

The changes in fair value of the derivative financial
instrument and other financial assets and liabilities
are calculated on discounted cash flow method,
based on the market interest rate at the balance

sheet date.
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+ B TR B B () X. RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. GRS (F8) 2. Sensitivity analysis (continued)

2) T BRI (4) (2) Sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk (continued)
ELABERNERLE EHEEE The after-tax influence of reasonable movements of
TEBBERT  FEOeEENE interest rate on the current net profit and loss and
BB EHMERNMERNBE equity under above assumptions with other variables
FENMT as a constant is listed as following:

2025%1-68 2024%1-68
Jan-Jun 2025 Jan-Jun 2024
B kS HENENEE HRREENVE HENENEE HRREENYE
Effect on Effect on Effect on Effect on
Items Change in interest rate net profit owners’ equity net profit owners’ equity
FRHRER EE1% -618,733.23 -618733.23 -547,191.06 -547,191.06
Borrowings with Increase by 1%
floating interest rate
FRHRER TE1% 618,733.23 618,733.23 547,191.06 547.191.06
Borrowings with Decrease by 1%

floating interest rate

F— 2 e fE A A 5T XI. DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE
1. DA e fE A w0 A R B A R 1. Fair value of assets and liabilities measured at fair value
2 s fEfE at the end of this period:
HARBENNUAREBEFENEENA Amounts of assets and liabilities measured at fair value at
BENEBNAREBEBETZER the end of this period and the corresponding levels of fair

value measurement are listed as following:

E-BR EZBR EZBR I

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

fair value fair value fair value
BH ltems measurement measurement measurement Total
Rt BEE Financial assets held for sale 531,732,622.72 99,613,862.80 - 631,346,485.52
A RERE Including: Stock investment 2,641,437.94 - = 2,641437.94
EEmRES Money market fund 529,091,184.78 = - 529,091,184.78
&% Debenture - 99,613,862.80 - 99,613,862.80
FEMERE Receivable financing = - 55227976506  552,279,765.06
HESZTERS Other equity instruments investment 176,172,975.00 = 1426,88368  177,599,858.68
EiEERE Other debt investments - 3242224233 - 3242224233
BEAT Total 707.905597.72  132,036,105.13  553,706,648.74  1,393,648,351.59

2025 FR
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MEAFEREERNKIEBRNBAE -
AR RBAENERLT

—EBRBAE: ErTERREHME
HREEX A EEERT S EREH
HIRME

FE_ERBAE:BKE-EXBAEN
HREESAEERIEXTHENE
AE:

E-BRBAE  BHAELAENT
TREHAME -
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CHONGQING MACHINERY & ELECTRIC CO., LTD

From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

XI. DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)

1.

Fair value of assets and liabilities measured at fair value
at the end of this period: (continued)

The above table shows the fair value information and
the level of fair value measurement of the group’s assets
and liabilities measured at fair value continuously and
non-continuously on each balance sheet date at the end of
the reporting period. The level of fair value measurement
results depends on the input value of the lowest level
which is of great significance to fair value measurement
as a whole. The three levels of input values are defined as
follows:
Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

Level 2: The direct or indirect observable inputs, which fail

to meet level 1, for related assets or liabilities.

Level 3: Fair value measured using significant

unobservable inputs.
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N

TE H i 08 B e AR

HEEBTSHRZSNEMTANRAE
ERBEERABRANMSREETE -
EREVERMERRBIARSHM R
S &4 FAAL EERBER
EERBRES AZBERRERAF
RHRAETHERMERTIZIHR
B ZmSRESERETE NEE
RANSREENTSRER/RITER
B-HEFeRTAISESE —ER-H
RIANE-EBENTERDBR/RH M
TREENRERE -

5 80 JE 5 A58 R K 4 S B AR
JEH > BR A A4 A 1R 1l Ao o 22 B
i P B sE B A B

BAERBRMENERTANAAREBER
REERMEE - HERNEENHBA
ESNABATSEE  S8KRET
BHREMT EREXESHIAN
AR EEAFBNMEERBEARATE
REHER ZeMIAIIAE_ER -
HARNEEIAZ —ERNEMIE -

XI. DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)

Basis for determining the market value of continuous and

non-continuous first-level fair value measurement projects

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is determined based on market quotes at the
balance sheet date. When a quote is available in real time
and on a regular basis from a stock exchange, dealer,
broker, industry insider, pricing service provider, or
regulator, and the quote represents an actual and regular
market transaction quote based on fair trade principles,
the market is considered Active market. The quoted
market price of financial assets held by the Group is the
current bid price. These financial tools are listed on the
first level. The instruments included in the first level at the
end of this period were classified as stock investments in

tradable financial assets.

On-going and non-on-going second-level fair value
measurement projects, qualitative and quantitative
information on valuation techniques and important

parameters used

The fair value of financial instruments without active
markets is determined by using valuation techniques.
Valuation techniques make the best use of available
observable market data and rely as little as possible
on specific estimates from entities. When all significant
data required to determine the fair value of a financial
instrument is observable, the financial instrument is listed
in the second level. At the end of this period, the group

listed the financial instruments in the second level.

2025 FR
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From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

XI. DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)

4.

On-going and non-on-going third-level fair value
measurement projects, qualitative and quantitative
information on valuation techniques and important

parameters used

The financial instruments included in the third level are
mainly unlisted equity investments and receivables
financing held by the Group. The Group use valuation
techniques to determine their fair value for major
investments. The valuation models used are mainly
discounted cash flow models and the analogy of listed
companies in the same industry. The input values of
valuation techniques mainly include expected income,
Expected return maturity, weighted average cost of

capital, illiquidity discount rate, etc.

The Group’s continuous third-level fair value
measurement project has no adjustment information
between the beginning and end of the year and the

sensitivity analysis of unobservable parameters.

No conversion happened between different levels during this
period among Group’s continuous fair value measurement

items.

No changes occurred in valuation technology during this

period.

The Group has no assets and liabilities that are not

measured at fair value but disclosed at fair value.
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XII.RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED-PARTY

TRANSACTIONS

(I) RELATED PARTIES

1. Controlling Shareholder and Ultimate-controlling Party

(1) Controlling Shareholder and Ultimate-controlling

Party
AMER  HARENER HAEEN
BREREH i EBHE (Ex) Al FAELA%)
Registered ~ Shareholding
capital proportion  Voting rights
Controlling shareholder  Place of Registration Business nature (RMB’0000) (%) (%)
ERAEAR(£E)0E  ERDIBHREURETROYE  HERTEARREEERMN
BRAEETARER
Chongging Machinery & No. 60 Middle Section of Huangshan  Managing state-owned assets
Electronics Holding Avenue, New North Zone, Chonging  authorized by the Chongging
(Group) Co., Ltd. SASAC 368,604.42 5474 5474

Al

e

EEREER(EE) D
CIESRVNCIES Y § A=
54.74% - P FBERER
1ERR A IR A K LB A
52.22% » #FHHEIN ETHHEK
N A 7] 4 AR 7K B tE 1)
2.52% °
REBRKREGHRERE
MEEREEARAT -

BT 9 3 3
1k (Bfr - HE)

Note 1: CQMEHG holds 54.74% of the Company’s

shares, of which the proportion of restricted
shares in the Company’s total equity is
52.22%, and the overseas listed H shares of

the Company’s total equity is 2.52%.

Note 2: The ultimate controlling party of the Group is

Chongging Yufu Holdings Group Co., Ltd.

(2) Registered capital of the controlling shareholder and

the change (Unit: RMB’0000)

20045125318 ABEN AHED 2025567308
Increase Decrease
BRRR Controling shareholder 31 Dec 2024 this year this year 30 Jun 2025
ERMERR(Z@) 27 Chongaing Machinery & Electronics
Holding (Group) Co., Ltd. 204,288.50 164,315.92 - 368,604.42
2025 ¥k (309
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2 BRI 5 B Bl W6k 52 5 (4) XI.LRELATED PARTIES AND RELATED-PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(—) BEWEH BE (4) (D RELATED PARTIES (continued)

1. BRI G LT (4 L

3)  FERARHE 19 1T 15 KR B 1 %
HEs R H A (B : HoT)

Controlling Shareholder and Ultimate-controlling Party

(continued)

(3) Shareholdings attributable to controlling

shareholders (Unit: RMB’0000)

BRERH FIRELD(%)

Number of shareholding shares Shareholding proportion (%)
2025568308  2024%12A31A
2025%6A308 20245128318 ] thl
Proportion as
Proportion as of  of December 31,
PRERE Controling shareholder 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024 June 30, 2025 2024

EFHEAR(£@) 27 Chongging Machinery & Electronics

Holding (Group) Co., Ltd. 201,689.52 201,689.52 54.74 54.74

g BEREBEAEROESR
& 18192,422 528 % K 15 51
| THBR 7 i A%9,267.00&
Hgo

2. JHH 2.

FREBERFRAMEIN - 1.(1)
TEEBABKIEEAS -

310 INTERIM REPORT 2025
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Note: The shares held by the controlling shareholders
include 1,924.2252 million shares of restricted
shares and 92.67 million shares of H shares

listed overseas.

Subsidiaries

Please refer to “VIII.1. (1) Group structure” for

information about subsidiaries.
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XII.RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED-PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(—) PR y BiAR () (I) RELATED PARTIES (continued)

&

GHREHRBE LA 3.
AREESHA BB UK
RAMEIN 3OEBNEER
EABME LR ANAE - AR
BRAREEEHBHLS R LE
EEAREE LM XK
BENA ERBECEERNT -

Joint Ventures and Associates

Please refer to “VIII.3. (1) Significant joint ventures or
associates” for information about joint ventures and
associates. The other joint ventures or associates
that entered into transactions in current or previous

year with the Group are addressed below.

AEABELREH HALEBE
Joint venture or associates Relationship with the Group
EERAMEBRERAA BERE
Chongging Cummins Engine Co., Ltd. Joint venture
REREAERS(EE)ERAR HEhE
Knorr-Bremse Systems for Commercial Vehicles (Chongging) Ltd. Associate
ERLETRNAEBREERR HEdE
Chongging Hongyan Fangda Automobile Suspension Co., Ltd. Associate
BRTIIEWMERTEEAA HeEhE
Chongging Jiangbei Machinery Co., Ltd. Associate
EREY (EE)BREMNRERAERA FREZHBERTA]

(ER%: EEMSIIEEHNERAELF)

Chongging Arrows Auto Transmission Parts Co., Ltd

Associate of subsidiary

(previously called Chongging Shenjian AUTOMOBILE Transmission

PARTS Co., Ltd.)
REBER N EEFREERA
Mingin Guoneng Wind Povver Co., Ltd
EEHEEERMNEARD

Chongging Shimade Intelhgent Manufacturing Co., Ltd.

Bk A8
B2

Associate
BEhE
Associate

2025 ¥k (341
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XI.LRELATED PARTIES AND RELATED-PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(—) B A& (&) () RELATED PARTIES (continued)
4 HBEBy 4.  Other Related Parties
HtBam s &M RAKEEER

Other related parties

Relationship with the Group

BIEREDHER AT

Qijiang Gear Transmission Co., Ltd.

EEREAREEEEERARAFEBEEERES QA

Chongqing Electromechanical Holding Group Asset Management
Co., Ltd. Shuanggiao Enterprise Management Branch

EERELAREEREIERNERAA

Chongqing Electromechanical Holding Group Electromechanical
Engineering Technology Co., Ltd.

EEREEBREEFEERAA

Chongqing Electromechanical Holding Group Casting Co., Ltd.

EERERREEEEERARAA

Chongging Electromechanical Holding Group Asset Management
Co., Ltd.

BEEREIEXEEBRAR

Chongging Military Industry Group Co., Ltd.

EFRERHAREEAF

Chongging Crane Factory Co., Ltd

ERBERAEMIEBRAA

Chongqing General Machinery Industry Co., Ltd

BERISHEROBERRAR

Chongging Changjiang Bearing Co., Ltd

EEREFEREBRETAFA

Chongging Zhongbian Electric Appliance Co., Ltd

ERRTIHATEXERAA

Chongging Changjiang Bearing Industry Co., Ltd

ERERAEEEERAERAREMEAA

Chongging Heavy Duty Truck Group Special Vehicle Co., Ltd

EEREEREREEREEEERAA

Chongging Electromechanical Holding Group Xinbo Investment
Management Co., Ltd

EEIRHETHMHEXSEEERLA

Chongging Gongtou Electromechanical Parts Industry Group
Co., Ltd

EEREGIXBREEATR

Chongging Standard Parts Industry Co., Ltd

EEREHIXBRETARIHES A A

Chongqing Standard Parts Industry Co., Ltd. Sales Branch

BEEREHIXBRETAREEFEMHKDY A F

Chongging Standard Parts Industry Co., Ltd. Chongging
Standard Parts Factory Branch

INTERIM REPORT 2025
CHONGQING MACHINERY & ELECTRIC CO., LTD

il SNk
Controlled by the same parent company
S [ — SR
Controlled by the same parent company

XA R EE
Controlled by the same parent company

XE—REE
Controlled by the same parent company
ZR—G AR
Controlled by the same parent company

ER—SRFEH
Controlled by the same parent company
ZRA—G AR
Controlled by the same parent company
XA R EE
Controlled by the same parent company
R~ SR AIEH
Controlled by the same parent company
ZRA—G AR
Controlled by the same parent company
XA R EE
Controlled by the same parent company
ER— SR RIEH
Controlled by the same parent company
ZRA—G AR
Controlled by the same parent company

ZRA—GARLH
Controlled by the same parent company

XR—& R A
Controlled by the same parent company
R RS AR
Controlled by the same parent company
ZR— AR
Controlled by the same parent company
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TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(—) IR W6 5 B 1% () (0]
4. R (#) 4.
Hb B G &8

Other related parties

RELATED PARTIES (continued)

Other Related Parties (continued)

B S B BE 1%
Relationship with the Group

XII.RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED-PARTY

BEEFEMHIXBRETIRARIERSBMENH S A F]

Chongging Standard Parts Industry Co., Ltd. Huazhan Metal
Materials Restructuring Branch

BEEREMHIXBEREIRAFAEERRETEMHH DY A F

Chongging Standard Parts Industry Co., Ltd. Chongging High
Strength Standard Parts Factory Branch

BEREGEMHEREELRA

Chongging Automotive Standard Parts Factory Co., Ltd

BIREEEMENBEREEAA

Qijiang Qichi Xinxin Welfare Co., Ltd

PRt ERAREERR

Southwest Computer Co., Ltd

BEERNMGEBAMERNHREAR LA

Chongging Ernst Long General Aviation Technology Research
Institute Co., Ltd

ERERMEEREREEAF

Chongging Jidian Property Management Co., Ltd

BEERERBREMEAF

Chongging Jian’an Instrument Co., Ltd

EERERAERREMERF

Chongaing Juntong Automobile Co., Ltd

BETAARESHBHEREEAA

Chongging Qichi Automotive Parts Co., Ltd

BEEEAREEEAETEBEFRETLA

Chongging Heavy Duty Truck Group Hongyan Automotive Spring
Co., Ltd

EFPERBEXREGR AT

Chongging Rail Transit Industry Investment Co., Ltd

EEEEFTE(£E) AT

Chongging Standard Parts Industry (Group) Co., Ltd

EEREAREEEEEBERAABEELEERED QA

Chongging Electromechanical Holding Group Asset Management
Co., Ltd. Nan’an Enterprise Management Branch

EEREAREEEEERERAAZICEEESRA

Chongging Electromechanical Holding Group Asset Management
Co., Ltd. Qijiang Enterprise Management Branch

EEMEAERFERERA A"

Chongging Qichi Gear Research Institute Co., Ltd

EEREMR

Chonggqing Standard Parts Factory

EESRERENRK

Chongaing High Strength Standard Parts Factory

RRA—B AR
Controlled by the same parent company

RRA—B AR
Controlled by the same parent company

ER—G AT
Controlled by the same parent company
XA — &R A
Controlled by the same parent company
X B — &2 EE
Controlled by the same parent company
ZR—FAALH)
Controlled by the same parent company

2R—FA ALK
Controlled by the same parent company
XA — &R A
Controlled by the same parent company
XR—& R a1
Controlled by the same parent company
ZR—FAALH)
Controlled by the same parent company
ER—F AR
Controlled by the same parent company

ER—GAA LS
Controlled by the same parent company
R — A4
Controlled by the same parent company
ZR—F AR
Controlled by the same parent company

RRA—B AL
Controlled by the same parent company

2R—FA ALK
Controlled by the same parent company
ER—F AR
Controlled by the same parent company
R A R4
Controlled by the same parent company
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XI.LRELATED PARTIES AND RELATED-PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

5 BB B IR Wk 22 B ()

Other related parties

(—) B A A& (&) () RELATED PARTIES (continued)
4 HUBEB Y (%) 4.  Other Related Parties (continued)
HitEas 5 &% REKEEF

Relationship with the Group

BEEEUMEEEREBRAF

Chongging Zhuoyue Industrial Development Co., Ltd.

EFREER(EE) A RRRAIFE H QA

Science and Technology Innovation Branch of Chongging
Machinery & Electronics Holdings (Group) Company

EERERRERDHNREERRA

Chongging Machinery & Electronics Holdings Power Technology
Co., Ltd.

EEREAREEEEEBERAAMICEEREY QT

Liangjiang Enterprise Management Branch of Chongging
Machinery & Electronics Holdings Asset Management
Co., Ltd.

EEREEREEEEERERATNBAERHES DA

General Energy Technology Branch of Chongging
Machinery & Electronics Holdings Asset Management
Co., Ltd.

EEERATERRAF

Chongging Juntong Automobile Co., Ltd.

BEEEREAERRAQF

Chongqing Longjing Paper Co., Ltd.

BEEMZER(EE)RF

Chongging Light Industry & Textile Holdings (Group)
Company

BEEREMHIXBRETIRARIEE REFTEMHKD AT

Chongging Automobile Standard Parts Factory Branch
of Chongqging Standard Parts Industry Co., Ltd.

BERBREIMBBRAF

Chongging Dove Brand Electrical Materials Co., Ltd.

EFIEEXARAA

Chongging Jiangxia Real Estate Co., Ltd.

BEREREYRARADA

Chonggqing Jiaoyun Electromechanical Logistics Co., Ltd

EERFEESRBRBEREEAA
Chonggqing Special Motor Factory Co., Ltd

ERBRAMEEESEERAT

Chongging General Aviation Industry Group Co., Ltd
BEREAESYMRBRAF

Chongging Anji Hongyan Logistics Co., Ltd
EERSABRAA

Chongaing Robotics Co., Ltd
EEBAMEERAR

Chongging General Aviation Co., Ltd

INTERIM REPORT 2025
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2R—FA T4
Controlled by the same parent company
i SN b
Controlled by the same parent company

S R SN E
Controlled by the same parent company

S R SN b
Controlled by the same parent company

ZR—S ALK
Controlled by the same parent company

R R —& R aEl
Controlled by the same parent company
ZRE—& A aE
Controlled by the same parent company
S Rl SN E |
Controlled by the same parent company

ZA— B2 A
Controlled by the same parent company

X [FE— &R a bl

Controlled by the same parent company

R —& R a

Controlled by the same parent company

(SYNCIIIYEEY /N

Affiliated companies of the parent
company

(SYNCIIINEEY /N

Affiliated companies of the parent
company

B QB PTEEEE A A

Affiliated companies of the parent company

R RIFTEEE AT

Affiliated companies of the parent company

(SYNCIi )N

Affiliated companies of the parent company

BARIMEKZ AR

Affiliated companies of the parent company
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Other related parties
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XII.RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED-PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(I) RELATED PARTIES (continued)

4.  Other Related Parties (continued)

B S B BE 1%
Relationship with the Group

EERARKIEBRAF
Chongqging General Aircraft Industry Co., Ltd

EFRIHRELRRIREFRAA

Chongging Construction Engineering Mechanical
and Electrical Installation Engineering Co., Ltd

EEBRAMEEXSEEMERRBRAA

Chongqging General Aviation Industry Group Avionics

System Co., Ltd

BARIMEBEZ AR

Affiliated companies of the parent
company

BARIMEBEZ AR

Affiliated companies of the parent
company

(SYNCINIIE) Ll

Affiliated companies of the parent
company

(=) BABER 5

1~ IRIERY it

(II) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

1. Procurement of goods

i)l
Related parties

A 5AE

Transactions

2025%1-6 B
Jan-Jun 2025

2024F1-6 A
Jan-Jun 2024

ARt ERAREERR
Southwest Computer Co., Ltd.
BEREAEYRBRAF
Chongging Anji Hongyan
Logistics Co., Ltd.
EREEEREREELA
Chongging Zhongbian Electric
Co., Ltd.
EFEHEXERARRAA
Chongqging Zhuoyue Industrial
Development Co., Ltd.
HTEEME S M
BE/NE
Subtotal of other insignificant
joint ventures/associates
HAEZNXR—&2QA]
2l RN ET
Subtotal of other insignificant
enterprises controlled by
the same parent company

a3

REED
Purchasing goods
REEY

Purchasing goods

REEY

Purchasing goods

REBEY

Purchasing goods
REEY
Purchasing goods
REEY

Purchasing goods

Total

343,816.54

2,622,048.65

2,684,579.68

22,003,727.44

1,051,548.67

2,016,181.60

7,077,358.51

3,621,988.54

3,273,651.47

30,721,902.58

13,872,998.52

2025 FR
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2 BRI 5 B Bl W6k 52 5 (#) XII.RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED-PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(=) B2 5 (4]) (I RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
2 ERZHHEIRE 2. Accepting labor or services
RA R BEZ AR 2025%1-6 A 20244 1-6 A
Related parties Transactions Jan-Jun 2025 Jan-Jun 2024
EEMEEREEEAEESE BRI - 855
BRATA
Chongging Machinery & Accepting labor or services
Electronics Holdings Group
Asset Management Co., Ltd. - 13,170,823.52
EEMEER(KE) QA BRI 55
Chongging Machinery & Accepting labor or services
Electronics Holding (Group)
Co., Ltd. - 4,333,775.37
HMWTEBHEE B BRI - 5%
R NE
Subtotal of other unimportant Accepting labor or services
joint ventures and associates - 4 551,495.56

Htp NERNSZF— A F BERY - 5%
EH R NG

Subtotal of other unimportant Accepting labor or services

enterprises controlled by

the same parent company 306,625.39 1,683,246.17
&st Total 306,625.39 23,639,340.62

316 INTERIM REPORT 2025
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XII.RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED-PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(II) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

3 HERm 3.  Sale of goods
izl ) B2 5B 2025%1-6 A 20244 1-6 4
Related parties Transactions Jan-Jdun 2025 Jan-Jun 2024
(g &)
(As restated)
BRI EEABREERAR HEED
Southwest Computer Co., Ltd. Sale of goods 22,489.87 5,698,471.25
EFEWEER(EE) AR HEED
Chongqging Machinery & Sale of goods
Electronics Holding (Group)
Co., Ltd. 3,702,453.17 1,283,426.76
EEMBLREEKE TR HEED
BRiTER AR
Chongging Electromechanical Sale of goods
Holding Group
Electromechanical Engineering
Technology Co., Ltd 56,100,087.88 7,062,808.17
EERANEDHHBRAF HEED
Chongging Cummins Engine Sale of goods
Co., Ltd 5,949,213.65 2,083,644.73
EEELBREREMAD HEED
Chongging Zhongbian Electr|c Sale of goods
Appliance Co., Ltd. 3,872,040.63 693,134.46
HREEMA L HEED
/NG
Subtotal of other unimportant Sale of goods
joint ventures and associates 2,194,236.63 1,210,453.88
Hih " EEZHXE—&RQF HEED
2 1 2 /N ET
Subtotal of other unimportant Sale of goods
enterprises controlled by
the same parent company 2,980,252.84 2,465,770.00

a3

Total

74,820,774.31

20,497,709.25
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ST AR M (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A B i e I G PR AR T s WA A0 > 38 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

XII.RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED-PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

5 BB B IR Wk 22 B ()

(=) BBEAE 5 (%) (I) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

4> WREPE RIS H 4.  Collect management fees and provide labor services
RA R BB 5AR 2025%1-6 4 20245 1-6 8

Related parties Transactions Jan-Jun 2025 Jan-Jun 2024

HMAE2NZFE—F AR
ZEHI B/ DE

Subtotal of unimportant

R - 5

Providing services and labor

318

enterprises controlled by services

the same parent company = 133,459.28
&5t Total - 133,459.28

5 FHBRMERA 5. Fee and commission income

2] BB 5AR 2025F1-6 A 20245 1-6 8
Related parties Transactions Jan-Jun 2025 Jan-Jun 2024
HMTEEZMEE HE FEE

==Yy
Subtotal of other unimportant Fee

joint ventures and associates 188.68 660.38
TEENZFA—BAAF FHEE

PRI /NG
Subtotal of unimportant Fee

enterprises controlled by

the same parent company 17,856.64 2,947.87
= Total 18,045.32 3,608.25

INTERIM REPORT 2025
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Related parties

BB AR et (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

XII.RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED-PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(II) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

6. Interest income from loans and advances

BB ZZANE

Transactions

2025%1-6 8
Jan-Jun 2025

2024F1-6 A
Jan-Jun 2024

BEREZR(EE) QT
Chongging Machinery &
Electronics Holding

BEHERREBRK
Granting loans and advances

(Group) Co., Ltd 6,129,382.86 3,985,901.47
HMTASEMEE B BB R R B®R

= Y\ap
Subtotal of other unimportant Granting loans and advances

joint ventures and associates 1,425,765.58 2,103,405.58
TEENXRE— &R FEH BWE R B®R

BE/DE
Subtotal of other unimportant Granting loans and advances

enterprises controlled by

the same parent company 3,842,177.76 3,769,319.80
&5t Total 11,397,326.20  9,858,626.85

2025 iR
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ST AR M (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A B i e I G PR AR T s WA A0 > 38 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

2 BRI 5 B Bl W6k 52 5 (#) XII.RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED-PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(=) B2 5 (4]) (I) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
7> BRUTEH B H 7. Deposit interest payments
B7):hal B ZZAE 2025%1-6 A 2024%1-6 A
Related parties Transactions Jan-Jun 2025 Jan-Jun 2024
EEREER(EE) AR T 5B
Chongging Machinery & Deposit interest
Electronics Holding
(Group) Co., Ltd 827,685.59 1,646,171.46
HthTEENEE TE R FLE
BE/DEF
Subtotal of other unimportant Deposit interest
joint ventures and associates 1,881,018.72 151,560.40
TEENZR QA FRF &
1 2N E
Subtotal of other unimportant Deposit interest
enterprises controlled by
the same parent company 3,676,551.23 984,781.06
a5 Total 6,385,255.54 2,782,512.92
S BB TSR 8. Related party lending
g B HHE  AHREHA
Interest
Termination income
B Related Parties Lending amount Start date date for this period

EERBIEHKERAE  Chongging Cummins

Engine Company 17,400,000.00 14 Mar 2016 14 Mar 2026 79,170.00

LIREH (FF) FEAHEAMR Chongging Cummins
EERA Engine Company 5,850,000.00 1 Jan 2024 31 Dec 2025 129,989.27
a5t Total 23,250,000.00 - = 209,159.27
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S5 R MY o (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

XII.RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED-PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(II) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

9 HBRERH 9.  The Related Party Rent
OB L Vsl (1) Related Parties renting
HERE
FEEE
ERE BERR g
HEEE FRE EERE EEE BERE -Ef
LERER FEVES BR ERERA BEALA BERE & BithiE BARE R
Original Accumulated Including:
valugofthe  Right-of-use  depreciation lease liabilities
Types of Lease Termination right-of-use asset of lease  Book value of due within
Name of lessor Name of lessee leased assets  start date date asset  depreciation right assets ~ lease liability one year
EEHERARERRY  ERERK(SE)ARERNT REREN 2% 2026/1231 4R982133 472930 SMONOE4 14288049 95T
BREBNEADY
Southwest Computer Co., Ltd. ~ Chongging Maching Tool (Group) ~~ Building 1-Jan-25 31-Dec-26
Co., Ltd. Paniink Transmission
Technology Branch
EFNEARGEERER  ERIENENBERZAARAT  REREM  amm 25/12031 097585 40830079 4907 824466 5021190H
ERAT
CQMEHG Asset Management  Chongging CAFF Automotive Buiding 1-Jan-25 31-Dec-25
Co, Ltd. Braking&Steering Systems
Co,, Ltd.
ERMEER(RE)INA  EERERGAERLA REREN 20 0251281 1BOT2TI9 200941475 1602786305 218917188 218917188
Chongging Machinery & Chongging Machinery & Buiding 1-Jan-22 31-Dec-25
Electronics Holding Electrc Co. Ltd.
(Group) Co., Ltd
ERBEARERFARLA BEREN 0231111 229512/31 4740311.16 790,051.86 3950,209.28 825,263.03 825,263.03
Chongging Electromechanical Bulding T-Jan-23 31-Dec-25
Holding Group Finance REREN 223011 20%5/12/31 12046448 2,077 44 10038721 21,0808 2120808
Co, Ltd. Buiding 1-Jan-23 31-Dec-25
RERED 0 51281 21356122 35,591.68 17795041 9759624 9750624
Buiding T-Jan-23 31-Dec-25
it Total 3771942183 834206844 2843148441 127565678 9,040,202.14

2025 FR
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ST AR M (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A B i e I G PR AR T s WA A0 > 38 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

2 BRI 5 B Bl W6k 52 5 (#) XI.LRELATED PARTIES AND RELATED-PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(=) BRWEER 5 (4) (I) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
9 BBRIEFH (4) 9.  The Related Party Rent (continued)
2) B (2) The Group has no related parties leasing
10~ BB R 10. Guarantees
(1)  FKIEBELIER T HIIE (R (I) The guarantee provided by the Group as the
guarantor
o None.
Q) KEEEESE BRI (2) The Group as guaranteed party
ERRA
BRA BERS EREE ERERA ERIEA BREARE
Whether
Guaranteed guarantee has
Guarantor Guaranteed party amount Starting date Due date been fulfilled
EFRERR(EE) 2 EFRERNBRAR 27,600,000.00 2016-3-14 2031-3-14 g
Chongging Machinery & Chongaing Machinery & No
Electronics Holding (Group) Electric Co., Ltd.
Co., Ltd
17,400,000.00 2016-3-14 2026-3-14 &
No
&t Total 45,000,000.00 - - -
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BB AR et (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(AR A TS R 2 B Gk R AR Bl G R A0 - 2 AN R T 31 7))

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

XII.RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED-PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(IIT) BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

MW 1. Accounts receivable
202546 H30H 2024%F12H31H
RAHE 5 B B TE Related parties 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
(&)
(As restated)
BEMELR (£E) QR Chongging Machinery &
Electronics Holding (Group)
Co., Ltd. 1,350.00 2,677.00

HTIEREHERAA

EEREEREBLT
TREARA A

LREDH(FF) BERRK
BREMERA

BEERRBRERKE
BRAE

BERTIEHMARARE
N

EFETHRERRIRE
BRAF

Hth TEENEE B
©E/DE

HMAEZNZFE—FAQ
AE S B NGT

a3

Qijiang Gear Transmission
Co., Ltd

Chongging Electromechanical
Holding Group
Electromechanical Engineering
Technology Co., Ltd.

Chongging Arrows Auto
Transmission Parts Co., Ltd.

Chongging Rail Transit Industry
Investment Co., Ltd

Chongging Jiangbei Machinery
Co., Ltd.

Chongging Construction
Engineering Mechanical
and Electrical Installation
Engineering Co., Ltd

Subtotal of other unimportant
joint ventures and associates

Subtotal of other unimportant
enterprises controlled by the
same parent company

Total

65,447,654.87

51,390,714.84
843,727.52
2,474,038.20

10,342,268.36

7,846,496.23

2,955,416.85

10,327,368.25

65,449,154.87

13,880,921.76
6,166,157.93
17,434,986.25

10,361,092.36

306,965.38

19,094,395.95

151,629,035.12

132,696,351.50
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ST AR M (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A A TS R 22 B sk R R L G A A0 - ¥ RA N RO H117R%) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

XII.RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED-PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

5 BB B IR Wk 22 B ()

(=) B 1Ak %50 (41) (III) BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)

2~ HER 2. Other receivables
3 20256 H30H 2024512 H831H
B 7 B AT Related parties 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024

ETIamREHAERAR

Qijiang Gear Transmission
Co., Ltd

19,841,743.24

19,841,743.24

EERBEEIMEAR  Chongging Pigeon Electric
N Materials Co., Ltd. 9,159,412.58 17,375,624.59
HIREH (EE)BHRE Chongging Arrows Auto
BREEA Transmission Parts Co., Ltd. 6,460,838.16 6,482,312.96
EEWEER (£E) 27 Chongging Machinery &
Electronics Holding (Group)
Co., Ltd 295,120.00 419,947.59
HMW A AEENZE— Subtotal of other unimportant
A A I NET affiliated companies of
parent companies 1,725,691.85 1,110,178.35
HTEBHAE B Subtotal of other unimportant
2 /NE enterprises controlled by
the same parent company 570,759.12 169,211.75
et Total 38,053,564.95 45,399,018.48

324 INTERIM REPORT 2025

CHONGQING MACHINERY & ELECTRIC CO., LTD



1 B B IR Wk 22 5 ()

(=) I8 Wik iy 2 24 B 0 ()

SAB R T AE (A7)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(AR A TS R 2 B Gk R AR Bl G R A0 - 2 AN R T 31 7))

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

XII.RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED-PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(IIT) BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)

3 ERIRF 3. Dividends receivable
202546 H30H 2024F12H31H
RAHE 5 B B TE Related parties 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
EEFEAHEEH®AER  Chongging Cummins Engine
NGT Co., Ltd 217,042,558.58 286,995,004.64
HiTEEEWMAE B % Subtotal of other unimportant
/NG joint ventures and associates 1,937,456.38 1,937,456.38
&5t Total 218,980,014.96 288,932,461.02
4> HRHEE 4.  Contract assets
- FAREAE FY8R78
A 7 B 4 T Related parties 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
ERHEBEEEEE  Chongging Rail Transit Industry
HRAQF] Investment Co., Ltd. 15,403,682.98 =
EEMEEREEME  Chongging Electromechanical
TEEMAR QA Holding Group
Electromechanical Engineering
Technology Co., Ltd. 7,202,229.64 =
EEMEIER (£E) 27 Chongging Machinery &
Electronics Holding (Group)
Co., Ltd. 429,811.32 -
TEZHEE BE Subtotal of unimportant joint
¥ G ventures and associates 1,282,594.76 1,044,937 .14
TEEMXRE—F2A  Subtotal of other unimportant
Il /AT enterprises controlled by
the same parent company 1,600,106.35 6,803,217.57
a5 Total 25,918,425.05 7,848,154.71
5~ —AERBBN I BB E 5. Non-current assets due within one year
202546 H30H 2024F12H31H
FAHE 5 BB TE Related parties 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
EERPHEHEER Chongging Cummins Engine
NG| Co., Ltd. 18,330,399.68 17,998,806.45
&5t Total 18,330,399.68 17,998,806.45
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ST AR M (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A B i e I G PR AR T s WA A0 > 38 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

2 BRI 5 B Bl W6k 52 5 (#) XII.RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED-PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(=) Bl o7 12k ik 2 (%) (III) BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)

326

6~  RHEWH 6. Long-term receivables
20254 6H30H 2024F12A31H
B 7 B AT Related parties 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
EERRATEBH Chongging Cummins Engine
BIRAF] Co., Ltd. - 8,999,403.23
a5t Total - 8,999,403.23

7~ FERCE R Ba

AR 07 B0 T

7.  Loans and advances to customers

Related parties

20256 H30H
30 Jun 2025

20245 12H31H
31 Dec 2024

EF#EER(EE) QA

EERHER(EE) QA

Chongging Machinery &
Electronics Holding (Group)
Co., Ltd

Chonggqing Light Textile Holding
(Group) Corporation

496,000,000.00

150,108,333.33

508,454,850.00

EERTIHARMAR  Chongging Changjiang Bearing

N Co., Ltd 108,786,121.62 154,795,100.25
EFEFERAMREMT  Chongging Zhongbian Electric

~A] Appliance Co., Ltd 59,963,691.67 61,980,633.05
EETIHEMAERSAE  Chongging Jiangbei Machinery

N Co., Ltd. 41,034,166.66 46,042,166.68
EFSENREEEEA Chongging Heavy Duty Truck

AEAREFAA Group Special Vehicle Co., Ltd. 36,933,038.33 -
BEERASEHANAEHELE  Chongging Hongyan Fangda

BRAF Automotive Suspension Co., Ltd. 33,028,416.66 70,066,305.55
EREBAREAMREMT  Chongging Juntong Automobile

N Co., Ltd. 27,022,500.00 15,013,750.00
ERAEZEMEB AR Chongging Automotive Standard

BEAR Parts Factory Co., Ltd 11,278,082.76 807,383.08
EEEENHTEABREMT Chongging Standard Parts

NEIEESBEZEM  Industry Co., Ltd. Chongging

AN/ High Strength Standard Parts

Factory Branch 9,646,860.69 -

HtTEBHAEE B Subtotal of unimportant joint

1 /NET ventures and associates 299,981.66 1,557,769.02
B TrEEMNZRE— Subtotal of other unimportant

A RESIE DG enterprises controlled by

the same parent company 3,211,220.49 -

a3t

Total

977,312,413.87

858,717,957.63
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SAB R T AE (A7)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

XII.RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED-PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(IIT) BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)

8- JEMHEH 8. Accounts payable
202556 430H 2024%12A318
AR 7 B A 5 A Related parties 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
BEHIBES RS Chongging Sino-Germany Smart
BRARA Factory Solutions Co., Ltd. 12,627,713.88 =
EFEFERAFMRAMT  Chongging Zhongbian Electric
NCT Appliance Co., Ltd 4,004,873.72 4,292,248.06
BEEBHREWRAR  Chongging Jiaoyun
NG Electromechanical Logistics
Co., Ltd - 6,868,910.75
HihT"EEEWMAE B2 Subtotal of unimportant joint
/NG ventures and associates 2,054,378.47 2,128,546.10
HMAEEMZRF— Subtotal of other unimportant

SHNSIELRS YNy

enterprises controlled by

the same parent company 17,653,085.25

14,554,076.33

&5t Total 36,340,051.32 27,843,781.24

9 HAhHESE 9. Other payables
2025%6H30H 2024%F12H31H
s 7 BB B Related parties 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
(&)

(As restated)

EEREEREEEE
BEBMRAA

EFRERR(EE) AR

RYBEERANEETAR
/NG

Ht NERMNE R —
(SNCIEE R

Hth TEENEE e
EE/E

Chongging Electromechanical
Holding Group Asset
Management Co., Ltd. Nan'an
Enterprise Management Branch

Chongging Machinery &
Electronics Holding (Group)

80,934,305.17

49,285,771.99

Co., Ltd 25,598,932.96 25,131,5693.14
Mingin Guoneng Wind Power
Co., Ltd 14,455,000.00 14,552,866.47

Subtotal of unimportant joint
ventures and associates
Subtotal of other unimportant
enterprises controlled by

the same parent company -

2,591,908.82

2,437,780.28

84,196.81

Total 123,580,146.95

91,492,208.69
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202541 1 H 202546130 H
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From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

XII.RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED-PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(IIT) BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)

10~ W17 10. Deposit taking
2025%6H30H 202412 H31H
B B AT Related parties 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
EEEGER(EE) AT Chongging Light Textile Holding (Group)
Corporation 229,004,880.33 -
EEHMERR(EE) AR Chongqing Machinery & Electronics
Holding (Group) Co., Ltd. 203,788,234.00 30,680,291.48
ERRTRBAREALA Chongging Jian'an Instrument Co., Ltd. 144,673,710.46 207,733,604.24
EFETEXSEARRA Chonggqing Military Industry Group
Co., Ltd. 108,202,540.88 87,193,573.74
EERERREEKETR Chonggqing Electromechanical Holding
BiTBERAR Group Electromechanical Engineering
Technology Co., Ltd. 82,925,214.71 202,676,204.14
F%E@T HQ%N BRE Chongging Electromechanical Holding
EBERA Group Xinbo Investment Management
Co., Ltd. 76,683,448.41 85,747,194.66
EREHERERERAA Chongging Superior Industrial
Development Co., Ltd 74,943,272.24 -
E T REBEFGHNRE Chongging Electromechanical Holding
ARR Group Power Technology Co., Ltd 58,742,849.38 =
iFL%ﬁn FEXSEER Chongging General Aviation Industry
NS Group Co., Ltd 49,929,150.01 52,680,383.67
AR EREREEAT Southwest Computer Co., Ltd 13,740,388.05 21,094,491.50
G E@iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ&@ﬂ Chongging Juntong Automobile Co., Ltd 13,501,671.20 44,082,138.19
BERIMAROERR Chongging Changjiang Bearing Co., Ltd 12,203,958.55 =
EEEE #I%ﬁ@ﬁﬁ Al Chongqing Standard Parts Industrial
Co., Ltd 5,856,121.00 50,769.04
EEIEEXERN Chongging Jiangxia Real Estate Co., Ltd 5,700,181.92 =
ERSEYERARE TEE Chongging Zhongbian Electric Appliance
Co., Ltd 5,051,111.19 -
EEEZEMHETEFBEMLF  Chongging Standard Parts Industrial
EEREAFHAT Co., Ltd. Chongqing standard parts
factory branch 1,028,386.76 21,661,602.39
EEBEEIMHEBRAT Chongging Pigeon Electric Materials
Co., Ltd. 375.62 1,473,907.06
BEABEEEGFEEREMAT Chongging Automobile Standard Parts
Factory Co., Ltd 26.47 16,418,389.10
EEBRARRIZERAT Chongging General Machinery Industry
Co., Ltd - 1,297,245.62
EEMEABERAARER Chongging Qichi Gear Research Institute
NS Co., Ltd. 262,386.60 62,217.39
HUAEEHALE HE0%  Subtotal of unimportant joint ventures
Nt and associates 688,734.31 31,266,488.14
HUAEEHNXA—BAF Subtotal of other unimportant enterprises
BEHSE NG controlled by the same parent company 22,450,726.61 10,275,384.22
&t Total 1,109,377,368.70 814,393,884.58
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

R B BRI R BR A I G W40 > B AR THIR)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(IIT) BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)

&l A 11. Contractual liabilities
20256 H30H 202412 H31H
B 7 B AT Related parties 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
EERELREEKLS  Chongging Machinery &
TiERM AR AR Electronics Holding (Group)
Co., Ltd. - 6,112,665.55
TEEMAE BHE Subtotal of unimportant joint
NG ventures and associates 3,001,263.00 8,849.56
TNEZHFEFA—BAT  Subtotal of other unimportant
ZEH R DNE enterprises controlled by
the same parent company 207.08 60,343.08
ch Total 3,001,470.08 6,181,858.19
—4E [N 2R 1 FE 05 B A 12. Non-current liabilities due within one year
20256 H30H 2024%F12A318
FAHE 7 B BT Related parties 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
ERMEEREREE  Chongqging Electromechanical
BIEARAT Holding Group Asset
Management Co., Ltd. 5,021,190.34 10,130,102.52
EEREER (£E) Q7R Chongging Machinery &
Electronics Holding (Group)
Co., Ltd. 3,073,239.23 7,564,561.81
FrEETEKEREMT AR Southwest Computer Co., Ltd. 945,772.57 =
CE Total 9,040,202.14 17,694,664.33

2025 3R |
EERERMNERRA]

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

XII.RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED-PARTY
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

20254F 1 H 1 H %#20254F6 30 H

From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(A A 55 i 2 B S BR AR I Gk WA b > B RL AR JTI7%)  (All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)
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XII.RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED-PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(IIT) BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)

13. related party commitments

202556 H30H 202412 H31H
Related parties 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024

ERFREREREEEE

Chongging Electromechanical

BEARAT Holding Group Asset
Management Co., Ltd. 3,233,233.32 =
TrstE%AREE AR Southwest Computer Co., Ltd. 483,122.39 -
a5t Total 3,716,355.71 =

14~ BB Iy &t

14. related party commitments

AEBREEAERAEBN S The Group has no related party commitments on the

AGEEIE o

(PY) & - G B I %

balance sheet date.

(IV) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

FTEEEEFN(BREENRENES - The main management remuneration (including the
EERSAEEENSE) OT amount paid and payable to the directors, supervisors

and senior management) is as follows:

2025%1-6 8 2024F1-6 A

EH Item Jan-Jun 2025 Jan-Jun 2024

e K2R Salaries and allowances 1,513,149.93 2,153,460.00
HtERE - - EEESR Social insurance, housing funds and

R RSB related pension costs 395,317.93 690,580.65

e bonus 694,600.00 1,109,280.00

SEr Total 2,603,067.86 3,953,320.65

INTERIM REPORT 2025
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A B i e I G PR AR L s B A1 > 35 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

2 BRIk 5 B R i 52 5 (#8) XII.RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED-PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(F) MEW g5 & B0 B fe 3K (V) BORROWINGS RECEIVABLE OF DIRECTORS AND

DIRECTORS’ RELATED PARTIES

1. ARBEEKES BFMEBLX 1. The Group has no receivables from directors and
REERIER - director-related corporate loans.
2. FAEBEAEE BESHHMOERS 2. The Group does not provide guarantees for directors
FIRBERIBR and director-related corporate loans.
12 B A XIII. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
o None.
T s K A B IE XIV. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
1. HERGHHIE 1. Important commitments

LTAREEREERERA  E&4L Capital expenditure contracted during the reporting period
N UEEEBER L REERME but not yet incurred by the Group:
G

2025%6H30H 2024%12H31H
THH ltem 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
BE - ZEYRHEER House, building and equipment 44,821,428.77 35,707,805.73
A&t Total 44,821,428.77 35,707,805.73
NTAEEEREEABRRA  EELD The following are the credit commitments signed by the
i NN EEE B EER EVIRAEE& Group and not yet listed on the balance sheet:
B

202546 A30H 2024%F12A318
B H Item 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
RITERNEE Bank acceptance 363,332,915.60 370,194,782.25
FERLE IR K Non financing guarantee letter 109,707,656.54 110,294,703.94
FHAERIR Sell out discount 34,589,171.29 273,535,043.35
A&t Total 507,629,743.43 754,024,529.54

2025 3R |
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A B i e I G PR AR T s WA A0 > 38 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

M- AR K g A S IE (48) XIVCOMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

(CONTINUED)
2. HAFH 2. Contingencies
B 1F2025%F6 A30R AL EEFTHE As of June 30, 2025, there are no material contingent
KEAHEEHE - liabilities of the Group that require disclosure.

P B AMEHRFE XV. EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE BALANCE

SHEET DATE

1. EEMIEAESIE: 1. Important non-adjusting events:
RNEBR2025F8A20R BHRE LEE
EBBFERGHE  GRIEFELE
BB ARKOOUT R (EH) M8
RS ERF - O RRMESEEFTTA
R #36,846,401.547T (B /) MM 2

The Group convened the Second Meeting of the Seventh
Board of Directors on August 20, 2025, at which it was
proposed that the Group distribute dividends to all
shareholders at RMBO0.01 per share (tax inclusive). The

total proposed dividend amount is RMB36,846,401.54 (tax

it 77 2 8 7 1B B AR = E 0 2025F 10 A
28 AWM FEREASIE - EitbZ
BAOBRRFI M AERY ERETERE
afE-

inclusive). This dividend distribution proposal is subject to
approval by the Group’s shareholders’ meeting scheduled
to be held on October 28, 2025. Accordingly, the
proposed dividend has not been recognized as a liability

in these financial statements.

rEEEEEAGBRBEENHEERM - 2. The Group has no significant sales returns after the
balance sheet date.
BRiEFELnEEEERAKEERES 3. Except for the disclosure of events after the balance sheet

BN REEEEMEREERERA
®EHE-

INTERIM REPORT 2025
CHONGQING MACHINERY & ELECTRIC CO., LTD

date mentioned above, the Group has no other significant

events after the balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(A B i e I G PR AR L s B A1 > 35 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

1A~ it B R HIH

7% B T A 4t S A6 O
BEAREFAEETEG021FE X
BRAHIORE - RE QAR H2021
FRERUYGEFS  TER(EEHE
ROBRAE (AH) CEFEHTERER
AR EITEIR - B 1E20255F6 H30H
REABRTARSHEESHENHAS
DB A3,601A °

g ke B

REE B W E D #ERARIE TR E AR
% RENRMEKENEBET - i
REREEBIEF 2 TR RIMAT
HEE Fit AEEDMBLEES
BERED BN EELE RS LFEHR
RERR  WARERELEERILFTE
HEWE -

AEBBMEBESE - DRI -

HHEOR AELEVHERDHRE

= o
oA

BRAEHORN BEEETHEBRMAK
PREE M

BEERSH  BEEEWIHERE
=

XVI. OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

The Group’s annuity plan establishment

According to the fifth session of the board of directors
in 2021 first meeting minutes and resolution, agreed
to the company headquarters since 2021 to establish
enterprise annuity, and in accordance with the Chongqing
electromechanical co., LTD. (headquarters) enterprise
annuity plan rules for management, as of June 30,2025,
the company headquarters and subsidiary to participate

in the annuity plan number of 3,601 people respectively.

Segment information

The group’s reporting segments are business units
operating on the basis of different products or services,
or in different regions. As various businesses or regions
require different technologies and market strategies, the
group’s divisions independently manage the production
and operation activities of each reporting division and
evaluate its operating results in order to determine the

allocation of resources to it and evaluate its performance.

The Group has 9 reporting divisions which are:

Engine division, responsible for the production and sales

of engine products;

General machinery division, responsible for producing

and selling general mechanical products;

Wind turbine blade division, responsible for producing

and selling wind turbine blades;

2025 FR
EEMERHERAR

333



334

ST AR M (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 1 H 202546130 H
CRIPBS R B RE RS R GE IS0 LA RWEIE51R)

A oty 35 0A (4)

2.

gy ik B (4
BREBEEDH AELEVHEERSE
BEm:

BREEDH AELEYHESHE
BEEBEM
%(T ﬁ&J?T( DER - BB B BN A E

SEEERENE ARLESHERE
ED

on

MEHED B - BEMBHHE

7 BRI ER KL HRIRET -

BE BE WARERAREDHBHE

INTERIM REPORT 2025
CHONGQING MACHINERY & ELECTRIC CO., LTD

From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

XVL. OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS (CONTINUED)

Segment information (continued)

Wire and cable division, responsible for the production

and sales of wire and cable products;
Intelligent manufacturing division, responsible for
producing and selling high-end intelligent equipment

products;

CNC machine tools division, responsible for the production

and sales of CNC machine tools in China and Europe;

High voltage transformer division, responsible for the

production and sales of high voltage transformer products;

Material sales division, responsible for material sales;

Financial services division, responsible for providing

financial services such as loans;

Other divisions, responsible for producing and selling

other products.

The inter-division transfer price shall be determined by

both parties through negotiation.

Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses are allocated

according to the operations of the segment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
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ST AR M (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A A 55 i 2 B S BR AR I Gk WA b > B RL AR JTI7%)  (All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

XVI. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE FINANICAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

b BE 2 W B B R 32 SR H Rk (4)

1. HApb Bk (8) 1. Other Receivables (continued)

12 EAbREN S (4)

1.2 Other receivables (continued)

Q) HAbRENEAREE T (2) Aging analysis

340

2025%6H30H 2024%12H31H
BRBQ Aging 30 Jun 2025 31 Dec 2024
1F AR Within one year 65,865,849.10 110,855,194.32
1F F2fF 1-2 years 821,390.87 60,053,121.51
2FEEIF 2-3 years 60,053,120.66 225,399.22
3E L Over 3 years: 307,706,532.68 307,481,212.87
Heh : 3FEAF Including: 3-4 years 225,399.22 19,365,365.24
4F B5F 4-5 years 19,365,365.24 199,707,525.83
5F K Over 5 years 288,115,768.22 88,408,321.80
HtERRES Total 434,446,893.31 478,614,927.92
R EREREAE Less: Provision for

H 1 BB WK R TEFHE

impairment

Carrying amount

365,837,690.71

365,837,690.71

68,609,202.60

112,777,237.21

INTERIM REPORT 2025
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(A B i e I G PR AR L s B A1 > 35 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

- B0 w) B ek 32 H H R R (40 XVI. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE FINANICAL

1. Bt ok (%)

12

STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

1. Other Receivables (continued)

Al W (F) 1.2 Other receivables (continued)
3 A IE N 5 R 742 T 74 (3) Other receivables with provision for bad debts based
Vox - E2kn on the expected credit risk portfolio

E-K& EZER EEL
Stage | Stage Il Phase lII
BEFES BEFES
BREGRABX  BAGREX
KR12{8 A (RBEER (BREER

EHEREX HE) HE) Bt
Expected credit Expected
loss for the credit loss
entire duration for the entire
Expect credit (no credit  duration (credit
loss for the next impairment  impairment has
BRER Bad debt provision 12 months occurred) occurred) Total
2024%12A318 Balance of 31 December 2024 - - 365,837,690.71 365,837,690.71
HiEUGHEREERES  The book balance of bad
BHAH debt provision for other
receivables in the current
period - - - =
~EAECRE — converts into the second
stage - - - -
—BEAE-KR - converts into the third stage = = = S
~BmE R - converts back to the second
stage = - - -
-E0E-KR — converts back to the first
stage - - - -
KR Accrued = = - -
REER Collected back = = - -
RHEEH Transferred back = = - -
REH Write off = - - -
Hfh& Other changes = - - -
2025%6430H Balance of 30 Jun 2025 - - 365,837,690.71 365,837,690.71
2025 13 (341
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(A B i e I G PR AR T s WA A0 > 38 DL N RS IC17R) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

o BRO W BB R 32 SR H Rk (4) XVIL

L oAl ok ()
12 EAbREN S (4)

(3)  FAIE N A7 AR T 4 T i
TSN ()
1) EBEETRHBERERX
R SR IR AR 4B

NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE FINANICAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

1. Other Receivables (continued)
1.2 Other receivables (continued)

(3) Other receivables with provision for bad debts based

on the expected credit risk portfolio (continued)

1) The other receivables recognized provision

for bad debts separately

2025%6A30A
30 Jun 2025
REAE BEER BREBWA) HRER
Provision for
E4 Name Book balance bad debts  Percentage (%) Reason
EEMIILIE Chongging Shangshe 287,276,230.04  287,276,230.04 100.00  not expected to be
SN Chemical Co., Ltd. recoverable
N
EIEBEEHAE  Qijang Gear Transmission 78,561460.67  78,561,460.67 100.00  not expected to be
RAR Co., Ltd recoverable
EHE:YE!
Ch Total 365,837,690.71  365,837,690.71 =

) F Al JE AR A AR
4 ] 2 ] ) S5 S A e

(4) Other accounts receivable bad debt reserves

provisioned, recovered or reversed this period

3] k]
Current period’s change amount
0245128318 e kESER  AHEEE By 202568308
Items 5] Withdrawal ~ Transfer or
31 Dec 2024 Accrued or reversal write off Others 30 Jun 2025
Provision for impairment SRER 365,837,690.71 - - - - 365,837,690.71
Total At 365,837,690.71 - - - - 365,837,690.71

(5) LS AR SRR A 1 H
I SN5 H

342 INTERIM REPORT 2025
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(5) The company has no other accounts receivable that

have been actually written off this period



S5 R MY o (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A A TS R 2 Bk R R L G A A0 - ¥ RA NIRRT H117R%) (Al amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

- B0 w) B ek 32 H H R R (40 XVI. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE FINANICAL

STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

1. Hfl bk () 1.  Other Receivables (continued)
12 HEAbEEYH (%) 1.2 Other receivables (continued)
(6) 15k Ty Bt 5 19 F K AR BH AT (6) Top 5 other receivables at the end of this period

T HY T A ST

EEpERE
HRGEAH SREES
Bfi M AEME 025%68308 i e 0l(%) REE
Percentage
of other
receivables  Ending balance
ending of bad debt
Name of debtors Nature 30Jun2025  Aging balance(%) provision
ERFIHIIARDA RBRAFE - R RAE SEN L
Chongqing Shangshe Chemical Funds Held in Trust, 267,276,230.04  More than 5 years 66.12  287,276,230.04
Co., Ltd borrowings and interest
AIEBEGERLA B RAE 235 455
Qijiang Gear Transmission Co., Ltd Borrowings and interest 78,561,460.67  2-3 year 4-byears 18.08 78,561,460.67
ERAR (5E)BRELAA EHRHAS 1E LR
Chongging Machine Tool (Group) Borrowings and interest 27,486,995.26  Within 1 year 6.33 =
Co, Ltd
ERKREBARELAA EHRHS &R
Chongging Water Turbine Factory Borrowings and interest 16,308,926.02  Within 1 year Sk -
Co., Ltd
ERRAIE (5B ARAMLAA EHRHS &R
Chongging General Industry (Group) Co.,  Borrowings and interest 13,439,101.49  Within 1 year 3.09 =
Ltd.
Total 423,072,713.48 9738  365,837,690.71
At
(7)) P& 2 LA i S R (7) Reported as other receivables due to centralized fund
il M management
4 o None.

8) [EWE TEXIFN

4 o
Py

(8)

Receivable employee loans

None.

2025 FR
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ST AR M (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(A A 55 i 2 B S BR AR I Gk WA b > B RL AR JTI7%)  (All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

- B F) BB ek 3 BIA H R R () XVI. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE FINANICAL

STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

344

2. REIRHERE

n)  RAERER &5

2. Long-term equity investments

(1) Classification of long-term equity investments

2025%6A30A
30 Jun 2025
REHE HEER REEE
ER ltems Book balance Impairment Book value
HIRARE Investment in subsidiaries 4,880,513,132.08 484,925,597.65 4,395,587,534.43
Hie  AERERS Investment in associates and joint
ventures 1,611,171,897.11 - 1,611,171,897.11
At Total 6,491,685,029.19 484,925,597.65 6,006,759,431.54
2024%12A31H
31 Dec 2024
FR#E REEE RREE
ER ltems Book balance Impairment Book value
HTRA%E Investment in subsidiaries 4,680,513,132.08 467,074,097.65 4,213,439,034.43
HEE  BEDER Investment in associates and joint
ventures 1,473,979,446.50 - 1,473,979,446.50
At Total 6,154,492,578.58 467,074,097.65  5,687,418,480.93

INTERIM REPORT 2025
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2. RMIRRERE (8)

2 HrAakE

SRS T R ML (A2

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

R B BRI R BR A I G W40 > B AR THIR)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

XVI. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE FINANICAL

STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

2. Long-term equity investments (continued)

(2) Investments in subsidiaries

KEEARY
Increase and decrease in the period
AEER
NUEAIA REER A2556R30R N5E6ANR
(5mER) Eng B HORE  MREEER i (5mER) BE
Impaiment
provision at 30 Jun 2025
31 Dec 2024 the beginning 30Jun 2025 (Balance of
(Carmying of the year Provision for (Carrying impairment
hhEEL Investee amourt) balance Increase Decrease impairment Others amoun) provision)
ERFRIENHERZAERAE  Chongging CAFF Automolive
Braking & Steering System Co,,
Ltd 264,485219.18 - - - - - 264485219.18 -
ERKGREERLTA Chongaing Water Turbing Works
Co, Ltd. 166,516,138 372,396.204.11 - - - - 166516,11389 37230820411
ERERBRRERRLA Chongaing Pigeon Electic Wires
& Cables Co, Ltd 17174324021 - 200,000,000.00 - - - a0 -
ERARIZ(SB)EREART  Chongaing General Industry
(Group) Co, Ltd 664,215,717.15 - - - - - 6421571715 -
ERRRHHRALA Chongaing Chengfei New
Materials Co., Ltd. 651,423978.00 = - - - - 65142397800 -
ERKREAREALT Chongging Pump Industry Co,
Ltd 197411,466.90 - - - - - 197,411,466.90 -
ERFERERARREANG  Chongging Gas Compressor
Factory Co, Lid. 187,313,860.15 - - - - - 18731386015 -
ERUR(EE)AREANT Chongaing Maching Tools (Group)
Co, Ltd. 1,061,137,386.00 = = - - - 1061,137,386.00 -
ERRERREAGEARAD  Chongging Machinery and
Electronics Holding Group
Finance Co, Lid. 551,067,852.58 = = = = - 551,087.862.58 =
BERAEEARAA (PTG) Precison Technologies Group
(PTG) Limite 12684133221 67,595,605.54 - - 17,851,500.00 - 10898983221 85,447,106.54
ERTEB&ENRORRAT  Chongging Industial Enabling
Innovation Center Co,, Ltd. - 27,080,288.00 - - - - - 27,080,288.00
ERUEREAERRDA Chongaing Machinery & Electronic
Inteligent Manufacturing Co,
Ltd. 161,375,113.00 - - - - - 161.375,113.00 -
FEPEREEREAREAAA  Xinjang Zhongyinhong Energy
Senice Co., Ltd. 9,867,755.10 - - - - - 9,8687,756.10 -
Aif Total 421343003443 46707409765 200,000,000.00 - 17,851,500.00 - 439550753443 48492559765
2025 ¥k (345
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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3. BREBAMERRA

S5 R MY o (A7)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

202541 H 1 H %20254F6 H30H  From 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025

(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

VIIL.NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF THE FINANICAL
STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

3. Operating revenue & operating cost

2025%1-68 2024 1-6

Jan-Jun 2025 Jan-Jun 2024
WA BA WA KA
EE ltem Revenue Cost Revenue Cost
TEEBRA Operation revenues 1,955,332.38 573,529.41 = =
ECES TN Other operations 5,183,106.83 4.168,227.86 -
it Total 7,138,439.21 573,529.41 4,168,227.86 =

4. HHEWHE 4. Investment income

2025%1-61 2024F1-6 A
HE ltems Jan-Jun 2025 Jan-Jun 2024

ERERENRARER SRS

RAEZENRBRERE R

Investment income from long-term

equity investments in equity

284,127,804.28

308,722,122.75

method 384,353,682.47
Investment income of long-term

equity investments in cost

method 60,008,892.82
Total 444,362,575.29

592,849,927.03

it ARENMFERANEER A EARRS o

IR BE 75 3R 45 7A2025F8 A20H H AN &£ E

BESHERD -

Note: No significant restriction of investment income of the Group.

The financial statements was approved by the Board of

Directors of the Group for disclosure on August 20, 2025.

2025 FR
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

202541 H 1 H% 20254 6 430 H From 1 Januar
AR A TS R 2 B Sk R AR Bl R A0 - 2 AN R T 31 7))

y 2025 to 30 June 2025
(All amounts are presented in RMB except otherwise stated)

1L AW iR AR DA AN % 1. DETAILS OF EXTRAORDINARY PROFIT OR
LOSS FOR THE PERIOD
20255168
B H ltems Jan-Jun 2025
FRBEEERERS (BECHIEAE  Non-current asset disposal gains and losses (including the offsetting
REEENREHTH) portion of the provision for impairment of assets) 8,529,202.73
SAEHBRNBGHE (EARIEREE  Government subsidies included in the current period’s profit and loss
EHEEE - FEAKBRAT - (excluding government subsidies closely related to the company’s
RRBENZEZE HARER normal business operations, in compliance with national policies
EARBYENBRREBRIN and regulations, enjoyed according to determined standards, and
having a continuous impact on the company’s profit and loss) 54,299,299.41
BRRAAREREEEBERNERES Except for effective hedging business related to the normal
REZBI FEROEBALBEEM  operation of the company, the fair value gains and losses arising
CRABEANARBEEZYBEEUR from the holding of financial assets and financial liabilities by
RECREENERMBBELNER non-financial enterprises, as well as the gains and losses arising
, from the disposal of financial assets and financial liabilities -3,126,176.78
FAEHERNEES RO F KT Funds occupation fees charged to non-financial enterprises included
BeHAE in current profit and loss =
BEREHRER Profit and loss from debt restructuring 7,505,521.36
rEAERLSE RS TEREMELR The one-time expenses incurred by the enterprise due to the
—REER MEERINIEE discontinuation of related business activities, such as expenses
for resettling employees, etc -
BEMSIBZIMGEMEEINRAMZE  Other non-operating income and expenses other than the above
items 1,755,167.11
N Subtotal 68,963,013.83
w o EHEES Less: Income tax impact amount 3,455,929.74
SERFEEETEE (FiR) Minority shareholder equity impact (after tax) -19,325.50
SHr Total 65,526,409.59
2. TE WA AR BB AR 2. RETURN ON NET ASSETS AND EARNINGS PER SHARE
SRUE (/1K)
Earnings per share (RMB/share)
MEFHFEE
15 (%) ExgRKE RESRKE
Weighted mean Basic earnings Diluted earnings
REDAE Profit for the reporting period Return on equity(%) per share per share
FRNORALBRBENFHE Net profit attributable to shareholders
of the company 5.05 0.1 0.11
NBECREHBEEEBNE AR Net profit attributable to the common
LRRRENFAE shareholders of the parent company
after deducting non-recurring gains
and losses 4.25 0.10 0.10
ERRERGARALA Chongging Machinery & Electric Co., Ltd.
—OZhHRFENAZ=T+H 20 August 2025
448 INTERIM REPORT 2025
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